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Registered and Head office
1 Churchill Place

Londen E14 5HP

Tel +44 (0)20 7116 1000

Company No 1026167

The term ‘Barclays PLC Group' or the ‘Croup’ means Barclays PLC together
with its subsidiarles and the term *Barclays Bank PLC Group® means Barclays
Bank PLC tagether with its subsidiarles. ‘Barclays’ is used 1o refer to either of
the preceding groups when the subject matter Is identcal The term ‘Parent
Company’ or ‘Parent’ refers to Barclays PLC and the term ‘Bank’ or
Company’ refers to Barclays Bank PLC The term ‘The Group’ refers ta
Barclays Bank PLC together with its subsidiaries and ‘The Bank’ refers to
Barclays Bank PLC In this repart the abbreviations £m and £bn represent
milllons and thousands of millions of pounds respectively, $m and $bn
represent milfions and thousands of millions of US doltars respectvely, €m
and €bn represent millions and thousands of millions of euros respectively
Information relates to the Croup unless otherwise stated

Unless otherwise stated, the income statement analyses compare tha 12
months to 31 December 2011 to the corresponding 12 months of 2010 and
balance sheet comparisons relate to the corresponding position at 31
December 2010

Forward-locking statements

This document contains certain forward-fooking statements within the
meaning of Section 21E of the US Secunities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended, and Section 27A of the US Securities Act of 1933 as amended,
with respect to certain of the Group's ptans and its current goals and
expectations relating to 1ts future financial condition and performance
Barclays cautions readers that no forward-looking statement 1s a guarantee
of future performance and that actual results could differ matenially fram
those contamned in the forward-looking statements These forward-looking
staterments can be identified by the fact that they do not relate anly to
historical or current facts Forward-looking statements sometimes use
words such as “may”, “will”, “seek”, “continue”, “aim” “anticipate”, “target”,
“expect” “estimate”, “intend”, “plan”, “goal”, “believe” or ather words of
similar meaning Examples of forward-looking statements include, among
others, statements regarding the Graup's future flnancial position, Income
growth, assets, impalrment charges, business strategy, capital ratios,
leverage, payment of dividends, projected levels of growth In the banking
and financial markets, projected costs estimates of capital expenditures and
plans and objectives for future operations and other statements that are not
historical fact. By thelr nature, forward-looking statements involve nisk and
uncertainty because they relate to future events and circumstances,
including, but not limited to, UX domestic, Eurozone and global economic
and business conditions, the effects of continued volaulity in credit markets,
market related risks such as changes in interest rates and exchange rates,
effects of changes in valuation of credit market exposures, changes In
valuation of issued notes, the palicies and actions of governmental and
regulatory authorities (including requirements regarding capital and Group
structures and the potential for one or more countries exlting the Eurc),
changes in legislation, the further development of standards and
Interpretations under IFRS applicable to past, current and future periods,
evolving practices with regard to the interpretation and application of
standards under {FRS, the outcome of current and future litigation, the
success of future acquisitions and other strategic transactions and the
impact of competition — a number of such factors being beyond the Group’s
control As aresult, the Group s actual future results may differ materially
from the plans, goals, and expectations set forth in the Group s forwardlooking
statements

Any forward looking statements made herein speak only as of the date they
are made Except as required by the UK Financial Services Authority (FSA),
the London Stock Exchange plc (LSE) or applicable law Barclays expressly
disclalms any obligation or undertaking to release publicly any updates or
revisions to any forward-looking statements contained in this
announcement to reflect any change in Barclays expectations with regard
thereto or any change in events, conditions or circumstanices on which any
such statement (s based The reader should, however, consult any additional
disclosures that Barclays has made or may make in documents it has filed or
may file with the LSE and/ar the SEC.
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Key performance indicators

Capital KPIs

Definition

Why is it important to the business and management

Core Tier 1 ratio

Capital reguirements are part of the regulatory
framework governing how banks and
depository institutions are managed Capital
ratios express a bank’s capital as a percentage
of Its nsk weighted assets as defined by the UK
FSA Core Tier 115 broadly tangible
shareholders’ funds less certain capital
deductions

The Group’s capital management activities seek to maximise
shareholders’ value by prudently optimising the level and mix
of its capital resources The Group's capital management
objectives are to maintain sufficient capital resources to
ensure the financial holding company is well capitalised
relative to the mimimum regulatory capital requirements set
by the UK FSA and US Federal Reserve, ensure locally
regulated subsidiaries can meet their mimmum requlatory
capital requirements, support the Group's risk appetite and
economic capital requirements, and suppert the Group's
credit rating

During 2011, the Group’s Core Tier 1 ratio strengthened to
119%, after absorbing the impact of CRD3

11-11.0%
10-10.9%

Adjusted gross leverage

Adjusted gross leverage is the adjusted total
tangible assets divided by total qualifying Tier 1
capital Adjusted total tangible assets are total
assets lass derivative counterparty netting,
assets under management on the balance sheet,
settlement balances, and cash collateral on
derivative habilities, goodwill and intangible
assets Tier 1 capitalis defined by the UK FSA

Barclays recognises that there wilt be more capital and less
leverage in the banking systern and that lower levels of
leverage are regarded as a key measure of stability going
forward This is consistent with the views of our regulators
and nvestors

In 2011, adjusted gross leverage remained stable at 20 times
principally as the reduction in qualfying Tier 1 capital to

£50 4bn (2010 £53 7bn) was offset by the 4% reduction in
adjusted total tangible assets to £1,016bn

11 - 20X
10 - 20X
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Returns KPls

Definition

Why 15 1t important to the business and management

Profit before tax (PBT)

PBT 15 stated in accordance with IFRS and
represents total income less impairment
charges and operating expenses Adjusted PBT
represents PBT adjusted to exclude the impact
of own credit, gains on debt buy-backs, loss on
disposal of a portion of and impairment of the
remainder of the Group’s investrment in
BlackRock, Inc, the provision for Payment
Pratection tnsurance (PPI) redress, goodwill
impairments, and gains and losses on
acquisstions and disposals of subsidianes,
associates and joint ventures

PBT and adjusted PBT are the two primary profitability
measures used by management to assess performance PBT
1s a key indicator of financial performance to many of our
stakeholders

Adjusted P8T is presented to provide a more consistent
basis for comparing business performance between periods

PBT
11 - £5,974m
10 - £6,079m

Adjusted PBT
11 - £5,685m
10 - £5,721m

Cost Income ratio

Cost. income ratio 1s defined as operating
expenses compared to total income net of
insurance claims

This 1s a measure management uses 10 assess the
productivity of the business operations Restructuning the
cost base is a key execution prionty for management and
inciudes a review of all categories of discretionary spending
and an analysis of how we can run the business to ensure
that costs increase at a slower rate than income In 2011 we
set atarget to take £1bn off our run-rate cost base on a full
year basis by 2013 We have now increased target to £2bn

11 - 64%
10-63%

Loan loss rate

The loan loss rate 15 quoted in basis points and
represents the imparrment change on loans and
advances divided by gross loans and advances
held at amortised cost at the balance sheet date

The granting of credit is one of Barclays major sources of
income and its most significant nisk The loan loss rate1s an
indicator of the cost of granting credit

During 2011 impairment continued to improve across all our
businesses and a 3% mcrease in loans and advances
resulted in a lower overall Group loan loss rate of 77bps
(2010 118bps)

11-77 bps
10- 118 bps
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Key performance indicators

Income growth KPls

Definition Why is it important to the business and management

Total income

Defined as total income net of insurance Total income s a key indicator of financial performance 11 - £32.382m

claims to many of our stakeholders and income growth a key '
execution prionty for Barclays management 10 - £31,450m

Group total income increased 3% to £33bn

Income by geography

Defined as total iIncome net of tnsurance The goal of increasing the iternatronal diversificabion of our income helps to reduce risk by
claims generated in distinct geographic providing exposure to different economic cycles and s demonstrated by our ratio of non-UK
segments Geographic segmental analysis is to UK business income

based on customer location and the
definition of the countries within each
region are provided in the glossary

Geographic
split of income 2011 2010
% %
UK 49 40
Europe 13 15
Amercas 19 25
Africa and the Middle East 15 16
Aslia 4 4
Citizenship KPIs
Cross new [ending to UK households and businesses
Defined as lending to UK househelds and We have a clear sense of our business purpose —to help 11 - £45.0bn
businesses with UK based activities individuals, businesses and economies pragress and grow )
We clearly demonstrated thisin 2011 by delivering £43 6bn 10 - £43.5bn
of gross new lending to UK businesses, including £14 7bn to
SMEs, exceeding Project Merlin targets We also supported
10,000 first time buyers and the formation of over 100,000
new businesses
Global investrnient in our communities
Defined as Barclays total contribution to The success and competitiveness of a business and the 11 - £63.5m
supporting the communittes where we operate  extent to which it contributes to and 1s integrated in the :
communities in which it operates are closely related We are 10 - £55.3m

committed to maintaiming investment in our communities
for the leng-term both in good times and in bad This
performance metric demonstrates the consistency of our
commitment gver time
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Citizenship KP!s continued
Definition

Why is it important to the business and management

Colleagues involved in volunteering, regular giving and fundraising initiatives

Defined as the total number of Barclays
employees taking part in volunteenng, giving or
fundraising activities

Barclays community investment programme aims to engage
and support colleagues around the world to get involved
with our main partnerships, as well as the local causes they
care about Harnessing their energy, tme and skills delivers
real benefit to local communities, to their own personal
development and to therr engagement with Barclays

Group Employee Opinion Survey {EOS)* — Proud to be Barclays

EOS are used across the orgarusation te
understand our employees’ views and prioritise
management actions n order to meet
employee needs This KP1is a calibration of
different survey scores across Barclays for a
question measuring sense of pnde in being
associated with or working for Barclays The
average scores for each year are given

Understanding levels of employee engagement and sense of
comrmutment to Barclays 1s important as there is a strong
correlation between these factors and our employees’
comrmitment to serving the needs of our custormers and
clients

Percentage of senior managers who are female

The number of female colleagues who are
working across all Barclays businesses at the
senior management level as a percentage of the
total senior manager population

Diversity 1s important to Barclays as we believe that enly
through access to the most diverse poel of talent will we
recruit and retain the most talented indviduals to serve our
custorners and clients

11 - 73,000
10 - 62,000
11-81%
10 - 83%
11-22%
10 - 24%

Note

a EOS figure excludes Absa and Barclays Capital for 2011 as surveys conducted in 2010 in Absa and Barclays Capital were designed to span a two-year cycle Taking ther 2010

survey findings 1nto account, the group-wide rate for 2011 1s 82%
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Financial review

Income statement commentary

Barclays Bank PLC Group delivered profit before tax of £5,974m in
2011, a decrease of 2% (2010 £6,079m) Excluding movements on
own credit, gains on debt buy-backs, loss/gains on acquisitions and
disposals, impairment of investment in BlackRock Inc, prowvision for
PPI and goodwill impairment, profit before tax decreased 1% to
£5,685m (2010 £5,721m)

On 27 February 2012, HMRC announced its intention to implement
new tax legislation, to apply retrospectively fromn 1 December 2011,
that would result in the £1,130m gains on debt buy-backs becoming
fully taxable Barclays voluntarly disclosed the transaction to HMRC
and, as at 31 December 2011, held a provision for the potential tax
payable in retation to the transaction If the legislation had been
enacted as at 31 December 2011, the additional tax charge would
not have had a matenial impact on The Croup's 2017 results

Income increased 3% to £32,382m (2010 £31,450m) Income
excluding own credit and debt buy backs decreased 8% to
£28,602m principally reflecting a decrease in income at Barclays
Capital Income increased in most other businesses despite
tontinued low interest rates and difficult macroeconomic
conditions The RBB, Corporate and Wealth net interest margin
remained stable at 204bps (2010 203bps) Net nterest income
from RBB, Corporate, Wealth and Barclays Capital increased 5% to
£13 2bn, of which the contnbution from hedging (including £463m
of increased gans from the disposal of hedging instruments)
increased by 3%

Credit impairment charges and other provisions decreased 33% to
£3,802m {2010 £5,672m) reflecting significant improvements
across all businesses Impairment charges as a proportion of Group
loans and advances as at 31 December 2011 improved to 77bps,
compared to 118bps for 2010 In addition, impairment of £1,800m
was taken against the investrment 1n BlackRock, Inc

As a result, net operating income for The Group after impairment
charges increased 4% to £26,780m (2010 £25,778m)

Operating expenses increased 4% to £20,772mn 2011 (2010
£19,967m) Operating expenses, excluding £1,000m prowision for
PPI redress, £597m (2010 £243m) goodwill impairment, and the UK
bank levy of £325m, operating expenses were down 4% to
£18,850m, which included £408m (2010 £330m) of restructuring
charges Despite cost savings, the cost. income ratio Increased
slightly to 64% (2010 63%)

Staff costs decreased 4% to £11,407m, largely due to a 25%
reduction in performance costs partially offset by the non-
recurrence of a £304m credit in 2010 relating to post retirement
benefits Charges relating to prior year deferrals were £1bn The
Group perfermance awards granted {which exclude charges relating
to prior year deferrals but include current year awards vesting In
future years) were down 26% to £2 6bn  Barclays Capital incentive
awards were down 35% at £1 7bn

Please refer to page 106 for the consolidated income statement.
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Financial review
Balance sheet commentary

Total assets

Total assets increased £73bn to £1,563bn principally due to an
increase in the fair value of interest rate derivatives partially offset by
a decrease in reverse repurchase agreements

Cash, batances at central banks and items in the course of collection
increased £9 7bn contnbuting to The Group liquidity pool Trading
portfolio assets decreased £16 7bn and reverse repurchase and other
similar secured lending decreased £52 1bn

Denvative financial assets increased £118 6bn principally reflecting
increases in the mark to market positons in interest rate derivatives
due to movements in forward interest rate curves

Loans and advances to banks and custormers increased £13 Obn
principally due to an increase in lending to retaill customers and
market volatility resulting in a rnise in cash collateral balances

Available for sale financial investments increased £3 6bn primarily
driven by purchase of government bonds increasing The Group's
hguid assets This was partially offset by a £0 5bn reduction in the fair
value of The Group’s investment in BlackRock, Inc

Total habilities
Total liabilities increased £71bn to £1,498bn

Deposits and items in the course of collection from banks and
customer accounts increased £33bn reflecting customer deposit
growth across The Group as well as market volatility resulting in a
rise n cash collateral balances Financial liabiities designated at fair
value decreased £9 7bn and debt securities in 1ssue decreased

£26 9bn due to managed changes in the funding composition

Trading portfolio habifities decreased £26 Bbn and repurchase
agreements and other similar secured borrowing decreased £18 2bn
Dervative financial babilities increased £122 3bn broadly in hne with
the increase in denvative assets

Subordinated fiabilities decreased £3 §bn primarily reflecting the early
retirement of capital that does not qual:ify under Basel 3

Shareholders’ Equity

Total shareholders’ equity increased £2 6bnto £65 2bn (2010

£62 6bn), Share capital and share prermum remained stable at

£14 5bn Retained earnings increased £2 8bn to £44 3bn (2010

£41 5bn) with profit attributable to the equity holders of the Parent of
£3 6bn were partially offset by dwidends paid of £1 2bn

Available for sale reserve increased £1 2bn, largely driven by £2 6bn
gains from changes n fair value, offset by £1 6bn of net gains
transferred to the iIncome statement after recognition of £1 8bn
impairment on The Group’s investment in BlackRock, Inc Currency
translation reserve movement of £1bn were largely due to the
appreciation in the US Dollar, offset by the depreciation in the Euro,
Rand and Indian Rupee

Non-contrelling interests decreased £0 4bn to £3 1bn (2010

£3 5bn) The decrease primarnly reflects currency translation
movernents of £0 6bn relating to the Rand, offset by profit for the
year attnbutzable to non-controlling interests of £0 4bn and
distributions of £0 2bn
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Financial review
Balance sheet commentary

Capital Management
The Core Tier 1 ratio remained robust at11 0% (2010 10 9%} and
the Tier 1 ratio was 12 9% (2010 13 5%)

Risk weighted assets decreased 2% from £398bn to £391bnin 2011
This was largely dnven by a reduction across credit, counterparty and
market nsk in Barctays Capital, due to lower levels of activity, nsk
reduction and sell down of credit market exposures In addition, there
was a reduction from currency movements, pnmarily depreciation of
the Rand and Euro against Sterling These decreases more than
outweghed the approximate £30bn increase resulting from the
implementation of CRD3 in December 2011

Core Tier 1 ratio increased by £0 2bn to £43 Cbn This was due to

£2 6bn of capital generated frorn retaned profits was offset by
reduction in the value of the investment in Blackrock, Inc, to
September 2011 contributions made to the UK Retirement fund and
foreign currency movemnents Total capital resources decreased by
£3 4bn to £63 9bn mainly as a result of the buy back and redemption
of Tier 1 instruments which will not qualify under Basel 3

Liquidity and Funding

The Group's overall funding strategy s to develop a diversified
funding base and maintain access to a varnety of alternate funding
sources, so minimising the cost of funding and providing protection
against unexpected fluctuations Within this, the Group aims to align
the sources and uses of funding

Customer loans and advances are largely funded by customer
deposits, with any excess being funded by long-term wholesale
secured debt and equity The total loan to deposit ratio as at 31
December 2011 was 118% (2010 124%) and the loan to deposit and
long-term funding ratio was 75% (2010 77%)

Wholesale funding i1s well managed with trading portfolio assets
being largely funded by repurchase agreements and the majority of
reverse repurchase agreements being matched by repurchase
financing Denvative assets and liabilities are also largely matched

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had £265 2bn of wholesale debt
diversified across currencies, of which just £38 7bn was secured

—  Term funding maturing in 2012 totals £27bn Term funding
raised in 2011 amounted to £30 2bn (2010 £35bn) compared to
term funding matunties of £25bn Dunng January 2012, £5bn of
term funding was raised

- Approximately 10% of customer loans and advances at 31
December 2011 were secured zganst external funding, leaving
significant headroom for further secured 1ssuance

At 31 December 2011 the iquidity pool was £152bn (2010 £154bn)
and moved within a month-end range of £140bn to £167bn, with
short-term funding being rolled over despite the stress in the
wholesale funding markets The liquidity pool comprises high quality,
iquid unencumbered assets, diversified across currencies, broadly in
line with wholesale debt requirements, with 93% (2010 88%) of the
pool comprising cash and deposits with central banks and
governrnent bonds

The Group monitors comphance against anticipated Basel 3 metrics,
including the Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR) and the Net Stable
Funding Ratio {NSFR) As at 31 December 2011, the Group met 82%
of the LCR (2010 80%) and 97% of the NSFR {2010- 94%)
requirements and is on track to meet the 100% compliance under
Basel 3 required by 2015 and 2018 respectively

Please refer to page 108 for the consolidated balance sheet
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Segmental analysis (audited)
Head Office
Investment  Functions
Analysis of results by 11.¢ Europe Africa Barclay- Barclays Barclays Barclays Manage- and Other
business RBB RBB RBB card Capital Corporate  Wealth ment Qperations Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
As at 31 December 2011
Total incame net of
Insurance claims* 4,656 1,226 3,767 4,095 10,345 2,912 1,744 53 3,584 32,382
Credit impairment charges
and other provisions (538) (261) {464} (1.259) {93) (1,149) (47) - 1 {3,802)
Impairment of investment in
BlackRock, Inc - - - - - - - (1,800} - {1,800)
Operating expenses><® (3.102) (1.638) (2,399} (2,308) (7.289)  (1,762)  (1,493) {15) (768)  (20,772)
Other income/(losses)" 2 12 6 31 12 (71) {3) - {23) {(34)
Profit/(loss) befare tax from
continuing operations 1,020 {661) 910 561 2,975 {70} 207 {1.762) 2,794 5,974
Total assets 127,845 51,310 50,759 33,838 1,158,350 88,674 20,866 4,066 27,694 1,563,402
As at 31 December 2010
Total income net of
insurance claims' 4518 1,164 3,700 4,024 13,209 2974 1,560 78 223 31,450
Credit Impawrment charges
and other provisions (819) (314) (562) {1,688) (543) (1,696) {48) - (2) (5.672)
Operating expenses™™ {2809 {1033) (2 418) {1570) (8,295) (1,907) {1,349) (n (575) (19,967)
Other Income/(losses)” 99 44 84 25 18 (2) - - - 268
Profit/(1oss) before tax from
continuing operations 989 {139) 804 791 4,389 {631) 163 67 (354) 6,079
Total assets 121,661 53,626 60,288 30,368 1094 887 85,762 17,878 4611 20,957 1490,038
Notes

a The impact of own credit movements in the fair value of structured note issuance of £2 708m (2010- £391m) is now included within the results of Head Office Functions and
Other Operations rather than Barclays Capital This reflects the fact that these fawr value movemnents relate to the credit worthiness of the issuer as a whole, rather than Barclays
Capstal in particular, and are not included withsn any assessment of Barclays Capital's underlying performance Furthermore, delays to planned changes in accounting standards

will mean own credit movements are likely to continue to be reflected in the income statement for the foreseeable future
The UK bark levy of £325m (2010 €nl) 1s reported under Head Office and Other Operations.
The provision for PP1 redress of £1 080m is reported under UK RBB £400m {2010 Enll} and Barclaycard £600m (2010- £nil)
The impairment of goodwill of £597m (2010 £243m) relates to Europe RE8 £427m {2010 £nid), Barclays Corporate £123m (2010- £243m} and Barclaycard £47m (2010 £nil)

Other Income/(losses) represents share of post-tax results of associates and joint ventures profit or {loss) on disposal of subsidiaries associates and joint ventures and gains on

nan o

acquisitions.
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Financial review
Analysis of results by business

All disclosures in this section are unaudited unless otherwise stated

Since 1 January 2011 The Group's actities have been arganised under the following business groupings

— UK Retall and Business Banking (UK RBB) 1s a feading UK high street bank providing current account and savings products and Woolwich
branded mortgages UK RBB also provides unsecured leans and general insurance as well as banking and meney transrussion services to small
and mediumn sized businesses UK RBB was previously named UK Retail Banking,

- Europe Retall and Business Banking {Europe RBB) provides retail senaces, including credit cards in Spain, Italy, Portugal and France, as well as

business lending to small and medium sized enterprises, through a variety of distnibution channels Europe RBB was previously named Western
Europe Retail Banking,

- Afnca Retall and Business Banking {Africa RBB) provides retail, corporate and credit card services across Africa and the Indian Ocean Afnca
RBB combines the operations previously reported as Barclays Africa and Absa,

- Barclaycard 1s an international payments services provider for consumer and business customers including credit cards and consumer fending,

- Barclays Capital is the investment banking divisicn of Barclays providing large corporate, government and institutional clients with a full
spectrum of solutions to meet their strategic adwisory, financing and nsk management needs,

- Barclays Corporate prowdes integrated banking solutions to large corporates, financial institutions and multinationals in the UK and
internationally,

-~  Barclays Wealth is the wealth management division of Barclays It focuses on private and intermediary clients worldwide, providing
international and private banking, investment management, fiduciary services and brokerage,

- Investment Management manages The Group’s econemic interest in BlackRock, Inc and the residual elements relating to Barclays Global
Investors, which was sold on 1 December 2009, and

- Head Office Functions and Other Operations comprise head office and central support functions, businesses in transition and consolidation
adjustments

Products and services offered to customers are organised by business segment as described above

Income by geographic region®t 2011 2010

(audited) £m £m
UK 15,909 12,724
Europe 4,207 4,828
Americas 6,025 7,742
Africa and Middle East 4,967 4,997
Asla 1,274 1,159
Total 32,382 31,450
Incorme from individual countries which represent more than 5% of total income® 2011 2010

({audited) £m £m
UK 15,909 12,724
us 5,802 7172
South Africa 3,942 3,684

a Total income net of nsurance claims based on counterparty location
b The gaographical reqrons have been rewised since January 2011 Ireland is now included within the Europe region and Middle East 1s now reported with Africa Comparatives have
been updated to reflect these changes.
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Retail and Business Banking
UK Retail and Business Banking (audited)

2011

UK Retail and Business Banking adjusted profit before tax improved 60% to £1,420m Including E400m provision for PPI redress and £100m gain on
acquisition of Standard Life Bank in 2010 profit before tax improved 3% to £1,020m income increased 3% to £4,656m driven by mortgages and personal
savings.

Net interest income mcreased 8% to £3,413m with the net interest margin rising to 151bps (2010 145bps) and nsk adjusted net interest margir up to
127bps (2010 108bps) Customer asset margin declined to 122bps (2010 126bps) with average customer assets increasing 4% to £118 5bn Customer
lizbility margin improved to 87bps (2010 68bps) reflecting the increase in the cost of funds and therefore the value generated from customer habilities with
average customer liabilities increasing 3% to £107 8bn

Net fee and commussion income decreased 8% to £1,157m following closure of the branch-based element of the financial planning business

Credit impairment charges decreased 35% to £536m with annualised loan loss rate of 44bps (2010 70bps), Personal unsecured lending impairment
Improved 44% to £311m with 90 day arrears rates on UK personal loans improving ta 1 7% (2010 2 6%)

Operating expenses decreased 8% to £2,702m, excluding £400m provision for PPi redress in 2011 and £123m one-off pension credit in 2010 Including
these items, operating expenses increased 10% to £3,102m

Tetal loans and advances to custemers ncreased 5% to £121 2bn driven by growth in mortgage balances. Average martgage balances increased 6%
reflacting strong positive net lending Mortgage balances at 31 December 2011 were £107 8bn, a share by value of 9% (2010 8%) Gross new mortgage
lending increased to £17 2bn (2010 £16 9bn), with a share by value of 12% (2010 13%) Mortgage redemptions decreased to £10 7bn (2010 £11 Obn),
resulting in net new mortgage lending of £6 5bn (2010 £5 9bn) Average Loan to Value (LTV) ratio on the mortgage portfolio (including buy to let) ona
current valuation basis was 44% (2010 43%) Average LTV of new mortgage lending was 54% {2010 52%)

Risk weighted assets decreased 4% to £34 Obn reflecting a decrease in unsecured lending balances partially offset by the growth In mortgage balances
Adjusted return on average equity improved to 14 9% {2010 9 9%) and adjusted return on average tangible equity improved to 28 6% (2010 18 7%}

(audited) 201 2010
£m fm
Income Statement Information
Net interest income 3,413 3,165
Net fee and commission income 1,157 1,255
Net trading loss - (2)
Net investment income 17 -
Net premiums from nsurance contracts 92 1390
Other {expense)/income (1) 1
Total income 4,678 4,549
Net claims and benefits incurred under insurance contracts (22) (31)
Tatal income net of insurance claims 4,656 4518
Credit impairment charges and other provisions (536) (819)
Net operating income 4,120 3,699
Qperating expenses (excluding provision for PPt redress) {2,702) (2,809)
Provision for PPl redress (400) -
Operating expenses {3,102) (2,809)
Share of post-tax results of associates and joint ventures 2 (1
Gains on acquisition - 100
Profit before tax 1,020 989
Adjusted profit before tax* 1,420 289

Balance Sheet Information

Loans and advances to customers at amortised cost® £1212bn £1156bn
Customer accounts® £1118bn £108 4bn
Tota! assets £127 8bn £121 7bn
Risk weighted assets. £34 0bn £35 3bn
Notes

a Adjusted profit before tax excludes the impact of the provision for PPl redress of £400m (2010 £nil) and gains on acquisitons of £rul (2010- £100m)
b In 2010 the acquisibon of Standard Life Bank contributed £5 9bn loans and advarkes and £5 2bn customer accounts
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Analysis of results by business

(audited) Adjusted” Statutory

2011 2010 201 2010
Performance Measures
Return on average equity’ 14 9% 99% 10 6% 114%
Return on average tangible equity” 28 6% 18 7% 203% 214%
Return on average risk weighted assets 3 0% 19% 21% 22%
Loan loss rate (bps) 44 70 44 70
Cost. Income ratio 58% 62% 67% 62%
Key Facts
90 day arrears rates - UK loans 17% 26%
Number of UK current accounts 119m 116m
Number of UK savings accounts® 151m 14 4m
Number of UK mortgage accounts® 930,000 916,000
Number of Barclays Business customers 785,000 760,000
LTV of mortgage portfolio 44% 43%
LTV of new mortgage lending® 54% 52%
Number of branches 1,625 1,658
Number of ATMs 3,629 3,345
Number of employees (full ime equivalent) 34,100 34,700

Notes

a Adjusted performance measures excludes the impact of the prowvision for PPl redress of £400m (2010 Enil) and gains on acquisitions of £nil (2010- £100m)
b Return on average equity and return on average tangible equity cornparatives have been revised to use 109% of average risk weighted assets (previously 2010 99%) in the

calculation of average equity and average tangibie equity

¢ Data for year ended 31 December 2010 and 2011 includes the impact of Standard Life Bank.
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Retail and Business Banking
Eurcpe Retail and Business Banking {audited)

2011

Europe Retail and Business Banking adjusted loss before tax increased to £234m (2010 £168m) reflecting repositioning of the business due to the
deteriorating economic environment and restructuning charges of £189m (2010 £22m) Loss before tax of €661m (2010 £139m) reflecting £427m of
Spanish goodwill impairment and restructuring charges of £189m Spanish goodwill was fully mpaired due to the deterlorating economic environment in
Spain in the fourth quarter of 2011 and ongotng ecanomi¢ uncertainty

Income improved 5% to £1,226m reflecting higher average asset and liability velumes, improved margins and the appreciation of the average value of the
Euro against Sterling

Net interest iIncome improved 16% to £786m with the net interest margin up to 128bps (2010 116bps) Average customer assets increased 5% to £43 7bn
despite customer asset margin reduction to 87bps (2010 102bps) due to increased funding costs Average customer habilittes increased 3% to £17 7bn with
customer Liability margin up to 65bps (2010 11bps) mainly due to re-pricing

Net premiums from insurance contracts declined 3% to £463m, with a corresponding decline in net claims and benefits of £503m (2610 £511m)

Credit impairment charges and other provisions decreased 17% te £261m principally due to lower charges in the cards portfolios reflecting lower 30 and 90
day arrears rates and lower recovery balances The lower mpairment was the man driver for the loan loss rate decreasing to 54bps (2010 71bps)

Operating expenses excluding the £427m Spanish goodwill impairment increased 17% to £1,211m, pnmarily due to restructuring charges of £189m 142
branches, largely in Spain, have been closed and the number of employees reduced by $00 dunng 2011

Loans and advances to customers remained stable Customer deposits decreased 13% to £16 4bn, reflecting the competitive envirgnment,

Adjusted return on average equity of negative 6 0% (2010 negative 1 0%) reflecting the repositoning of the business during 2011

(audited) 201 2010
£fm £m

Income Statement Information
Net interest income 786 679
Net fee and commission income 429 421
Net trading income 9 20
Net investment income LA 67
Net premiums from isurance contracts 463 479
Other {expense)/income (49) 9
Total income 1,729 1,675
Net claims and benefits incurred under insurance contracts (503) {511)
Total Income net of insurance claims 1,226 1,164
Credit impalrment charges and other provisions (261) {314)
Net operating income 965 850
Operating expenses (excluding geodwill impairment) (1,211) (1.033)
Goodwill impairment (427) -
Operating expenses (1,638) (1,033)
Share of post-tax results of associates and jont ventures 12 15
Profit on disposal of subsiharies, associates and joint ventures - -
Gains on acquisition - 29
{Loss)/profit before tax (661) {138)
Adjusted (loss)/profit before tax® (234) (168)

Balance Sheet Information

Loans and advances te custemers at amortised cost £43 6bn £43 4bn
Customer accounts £16 4bn £189bn
Total assets £51 3bn £53 6bn
Risk weighted assets £17 4bn £17 3bn
Notes

a Adjusted profit before tax and adjusted performance measures excludes goodwill impairment of £427m (2010- €nd) gains on acquisition of Enil (2010 £29m) and profit on
disposal of subsidiaries, assoclates and joint ventures of £rul (2010 Enil)
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Financial review
Analysis of results by business

All disclosures in this section are unaudited unless otherwise stated

{audited) Adjusted* Statutory
2011 2010 2011 2010
Performance Measures
Return on average equity™© {6 0%) (10%) (21 8%) (0 2%)
Return on average tangible equity™® (7 9%) (1 3%) (29 0%) (0 2%)
Return on average risk welghted assets* (09%) (0 1%) (33%) {0 0%)
Loan loss rate (bps) 54 n 54 71
Cost. income ratio 59% B9% 134% 89%
Key Facts
30 day arrears rates - cards 59% 6 8%
Number of customers 27m 27m
|
Number of branches 978 1,120 |
Number of sales centres 250 243
1,228 1,363

Number of distribution points

Number of employees (full time equivalent) 8,500 9,400

Notes

a Adjusted profit before tax and adjusted performance measures excludes goodwill Impairment of £427m {2010+ Enil) gans on acquisition of Erut {2010- £29m) and profiton
dispasal of subsidiaries, associates and jolnt ventures of £nl {2010 £r1)

b Returnon average equity and return on average tang/ble equity comparatives have been revised to use 10% of average risk weighted assets {previously 2010 9%} in the
calculation of average equity and average tangible equity

€ 2010 return on average equity return on average tangible equity and return on average risk weighted assets reflect a deferred tax benefit of £205m
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Retail and Business Banking
Africa Retail and Business Banking (audited)

2011

Africa Retail and Business Banking adjusted profit before tax improved 26% to £908m reflecting business growth in South Africa and a significant
improvement in credit Impairments across the African continent offset by non-recurrence of a pension credit of £54m in 2010 Profit before tax improved
13% to £910m, with 2010 including a gain of £77m from the sale of the custody business

Income improved 2% to £3,767m with good underlying growth offset by currency movements

Net interest income improved 3% to £2,096m with the net interest margin up to 307bps (2010 294bps) South Africa improved 9% to £1,628m due to
strong hability growth and margin improvements, partially offset by the depreciation in the average value of the Rand against Sterling and a reduction in total
advances to customers The rest of the African businesses dechned 12% to £468m due to Sterling appreciation and the impact of margin compression n
both retall and corporate portfolios.

Average customer assets decreased 6% to £38 Sbn, driven by depreciation of major African currencies agamst Sterling and iower volumes. Customer asset
margin remaned stable at 311bps (2010 312bps) Improvement in South Africa driven by strong liabifity growth and margin improvemnents, partially offset
by the depreciation in the average value of the Rand against Sterling and a reduction in total advances to customers

Average customer liabiliies increased 6% to £29.5bn driven by underlying growth in retail and commercial deposits of 13% in South Africa partially offset by
depreciation of the Rand against Sterhng Customer liability margin remained stable at 227bps (2010 225bps) as growth in high margin products within
retall was offset by pressures on commercial margins

Net fee and commussion income declined 4% to £1,27 1m reflecting the impact of currency movements partially offset by the impact of volume growth and
selected pricing increases

Credit impairment charges decreased 17% to £464m reflecting improved economic conditions in South Afiica and better recoveries across the continent,
together with currency movements

Operating expenses decreased 19 to £2,399m, prmarily driven by strong cost management, currency movements and restructuring benefits partially offset
by a one-off pension credit in 2010 and inflationary pressures

Total loans and advances to customers decreased 19% to £36 7bn pnmanly reflecting a 16% impact from currency movements

(audited) 2011 2010
£m £m
Income Statement Information
Net interest income 2,096 2,033
Net fee and commission income 1271 1318
Net trading income 70 53
Net investment income 56 58
Net prermiums from insurance contracts 432 399
Other income 57 54
Total income 3,982 3915
Net claims and benefits incurred under insurance contracts {215) (215)
Total income net of insurance claims 3,767 3,700
Credit impairment charges and other provisions (464) {562)
Net operating income 3,303 3,138
Operating expenses (2,399) (2,418)
Share of post-tax results of associates and joint ventures 4 3
Profit an disposal of subsidianies, associates and joint ventures 2 81
Profit before tax 910 804
Adjusted profit before tax* 208 723

Balance Sheet Information

Loans and advances to customers at amortised cost £36 7bn £45 4bn
Customer accounts €30 1bn £313bn
Total assets £50 8bn £60.3bn
Risk weighted assets £33 4bn £38 4bn
Notes

a Adjusted profit before tax and adjusted performance measures excludes the Impact of gains on acquisitions and disposals of £2m (2010 £81m)
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Financial review
Analysis of results by business

All disclosures in this section are unaudited unless otherwise stated

{audited) Adjusted’ Statutory
2011 2010 2011 2010

Performance Measures
Return on average equity™* 10 0% 90% 10 0% 115%
Return on average tangible equity™® 16 6% 15 %% 16 7% 18 2%
Return on average risk weighted assets 17% 16% 17% 18%
Loan loss rate (bps) 121 119 121 119
Cost. income ratio 64% 65% 64% 65%
Key Facts
Number of customers 14 5m 14 4m
Number of ATMs 10,063 9,530
Number of branches 1,354 1,321
Number of sales centres 139 222
Number of distribution paints 1,493 1,543
Number of emplayees {full time equivalent)* 45,300 47,700

Notes

a Adjusted profit before tax and adjusted performance measures excludes the Impact of gains on acquisitions and disposals of £2m (2010 £81m)

b Return an average equity and return on average tangible equity comp ves have been revised to use 10% of average risk weighted assets {previously 2010 9%) in the

calculation of average equity and average tangible equity

¢ The return on average equity diffevs from the return on the equity reported by Absa Group as the latter does not include goodwill arising from Barclays acquisition of the Absa
Croup and does include other Absa Group businesses that Barclays Group reports within Barclaycard, Barclays Capital and Barclays Wealth

d Including non-controlling Interests

& The number of employees for 2010 has been revised to include 100 employees transferred from Head Office Functions and Other Operations
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Retail and Business Banking
Barclaycard (audited)

2011

Barclaycard adjusted profit before tax improved 53% to £1,208m Profit before tax dechined 29% to £561m after £600m provision for PP| redress and £47m
goodwill impairrnent in the FirstPlus secured lending portfolio Barclaycard's international businesses profit increased driven by sigruficant improvements in
the US and South Africa Both the Egg consumer card assets and the MBNA corporate card portfolio acquired during the first half of 2011 delivered profits

Income improved 2% to £4,095m, with growth in balances driven by UK Cards partially offset by higher customer balance repayments in the US and
depreciation of US Dollar against Sterling Barclaycard’s UK businesses income improved 8% to £2,639m including contribution fram Egg and MBNA
portfolios, partially offset by continued run-off of the FirstPlus portfolio Barclaycard's International businesses income declined 7% to £1.456m due to
custarner balance repayments in the US and depreciation of the US Dollar against Sterling

Net interest income improved 2% to £2,860m Average customer assets ncreased 5% to £30 3bn UK Cards average extended card balances increased 27%
to £11 2bn due to acguisitions and balance transfers, partially offset by higher customer balance repayments in the US and continued run-off of the FirstPlus
portfolio Customer asset margin was up 17bps to 952bps, with net interest margin down 33bps to 944bps due to hedge impact.

Credit impairment charges decreased 25% to £1,259m principally driven by lower charges in the cards portfolios, reflecting improved underlying delinquency
performance, lower bankruptcies and charge-offs

Operating expenses increased 47% to £2,306m, reflecting the provisien for PPI redress, FurstPlus goodwill imparment and the impact of the Egg and MBNA
acquisitions Excluding these items, operating expenses wefe flat on pnior year

Total assets ncreased 12% to £33 8bn and risk weighted assets increased 7% to £34 2bn reflecting acquired portfolios and organic growth in the UK. These
were partially offset by continued run-off of the FirstPlus portfolio

Adjusted return on average equity increased to 17 4% (2010 12 5%) and adjusted return on average tangible equity increased to 23 0% (2010 16 9%),
reflecting increased profit after tax.

(audited) 2011 2010
£m £m

Income Statement Information
Net interest income 2,860 2,814
Net fee and commission income 1,171 1,136
Net trading loss 7) (8)
Net investment ncome 10 39
Net premiums from insurance contracts 42 50
Other income 20 1
Total income 4,096 4,032
Net claims and benefits incurred under insurance contracts {1) {8)
Total income net of insurance claims 4,095 4,024
Credit impairment charges and other provisions {1,259) (1.688)
Net operating income 2,836 2,336
Operating expenses (excluding provision for PP redress and goodwill impairment) (1,659) (1,570)
Provision for PPl redress (600) -
Goodwill impairment (47) -
Operating expenses {2,306} (1.570)
Share of post-tax results of assoclates and joint ventures 31 25
Profit on disposal of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures - -
Profit before tax 561 791
Adjusted profit before tax’ 1,208 791

Balance Sheet Information

Loans and advances to customers at amortised cost £30 ibn £26 6bn
Total assets £33 8bn £304bn
Risk weighted assets £34 2bn £319bn
Note

a Adusted profit before tax and adjusted performance measures excludes the impact of the provision for PPl redress of £600m (2010 £nil) £47m goodwillimpairment in Firstplus
secured lending portfolie (2010- £nil) and profit an disposal of £nil (2010 £nil)




18 | Barclays Bank PLC Annual Report 2011

www barclays com/annualreport

Financial review
Analysis of results by business

All disclosures in this section are unaudited unless otherwise stated

{audited) Adjusted* Statutory

2011 2010 2011 2010
Performance Measures
Return on average equity” 17 4% 12.5% 68% 125%
Return on average tangible equity® 230% 16 9% 90% 16 9%
Return on average risk weighted assets 26% 19% 12% 19%
Loan loss rate (bps) 33 570 3N 570
Cost income ratio 41% 39% 56% 39%
Key Facts
30 day arrears rates - UK cards 2.7% 34%
30 day arrears rates - US cards 31% 46%
30 day arrears rates - South Africa cards® 49% 72%
Total number of Barclaycard customers 23 5m 217m
Total average outstanding balances - Cards £22 8bn £209bn
Total average extended credit batances - Cards E19 1bn £170bn
Average outstanding balances - Loans £5 Obn €5 5bn
Number of retailer relationships 87,000 87,000
Number of employees (full tirme equivatent) 10,400 9,900

Notes

a Adjusted profit before tax and adjusted performance measures excludes the impact of the provision for PPI redress of £600m {2010 Enll), £47m goodwill impairment In Firstplus

secured lending portfolio {2010 Enil) and profit on disposal of Enif {2010 Enll)

b Return on average equity and return on average tangible equity comparatives have been revised to use 10% of average risk weighted assets (previously 2010~ 9%) in the

calculation of average equity and average tangible equity
© South Africa cards 30 day arrears rates revised 1o include approved debt counselling accounts
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Barclays Capital (audited)

201
Barclays Capital profit before tax declined to £2,975m {2010 £4,389) drivenr by a 22% reduction in ncome to £10,345m in a challenging market
environment, partially offset by reduced credit impairment charges and operating expenses, including compensation costs

Fixed Income, Currency and Commodities (FICC) declined 27% to £6,325m, reflecting lower contributions from Rates, Credit, and Commeodities in a
challenging trading environment Currency improved 27% on 2010, benefiting from market volatility and strong client volumes

Equities and Prime Services declined 14%, with reduced performance in cash equities and equity derivatives offset by improved client flow in equity
financing

Investment Banking reduced 10% Equity underwriting was in line with the prior year, while financial advisory and debt underwniting were impacted by fower
deal activity

Credit impairment charge of £93m reflecting charges primarily relating to leveraged finance, offset by a release of £223m of the impairment allowance
refating to the Protium loan

Operating expenses reduced 12% to £7,289m, reflecting a decrease in both non-compensation and compensation costs The 2011 bonus pool decreased
32% to £1 5bn compared to a decrease in headcount of 3%

Assets contributing to adjusted gross leverage decreased 10% to £604bn primarily due to a reduction in reverse repurchase transactions  Total
assets increased 6% to £1,158bn, reflecting increases in the fair value of gross interest rate derivative assets offset by a reduction in reverse repurchase
agreements

Credit market exposures of £15 2bn, reduced by £8 7bn primarily driven by sale of assets formerly held as Protium collateral and commerc:al real estate foans
and properties

Risk weighted assets down 2% to £187bn, reflecting lower levels of client activity, nisk reduction and reduction in credit market exposures, more than
offsetting the impact of CRD3

Return on average equity decreased to 10 4% (2010 13 5%) and return on average risk weighted assets to 12% (2010 1 5%), reflecting difficult market
conditions

(audited) 2011 2010
£m £m

Income Statement Information
Net interest income 1,177 1,121
Net fee and commission income 3.026 3347
Net trading inceme 5,264 7,986
Net investment income 883 752
Other (expense)/income (5) 3
Total income 10,345 13,205
Credit impairment charges and other provisions {93) {543)
Net operating income 10,252 12,666
Operating expenses (7.289) {B,295)
Share of post-tax results of associates and joint ventures 12 18
Profit before tax* 2,975 4,389
Adjusted profit before tax* 2,975 4,389

Batance Sheet Information

Loans and advances to banks and customers at amortised cost £158 6bn £149 7bn
Customer deposits £83 1bn £703bn
Total assets £1,158 4bn £1,094 9bn
Assets contributing to adjusted gross leverage £604 0bn £668 1bn
Risk weighted assets £186 Ton £1913bn
Liquidity pool £152bn £154bn
Note

a The impact of own credit movernents in the fair value of structured note 1ssuance of £2 708m (2010 £391m}1s now included within the results of Head Office Functions and
Other Operations, rather than Barclays Capital This reflects the fact that these fair value movements relate to the credit worthiness of the issuer as a whole rather than Barclays
Capital In particular and are not included within any assessment of Barclays Capital's underlying performance Furthermore delays to planned changes in accounting standards
will mean own credit movements are hkely to continue to be reflected In the income statement for the foreseeable future
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Financial review

Analysis of results by business

All disclosures n this section are unaudited unless otherwise stated

(audited) Year ended 31 December
2011 2010
£m £m
Analysis of Total Income
Fixed Income, Currency and Commodities 6,325 8,687
Equities and Prima Services 1,751 2,040
Investment Banking 2,027 2,243
Principal Investments 232 239
Total income 10,335 13,209
(audited) Adjusted’ Statutory
2011 2010 201 2010
Performance Measures
Return on average equity® 10 4% 13.5% 10 4% 135%
Return on average tangible equity® 10 8% 14 1% 108% 14 1%
Return on average risk weighted assets 12% 1.5% 12% 15%
Loan loss rate (bps) 8 42 8 42
Cost. income ratio 71% 63% 71% 63%
Cost. net operating income ratic 71% 65% 71% 55%
Compensation income ratio 47% 43% 47% 43%
Average Income per employee (000s) £424 £529 £424 £529
Other measures
Average DVaR (95%) £57m E£S3m
Number of employees (full time equivalent) 24,000 24,800

Notes

4 The Impact of awn credit movements In the falr value of structured note issuance of £2,708m (2010- £391m) is now inchuded within the results of Head Office Functions and
Other Operations, rather than Barclays Capital This reflects the fact that these fair value movements relate to the credit worthiness of the ssuer as a whole rather than Barclays
Capital In particular, and are not Included within any assessment of Barclays Capital's underlying performance Furthermore delays to planned changes in accounting standards
will mean own credit movements are hikely to continue to be reflected In the income staternent for the foreseeable future

b Return on average equity and return on average tarkgble equity comparatives have been revised to use 10% of average risk weighted assets {previously 2010) In the calculation of

average equity and average tangible equity
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Barclays Corporate (audited)

201

Barclays Corporate adjusted profit before tax improved to £126m (2010 loss of £388m), reflecting significant progress In restructuring overseas operations
and improved credit impairment in Europe Loss before tax improved to £70m {2010 £631m loss), including £123m mpairment of Spanish goodwill and
£73m loss on the disposal of Barclays Bank Russia {BBR)

UK profit before tax declined £87m to £747m including a decline in the net valuation of fair valueloans Excluding this Item, underlying UK performance
improved, reflecting increased net investment and fee and commission income and improving credit impairment, partially offset by an increase in costs
mainly from the non-recurrence of a prior year pension credit and continued investment in infrastructure Europe loss before tax reduced 24% to £647m,
reflecting lower credit impairment partially offset by the goodwill mpairment in Spain Rest of the World loss before tax reduced 72% to £170m, principally
due to the non-recurrence of a prior year goodwill mpairment in BBR, lower operating expenses and an improvement in loan loss rates, partially offset by the
loss on disposal of BBR.

Net interest income improved 2% to £2,036m driven by increases in UK customer habilities and custorner hiability margins Net interest margin decreased to
146bps (2010 153bps), with average customer assets decreasing 2% to £68 7bn and average customer labilities increasing 16% to £70 6bn

Credit impairment charges reduced 32% to £1,149m, as overall loan loss rates improved to 162bps (2010 226bps} UK reduced 23% to £355m, benefiting
from lower defauft rates and tightly controlled exposure to commercial real estate loans Europereduced 33% to £716m primanly due to lower impairment
charges in Spain of £480m (2010 £898m), reflecting proactive risk management action to reduce exposure to the property and construction sector Rest of
the World reduced 53% to £78m, primarnly as a result of management action to reduce nsk profile of portfolios.

Operating expenses reduced by 2% to £1,639m, excluding the impact of goodwill impairment. A decrease in restructuring charges and benefits from
streamlining operations more than offset the impact of the non-recurrence of the prior year pension credit

Total assets increased to £88 7bn (2010 £85 8bn) mainly driven by higher balances in the UK There was good growth in customer deposits to £77 7bn
(2010 £71 0Obn), largely within the UK, benefiting from preduct innovation

Risk weighted assets decreased 2% to £69 7bn reflecting reductions in net exposures in Europe and Rest of the World, partally offset by higher net balznces
in the UK.

(audited) 2011 2010
£m £m
Income Statement Information
Net interest income 2,036 2,004
Net fee and commission mceme 929 910
Net trading (expense)/income {99) 80
Net investment income/(loss} 29 {32)
Gains on debt buy-backs and extinguishments - -
Other ncome 17 12
Total income 2,912 2,974
Credit impairment charges and other provisions {1.149) (1,696)
Net operating Income 1,763 1,278
Operating expenses excluding goodwill impairment (1,639} {1.664)
Coodwill impalrment {123) 243
Operating expenses (1.762) (1.907)
Share of post-tax results of associates and joint ventures 2 (2)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures {73) -
(Loss)/profit before tax (70) (631)
Adjusted profit/(loss) before tax* 126 (388)

Balance Sheet Information and Key Facts

Loans and advances to custorners at amortised cost £64 6bn £65 7bn
Loans and advances to customers at farr value £17 2bn £14 4bn
Customer deposits £77 7bn £710bn
Total assets £88 7bn £85 8bn
Risk weighted assets £69 7bn £70 8bn
Number of employees {full time equivalents) 9,700 11,500
Notes

a Adjusted profit before tax and perfarmance measures exclude the impact of loss on disposal of Barclays Bank Russia of £73m (2010 £nil) and £123m of Spain goodwill
impawrment {2010 £243m) 2010 adjusted loss before tax has been revised to exclude goodwill impairment of £243m on Barclays Bank Russia
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Analysis of results by business

All disclosures in this section are unaudited unless othenwise stated

{audited) Adjusted* Statutory
2011 2010 2011 2010
Performance Measures
Return on average equity” 13% (41%) (14%) (71%)
Return on average tangible equity” 14% (44%) (15%) {7 7%)
Return on average risk weighted assets 01% {05%) (0 2%) {0 8%)
Loan loss rate (bps) 162 226 162 226
Cost Income ratio 56% 56% 61% 64%
{audited) 2011 2010
UK  Europe Row Total UK Europe Row Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Income Statement !nformation
Income 2,199 440 273 2,912 2,279 428 267 2,974
Credit i/mpairment charges and cther provisions {355) (718) {78) (1,149) (459) (1,072) (165) (1,696)
Operating expenses excluding goodwill impairment (1,099) (248) (292) (1,639) (984) {209) (471) (1.664)
Goodwill impalrment - (123) - (123) - - (243) (243)
Share of post-tax resuits of associates and yoimt ventures 2 - - 2 (2) - - (2)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures - - {73} (73) - - - -
Profit/(loss) before tax 747 (647) (170} (70} 834 (853) (612) (631)
Adjusted profit/(loss) before tax' 747 (524) (97) 126 834  (853) (369)  (338)

Notes

a Adjusted profit before tax and performance measures exclude the impact of loss on disposal of Barclays Bank Russia of £73m {2010 £nil) and £123m of Spain goodwall
imparment (2010- £243m)} 2010 adjusted loss before tax has been revised to exclude goodwill impairment of £243m on Barclays Bank Russia

b Return on average equily and return on average tangible equity carnparatives have been revised to use 10% of average risk weighted assets {previously 2010- 9%} in the

calculation of average equity and average tangible equity
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Barclays Wealth (audited)

2011

Barclays Wealth profit before tax increased 27% to £207m driven by strong income growth partly offset by increased investment in the growth of the
business

Income improved 12% to £1,744m reflecting streng income growth in the High Net Worth businesses Net cperating inceme improved 13% to £1,703m with
the loan loss rate reducing to 21bps (2010 29bps)

Net interest income improved 18% to £798m as customer deposit and loan balances have increased refiecting growth in High Net Worth client balances and
an increase in margins on deposits. Net Interest margm increased to 128bps from 122bps with average customer deposits up £3 6bn to £44 5bn and average
loans up £3 Obn to £17 5bn

Net fee and commission income improved 9% to £343m driven by higher transactional activity n the High Net Worth businesses

Operating expenses increased 11% to £1,493m reflecting increase in investment spend and related restructuring costs to support the strategic investment
programme Includes the cost of increase in the chent facing staff and infrastructure to support the High Net Worth businesses

Risk weighted assets ncreased 6% to £13 1bn This compares to growth in lending of 17%, with an increased level of collateral in the lending portfolio Client
assets increased margnally to £164 2bn (2010 £163 9bn) with strong net new asset growth in the High Net Worth businesses offset by market, foreign
exchange and other movements. Return on average equity mcreased to 10 9% (2010 8 8%) and return on average tangible equity up to 15 0% (2010

12 3%) with growth in Income and profit before tax significantly higher than increased equity

(audited) 2011 2010
£m fm
Income Statement Information
Net interest income 798 678
Net fee and commuission Income 943 869
Net trading income 5 1"
Net investment income - 2
Other (expense}/income (2) -
Total income 1,744 1,560
Credit impairment charges and other provisions {41) (48)
Net operating income 1,703 1,512
Operating expenses {1,493) (1,349}
Share of post-tax results of associates and joint ventures (3) -
Profit before tax 207 163
Adjusted profit before tax 207 163
Balance Sheet Information
Loans and advances to customers at amortised cost £18 8bn £16 1bn
Customner deposits £46 Sbn £44 8bn
Total assets £20 9bn £179bn
Risk weighted assets £13 1bn £124bn
(audited) Adjusted Statutory
2011 2010 2011 2010
Performance Measures
Return on average equity” 109% 8 8% 10 9% 88%
Return on average tangible equity” 15 0% 123% 15 0% 12 3%
Return on average risk weighted assets 15% 12% 15% 12%
Loan loss rate (bps) 21 29 21 29
Cost income ratio 86% 86% 86% 86%
Other financial measures
Total chient assets £164 2bn £163 9bn
Number of employees 1,700 7,700

Notes

a Return on average equity and return on average tangible equity comparatives. have been revised to use 10% of average risk weighted assets (previously 2010 9%} inthe

cakcufation of average equity and average tangible equity
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Financial review
Analysis of results by business

All disclosures in this section are unaudited unless otherwise stated

Investment Management (audited)

2011
Investrment Managemnent adjusted profit before tax of £96m (2010 £67m), principally reflecting dividend income of £123m (2010- £100m) from The
Croup’s available for sale holding in BlackReck, Inc which represents a 19 7% (2010 19 9%) interest.

The unadjusted loss before tax of £1,762m (2010 profit of £67m) resulted from the £1,800m impairment of The Group's Investment in BlackRock, Inc The
impairment reflects the recycling through the income statement of the cumulative reduction In market value of The Group’s Investment in BlackRock, Inc as
at 30 September 2011 previously recognised in equity

The fair value of the holding as at 31 December 2011 was £4 1bn (2010 £4 6bn) Since 30 September 2011, the value of the holding has increased by
£0 7bn, which has been taken ta equity For requlatory capital purposes, the increase s deducted from The Group's Core Tier 1 1f the increase had been
included in Core Tier 1 Capital, The Group's Core Tler 1 Capital ratio would have been 0 2% higher

(audited) 201 2010
£m fm

Income 5tatement Information
Total income 53 78
Impairment of investment in BlackRock, Inc (1,800) -
Net operating income (1,747) 78
Operating expenses (15) (n
{Loss)/Profit before tax {1,762) 67
Adjusted profit before tax’ 96 67

Balance Sheet Information

Total assets £4 1bn £4 6bn
Risk weighted assets £0 1bn £0 ibn
Notes

a Adjusted profit before tax excludes £1 800m impairment of Investment in BlackRock, Inc (2010-£nil) and a £58m loss {2010- £ni) on disposal of a portion of The Group s
strategic Investment in BlackRock, Inc recycled through investment income
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Head Office Functions and Other Operations {audited)

2011

Head Office Functions and Other Operations adjusted loss before tax increased 46% to £1,106m, principally as a result of a £325m charge ansing from the
UK bank levy that came into force duning 2011 Profit before tax improved significantly to £2,794m (2010 loss of £334m), reflecting own credit gains and
gains on debt buy-backs

Total Income improved to £3,584m (2010 £223m) Own credit gains, Increased to £2,708m (2010- £391m) and gains on debt buy-backs of £1,130m (2010
£mil) were recognised resulting from the retirement of Tier 1 capital, which will not qualify as Tier 1 capital under Basel 3 This was partially offset by the non-
recurrence in 2011 of £265m Income from currency translation reserves following the repatniation of capital from overseas operations that was recognised in
2010

Operating expenses Increased to £768m (2010 £575m) principally due to the UK bank levy of £325m and higher Financial Services Compensation Scheme
(FSCS) costs, partially offset by non recurrence of a 2010 prowision of £194m in relation to resolution of the investigation into Barclays compliance withUS
econormic sanctions The loss on disposal of £23m reflects losses from currency translation reserves recogrused in the ncome statement following the
disposal of Barclays Bank Russia

Total assets increased 33% to £27 7bn due to purchases of government bonds to support The Group’s hedging and hiquidity management activities

{audited) 2011 2010
£m £m
Income Staternent Information
Total income net of insurance claims (excluding own credit and gains on debt buy-backs) {254) {168)
Own credit 2,708 391
Gans on debt buy-backs and extinguishments 1,130 -
Total income net of insurance claims 3,584 223
Credit impairment release/(charge) and other provisions 1 (2)
Net operating income/(loss) 3,585 221
Operating expenses (excluding UK bank levy) (443) (575)
UK bank levy {325) -
Operating expenses (768) (575)
Profit on disposa! of associates and joint ventures (23) -
Profit/{loss) before tax® 2,794 (354)
Adjusted loss before tax® {1,021) (745)

Balance Sheet Information

Total assets £27 7bn £210bn
Risk weighted assets £2 4bn £06bn
Number of employees {full ime equivalent)® 1,400 1,400
Notes

a The impact of own credit movements in the fair value of structured note 1ssuance of £2,708m (2010- £391m) Is now included within the results of Head Office Functions and
Other Operations, rather than Barclays Capital This reflects the fact that these falr value movements relate to the credit worthiness of The Group as a whole, rather than Barclays
Capita! In particular, and are not included within any assessment of Barclays Capital s undertying performance Furthermore delays to planned changes in accounting standards
wall mean own credit movements are likely to continue to be reflectad in the income statement for the foreseeable future

b Adjusted loss before tax excludes the Impact of own credit gains of £2,708m (2010- £391m) galns on debt buybacks of £1,130m {2010- £ni) and £23m (2010 £nil) loss on
disposal of subsidiaries associates and joint ventures

¢ The number of employees for 2010 has been revised to exclude 100 employees transferred to Africa RBB
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Risk management

Overview

There are no differences in the manner in which nisks are managed and measured between the Barclays Bank PLC Group and the Barclays PLC
Group Therefore, the explanations of the managerent, the control responsibilies and the measurement described in this section and the
following sections on credit nsk, market risk, capital and iguidity nsk management are those for the Barclays PLC Group, which includes the
Barclays Bank PLC Group The amounts included in these notes are those for Barclays Bank PLC

The Group is a major global financial services provider engaged in retail and commercial banking, credit cards, investment banking, wealth
management and investment management services Financial instruments are fundamental to the Group's business and manageng financial nisks,
especially credit risk, 1s a fundamental part of its business activity

The Group's risk management policies and processes are designed to identify and analyse nsk, to set appropriate risk appetite, imits, and controls,
and to monitor the nisks and adherence to imits by means of reliable and up-to-date data Risk management policies, models and systems are
regularly reviewed to reflect changes to markets, products and best market practice

Risk responsibilities

The Board s responsible for approving risk appetite, which is the level of risk the Group chooses to take in pursurt of its business objectives The
Chuef Risk Officer regularly presents a report to the Board summarising developments in the nsk environment and performance trends in the key
portfolios The Board is also responsible for the Internal Control and Assurance Framework (Group Control Framework) it oversees the
management of the most significant nsks through the regular review of risk exposures and related key controls Executive management
responsibilities relating to this are set via the Group's Principal Risks Policy

The Board Risk Commuttee {BRC) monitors the Group’s nsk profile against the agreed appetite Where actual performance differs from
expectations, the actions being taken by management are reviewed to ensure that the BRC 1s comfortable with them After each meeting, the Charr
of the BRC prepares a raport for the next meeting of the Board Barclays first established a separate Board Risk Committee in 1999 and all members
are non-exacutive directars The Finance Director and the Chief Risk Officer attend each meeting as a matter of course The BRC receives regular
and comprehensive reports on nsk methodologies and the Group's nisk profile including the key issues affecting each business portfalic and
forward risk trends The Committee also commissions in-depth analyses of significant risk topics, which are presented by the Chief Risk Officer or
semior risk managers in the businesses The Chair of the Committee prepares a statement each year on its activities

The Board Audit Comrmuttee receives quarterly reports on control 1ssues of significance and a half-yearly review of the adequacy of impairment
allowances, which it reviews relative to the nisk inherent in the portfolios, the business environment, the Group's policies and methodologies and
the performance trends of peer banks The Chair of the Board Audit Committee also sits on the Board Risk Committee

The Board Citizenship Commuttee provides oversight of reputational risk management and reviews emerging issues with potentially sigmificant
reputational Impact The Committee also reviews performance against Citizenship priorities, looking at the way we do business, how we are
contributing to growth in the real economy, and supporting communities through investment programmes and efforts of employees

The Board Remuneration Comrmuttee receives a detailed report on nisk management performance from the Board Risk Committee which 1s
considered in the setung of performance abjectives in the context of incentive packages

The Board Corporate Governance and Nominations Cornmittee has a key role in reviewing new appointments and succession plans to ensure that
we have a Board and an executive management team with the appropriate skills, knowledge and experience to operate effectively in an ever
challenging environment

Internal Audit's responsible for the independent review of nsk management and the control environment Its objective is to provide reliable, valued
and timely assurance to the Board and Executive Management over the effectiveness of controls, mitigating current and evolving high risks and in
so doing enhancing the centrols cutture within the Group The Board Audit Committee reviews and approves Internal Audit’s plans and resources,
and evaluates the effectiveness of Internal Audit An assessment by external adwisers Is also carried out pernodically

The Chief Risk Officer 1s a member of the Executive Committee and has overall day-to-day accountability for risk management under delegated
authority from the Chief Executive The Chief Executive must consult the Chairman of the Board Risk Comrmuttee in respect of the Chief Risk
Officer's performance appraisal and compensation as well as all appointments to or departures from the role

The Chief Risk Officer manages the independent Group Risk function and chairs the Financial Risk Commuttee and the Operational Risk Committee,
which monitor the Group's financial and non-financial nsk profile relative to established nsk appetite Reporting te the Chief Rusk Officer, and
working in the Group Risk function, are nisk-type heads for retail credit risk, wholesale credit risk, market risk, operationai nsk and fraud nisk. Along
with their teams, the risk-type heads are responsible for establishing a Group-wide framework for oversight of the nisks and contrels of thewr nsk
type These nsk-type teams laise with each business as part of the momtoring and management processes

In addition, each business unit has an embedded nisk management function, headed by a Business Chief Risk Officer (BCRO) BCROs and therr
teams are responsible for assisting business heads in the identification and management of therr business risk profiles and for implementing
appropriate controls These teams also assist Group Risk in the formulation of Group policies and their implementation across the businesses The
business risk directors report jointly to their respective business heads and to the Chief Risk Cfficer

The nisk type heads within the central Group Risk function and the BCROs within the business units report to the Chief Risk Officer and are
members of the Financial Risk Commuttee or Operational Risk Committee as appropriate
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Risk factors

Risk factors

During 2011, the Principal Risks Policy was updated, resulting in nisks being grouped into four categories with no significant change to the
underlying risk types Definitions of the four Principal Risks are provided on pages 29 to 33 This summary also includes discussions of the impact
of business conditions and the general economy and regulatory changes which can impact nsk facters and so influence the Group’s results The
Principal Risks described below can zlso potentially impact the Group's reputation and brand

The following information describes the nsk factors which the Group believes could cause its future results to differ materially from expectations
Howaever, other factors could also adversely affect the Group's results and so the factors discussed in this report should not be considered to be a
complete set of all potential nisks and uncertainties [

Business conditlons and the general economy
The Group has significant activities in a large number of countries Consequently there are many ways in which ¢changes in business conditions and
the general economy can adversely impact profitability, whether at Group level, the individual business units or specific countries of operation

During 2011, the economic environment 1n Barclays main markets was marked by generally weaker than expected growth and the ongoing
sovereign debt crisls in the Eurozone In the UK, the economy recovered slightly during 2011 although GOP deciined shghtly in the fourth quarter
leading to uncertainty 1n the near term. The potentlal for persistent unemployment, higher interest rates and rising inflation may increase the
pressure on disposable incomes, affecting an individual’s debt service ability with the potential to adversely Impact performance in the Group’s
retail sector US economic conditions were better than the UK in 2011 However, unemployment s still high, which increases uncertainty in the near
term Credit conditions in Europe remain weak and a depressed housing sector and high unemployment may, in the near term, adversely affect
Barclays business operations in this region The global wholesale environment has been affected by the sovereign debt cnsis 2nd the business
confidence has generally dechined Performance in the near term, therefore, remains uncertain

The business conditions facing the Group in 2012 globally and in many markets In which the Group operates are subject to significant uncertainties
which may in some cases lead to material adverse impacts on the Group’s operations, financial conditions and prospects including, for example,
changes n credit ratings, share price and solvency of counterparties as well as ligher levels of impairment, lower revenues or higher costs

Significant uncertainties by Principal Risk include:

Credit Risk
- Impact of potentially deteriorating sovereign credit quality, particularly debt servicing and refinancing capabibity,

- Extent and sustainability of economic recovery, including smpact of austerity measures on the European economies,

- Increase in unemployment due to weaker economues in a number of countries 10 which the Group operates, fiscal ightening and other
measures,

- mpact of rising inflation and potential interest rate rises on consumer debt affordability and corporate profitability,

- Possibility of further falls In residential property prices in the UX, South Africa and Western Europe,

- Potential liquidity shortages increasing counterparty risks,

- Potential for large single name losses and deterioratlon in specific sectors and geographies,

- Possible deterloration in remaining credit market exposures, and

- Potential exlt of one or more countries from the Euro as a result of the European debt crisis

Market Risk

- Reduced client activity leading to lower revenues,

- Decreases in market hquidity due to economic uncertainty,

- Impact on banking bock Income from uncertain interest and exchange rate environment, and
- Asset returns underperforming pension liabikties

Funding Risk

- Impact of Basel 3 as regulatory rules are finalised, I
- Impacts on capital ratios from weak profit performance,

- Availability and volatility in cost of funding due to economic uncertainty, and
- Reduction In available depositer and wholesale funding

Operational Risk

- Implermentation of strategic change and integration programmes across the Group,

- Continued regulatory and political focus, driven by the global economic climate,

- Impact of new, wide ranging, legislation In various countnes coupled with changing regulatory landscape,
- Increasingly litigious environment, and

- The cnisis management agenda and breadth of regulatory change required in global financial institutions
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1. Credit risk

Credit Risk is the nisk of the Group suffering financial loss if any of its customers, clients or market counterparties fails to fulfil their contractual
abligations to the Group

The credit risk that the Group faces arises mainly from wholesale and retail loans and advances together with the counterparty credit nsk ansing
from derivative contracts entered into with its clients Other sources of credit sk anse from trading activities, including debt secunties, settlement
balances with market counterparties, available for sale assets and reverse repurchase loans It can also arise when an entity’s credit rating 1s
downgraded, leading to a fall in the value of Barclays investment in its 1ssued financial instruments

Risk Management

The Board and management have established a number of key committees to review credit risk management, approve overall Group credit policy
and resolve all significant credit policy 1ssues These compnse the Board Risk Commuttee (BRC), the Financial Risk Commuttee, the Wholesale Credit
Risk Management Committee and the Retail Credit Risk Committee

Barclays constantly reviews its concentration in a number of areas including, for example, portfolio segments, geography, maturity, industry and
credit rating

Diversification is achieved through setting maximum expesure mandates to portfolio segments, individual counterparties, sectors and countries,
with excesses reported to the Financial Risk Commuttee and the BRC

For further information see Credit Risk Management {pages 34 to 69)

Key Specific Risks and Mitigation
Specific areas and scenarios where credit risk coutd lead to higher impairment charges in future years include

Savereign Risk

Fiscal deficits continue to remain high, leading to high levels of public debt in sorme countries at a ime of modest GDP growth This has led to a
loss of market confidence in certain countries to winch the Group s exposed causing detenorating sovereign credit quaity, particularly in relation
to debt servicing and refinancing The Group has put certain countries on watch st status with detalled monthly reporting to the Wholesale Credit
Risk Management Committee

For further information see Group exposures to selected Eurozone countnies (pages 61 to 69)

Economic Weakness

The implementation of austerity measures ta tackle high levels of public debt has negatively impacted econormic growth and led to nsing
unemployment in some European countries and the monetary, interest rate and other policies of central banks and regulatory authorities may also
have a significant adverse effect on a number of countnes tn which the Group operates

The threat of weaker economies in a number of countries in which the Group operates could lead to even higher increasing levels of
unemnployment, nsing inflation, potentially higher interest rates and falling property prices For example, the Spanish and Portuguese housing
sectors continue to be depressed, impacting the Group’s wholesale and retail credit nisk exposures

The Group has experienced elevated impairment across its operations in these two regrons, although impairment in Spain decreasedn 2011,
following a marked reduction in construction activity and shrinking consumer spending The Group has reduced its credit risk appetite to the most
severely affected segments of the economy In Spain, new lending to the property and construction sector ceased and workout team resources
have been increased significantly

In addition, if funding capacity i either the wholesale markets or central bank eperations were to change significantly, liquidity shartages could
result which may lead to increased counterparty risk with other financial institutions This could also have an impact on refinancing nisks in the
corporate and retall sectors The Group continues to actively manage this risk including through its extensive system of Mandate and Scale limits

For further information see Wholesale Credit Risk and Retail Credit Risk {pages 48 to 55)

Eurozone Crisis

Concerns about credit nsk (including that of sovereigns) and the Eurozone cnsis remain very high The large sovereign debts and/or fiscal deficits
of a number of European countries have raised concerns regarding the financial condition of financial institutions, insurers and other corporates (1)
located in these countries, {i) that have direct or indirect exposure to these countries (both to sovereign debt and private sector debt), and/or (111}
whose banks, counterparties, custodrans, customers, service praviders, sources of funding and/or suppliers have direct or indirect exposure to
these countries The default, or a further decline in the credit rating, of one or more sovereigns or financial iInstitutions could cause severe stress in
the financial system generally and could adversely affect the markets in which the Group operates and the businesses, economic condition and
prospects of the Group's counterparties, customers, suppliers or creditors, directly or indirectly, in ways which it is difficult to predict

For further information see Group exposures to selected Eurozone countnes (pages 61 to69)
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Credit Market Exposures
Barclays Capital holds certain exposures to credit markets that became illiquid during 2007 These exposures primarily relate to commerclal real
estate and leveraged finance loans The Group continues to actively manage down these exposures

For further information see Barclays Capital Credit Market Exposures {page 59)
2. Market risk

Market Risk is the risk of the Group suffering financial loss due to the Group being unable to hedge its balance sheet at prevailing market levels

The Group can be impacted by changes in both the level and volatility of prices e g interest rates, credit spreads, commodity prices, equity prices
and foreign exchange rates

This risk 15 reported as Traded Risk where Barclays supports customer activity primarlly via Barclays Capital, Non-Traded Risk to support customer
products primarily In the retail bank, and Pension Risk where the investment profile is reviewed versus the defined benefit scheme

Risk Management
The Board approves Market Risk appetite for trading and non-trading activities, with limits set within this context by the Group Market Risk
Director

Group Risk Is responsible for the overall Barclays Market Risk Control Framework which implements the five step nsk management process
Business specific Market Risk teams are responsible for implementing the Control Framework. Oversight and challenge 1s provided by business
commuttees, group comrttees and the central Group Market Risk team

For further information see Market Risk Management pages 70 to 76

Key Specific Risks and Mitigation
Specific areas and scenarios where market nsk could lead to lower revenues in future years include

Reduced Client Activily and Decreased Market Liquidity
While the Group Is exposed to continued market volatility, Barclays Capital’s trading activities are principally a consequence of supporting customer
activity

The impact of ongoing economic uncertainty on client volumes, reduced market kquidity and higher volatility could lead to lower revenues
The cost base and nsk positions are constantly reviewed to ensure that they are calibrated appropnately The portfolios are constantly reviewed to
ensure that inventones are sized appropriately to support customer activity taking into account market volatility

For further information see Market Risk Managerment pages 70 to 76

Non-Traded Interest Rate Risk
Interest volatility can Impact the firm’s net interest margin The potential for future volatility and margin changes remarn and it is difficult to predict
with any accuracy, changes in absclute interest rate levels, yield curves and spread

For further information see Market Risk Management pages 70 to 76

Pension Fund Risk
Adverse movements between pension assets and liabilities for defined benefit could contribute to a pension deficit Barclays and the Pension
Trustees dedicated Investment Management team constantly review the asset liability mismatch to ensure appropnate investment strategy

For further information see Market Risk Management pages 70 to 76 and Note 37

3. Funding risk
Funding Rusk 1s the nsk that the Greup is unable to achieve its business plans due to funding, capital or the management of structural balance sheet
nsks

Ligudity Risk is the nsk that the Group is unable to meet its obligations as they fall due resulting in an inability to support normal business activity,
faliing to meet Niquidity regulatory requirements, or changes to credst ratings

Capital Risk 1s the nsk that the Group 1s unable to maintain appropriate capital ratios which could lead to an inability to support business activity,
faiing to meet regulatory requirements, or changes to credit ratings

Structural Risk relates to the management of non-contractual nisks and predominantly arises from the impact on the Group's balance sheet of
changes in predominantly interest rates on ncome or foreign exchange rates on capital ratios
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Risk Management
The Board approves the Group's Liquidity Risk Appetite, Capital Plan and approach for Structural Hedging

Group Risk provides oversight review and challenge to the Liquidity, Capital and Structural Risk Control Frameworks The Risk function also
provides direct input inte as well as approval of various aspects of the calibration, calculation and reporting for these key risks

Group Treasury has responsibility for implermenting the Key Risk controf frameworks for Liguidity, Capital and Structural Risks at both the Group
and Legal Entity leve! and for ensuring that the firm maintains comphance with all local regulatory mimimum hrmut requirements relating to these
key risks

Oversight and chailenge 15 provided by local and Group Asset Liability Committees all reporting up to Group Treasury Committee which meets at
least monthly

For further information see pages 77 and 78 t0 94

Key Specific Risks and Mitigation
Specific areas and scenarios where funding nsk could lead to higher costs or imit Barclays ability to execute its business plans include

Increasing capital requirements

There are a number of regulatory developments that impact capital requirements Most significantly Basel 3 as adopted into EU law through the
fourth Capital Requirements Directive (CRD4) and Capital Requirements Regutation which are still gong through the EU legislative process
Additional capital requirements may anse from other proposals including the recommendations of the Independent Commission on Banking

Barclays continues to prepare for the implementation of CRD4 and includes the estimated impact of future regulatary changes in its capital
planning framework Current forecasts already include the impact of Basel 3 as currently understood, and forecasts will be continually updated as
CRD4 and other proposals for regulatory developments are finalised

Mamtaining Capital Strength

A matenal adverse detenoration in the Group's financial performance can affect the capacity to support further capital deployment The Capital
Plan is continually monitored against the internal target capital ratios with Risk, the business and legal entities through a proactive and forward
looking approach to capital isk management which ensures that the Plan remains appropniate  The capital management process also includes an
internal and regulatory stress testing process which informs the Group capital plan  Further detail on the Group's regulatory capital resources is
included on page 77

Changes in Funding Availability and Costs

Market liquidity, the level of customer deposits and the Group’s ability to raise wholesale funding impacts both the Group's net interest margin,
which is sensitive to volatility in cost of funding, and its ability to both fulfil its obligations and support client lending, trading activities and
investments Large unexpected outflows, for example from customer withdrawals, ratings downgrades or loan drawdowns, could also resultin
forced reduction in the balance sheet, inability to fulfil lending obligations and regulatory breaches The Liguidity Profile 15 ronitored constantly
and Is supported by a range of early warning indicators to ensure the profile remains apprapriate and sufficient liquid resources are hekd to protect
against unexpected outflows Further details are provided in the Funding Risk — Liquuidity section on pages 78 to 94

Local Balance Sheet Management and Redenomination Risk

The introduction of capital controls or new currencies by countries (for example in the Eurozone) to mitigate current stresses could have an
ongoing or pant-in-time impact on the performance of local balance sheets of certain Group companies based on the asset quality, types of
collateral and mix of habilities Local assets and liability positiens are carefully monitored by local Asset Liability Comrmittees with oversight by
Group Treasury Further detail on the Group's exposures to Selected Eurozone countriesis included on pages 61 to 69

4. Operational risk

Operational Risk 15 the nisk of direct or indirect impacts resulting from human factors, inadequate or failed internal processes and systems or
external events Operational risks are inherent in the Group's business activities

The Key Risks that this Pnincipal Risk includes are External Supphers, Financial Reporting, Fraud, information, Legal, Product, Payments process,
People, Premises & Security, Regulatory, Taxation, Technology and Transaction operations For definitions of these Key Risks see pages 31 to 32

Risk Management

The Operational risk framework enables Barclays to manage and measure its Operational sk profile and to calculate the amount of Operational
nisk capital that it needs to hold The mummum, mandatory requirements applicable to all Business Units are set out in the Group Cperational nsk
policies

Group Key Risk Owners are required to momtor information relevant to their Key Risk from each Operational nisk framework element. In addition,
each Key Risk Owner mandates controt requirements specific to their Key Risk through a Key Risk Control Framework.
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Key Specific Risks and Mitigation
Speaific areas and scenanos where operational nsk could lead to financial and/or non-financial impacts including legal or regulatory breaches or
reputational damage include

Regulatory Risk

Regutatory nsk anses from a failure or inability to comply fully with the laws, regulations or codes applicable specifically to the financial services
industry which are currently subject to significant changes Non-compliance could lead to fines, public repnmands, damage to reputation,
increased prudential requirements, enforced suspension of operations or, In extreme cases, withdrawal of authonsations to operate

The regulatory response to the financial cnisis has led and will continue to lead to very substantial regulatory changes in the countries in which the
Group operates It has alsc led to (1) a more assertive approach being demonstrated by the authorities in many junisdictions, and (1) enhanced
capital and liquidity requirements {for example pursuant to CRD4) Current examples of specific areas of concern include-

The Independent Commission on Banking (ICB}

The ICB was charged by the UK Government with reviewing the UK banking systern and its findings were published on 12 Septermnber 2011 The ICB
recommended (amongst other things} that (1) the UK and EEA retail banking actrvities of a UK bank or building society should be placed in a legally
distinct, operationally separate and economically independent entity {(so-called “ring-fencing”), and () the loss-absorbing capacity of ring-fenced
banks and UK-headquartered global systemically important banks (such as Barclays Bank PLC) should be increased to levels higher than the Basel 3
proposals

The UK Government published its response to the ICB recommendations in December 2011 and indicated that pnmary and secondary legistation
relating to the proposed ring-fence will be completed by May 2015, with UK banks and bulding societies expected to be compliant as scon as
practicable thereafter, and the requirernents relating to increased loss-absorbing capacity of nng-fenced banks and UK-headquartered global
systemically important banks will be apphcable from 1 January 2013 Changes to the structure of UK banks and an increase in the amount of loss-
absorbing capital 1ssued by UK banks may have a materal adverse impact on the Bank's and the Group's results and financial condition It 15 also
not possible to predict the detail of the implementation [egisiation or the ultimate consequences to the Group

The Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act (DFA)

DFA will have an impact on the Group and its business A significant number of rules and draft rules have been issued through 2011 While the
impact of this rule-making will be substantial, the full scale of this impact remains unclear as many of the provisions of the Act require rules to be
made to give them effect and this process is still underway Barclays has taken a centralised approach to monitonng this process and to ensuring
compliance with the rules that are developed as a result

Recovery and Resolution Plans

The strong regulatory focus on resolvability has continued in 2011, both from UK and international regulators The Group has been engaged, and
continues to be engaged, with the authorities on taking forward recovery planning and identifying information that would be required in the event
of a resolution The Group will be required to prepare an intial plan for the UK and US requlators in the first haif of 2012

Any future regulatory changes may restrict the Group's operations, mandate certain lending activity and impose other, significant compliance
costs For further information see Supervision and Regulation pages 95 to 99

Legal Risk

The Group 1s subject to a comprehensive range of legal obligations in all countries in whech it operates and so s exposed to many forms of legai
nisk, which may anse in a number of ways (1} business may not be conducted in accordance with applicable laws around the world, (1) contractual
obligations may either not be enforceable as intended or may be enforced in an adverse way, (i) intellectual property may not be adequatety
protected, and (v) liability for damages may be incurred to third parties harmed by the conduct of the Group's business The Group also faces nisk
where legal proceedings are brought against it. The Group 15, and may in the future be, involved in vanous disputes, legal proceedings and
regulatory investigations in vanous junsdictions, including 1n the US Furthermore, the Group, like many other financial institutions, has come under
greater regulatory scrutiny in recent years and expects that environment to continue particularly as it refates to compliance with new and existing
corporate governance, employee compensation, conduct of business, anti-money laundering and anti-terrorism laws and regulations, as well as
applicable international sanctions regimes

Key legal nsks to which the Group was exposed during 2011 have included Iitigation 1n relation to
- Lehman Brothers Holdings Inc,

- Amencan Depository Shares,
- US Federal Housing Finance Agency and Other Residential Mortgage-Backed Securtties, and
- Devonshire Trust.

For further information see Legal Proceedings (page 166)
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Payment Protection Insurance

During 2011 Barclays agreed with the FSA that it would process all on-hold and any new complaints from customers about PPl policies that they
hold Barclays also announced that, as a goodwill gesture, it would pay out compensation to customers who had PPI complaints put on hold dunng
the judicial review Barclays took a provision of £1bn in the second quarter of 2011 to cover the cost of future redress and administration For
further information see Provisions {page 163)

CyberSecurity Risk

Barclays recognises the growing threats from cyberspace to its systems, including in respect of customer and its own information held on them
and transactions processed through these systems The implementation of measures to manage the risk is invalving increasing Investment and use
of internal resources However, given the increasing sophistication and scope of potential attacks from cyberspace, it is possible that in the future
such attacks may lead to significant breaches leading to associated costs and reputational damage

The Group has invested for many years in bullding defences to counter these threats and continues to do so, recognising that this 1s an area of sk
that changes rapidly and requires continued focus

To date the Group 1s not aware of any significant breaches of its systems from cyberspace

Taxation Risk

Taxation risk 1s the nsk that the Group suffers losses ansing from additional tax charges, financial penalties or reputational damage associated with
failure to comply with procedures required by tax authorities, changes in tax law and the interpretation of tax law The Group 15 subject to the tax
laws 1n all countries in which it operates, including tax laws adopted at an EU level, and 1s impacted by a number of double taxation agreements
between countries

HMRC, being the Group's pnrary taxation authanty, recently took the unusuai step of issuing a public statement that the Government was drafting
retrospective tax legislation Such steps add to the need to closely monitor changes in the way in which HMRC approaches the application of its
Code of Practice for Taxation of Banks In addition, and for all tax authonties within which the Group operates, we continue to monitor the
potential impact of proposed and recently enacted taxes aimed at banks

In 2011 the Group continued to settle open tax issues in a number of junsdictions and in meeting its tax obligations made global tax payments
totalling £6 4bn The profit forecasts that support the Group’s deferred tax assets, principally in the US and Spain, have been subject to close
scrutiny by management. For further information see Note 11
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Overview of Barclays Group Credit Risk Exposures

Credit nsk 15 the nsk of suffering financia! loss should the Group's customers, clients or market counterparties fail to fulfil their contractual
obligations to the Group The credit risk that the Group faces arises mainly from wholesale and retail loans and advances, together with the
counterparty credit nsk arising from derivative contracts entered into with clients Other sources of credit nsk arise from trading activities, including
debt securities, settlement balances with market counterparties, avallable for sale assets and reverse repurchase agreements

Losses ansing from assets held for trading (derivatives, debt securitles) are accounted for as trading losses, rather than impairment charges, even
though the fall in value causing the loss may be attributable to credit deterioration

Analysis of the Group’s maxImum exposure to credit risk and collateral and other credit enhancements held

The following table presents the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk as at 31 December and the financial effects of collateral, credit
erthancements and other actions taken to mitigate the Group's exposure For financial assets recognised on the balance sheet, maximum exposure
to credit nsk represents the balance sheet carrying value after allowance for impairment. For off-balance sheet guarantees, the maximum exposure
is the maximum amount that Barclays would have to pay If the guarantees were to be called upon For loan commitments and other credit related
commitments that are wwrevocable over the life of the respective facilities, the maximum exposure 1s the full amount of the committed facillties

This and subsequent analyses of credit risk include only financial assets subject to credit nsk. They exclude other financial assets not subject to
credit nsk, mainly equity secunties held in the trading portfolio, as avallable for sale or designated at fair value, and commodities Financiai Assets
designated at fair value in respect of inked Liabilities to customers under investment contracts have not been included as the Group 1s not exposed
to credit sk on these assets Credit losses in these portfolios, If any, would lead to a reduction in the linked habilities and not result in a loss to the
Croup This analysis and subsequent analyses of credit risk include only financial assets subject to credit nsk. They exclude other financial assets,
mainly equity securities held in the trading portfolio, as available for sale or designated at fair value, and commaodities, which are not subject to
credit nsk. Financ:al assets designated at fair value in respect of linked liabilities to customers under investment contracts have also not been
Included as the Group 15 not exposed to credit risk on these assets Credit losses in these portfolios, if any, would lead to a reduction in the linked
ltabilities and not result in a loss to the Group
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Maximum exposure and effects of collateral and other credit enhancements {audited)

Maximum  Netting and
The Group Exposure set-off Collateral Risk transfer Net Exposure
As at 31 December 2011 £m £m £m £m £m
On-balance sheet.
Cash and balances at central banks 106,894 - - - 106,894
Items in the course of collection from other banks 1,812 - - - 1,812
Trading portfolio assets - - -
Debt securities 123,364 - - - 123,364
Traded loans 1374 - - - 1,374
Total trading portfolio assets 124,738 - - - 124,738
Financial assets designated at fair value
Loans and advances 21,960 - (7,887) (76} 13,997
Debt secunties 2,095 - (22) - 2,073
Other financial assets 7,574 - {5,541) - 2,033
Totat financial assets designated at fair value 31,629 - (13,450) (76) 18,103
Derivative financial Instruments 538,964  (440,592) (57,294) (7.544) 33,534
Loans and advances to banks 46,792 {1,886) (7,999) (7 36,736
Loans and advances to customers
Home loans 171,272 - (167,581) (1.130) 2,561
Credit cards, unsecured and other retail lending 64,492 (11) (16,159) (2,564) 45,758
Wholesale 196,170 (8,873) (53,616) (9,550) 124,131
Total loans and advances to customers 431,934 (8,884)  (237,356) (13,244) 172,450
Reverse repurchase agreements and other similar secured lending 153,665 - {150,337) - 3,328
Available for sale debt securities 63,608 - (219) (3,532) 59,857
Other assets 2,620 - - - 2,620
Total on-balance sheet 1,502,656 (451,362) {466,655) {24,567) 560,072
Off-balance sheet
Securities lending arrangements 35,996 - (35,996} - -
Guarantees and letters of credit pledged as collateral security 14,181 - (1,699} (523) 11,959
Acceptances and endorsements 475 - (9} - 466
Documentary credits and other short-term trade related transactions 1358 - {39) (49) 1,270
Standby facilities, credit ines and other commitments 240,282 - {15,522} (3,829) 220,931
Total off-balance sheet 292,292 - {53,265} (4,401} 234,626
Total 1,794,948 (451.362)  (519,920) {28,968) 794,698
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Maximum exposure and effects of collateral and other credit enhancements (audited)

Maximum  Netting and
The Bank Exposure set-off Collateral Risk transfer Net Exposure
As at 31 December 2011 £m £m £m £m £m
On-balance sheet.
Cash and balances at central banks 103,087 - - - 103,087
Items in the course of coflection from other banks 1,634 - - - 1,634
Trading portfolio assets
Debt securities 77,279 - - - 77,279
Traded loans 1,361 - - - 1,361
Total trading portfolio assets 78,640 - - - 78,640
Financlal assets designated at fair value:
Loans and advances 21,899 - (7.254) (1) 14,644
Debt securities 19,198 (14,823) - - 4,375
Other financial assets 3419 - (2,269) - 1,150
Total financial assets designated at fair vatue 44,516 (14,823) (9,523) (1) 20,169
Derivative financial instruments 546,921 (437,635) (52,291) (7.383) 49,612
Loans and advances to banks 52,287 (14,404) - (33) 37,850
Loans and advances to customers
Horne loans 133,516 - (131,841) (1.088) 587
Credit cards, unsecured and other retail lending 32,81 - (8,499) {2,191) 22,131
Wholesale 351,443 (7,867) (84,018) (8,215) 251,343
Total loans and advances to customers 517,780 (7.867)  (224,358) (11,494) 274,061
Reverse repurchase agreements and other similar secured lending 161,436 - (151,961) - 9,475
Available for sale debt securities 47,805 - - (3,533) 44,272
Other assets 1,170 - (16) - 1,154
Total on-balance sheet 1,555,276 {474,729)  (438,149) (22,444) 619,954
Off-balance sheet.
Securlties lending arrangements 35,996 - (35,996) - -
Guarantees and letters of credit pledged as collateral secunty 14,356 - (1,406) (304) 12,646
Acceptances and endorsements 449 - - B 449
Documentary credits and other short-term trade related transactions 1,106 - (12) - 1,094
Standby facihtes, credit ines and other commitments 190,736 - (15,020) (3,901) 171,815
Total off-balance sheet 242,643 - (52,434) (4,205) 186,004
Total 1,797,919 (474,729}  (490,583) {26,649) 805,958
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Maximum exposure and effects of collateral and other credit enhancements (audited)

Maximum  Netting and

The Group Exposure set-off Collateral Risk transfer Net Exposure
As at 31 December 2010 £m Em £m £m £m
On-balance sheet

Cash and balances at central banks 97,630 - - - 97,630
Items in the course of collection from other banks 1,384 - - - 1,384
Trading portfolio assets

Debt secunties 139,240 - - - 139,240
Traded loans 2,170 - - - 2,170
Total trading portfolio assets 141,410 - - - 141,410
Financial assets designated at fair value

Loans and advances 22,352 - (9,997) {8) 12,347
Debt securities 1,918 - {150} - 1,768
Other financial assets 10,101 - {7.368) - 2,733
Total financial assets designated at fair value 34,371 - (17.515) {8) 16,848
Derivative financial instruments 420,319 (340,467) {42,795) {3,202} 33,855
Loans and advances to banks 37,799 (1.659) (8.915) (442) 26,743
Loans and advances to customers

Home loans 168,055 - (163,602) (1,053) 3,400
Credit cards, unsecured and other retail lending 59,269 (8) (13,670) (2,263) 43328
Wholesale 200,618 {9,477) (60,099) (12.443) 118,599
Total loans and advances to customers 427,942 (9,483)  (237,371) (15,759) 165,327
Reverse repurchase agreements and other similar secured lending 205,772 - (200,665} - 5,107
Available for sale debt securities 59,629 - (218) (4,532) 54,879
Other assets 2,824 - - - 2824
Total on-batance sheet 1,429,080 (351,651) (507,479) (23,943) 546,007
Off-balance sheet.

Securities lending arrangements 27,672 - (27.672) - -
Guarantees and letters of credit pledged as collateral secunty 13,783 - (1,282} {396) 12,105
Acceptances and endorsements 331 - (8) - 323
Documentary credits and other short-term trade related transactions 1,194 - {23) (85) 1,086
Standby facilities, credit ines and other commitments 222,963 - (12,461) (3,990) 206,512
Total off-balance sheet 265,943 - (41,446) (4,471) 220,026
Total 1,695,023 (351,651) (548,925) (28,414) 766,033
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Maximum exposure and effects of collateral and other credit enhancements (audited)

Maximum  Netting and
The Bank Exposure set-off Collateral Risk transfer Net Exposure
As at 31 December 2010 £m £m £m £m £m
On-balance sheet.
Cash and balances at central banks 92,686 - - - 92,686
Items in the course of collection from other banks 1,268 - - - 1,268
Trading portfolio assets
Debt securities 86,328 - - - 86,328
Traded loans 2,500 - - - 2,500
Total trading portfolio assets 88,828 - - - B8,828
Financial assets designated at fair value
Loans and advances 25,093 - (3359) - 16,734
Debt securities 783 - - - 783
Other financizl assets 3,294 - (1.612) - 1,682
Total financial assets designated at falr value 29170 - (9,971) - 19,199
Derjvative financial instruments 441,145 (336,482) (39379) (3,075) 62,209
Loans and advances ta banks 40,390 {11,183) - (430) 28,777
Loans and advances to customers
Home loans 123,995 - (122153) (1,039) 803
Credst cards, unsecured and other retail lending 26,640 {4,958) (1,995) 19,687
Wholesale 372,301 (7.537) (78831) {11,720) 274,213
Total loans and advances to customers 522936 {7.537)  (205942) {14,754) 294,703
Reverse repurchase agreements and other similar secured lendlng 227343 - (213576) - 13,767
Available for sale debt securities 45,076 - - (4,532) 40,544
Other assets 1,054 - - - 1,054
Total on-bzlance sheet 1,489,896 (355,202) (468,868) {22,791) 643,035
Off-balance sheet.
Securities lending arrangements 27672 - (27.672) - -
Guarantess and letters of credit pledged as ccllateral security 11,823 - (1.063) (307) 10,453
Acceptances and endorsements 302 - - - 302
Documentary credits and other short-term trade related transactions 924 - 0] (61) 856
Standby facilities, credit lines and other commutments 173,795 - (12372) {3,997) 157,426
Total off-balance sheet 214516 - (41,114) {4,365) 169,037
Total 1,704,412 (355,202) {509,982) {27,156) 812,072
Overview

As at 31 December 2011, The Group's net exposure to credit nsk after taking into account netting and set-off, collateral and nsk transfer remained
broadly flat at £794,698m (2010 £766,033m) The extent to which The Group holds mitigation on its assets rose marginally from 55% to 56%

The Bank’s net exposure to credit risk also remained flat at £805,958m {2010 £812,072m), the extent to which The Graup holds rmitigation on its

assets rnsing from 529% to 55%

Of the remaining exposure left unmitigated, a significant portion relates to cash held at central bank, available for sale debt securities issued by
governments, cash collateral and setttement balances, all of which are considered lower nsk. Trading portfolio hability positions, which to a
significant extent economically hedge trading portfolio assets but which aren't held specifically for risk management purposes, are excluded from
the analysis above The credit quality of counterparties to derwative, available for sale and wholesale loan assets are predorminantly investment
grade Further analysis on the credit quality of assets 1s presented on pages 48 10 58
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Netting and set-off
The Group has the ability to offset asset and Liability positions on default or bankruptcy of the borrower Tius includes master netting agreements
for loans and advances (whether held at amortised cost or fair value)

Derivatives may also be settled net where there 15 a master agreement in place providing for this in the event of default, reducing The Group’s
exposure to caunterparties on denvative asset positions The reduction in fisk is the amount of the hability held The Group offsets asset and hability
amounts on the batance sheet when it has both the ability and the intention to settle net The amounits above represent available netting in the
event of default of the asset

Collateral
The Group has the ability to call on collateral in the event of default of the barrower or other counterparty, compnsing

- Home loans a fixed charge over residential property in the form of houses, flats and other dwellings,

- Wholesale lending a fixed charge over commercial property and other physical assets, in vanous forms,

- Credit cards, unsecured and other retail lending includes charges over motor vehicle and other physical assets, second hen charge over
residentsal property, which 1s subordinate to first charge held either by The Group or by another party, and finance lease recervables, for
which typically The Group retains legal title to the leased asset and has the right torepossess the asset on the default of the borrower,

- Dervatives cash and non-cash collateral may be held against denivative trades with certain counterparties,

- Reverse repurchase agreements collateral typically compnises highly liquid securities which have been legally transferred to Barclays subject
to an agreement to return them for a fixed price, and

- Financial guarantees and simular off-balance sheet commuitments cash collateral may be held against these arrangements

The Group may also obtain collateral in the form of floating charges over receivables and nventory of corporate and other business customers The
value of this collateral vanes from period to period depending on the level of receivables and inventory Iti1s impracticable to provide an estimate of
the amount (farr value or nominal value) of this collateral The Group may in some cases obtain collateral and other credit enhancements ata
counterparty level, which are not specific to a particular class of financial instrument. The fair value of the credit enhancement gained has been
apportioned across the relevant asset classes

The carrying value of non-cash collateral reflects the fair value of the physical assets limited to the carrying value of the asset where the exposure 1s
over-collateralised In certain cases where active markets or recent valuations of the assets are not available, estimates will be used For assets
collateralised by residential or commercial property (and certain other physical assets), where it1s not practicable to assess current market
valuations of each underlying property, values reflect historical fair values amended for mavements in appropnate external indices

For assets collateralised by traded financial instruments, values reflect mark to market or mark to model values of those assets, applying a haircut
where appropriate

The net realisable value from a distressed sale of collateral obtained by The Group upon default or insolvency of a counterparty will in some cases
be lower than the carrying value recognised above Assets obtained are normally sold, generally at auction, or realised in an orderly manner for the
maximum benefit of The Group, the borrower and the borrower’s other creditors in accordance with the relevant insolvency regulations For
business customers, in some circumstances, where excess funds are avallable after repayment i full of the outstanding loan, they are offered to
any other, lower ranked, secured lenders Any additional funds are returned to the customer Barclays does not, as a rule, occupy repossessed
properties for its business use or use assets obtained in its operations

Risk transfer

The Group 1n sorme cases holds guarantees, letters of credit and similar instruments from third parties which enable 1t to claim settlement from
them in the event of default an the part of the counterparty The balances shown represent the notional value of the guarantees held by The Group
issued by corporate and financial institutional counterparties In addition, The Group obtains guarantees from customers in respect of personal
loans and smaller business loans These are not quantified in the above table
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Collateral and other credit enhancements obtained

The carrying value of assets held by The Group as at 31 Decernber 2011 as a resut of the enforcement of collateral was as follows

Assets received (audited) The Group The Bank
20m 2010 20M 2010
Carrying Carrying Carrying Carrying
amount amount amount amount
As at 31 December £m £m £m £m
Residential property 173 n 97 19
Commercial and industnal property 267 14 2 -
Other credit enhancements 30 210 18 177
Total 470 295 17 196

Credit risk concentrations

A concentration of credit nsk exists when a number of counterpartlas are located in a geographical region, or are engaged in similar activities and
have similar economic charactenistics that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic
or other conditions The analyses of credit nsk concentrations presented below are based on the location of the counterparty or customer or the

industry in which they are engaged

Credit risk concentrations by geographical sector (audited)

Africa and
United Middle

Kingdom Europe Arericas East Asia Total
As at 31 December 2011 £m £m £m £m £m £m
The Group
On-balance sheet.
Cash and balances at central banks 14,631 53,779 27,065 2,418 9,001 106,894
Items in the course of collection from other banks 1,557 88 1 166 - 1,812
Trading portfolio assets 15,162 23381 68,835 3,498 13,862 124,738
Financial assets designated at falr value 19,405 3,287 6,724 1,958 255 31,629
Derivative financial Instruments 173,792 173,863 153,629 4,857 32,823 538,964
Loans and advances to banks 8,957 14,704 13,637 3,234 6,250 46,792
Loans and advances to customers 220,815 90,444 63,457 49,309 7,909 431,934
Reverse repurchase agreements and other similar secured lending 22,701 32,926 80,124 1,795 16,119 153,665
Available for sale financial investments 23,055 173N 9,889 6,922 6,371 63,608
Other assets 1,510 407 256 365 82 2,620
Total on-balance sheet 501,595 410,250 423,617 74,522 92,672 1,502,656
Off-balance sheet.
Securities lending arrangements - . 35,996 - - 35,996
Guarantees and letters of credit pledged as collateral security 3,885 2416 5,457 2,100 i3 14,181
Acceptances and endorsements 30 8 - 91 75 475
Documentary credits and other short-term trade related transactions 655 235 143 201 124 1,358
Standby facilities, credit ines and other commitments 99,735 33,004 85,381 20,478 1,684 240,282
Total off-balance sheet 104,576 35,663 126,977 22,870 2,206 292,292
Total 606,171 445913 550,594 97,392 94,878 1,794,948
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Credit nsk concentrations by geographical sector (audited)

Africa and
United Middle

Kingdom Europe Americas East Asia Total
As at 31 December 2011 £m £m £m £m fm £Em
The Bank
On-balance sheet:
Cash and balances at central banks 14,550 52,896 26,711 170 8,760 103,087
Items in the course of collection from other banks 1,555 n - 8 - 1,634
Trading portfolio assets 15,018 22,336 32,613 772 7.90% 78,640
Financial assets designated at fair value 39,853 2,991 1,159 187 326 44,516
Derwvative financial instruments 186,706 174,177 150,672 2,399 32,967 546,921
Loans and advances to banks 7.7 16,780 20,311 1,456 6,019 52,287
Loans and advances to customers 378,845 75,338 47,918 7.857 7,822 517,780
Reverse repurchase agreements and other similar secured lending 27,635 38,152 75,146 1,778 18,725 161,436
Available for sale financial investments 17,706 14,368 8,981 380 6,370 47,805
Other assets B68 188 62 17 35 1,170
Total on-balance sheet 690,457 397,297 363,573 15,024 88,925 1,555,276
Off-balance sheet
Secunties lending arrangements - - 35,996 - - 35,996
Guarantees and letters of credit pledged as collateral security 5,846 2,550 5,388 263 309 14,356
Acceptances and endorsements 300 8 - 66 75 449
Documentary credits and other short-term trade related transactions 655 38 143 146 124 1,106
Standby facilities, credit lines and other commitments 92,512 29,033 65,049 1,764 2,378 190,736
Total off-balance sheet 99313 31,629 106,576 2,239 2,886 242,643
Total 789,770 428,926 470,149 17,263 91,811 1,797,919




42 [ Barclays Bank PLC Annual Report 2011

www barclays com/annualreport

Risk management
Credit risk

All disclosures in this section are unaudited unless otherwise stated

Credit risk concentrations by geographical sector (audited)

Africa and
United Middle

Kingdom Europe Americas East Asla Total
As at 31 December 2010 £m £m £m £m fm £m
The Group
On-balance sheet.
Cash and balances at central banks 18,535 14,306 41,288 2,296 21,205 97,630
Items in the course of collection from other banks 1,169 114 - 100 1 1,384
Trading portfolio assets 16,170 35,449 n2ma, 2,568 15932 141,410
Financial assets designated at fair value 15,136 5,054 10,608 2,991 582 34,371
Denvative financial instrurments 129,603 135730 117,769 5,251 31,966 420,319
Loans and advances to banks 5,199 9,211 17,305 2,056 4,028 37,799
Loans and advances to customers 211,853 90,644 58,518 57,848 9,079 427,942
Reverse repurchase agreements and other similar secured lending 50,046 47,470 88,675 2,104 17,477 205,772
Available for sale financial investrments 25,466 14,904 6,423 7,281 5,555 59,629
Other assets 1,612 235 314 537 126 2,824
Total on-balance sheet 474,789 353,117 412,191 83,032 105,951 1,429,080
Off-balance sheet.
Securitres lending arrangements - - 27,672 - - 27,672
Guarantees and letters of credit pledged as collateral security 3,865 2413 4,772 2,185 548 13,783
Acceptances and endorsements 125 4 6 88 108 333
Documentary credits and other short-term trade related transactions 476 156 143 287 132 1,194
Standby facilities, credit lines and other commitments 94,676 29,985 64,812 24,522 8,968 222,963
Total off-balance sheet 99,142 32,558 97,405 27,082 9,756 265,943
Total 573,931 385675 509596 110,114 115,707 1,695,023




Barclays Bank PLC Annual Report 2011

www barclays com/annualrepart l 43

Credit risk concentrations by geographical sector (audited)

Africa and
United Middle

Kingdom Europe Americas East Asia Total
As at 31 December 2010 £m £m £m £m fm £m
The Bank
On-balance sheet.
Cash and balances at central banks 18,425 13,485 40,160 86 20,530 92,686
ltems in the course of collection from other banks 1,169 93 - 5 1 1,268
Trading portfolio assets 15,357 33,723 29,330 1,208 9,210 88,828
Financial assets designated at fair value 20,861 4,859 2,665 281 504 29,170
Denvative financial instruments 158,526 134,983 115,170 1,964 30,502 441,145
Loans and advances to banks 4,498 12,212 17,461 1,138 5,081 40,390
Loans and advances to customers 391,743 67.241 51,226 7,856 4,860 522,936
Reverse repurchase agreements and other similar secured lending 53,665 52,197 105,591 2,085 13,805 227343
Available for sale financial investments 24,716 9418 5,208 202 5,532 45,076
Other assets 919 66 20 1 48 1,054
Total on-balance sheet 689,879 328,277 366,831 14,836 90,073 1,489,896
Off-balance sheet.
Secunties lending arrangements - - 27,672 - - 27,672
Guarantees and letters of credit pledges as collateral secunty 3,806 2,056 5,261 153 547 11,823
Acceptances and endorsements 125 3 [ 60 108 302
Documentary credits and other short-term trade related transactions 476 43 143 131 13 924
Standby faciiities, credit lines and other commitments 87,208 25,599 51,390 397 9,201 173,795
Total off-balance sheet 91,615 27,701 84,472 741 9987 214516
Total 781,494 355,978 451,303 15,577 100,060 1,704,412
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Credit risk concentrations by Industrial sector (audited)

Cards,
Govern- unsecured
Const- ment Wholesale Business loans
Financial ruction and Energy and retail and other
insti- Manu- and central and distribution personal
tutions facturing property bank water and leisure lending Total
As at 31 December 2011 £m £m £m £m Em £m £m £m
The Group
On-balance sheet.
Cash and balances at
central banks - - - 106,894 - - - 106,894
Items in the course of
collection from other
banks 1,810 - - 2 - - - 1,812
Trading portfolic assets 32,849 1,585 480 83,631 3,19 448 - 124,738
Financial assets
designated at fair value 9,370 75 10,447 6354 1,053 332 1 31,629
Dervative financial
instruments 498,246 4,044 4853 8321 12960 3,309 19 538,964
Loans and advances to
banks 44,053 - - 2,739 - - - 46,792
Loans and advances to
customers 89,650 12,904 28711 6,129 7414 16,206 50,062 431,934
Reverse repurchase
agreements and other
similar secured lending 148,474 195 201 3,842 127 63 - 153,665
Available for sale financial
investments 23,101 213 137 3851 126 90 - 63,608
Other assets 880 - 54 492 - 7 818 2,620
Total on-balance sheet 848,433 19,016 44,8383 256,915 24,871 20,455 50,900 1,502,656
Off-balance sheet.
Securnties lending
arrangements 35,996 - - - - - - 35,996
Guarantees and letters of
credit pledged as collateral
security 4,937 1,534 757 630 1,615 913 310 14,181
Acceptances and
endorsements 145 108 52 - 2 115 - 475
Documentary credits and
other short-term trade
related transactions 556 40 1 - - 215 65 1,358
Standby facilities, credit
Itnes and other
commitments 33,296 23,429 9,114 3,573 20,764 12,052 90,062 15317 240,282
Total off-balance sheet 74,930 25,111 9,924 4,203 22,381 13,295 90,437 16,590 292,292
Total 923,363 44,127 54,807 261,118 47,252 33,750 141,337 45,216 1,794,948
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Credit risk concentrations by industrial sector (audited)

Cards,
Govern- unsecured
Const- ment Wholesale Business loans
Financial ruction and Energy  and retail and and other
insti-  Manu- and central and distribution other Home personal
tutions facturing property bank water and leisure services loans  lending Other Total
As at 31 December 2011 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
The Bank
On-balance sheet
Cash and balances at
central banks - - - 103,087 - - - - - - 103,087
Itemns in the course of
collection from other
banks 1,634 - - - - - - - - - 1,634
Trading portfolic assets 17,151 935 381 55324 2,629 346 1,312 - - 562 78,640
Financial assets
designated at farr value 25,167 62 9,831 5,609 220 154 3,349 - - 124 44,518
Derivative financial
nstruments 506,129 4,251 4,851 8,321 12,857 3367 3,908 - 11 3,226 545921
Loans and advances 1o
banks 50,007 - - 2,280 - - - - - - 52,287
Loans and advances to
customers 259,041 10,772 23,219 5,474 6,496 14311 24,468 133,516 29,348 11,135 517,780
Reverse repurchase
agreements and other
sirrular secured lending 156,450 195 3 3,842 127 63 229 - - 527 161,436
Available for sale financial
Investments 16,538 213 133 30,443 126 69 57 - - 226 47,805
COther assets 228 - 22 6 - 4 21 2 687 - 1,170
Total on-balance sheet 1,032,345 16,428 38,440 214,386 22,455 18,314 33,544 133,518 30,046 15,800 1,555,276
Off-balance sheet
Secunties lending
arrangements 35,996 - - - - - - - - - 35,9%6
Guarantees and letters of
credit pledged as collateral
securnty 6,821 1,274 544 596 1,591 o 1,59 - 226 1,003 14,356
Acceptances and
endorsements 144 108 52 - 2 116 27 - - - 449
Documentary credits and
other short-term trade
related transactions 533 40 1 - - 215 251 - 65 1 1,106
Standby facilities, credit
lines and other
commitments 35,932 21,628 8,506 3,391 19,545 10,609 14,881 15,656 50,644 9,944 190,736
Total off-balance sheet 79,426 23,050 9,103 3,987 21,138 11,650 16,750 15,656 50,935 10,948 242,643
Total 1,111,771 39,478 47,543 218,373 43,593 29,964 50,294 149,174 80,981 26,748 1,797,919
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Credit risk concentrations by industrial sector (audited)

Cards,
Govern- unsecured
Const- ment Wholesale Business loans
Financial ruction and Energy and retail and and other
Insti-  Manu- and central and distnbution other Home personal
tutions facturing property bank water and leisure services loans lending Other Total
As at 31 December 2010 £m £Em £m £m £m £fm fm fm £m fm £m
The Group
On-balance sheet.
Cash and balances at
central banks - - - 97,630 - - - - - - 97,630
items in the course of
collection from other
banks 1,378 - - 6 - - - - - - 1,384
Trading portfolio assets 51,337 2,222 986 79,055 3,408 873 2,209 - 17 1,303 141,410
Financial assets
designated at fair value 11,507 77 11,746 5328 1,389 683 2,944 - 109 594 34,371
Derivative financial
instruments 382,038 4,810 2,953 7,637 11,265 3,193 2622 - 61 5740 420319
Loans and advances to
banks 36,606 - - 1,193 - - - - - . 37,799
Loans and advances to
customers 87,405 14,766 28,670 5108 9,231 17,357 26,228 168,055 46,668 24,454 427942
Reverse repurchase
agreements and other
similar secured lending 197,808 50 7 7,247 - 279 339 - - 42 205,772
Available for sale financial
Investrments 23,585 154 336 33,402 37 17 1,359 410 72 157 59,629
Other assets 1,267 4 47 436 9 9 383 4 615 50 2,824
Total on-balance sheet 792,931 22077 44,745 237,042 25339 22511 36,084 168469 47,542 32,340 1,429,080
Off-balance sheet.
Securities [ending
arrangements 27,672 - - - - - - - - - 27,672
Guarantees and letters of
credit pledged as collateral
security 5,213 1,445 752 358 1,256 636 2,196 439 477 961 13,783
Acceptances and
endorsernents 28 111 38 - 4 48 92 - 8 2 331
Documentary credits and
other short-term trade
related activities 39 35 103 B 3 124 477 - 56 - 1,194
Standby facilities, credit
lines and other
commitments 47,784 20,999 9,360 2,307 15,671 9,220 10,664 16,789 79,341 10,328 222,963
Total off-batance sheet 81,093 22590 10,753 2,665 16,934 10,078 13429 17,228 79,882 11,291 265,943
Total 874,024 44,667 55498 239,707 42,273 32589 49513 185697 127,424 43,631 1695023
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Credit nsk concentrations by industrial sector {audited)
Cards,
Govern- unsecured
Const- ment Wholesale Business loans
Financial ruction and Energy  and retail and and other
insti-  Manu- and central and distribution other Home personal
tutions facturing property bank water and leisure services loans  lending Other Total
As at 31 December 2010 £m fm £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m Em
The Bank
On-balance sheet
Cash and balances at
central banks - - - 92686 - - - - - - 92,686
Items in the course of
collection from other
banks 1,263 - - 5 - - - - - - 1,268
Trading portfolio assets 22,985 1,040 669 58317 2740 656 1.714 - - 707 88,828
Financial assets
designated at fair value 9,861 51 10,654 4,816 398 447 2,79 - - 152 29,170
Denvative financial
instrurments 402,702 4,824 2,950 7.637 10,994 3415 2,936 - 36 5651 441,145
Leans and advances to
banks 39,486 - - 904 - - - - - 40,390
Loans and advances to
customers 273376 12,785 20,413 3969 8378 15424 26556 123,995 27,383 10,657 522,936
Reverse repurchase
agreements and other
sunilar secured lending 219,560 50 7 7,066 - 279 339 - - 42 227,343
Available for sale financial
investments 20,466 154 337 23498 3 52 387 - 23 156 45,076
Other assets 296 4 15 40 - 2 238 1 457 1 1,054
Total on-balance sheet 989,995 18,908 35,045 198,538 22,513 20275 34,961 123,99 27,899 17,366 1,489,896
Off-balance sheet
Securities lending
arrangements 27,672 - - - - - - - - - 27,672
Guarantees and letters of
credit pledged as collateral
security 4878 1321 619 358 1,196 591 1,822 - 196 842 11,823
Acceptances and
endorsements 27 1M 38 - 4 48 64 - 8 2 302
Documentary credits and
other short-term trade
related transactions 395 35 - - 3 124 n - 56 - 924
Standby facilities, credit
hnes and other
commitments 36,982 20,509 8,825 2,307 15,246 9024 12,956 14,570 43,219 10,157 173,795
Total off-balance sheet 69,954 21,976 9,482 2,665 16,449 9,787 15,153 14,570 43479 11,001 214,516
Total 1,059,949 40,884 44,527 201,603 38,962 30,062 50,114 138566 71,378 28367 1,704,412
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Credit Risk Management Overview

Credit risk Is the nsk of suffering financial loss should any of the Group's customers, clients or market counterparties fail to fulfil ther contractuat
abhgations to the Group The granting of credit Is one of the Group’s major sources of income and, as the most significant nisk, the Group dedicates
considerable resources to its control Mitigation techrigues and measurement and internal ratings are discussed In more detail in the Pillar 3
Disclosures 2011

Qverview

The credit risk that the Group faces arises mainty from wholesale and retall loans and advances together with the counterparty credit nisk arising
frorn dervative contracts entered Into with our clients Other sources of credit risk arise from trading activities, including debt securities, settlement
balances with market counterparties, available for sale assets and reverse repurchase loans

Credit risk management objectives are to

- establish a framework of controls to ensure credit risk-taking 1s based on sound credit nsk management principles,

- identify, assess and measure credit nsk clearly and accurately across the Group and within each separate business, from the level of
individual faciirties up to the total portfolio,

- control and plan credit risk-taking in line with external stakeholder expectations and avoiding undesirable concentrations,

- monitor credit nisk and adherence to agreed controls, and

- ensure that risk-reward objectives are met

Organisation and structure

Barclays has structured the responsibilities of credit nsk management so that decisions are taken as close as possible to the business, whilst
ensuring robust review and challenge of performance, risk infrastructure and strategic plans The credt risk management teamns in each business
are accountable to the business risk directors in those businesses who, i turn, report to the heads of their businesses and also to the Chief Risk
Officer

The role of the Group Risk function Is to provide Group wide direction, oversight and chailenge of credit risk-taking Group Risk sets the Credit Risk
Control Framework, which provides a structure within which credit risk is managed together with supporting Group Credit Risk Policies Group Risk
also provides technical support, review and validation of credit nsk measurernent models across the Group

Reporting

The Group dedicates considerable resources to gaining a clear and accurate understanding of credit risk across the business and ensuring that its
balance sheet correctly reflects the value of the assets in accordance with applicable accounting principles This process can be surmmarised in five
broad stages

- measurnng exposures and concentrations,

- moenitoring weaknesses in portfolios,

- dentifying potential problem loans and credit nisk loans (coflectively known as potential credit nsk loans or PCRLs),
- raising allowances for impaired loans, and

- wnting off assets when the whole or part of a debt is considered Irrecoverable

Measuring exposures and concentrations

Loans and advances to customers provide the principal source of credit risk to the Croup zlthough Barclays can also be exposed to cother forms of
credit nsk through, for example, loans to banks, loan commitments and debt securities Barclays risk management policies and processes are
designed to identify and analyse risk, to set appropnate nsk appetite, limits and controls, and to monitor the risks and adherence to ruts by means
of rellable and timely data One area of particular review 1s concentration risk. A concentration of credit risk exists when a number of counterparties
are engaged in similar activities and have similar economic characteristics that would cause therr ability to meet contractual obligations to be
similarty affected by changes 1n econormic and other conditions As a result, Barclays constantly reviews its concentration in a number of areas
including, for example, geography, maturity and industry

Diversification is achieved through setting maximum exposure gudelines to individual counterparties Excesses are reported to the Financial Risk
Committee and the BRC. Mandate & Scale limits are used to himit the stock of current exposures in a loan portfolio and the flow of new exposures
into a loan portfolio Limuts are typically based an the nature of the lending and the amount of the portfolio meeting certain standards of
underwriting crnitena
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Monitoring weaknesses in portfolios

Whilst the basic principles for monitoring weaknesses in wholesale and retail exposures are broadly simular, they will reflect the differing nature of
the assets As a matter of policy all facilities granted to corporate or wholesale customers are subject to a review on, at least, an annual basis, even
when they are performing satisfactornly

Corporate accounts that are deemed to contain heightened levels of risk are recorded on graded early warning lists (EWL) or watchlists (WL)
comprising three categories graded in line with the perceived severity of the nsk attached to the lending, and 1ts probability of default These are
updated monthly and circulated to the relevant nisk control points Once an account has been placed on WL or EWL, the exposure is carefully
monitored and, where appropnate, exposure reductions are effected Should an account become impaired, it will normally, but not necessarily,
have passed through each of the three categories, which reflect the need for increasing caution and control Where an obligor’s financial health
gives grounds for concern, it 1s immediately placed into the appropriate category While all obligors, regardless of financial health, are subject to a
full review of all facilities on, at least, an annual basis, mere frequent intenim reviews may be undertaken should circumstances dictate Specialist
recovery functions deal with chents in default, collection or insolvency Their mandate 15 to maximise shareholder value via the orderly and timely
recovery of impaired debts Accounts can stay in Recovenes for up to two years unless a longer-term strategy has been agreed

Within the retail portfolios, which tend to comprise homogeneous assets, statistical techniques more readily allow potential weaknesses to be
monitored on a portfoho basis The approach 1s consistent with the Group's policy of raising a collective imparment allowance as soon as objective
evidence of impairment 1s identified Retal accounts can be classified according to specified categonies of arrears status {or cycle), which reflects
the level of contractual payments which are overdue on a loan

The probability of default increases with the number of contractual payrments missed, thus raising the assoctated impairment requirement

Once a loan has passed through all six cycles it will charge-off and enter recovery status In most cases, charge-off will result in the account moving
to a legal recovery function or debt sale This will typically occur after an account has been treated by a collections function However, in certain
cases, an account may be charged off directly from a performing (up to date) status, such as in the case of insolvency or death

As a general principle, charge-off marks the point at which it becomes more economically efficient to treat an account through a recovery function
or debt sale rather than a collections function Ecanomic efficiency includes the (discounted) expected amount recovered and operaticnal and legal
costs Whilst charge-off 1s considered an irreversible state, in certan cases, it may be acceptable for mortgage and vehicle finance accounts to
move back from charge-off to performing or delinquent states This is only considered acceptable where local legislation requirements are 1n place,
or where 1t 1s deemed that the customer has a renewed willingness to pay and there 1s a strong chance that they will be able to meet their
contractual ebligations in the foreseeable future

For the majonity of products, the standard penod for charging off accounts 15 180 days past due of contractual obligation However, in the case of
customer bankruptcy or insclvency, the associated accounts will be charged off within 60 days Within UK RBB Local Business, accounts that are
deemed to have a herghtened level of nsk, or that exhibit some unsatisfactory features which could affect viability in the short to medium-term, are
transferred to a separate 'caution’ stream Accounts on the caution stream are reviewed on at least a quarterly basis, at which time consideration s
given to continwng with the agreed strategy, returning the customer to a lower nsk refer stream, or instigating recovery/exit action

Credit guality of loans and advances {audited)
All loans and advances are categonsed as neither past due nor impaired, past due but not imparwed, or impaired Impaired loans include
restructured loans For the purposes of the disclosuras

- A loan 1s considered past due when the borrower has failed to make a payment when due under the terms of the loan contract,

- The imparrrment allowance includes ailowances both agatnst financial assets that have been indwidually impaired and those subject to
collective impairment,

- Loans neither past due nor impatred consist predominantly of wholesale and retail loans that are perfoerming These loans, although
ummpaired, may carry an unidentified impairment allowance,

- Loans that are past due but not impaired consist predominantly of wholesale loans that are past due but indvidually assessed as not being
impaired These loans, although individually assessed as umimpaired, may carry an umidentified impairment allowance,

- Impaired loans that are indmidually assessed for impairment consist predorminantly of wholesale loans that are past due and for which an
individual allowance has been raised, and

- Impaired loans that are collectively assessed for impairment consist predomnantly of retail loans that are 1 day or more past due for which a
collective allowance 1s raised Wholesale loans that are past due, indwidually assessed as umimpaired, but which carry an unidentified
impairment allowance, are excluded frorn this category
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Loans and advances (audited) Neither past
due nor Past due but Impairment
impaired* not impaired® Impaired Loans Total allowance
Collectively  Individually
As at 31 December 2011 £im £m £m £m £m £m
The Group
Trading portfolio loans 1,374 - - - 1,374 -
Loans and advances designated at fair value 21,528 432 - - 21,960 -
Home loans 160,932 114 10,678 382 172,106 (834)
Credit cards, unsecured and other retaif lending 60,648 348 7,334 702 69,032 (4,540)
Wholesale 228,255 9,507 816 9,607 248,185 {5,223)
Total 472,737 10,401 18,828 10,691 512,657 {10,597)
The Bank
Trading pertfolio loans 1,361 - - - 1,361 -
Leans and advances designated at fair value 21,772 127 - - 21,899 -
Home loans 126,532 68 6,859 343 133,802 (286)
Credit cards, unsecured and other retail lending 30,704 246 4,749 96 35,795 (2,.974)
Whoiesale 392,694 7,349 730 7,116 407,889 {4,159)
Total 573,063 7,790 12,338 7,555 600,746 (7,419)
Loans and advances (audited) Neither past
due nor  Past due but Impairment
impaired® not impaired® Impaired Loans Total allowance
Collectively  Individually

As at 31 December 2010 £m £m £m £fm £Em £m
The Group
Trading portfolio loans 2,170 * - - 2,170 *
l.oans and advances designated at fair value 22,273 79 - - 22,352 -
Home {oans 156,908 467 11,238 296 168,909 (854)
Credit cards, unsecured and other retail lending 54,435 626 9,459 668 65,188 {5.919)
Wholesale 218,622 7,070 779 17,605 244,076 {5,659)
Total 454,408 8,242 21,476 18,569 502,695 (12,432)
The Bank
Trading portfoho loans 2,500 - - - 2,500 -
Loans and advances designated at fair value 25,022 71 - - 25,092 -
Hame loans 116,983 91 6,912 224 124,210 (215)
Credit cards, unsecured and cther retal lending 24,335 178 5,496 81 30,090 {3,450)
Wholesale 398,554 2,619 681 15,256 417,150 {4,459)
Total 567,394 2,959 13,089 15,601 599,043 (B,124)
Notes

a For 2018 as a result of Improvernents in data quality, home loans to the value of £40 Obn that were classified as Satisfactory in 2010 have been identfied as being Strong
b For 2010, as a result of improvements in data quality, horme loans to the value of £30 1bn that were classified as Satisfactory in 2010 have been identified as being Strong
¢ For 2011 reporting, loans that were previously classified as past due but not individually impaired have been disaggregated between loans past due but not impaired and

collectively assessed impaired loans.
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Loans and advances neither past due nor impalred (audited)

2011 2010
Strong Satisfactory Higher risk Total Strong Satsfactory Higher nsk Total
As at 31 December £m £m £m £fm £m £m £m £m
The Group
Trading portfolio loans 74 821 479 1374 352 1,203 615 2,170
Loans and advances designated at fair
value 19,484 1,487 557 21,528 17,496 2,100 2677 22,273
Home loans 134,009 25,847 1,076 168,932 12531 29,785 1,812 156,908
Credit cards, unsecured and other retail
lending 14,226 45,388 1,034 60,648 9,239 41,896 3,300 54,435
Wholesale 161,480 61,964 4,811 228,255 151,449 61,281 5892 218,622
Total 329,273 135,507 7,957 472,737 303,847 136,265 14,296 454,408
% of total 69 6% 287% 17% 100 0% 66 9% 30 0% 31% 100 0%
The Bank
Trading portfolio loans 61 821 479 1,361 337 1,203 960 2,500
Loans and advances designated at fair
value 20,430 1,241 101 21,772 21,808 1,342 1,872 25,022
Home loans 116,339 9,903 290 126,532 105,755 10,995 233 116,983
Credit cards, unsecured and other retail
tending 9,654 20,614 436 30,704 5,088 17,103 2,144 24,335
Wholesale 335,311 50,697 6,686 392,694 345,140 48,549 4,865 398,554
Total 481,795 83.276 7,992 573,063 478,128 79,192 10,074 567,394
% of total 84 1% 14 5% 14% 100 0% 84 2% 14 0% 18% 100 0%
For the purposes of the analysis of credit quahty, the following internal measures of credit quality have been used
Retall lending Whalesale lending
Financial Statements description Probability of default Probability of default Default Grade
Strong 0 0-060% 00-005% 1-3
005-0 15% 4-5
015-030% 6-8
0 30-0 60% 9-11
Satisfactory 0 60-1000% 060-215% 12-14
215-1135% i5-19
Higher risk 10 00% + 1135%+ 20-21
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Financial staternent descriptions can be summarised as follows
Strong - there 1s a very high likelthood that the asset being recovered in full

Satisfactory — whilst there is a high likelihood that the asset will be recovered and therefore, of no cause for concern to the Group, the asset may
not be collateralised, or may relate to retal facilires, such as credit card balances and unsecured loans, which have been classified as satisfactory,
regardless of the fact that the output of internal grading models may have indicated a hegher classification At the lower end of this grade there are
customers that are being more carefully monitored, for example corporate customers, which are indicating soma evidence of some deterioration,
martgages with a high loan te value ratio, and unsecured retail loans operating outside normal product guidelines.

Higher risk - there is concern over the obligor’s ability to make payments when due However, these have not yet converted to actual delinquency
There may also be doubts over value of collateral or secunty provided However, the borrower or counterparty is continlung to make payments
when due and 1s expected to settle all outstanding amounts of principal and interest.

An age analysis of loans and advances that are past due but not impalred |s set out below

Loans and advances past due but not impaired

{audited)
Past dize 6

Past due up Pastdue 1-2 Pastdue2-3 Past due3-6 months and

to 1 month manths months maonths over Total
As at 31 December 2011 £m £m f£m £m £m £m
The Group
Loans and advances designated at fair value 56 46 - 3 327 432
Home loans 35 5 22 31 21 114
Credit cards, unsecured and other retail lending 117 29 27 48 127 348
Wholesale 8,343 315 298 315 236 9,507
Total 8,551 395 347 397 711 10,401
The Bank
Loans and advances designated at fair value 36 4 - - 87 127
Home loans 17 5 13 20 13 68
Credit cards, unsecured and other retail lending 88 9 15 19 115 246
Wholesale 6,514 326 174 163 172 7,349

Total 6,655 344 202 202 387 7,790
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Loans and advances past due but not impaired (audited)
Past due 6
Pastdueup Pastdue1-2 Pastdue2-3 Pastdue3-6 monthsand
to 1 month months months months over Total

As at 31 December 2010 £m £m £m £m £m £m
The Group

Loans and advances designated at fair value - - 70 1 8 79
Home loans 164 22 28 29 224 467
Credit cards, unsecured and other retail lending 268 86 96 81 95 626
Wholesale 4,653 730 482 504 701 7,070
Total 5,085 838 676 615 1,028 8,242
The Bank

Leoans and advances designated at fair value - - 70 1 - "
Home loans 52 14 5 7 13 91
Credit cards, unsecured and other retail lending 76 15 - 6 81 178
Wholesale 1,729 212 219 164 295 2,619
Total 1,857 241 294 178 389 2,959
Loans and advances assessed as Individually

Impaired (audited) Collectively assessed assessed Total

Pastdue Pastdue Pastdue Pastdue Pastdue
upto 1 1-2 2-3 3-6 6months
month months months months  and over Total

As at 31 December 2011 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
The Group

Home loans 4,034 2,636 550 1,345 2,113 10,678 382 11,060
Credit cards, unsecured and other retail

lending 1,3%0 1,117 357 885 3,585 7,334 702 8,036
Wholesale 138 71 71 81 455 816 9,607 10,423
Total 5,562 3,824 978 2311 6,153 18,828 10,691 29,519
The Bank

Home loans 3,601 1,536 453 575 694 6,859 343 7,202
Credit cards, unsecured and other retail

lending 895 652 200 354 2,648 4,749 96 4,845
Wholesale 128 69 &8 75 390 730 7,116 7,846
Total 4,624 2,257 721 1,004 3,732 12,338 7,555 19,893
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Loans and advances assessed as Individually
impalred (audited) Collectively assessed assessed Total
Past due Past due Past due Past due Past due
uptol 1-2 2-3 3-6 6 months
menth months months months and over Total
As at 31 December 2010 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
The Group
Home loans 4,751 1,853 889 1,352 2,393 11,238 296 11,534
Credit cards, unsecured and other retail
lending 1,380 1,105 502 1,133 5,339 9,459 668 10,127
Wholesale 114 58 51 116 440 779 17,605 18,384
Total 6,245 3,016 1,442 2,601 8,172 21,476 18,569 40,045
The Bank
Home loans 3,447 1,570 764 340 791 6,912 224 7,136
Credit cards, unsecured and other retail
{ending 868 719 299 392 3,218 5,496 81 5577
Wholesale 100 57 48 96 380 681 15,296 15,977
Total 4415 2,346 1.111 828 4,389 13,089 15,601 28,690
Impairment allowances
The movements on the impairment allowance dunng the year were as follows
Movements in allowance for impairment by asset class (audited)
Amounts
At Acquisitions Exchange charged to Balance at
beginning and Unwind of  and other Amounts incorne 3
ofyear  disposals discount adjustments written off Recoveries statement December
2011 £m £m £m £m £m £im £m £m
The Group
Home loans 854 2 (80) (101) (184) 14 333 834
Credit cards, unsecured and other retail
lending 5919 (4) {154) (145) (3,292) 139 2,077 4,540
Wholesale 5,659 (12) {9) (194)  (1,689) 112 1,356 5,223
Total impairment allowance 12,432 {18) {243) (440)  (5.165) 265 3,766 10,597
The Bank
Home loans 215 - (5) 3) (41) 13 107 286
Credit cards, unsecured and other retail
lending 3,450 - (110) 4 {1,610) 127 1,113 2,974
Wholesale 4,459 - - (117} (1,353) 43 1,127 4,159
Total impairment allowance 8,124 - {115} (116) (3,004) 183 2,347 7,419
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Movements in allowance for impairment by asset class (audited)

Amounts
At Acquisitions Exchange charged to  Balance at
beginning and Unwindof  andother Amounts incorme N
of year disposals  discount adjustments written off Recoveries statement December
2010 £m £€m £m £m £m £m £m im
The Group
Home loans 639 18 (54) 63 (134) 6 316 854
Credit cards, unsecured and other retail 5338 74 (153) 121 (2618) 128 2819 3319
lending
Wholesale 4,619 (4) (6) 147 (1,558) 57 2,414 5,659
Total impairment allowance 10,796 78 (213) 331 (4,310) 201 5,549 12,432
The Bank
Home loans 148 18 (3) ()] {22) 1 74 215
Credit cards, unsecured and other retail 3,249 63 (112) & {1,526) 92 1693 3,430
lending
Wholesale 4,005 - - 123 (1,428) 44 1,715 4,459
Total impairment allowance 7,402 81 (115) 113 (2,976) 137 3,482 8,124
Loan loss rates Leans and Loan
Gross loans Impairment  advances net impairment
and advances allowance of impairment charge Loan loss rate
As at 31 December £m £m £m £m bps
The Group
2011 489,323 10,597 478,726 3,790 77
2010 478,173 12,432 465,741 5,625 118
The Bank
2011 577,486 7.419 570,067 2,387 41
2010 571,450 8,124 563,326 3,476 61
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Debt Securities

Credit Quality of Debt Securitles (audited)

Trading portfolio assets, financial assets designated at fair value and available for sale assets are measured on a fair value basis The fair value wll

reflect, among other things, the credit nsk of the issuer

Most listed and some unlisted secunities are rated by external rating agencies The Group mainly uses external credit ratings provided by Standard
& Poor's or Moody's Where such ratings are not available or are not current, The Group will use its own internal ratings for the secunties

An analysis of the credit quality of The Group's debt securitles is set out below

Debt securities (audited) 2011 2010

AAA to BBB- AAA to BBB-

(Investment B- and {investment B- and

grade) BB+toB below Total grade) BB+toB below Total

As at 31 December £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
The Group
Trading portfolio 116,743 4,922 1,699 123364 130,744 6,663 1,833 139,240
Financlal assets designated at fair value 1,163 184 748 2,095 942 644 332 1,918
Avallable for sale financial investments 57,793 3,253 2,564 63,610 55,107 2,022 2,500 59,629
Total debt securities 175,699 8,359 5011 189,069 186,793 9,329 4,665 200,787
% of total 92 9% 4 4% 27% 100 0% 93 0% 4 7% 2 3% 100 0%

Included in the above, there are impaired available for sale debt securities with a carrying vatue at 31st December 2011 of £61m (2010 £358m),

after a wnte-down of £145m (2010 £583m)

Debt securities (audited) 2011 2010

AAA to BBB- AAA to BBB-

(investment B- and (investment B- and

grade} BB+to B below Total grade) BB+to B below Total

As at 31 December £m £m £m £m £m £m fm Em
The Bank
Trading portfohio 73,467 2,587 1,225 77,279 80,732 3,774 1,822 86,328
Financial assets designated at fair value 18,974 2 222 19,198 244 252 287 783
Available for sale financial investments 44,129 1,304 2,372 47,805 42,656 287 2,133 45,076
Total debt securities 136,570 3,893 3,819 144,282 123,632 4,313 4,242 132,187
% of total 94 7% 27% 26% 1000% 93 5% 33% 3 2% 100 0%
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Derivatives (audited)

The credit quahty derivative assets according to the credit quality of the counterparty was as follows

Credit quality 2011 2010
AAA to BBB- AAA 10 BBB-
(investment {investment
(audited) grade) BB+toB B-and below Total grade) 8B+toB  B- and below Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
The Group
Derivatives 515,109 19,875 3,980 538,964 401,242 15,598 3,479 420,319
% of total 95 6% 3 7% 0 7% 100 0% 95 5% 37% 0 8% 100 0%
The Bank
Derivatives 523,323 19,618 3,980 546,921 423,625 14,046 3,474 441,145
% of total 95 7% 36% 07% 100 0% 96 0% 3 2% 0 8% 100 0%

Netting and collateral arrangements

Credit risk from derivatives is ritigated where possible through netting agreements whereby denvative assets and habiliies with the same
counterparty can be offset Group policy requires all netting arrangements to be legally documented The ISDA Master Agreement s The Group’s
preferred agreement for documenting OTC dervatives It provides the contractual framework within which dealing activities across a full range of
OTC products are conducted and contractually binds both parties to apply close-out netting acrass all outstanding transactions covered by an
agreement If erther party defaults or other predetermined events occur

Collateral 1s abtained against dervative assets, depending on the creditworthiness of the counterparty and/or nature of the transaction Any
collateral taken 1n respect of OTC trading exposures will be subject to a *harrcut’ which is negotiated at the time of signing the collateral agreement
A haircut 1s the valuation percentage apphcable to each type of collateral and will be largely based on liquidity and price volatility of the underlying
securty The collateral obtained for dervatives is erther cash, direct debt obligation government (G14+) bonds denominated in the domestic
currency of the issuing country, debt i1ssued by supranationals or letters of credit issued by an institution with a long-term unsecured debt rating of
A+/A3 or better Where The Group has ISDA master agreements, the collateral document will be the ISDA Credit Support Annex (CSA) The
collateral document must give Barclays the power to realise any collateral placed with it in the event of the fallure of the counterparty, and to place
further collateral when requested or in the event of insolvency, admimistration or similar processes, as well as in the case of early termination

Under IFRS, netting is permitted only if both of the following criteria are satisfied

- the entity has a legally enforceable night to set off the recognised amounts, and
- the entity intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the habiity simultaneously
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Reverse repurchase agreements and Other Financial Assets
Reverse repurchase agreements and secunties borrowing arrangements are collateralised loans typically of short maturities

The loans are fully collateralised with mghly hquid securities legally transferred to The Group The level of collateral is monitored daily and further
collateral called when required

Credit quality (audited) 2011 2010
AAA to BBB- AAA to BBB-
(investment B- and {investment 8- and
grade) BB+to B below Total grade) BB+to B below Total

As at 31 December £m £m £m £m £m Em £m £m
The Group

Reverse repurchase agreements 17,719 34,653 1,293 153,665 179,625 24801 1.346 205,772
Financial assets designated at fair
value

Reverse repurchase agreements 4,018 1,554 207 5,779 7,285 27 3 7,559
COther financial assets 655 1,079 61 1,795 1,115 1,3i2 115 2,542
Total reverse repurchase agreements

and other financial assets 122,392 37,286 1,561 161,239 188,025 26,384 1,464 215,873
% of total 75 9% 23 1% 1 0% 100 0% 87 1% 12 2% 07% 100 0%
The Bank

Reverse repurchase agreements 134,371 25,773 1,292 161,436 208,120 17,920 1,303 227,343
Financial assets designated at fair

value-

Reverse repurchase agreements 2,183 patd 18 2,492 2324 165 - 2,489
Cther financial assets 608 260 59 927 638 - - 638
Total reverse repurchase agreements

and other financial assets 137,162 26,324 1,369 164,855 211,082 18,085 1,303 230,470
% of total 83 2% 16 0% 0 8% 100 0% 91 6% 7 9% 0 6% 100 0%

No reverse repurchase agreements held by The Group at 31 December 2011 or 2010 were individually impaired, however during the year, The
Group wrote back £48m of imparment on reverse repurchase agreernients (2010 £4m write back)

Other Credit Risk Assets
Other Group assets subject to credit risk included

- cash and balances at central banks of £106,894m (2010 £97,630m) on which there is a reduced level of credit risk,

- items in the course of collection from other banks were £1,812m (2010 £1,384m), on which there is a reduced credit nsk in light of the
banking industry clearing system, and

- other financial assets of £2,620m (2010 £2,824m)

Off-balance sheet

The Group applies fundamentally the same nsk management policies for off-balance sheet risks as it does for its on-balance sheet nsks In the case
of commitments to lend, customers and counterparties will be subject to the same credit management policies as for loans and advances
Coflateral may be sought depending on the strength of the counterparty and the nature of the transaction
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Barclays Capital credit market exposures (audited)

Barclays Capital credit market exposures® 2011
Fair value
(losses)/ Impairment
gains and net release/ Total (losses)/
As at 31 December 201 2010 2011 2010 funding {charge) gains
Ussm LUS$m £m £m £m £m £m
Protium assets® 3,508 10,884 2,272 7,028 (555) 223 (332)

US Residential Mortgages
ABS CDO Super Senior 2,844 3,085 1,842 1,992 (29) {6) {35)
US sub-prime and Alt-A 644 1,025 416 662 4) 35 N

Commercial Mortgages

Commercial real estate loans and properties 8,228 11,006 5,329 7,106 486 - 486
Commercial Mortgaged-Backed Securities 156 184 101 119 - - -
Monoline protection on CMBS 14 18 9 12 32 - 32
Other Credit Market

Leveraged Finance® 6,278 7,636 4,066 4,930 43 {203) (160}
SIVs, SIV-Lites and CDPCs 9 618 6 399 (32) - (32)
Monoline protection on CLO and other 1,729 2,541 1,120 1,641 (13) - (13)
Total 23,410 36,997 15,161 23,889 (72) 49 (23)

Barclays Capital's credit market exposures pnmarily relate to commercial real estate, leveraged finance, and collateral previously secunng the loan
to Protium These exposures arose before the market dislocation 1n mid-2007

During 2011, credit market exposures decreased by £8,728m to £15,161m, reflecting net sales and paydowns and other movements of £8,442m,
foreign exchange rate movements of £263m and farr value losses and impairment of £23m  The net sales, paydowns and other movements of
£8,442m included

- £4,218m relating to assets formerly held as collateral for the loan to Protum Fimance LP, comprising £2,697m net sales, £959m loan and
interest repayments and £562m paydowns and cther movements,

-~ £2,141m of commercial real estate loans and properties sales and paydowns, and
-~ £820m reduct:on in leveraged loans primanly relating to five counterparties

In January 2012, Barclays completed the sale of £405m (US$628m) of 2 commercial real estate equity secunty at fair value representing 50% of its
stake in Archstone

Notes

a As the majonty of exposure is held in US Dollars, the exposures above are shown in bath US Dollars and Sterling

b Prior to 27 April 2011 when Protium was acquired by The Croup the exposure was a loar. This was carmed at the amount equivatent to the fair value of the underlying collateral
from 31 December 2010

¢ Includes undrawn commitments of £180m (31 December 2010 £264m)
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Protium Assets

Acquisition Acquisition

date date
Asat As at As at As at As at As at
Protium assets 311211 270411 311210 31121 270411 311210
Us$m ussm Ussm £m £m £m
US sub-prime and Alt-A 1,490 4,406 4,402 965 2,665 2,710
Commercial Mortgage-Backed Securities 1,422 3,092 3,257 a 1,870 2,103
Mongcline protection - - 225 - - 145
CLO and other assets 596 1,952 1636 386 1,181 1,189
Total collateral 3,508 9,450 9,520 22712 5716 6,147
Cash and cash equivalents n/a 231 1,364 n/a 140 881
Total assets 3,508 9,681 10,884 2,272 5.856 7,028
- - 10,884 - - 7,028

Loan to Protium

On 16 September 2009, Barclays Capital sold assets of US$12,285m, including US$8,384m in credit market assets, to Protium Finance LP
(Protium) As part of the transaction, Barclays extended a US$12,641m 10 year loan to Protium

In April 2011, Barclays entered into several agreements to acquire ali third party interests In Protium in order to help facilitate The Group’s early exit
from the underlying exposures  As a resutt, Protium was then consolidated by The Group Subsequently, Protium sold its assets to Barclays entities

and the loan has been repaid

As part of this transaction, £459m (US$750m) was invested in Helix, an exsting fund managed by Protium’s investment manager The original

investment represented 86% of the Helix fund, which has been consolidated by The Group The fund's investments primanly comprse

government and agency secunties As at 31 December 2011, the fair value of Barclays investment in the fund was US$729m
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Group exposures to selected Eurozone countries (audited)

Overview

Credit conditions will deteriorate In a recessionary environment, such as that recently seen in the UK, US, the Eurozone and other economies
Deteriorating credit conditions will impact exposures to retail and wholesale counterparties, including a country’s government or its agencies (via
sovereign nisk) thus impainng or reducing the value of Barclays credit assets

The impact of these canditions could adversely affect Barclays and the solvency of its counterparties, custodians, customers and service providers,
its credit rating, its share price, the value and hquidity of its assets and llabilities, and the ability of the Group to meet its debt obhigations more
generally

The following disclosures present The Group’s exposures to selected Eurozone countries, representing Eurczone countries that have a credit rating
of AA or below from: Standard and Poor's and where The Group has an exposure of over £0 Shn The Group’s exposure to Greece, though under
£0 5bn, 1s also presented due to continuing market focus

The Group continues to closely monitor its exposure to Eurozone countries
- Spanish sovereign exposure reduced 45% to £2 5bn due to the disposal of available for sate government bonds, held for the purpose of

interest rate hedging and liquidity, that have been replaced by interest rate swaps with alternative counterparties,

- Italian sovereign exposure increased 57% to £3 5bn principally due to the acquisition of government 1ssued bonds reflecting improved yields
and holdings as part of the Treasury iquidity management portfolio,

- ltahian non-sovereign exposures increased £0 8bn to £21 9bn, principally due to a £2 2bn increase In new mortgage lending (with an average
LTV of 59 6%), offset by £1 1bn reduction in exposures te financial institutions,

- Portuguese sovereign exposure reduced 21% to £0 8bn, principally due to a reduction in government bands held as available for sale,

- ireland exposures increased 5% to €5 7bn, principally reflecting increased lending te financial institutions of £4 3bn {31 December 2010
£3 8bn), ncluding £0 9bn of trading assets and £1 3bn of loans to entities domiciled in ireland whose principal business and exposures are
outside of Ireland Exposure to domestic Insh banks remains mwmal,

- Exposure to Greece remains mimimal and the sovereign exposure 1S predominantly marked to market on a daily basis through income, and

- Belgum 1s included (n the fallowing disclosures because its cradit rating was downgraded to AA in November 2011 Exposure increased
marginally to £2 4bn (2010 £2 Zbn) principally relating to available for sale holdings of sovereign debt

Exposure by country and counterparty (audited)

Spain ltaly Portugal treland Greece Belgium
£m £m £m £m £m £m
As at 31 December 2011
Sovereign 2,530 3,493 810 244 14 2,033
Financial institutions 987 669 51 43N 2 42
Residential mortgages 14,654 15,934 3,651 94 5 10
Corporate 5345 2,98 3,295 977 67 282
Other retail lending 3,031 2,335 2,053 86 18 -
Total on-balance sheet exposure 26,547 25,349 9,860 5,712 106 2,367
Total off-balance sheet contingent liabilities and
commitments 3,842 3,140 2,536 1,807 26 881
Total exposure 30,389 28,489 12,396 7519 132 3,248
As at 31 December 2010
Sovereign 4,641 2,224 1,023 296 EXl 1,780
Financial institutions 1,586 1,756 165 3,769 21 98
Resldential mortgages 15,977 13,741 3,476 109 4 10
Corporate 6,473 2,938 3,728 1,123 103 304
Other retail lending 3,081 2,599 2,074 125 19 1
Total on-balance sheet exposure 31,758 23,258 10,466 5,422 178 2,193
Total off-balance sheet contingent hiabilities and
commitments 3,716 3,588 3,010 1,786 34 897

Total exposure 35,474 26,846 13,476 7,208 212 3,090
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Management and monltoring of country exposures
The management of country nsk forms an integral part of the Group’s broader credit nsk framework focusing on concentratien risk. For further
information on the Group’s management of concentration risk, and the credst nsk management frarnework more generally, refer to pages 48 to 49

Stress testing

Barclays has a detaled and comprehensive stress testing framework applicable to both the Barclays Group as well as on individual portfolios and
asset classes The Croup's macroeconomic stress test scenarios are designed to be baoth severe and plausible Specific scenanos are also
considered as part of reverse stress testing for example, a Euro break-up scenario Data gained from the tests is used to initiate management
actions to mitigate the nsks to the Group of a deterloration In economic and trading conditions within the Eurozone

In July 2011 the European Banking Authority (EBA} published the results of their macroeconomic stress scenario for the 90 selected banks who
partucipated in the European stress test which included a Eurozone sovereign speciflc component In December 2011, the EBA published the results
of the bank recapitalisation plan which included a capital buffer against sovereign debt exposures Barclays uses stress tests and Mandate and
Scale to ensure its risk profile remains approprate and this was confirmed by passing both EBA tests

Basis of preparation
The following analysts presents the maximum direct balance sheet exposure to credit risk by selected Eurozone ceuntry, with the totals reflecting
allowance for impairment, netting and cash collateral held where appropriate, including

Trading and dervatives balances relate to Investment banking activities, principally as market-maker for government bond positions
Positions are held at fair value, with dally movements taken through profit and loss,

Available for sale assets are principally investments in government bonds and other debt secunties held for the purposes of interest rate
hedging and quidity for locat banking activities Balances are reported on a fair value basis, with movements in fair value going through
equity,

Loans and advances held at amortised cost compnise- (1) retail lending portfohios, predorminantly mortgages secured on residential property,
and () corporate lending portfolios, largely refiecting established corporate bankmg businesses in Spain, Italy and Portugal and investment
banking services provided to multinational and large national corporate clients Settlement balances and cash collateral are excluded from
this analysis,

Sovereign exposures reflect direct exposures to central and local governments®, the majonity of which are used for hedging interest rate risk
relating to local activities These positions are being actively replaced by non-government instruments such as Interest rate swaps The
remaining portion is actively managed reflecting our role as leading primary dealer, market maker and hquidity provider to our clients,
Financial institution and corporate exposures reflect the country of operations of the counterparty (including foreign subsicharies and without
reference to cross-border guarantees),

Retail exposures reflect the country of residence of retail customers, and

Off-balance sheet exposure consists primarly of undrawn cormmitments and guarantees issued to third parties on behalf of corporate clients
Information on the terms and potential kmitations of such facilities is presented on pages 192 to 194

The Group enters into credit mitigation arrangements for which the reference asset is government debt The selected countries include only credit
mitigation arrangements with counterparties \n the relevant country The analysis of credit derivatives referencing sovereign debt reflects denvative
counterparty netting and includes all credit derivatives, regardless of counterparty location

Note

2 In addition, The Group held cash with the central banks of these countries totalling £0 Bbn as at 31 Decernber 2011 Other immaterial balances with central banks are classifled
within [oans to financial institutions
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Spain {audited)
Fair value through Trading portfolio Dervatives
profit and loss Designated
Trading Trading Net atFv
portfolio portfolic  trading Gross Gross Cash Net through 201 201¢
assets liabilities portfolio assets fiabilities collateral  derivatives PaL Total Total
As at 31 December £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Sovereign 684 (634) . &4 (64) - - - - -
Financial institutions 367 (247} 120 7359  (7.023) (336) - 101 221 422
Corporate 167 (155) 12 656 {251) - 405 212 629 431
Avallable for sale assets 2011 2010
Fair value through equity Cost® AFS reserve Total Total
As at 31 December £m £m £m £m
Sovereign 2,519 {51) 2,468 4,491
Financial institutions 507 (17) 490 669
Corporate 2 - 2 36
Loans and advances 2011 2010
Held at amortised cost Gross Impairment allowances Total Total
As at 31 December Em £m £m £fm
Sovereign 62 - 62 150
Financial institutions 232 {6} 276 495
Residential mertgages 14,729 (75) 14,654 15977
Corporate 5,901 (1.187) 4,714 6,006
Other retail lending 3,144 (113) 3,031 3,081
Contingent liabilities and commitments 201 2010
As at 31 December Em Em
Sovereign 188 179
Financial institutions 22 179
Residential mortgages 20 26
Corporate 2510 2,116
1,102 1,216

Other retail lending

Note

a Cost’ refers to the fair value of the asset at recognition, less ary impalrment booked. *AFS reserve’ is the cumulative fair value galn or loss on the assets that is held in equity “Total'
1s the fair value of the assets at the balance sheet date
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Italy (audited)
Fair value through Trading portfolio Derivatives
profit and loss Designated
Trading Trading Net atFv
portfolio portfolio  trading Gross Gross Cash Net through 2011 2010
assets llabilities portfolio assets llabilities collateral  derivatives P&L Total Total
As at 31 December Em £fm fm £m £m £m £m £m £m Em
Savereign 2,097 {1.531) 566 1,083 {5086) - 577 1 1,144 1,004
Financial institutions 429 (142) 287 6,224 (4,791) (1,319) 114 55 456 978
Corporate 134 {134) - 502 (325) (92) 85 86 171 203
Avallable for sale assets o 2010
Fair value through equity Cost* AFS reserve Total Total
As at 31 December £m £m £m £m
Sovereign 2,457 (123} 2334 1,220
Financial institutions 141 (3} 138 226
Corporate 28 (1) 27 19
Loans and advances 2011 2010
Held at amortised cost Gross Impairment allowances Total Tetal
As at 31 December £m £m £m £m
Soveraign 15 - 15 -
Financial institutions 83 (8) 75 552
Residential mortgages 16,023 (89) 15934 13,741
Corporate 2,850 (130) 2,720 2,716
QOther retall lending 2,515 (180) 2,335 2,599
Contingent liabilities and commitments 20n 2010
As at 31 December £m £m
Financial institutions 17 35
Residential mortgages 101 92
Corporate 2,034 2,549
988 912

Other retail lending

Note

a 'Cost refers to the fair value of the asset at recogrution, less any Impairment booked AFS reserve’ is the cumulative fair value gain or loss on the assets that is held in equity Total'

is the fair value of the assets at the balance sheet date
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Portugal (audited)
Far value through Trading portfolio Derivatives

profit and loss Designated
Trading Trading Net atFv
portfolic portfolio  trading Gross Gross Cash Net  through 2011 2010
assets liabilities portfolio assets liabilities collateral  derivatives P&L Total Total
As at 31 December £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Savereign 143 (76) 67 216 {216) - - 2 69 121
Financial institutions 24 (13) 1 336 (336) - - - 11 106
Corporate 129 (21) 108 445 (223) {2) 220 - 328 193
Available for sale assets 2011 2010
Fair vatue through equity Cost* AFS reserve Total Total
As at 31 December £m £m £m £Em
Soveraign 875 (159) 716 886
Financial institutions 2 - 2 9
Corporate 675 2 577 896
Loans and advances 2011 2010
Held at amortised cost Gross Impairment allowances Total Total
As at 31 December £m £m £m £m
Sovereign 25 - 25 16
Financial institutions 38 - 38 50
Residential mortgages 3,665 (14) 3,651 3,476
Corporate 2,484 (194) 2,290 2,639
Other retail lending 2,252 (199) 2,053 2,074
Contingent liabilities and commitments 2011 2010
As at 31 December £m £m
Sovereign 3 -
Finanoial institutions 3 6
Residential mortgages 52 15
Corporate t,101 1,622
QOther retail lending 1.377 1,367
Note

a Cost refers to the falr value of the asset at recognition, fess any impairment booked ‘AFS reserve’ is the cumulative fair vaiue gain or loss on the assets that is held in equity Total’
s the fair value of the assets at the balance sheet date
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Ireland (audited)

Fair value through Trading portfolio Derlvatives
profit and loss Designated
Trading Trading Net atFv
portfailo portfolie  trading Gross Gross Cash Net  through 2on 2010
assets liabilittes portfolio assets [liabilities collateral  derivatives P&L Total Total
As at 31 December £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £Em
Sovereign 98 (64) 34 45 (4 (36) 5 - 39 59
Financial institutions 1,416 (39) 1,377 5,839 (3,909) (1.846) 134 50 1,561 1,149
Corporate 73 (30) 43 658 {658) - - 9 52 164
Available for sale assets 2011 2010
Fair value through equity Cost’ AFS reserve Total Total
As at 31 December £fm £m £fm £m
Sovereign 215 (10) 205 237
FInanciat institutions 274 (25) 249 584
Loans and advances 2011 2010
Held at amortised cost Gross Impalrment allowances Total Total
As at 31 December £m £m £m £m
Financial institutions 2,651 (150} 2,501 2,036
Residential mortgages 104 {10} 94 109
Carporate 946 {21} 925 959
Other retail lending 86 - 86 125
Contingent liabilitles and commitments 201 2010
As at 31 December £m £m
Financial institutions 927 871
Corporate 872 906
8 9

Other retail lending

Note

a Cost’ refers to the falr value of the asset at recognition, less any impaument booked AFS reserve’ is the cumulative fair value gain ar loss on the assets that is held In equity Total’

is the fair value of the assets at the balance sheet date
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Greece {audited)
Fair value through Trading portfolio Derwatives

profit and loss Designated
Trading Trading Net atFv
portfolio portfolioc  trading Gross Gross Cash Net through 2011 2010
assets liabilities portfolic assets [liabilties collateral  derivatives P&L Total Total
As at 31 December £m £m £m £m fm £m Em Em £m £m
Sovereign 7 - 7 1 - - 1 - 8 15
Financial institutions 2 - 2 1,109 {253) {856) - - 2 21
Corporate 3 - 3 - - - - - 3 7
Available for sale assets 2011 2010
Fair value through equity Cost* AFS reserve Total Total
As at 31 December £Em £m £m £m
Sovereign 6 - 6 16
Loans and advances 2011 2010
Held at amortised cost Gross  Impairment allowances Total Total
As at 31 December £m £m £Em £m
Residential mortgages 5 - 5 4
Corporate 64 - 64 96
Other retail lending 27 {9) 18 19
Contingent liabilities and commitments 2011 2010
As at 31 December £m £m
Financial institutions 1 1
Corporate 3 15
22 18

Other retall lending

Note
a Cost' refers to the farr value of the asset at recognition, less any impairment booked AFS reserve is the cumulative faw value galn or loss on the assets that is held in equity Total’

1s the fair value of the assets at the balance sheet date
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Belgium (audited)
Fair value through Trading portfolio Derivatives
profit and loss Designated
Trading Trading Net atfFv
portfolio portfolio  trading Gross Gross Cash Net through 20N 2010
assets liabllities portfolio assets liabilities collateral derivatives P&L Total Total
As at 31 December £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Sovereign 735 {414) a2t 442 (442) - - - 2 431
Financial institutions 46 {5) 41 9,713 (6,362)  (3,351) - - 41 86
Corporate 59 (42) 17 362 (329) - 33 47 97 67
Available for sale assets 20m 2010
Fair value through aquity Cost? AFS reserve Total Total
As at 31 December £m £m £m £m
Sovereign 1,738 (26) 1,712 1,349
Corporate 15 1 16 -
Loans and advances 2011 2010
Held at amortised cost Gross Impairment allowances Total Total
As at 31 December £m £m £m £rn
Financial institutions 1 - 1 12
Residential mortgages 10 - 10 10
Corporate 204 (35) 169 237
Other retall lending - - - 1
Contingent liabilities and commitments 201 2010
As at 31 December £m £m
Financral institutions - 8
Corporate 879 888
Other retall lending 2 1

Analysis of indirect exposures
Indirect exposure to soveretgns can arise through a number of different sources, including credit denivatives referencing sovereign debt, guarantees
to savings and investment funds which hold sovereign nisk, lending to financial insututions who themselves hold exposure to sovereigns and

guarantees, imphcit or explicit, by the sovereign to The Group’s counterparties

Note
a8 Cost refers to the far value of the asset at recognition, less any impairment booked ‘AFS reserve’ Is the cumulative fair value gain or loss on the assets that is held in equity ‘Total'
15 the fair value of the assets at the balance sheet date
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Credit derivatives referencing sovereign debt

The Group enters into credit mitigation primarily for risk management purposes for which the reference asset 1s government debt. These have the
net effect of reducing The Group's exposure in the event of sovereign default An analysis of The Group’s credit derivatives referencing sovereign
debt is presented below

As at 37 Decernber 2011 Spain ltaly Portugal Ireland Greece Belgium
Em £m £m £m £m £m

Fair value

- Bought 219 1,934 1,047 538 2,197 223

- Sold (917) {1.836) (1,023) (538) (2,257) (227)

Net derivative fair value 2 98 24 - {60) (4)

Contract notional amount

- Bought (9.429) (14.056) {3.659) (2,782) (3,300) (2,755)

- Sold 9,270 13,584 3,609 2,733 3,379 2,755

Net derivative notional amount (159} (472) (50) (49) 79 -

Impact of credit derivatives In the event of sovereign

default (notional less fair value of protection} (157) (374) (26) {49) 19 {4)

The fair values and notional amounts of credit derivative assets and liabilities would be lower than reported under IFRS If netting was permitted for
assets and Jlabilities with the same counterparty or for which we hold cash collateral Ananalysis of the effects of such netting 1s presented below

As at 31 December 2011 Spain Italy Portugal Ireland Greece Belgium
£m Em £m £m £m £m

Fair value

- Bought 326 6381 346 170 669 69

- Sold {324) {583) (322) (170) {729) (73}

Net derivative fair value 2 98 24 - (60) (4)

Contract notional amount

- Bought (2,924) (4,742) (1,027) (B54) (1,019) (859)

- Sold 2,765 4,270 977 805 1,098 859

Net derivative notional amount {159) {472) {50) (49) 79 -

Impact of credit derivatives in the event of sovereign

default {(notional less fair value of protection) (157) (374) {26) {49) 19 {4)

Credit derivatives {principally credit default swaps {CDS) and total return swaps) are arrangements whereby the defauit nsk of an asset (reference
asset) 1s transferred from the buyer to the seller of protection The majority of credit dervatives referencing soveraign assets are bought and sold to
support customer transactions and for sk management purposes Wherever possible, The Group matches the matunity of dervative protection
bought with the matunity of the underlying reference assets to help maximise the effectiveness of the miigation against the exposure

The contract nctichal amount represents the value of the reference asset being insured, while the fair value represents the change in value of the
reference asset, adjusted for the creditworthiness of the counterparty providing the protection The net derivative notienal amount, representing a
reduction in expasures, 1s not included In the country tables but should be considered alongside the direct exposures disclosed in those pages

Sovereign CDS would trigger on the occurrence of a credit event as determined by ISDA’s Determination Committee CDS positians are monitored
considering counterparty, country of counterparty and concentration level with respect to counterparties and sovereigns Further information on
the credit quality of The Group's derivative assets is presented on page 57

Group guarantees relating to savings and investment funds

The Group has indirect sovereign exposure through the guarantee of certain savings and investment funds, which hold a proportion of therr assets
In sovereign debt As at 31 December 2011, the recognised lhability in respect of these guarantees was £41m, with 2 £1 5bn gross notional
exposure

In addition, a Group asscciate, Vida Y Pensiones Compania De Seguros, holds investments with a tota! fair value of £1 2bn relating to certan
customer investment products, of which a proportion are guaranteed and the majority comprise sovereign, financial institution and corporate debt
n Eurozone countries
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Market risk 15 the risk of the Group suffering financial loss due to the Group being unable to hedge its balance sheet at
prevaifing market levels The Group can be impacted by changes in both the level and volatiity of prices e.g interest
rates, credit spreads, commodity prices, equity prices and foreign exchange rates

Overview {audited)

The maln sources of nsk are traded market risk, non-traded risk and pension nsk. Traded risk in the businesses resides primarily in Barclays Capital
while non-traded market risk resides malinly in Retail and Business Banking, Barclays Corporate, Barclays Wealth and Group Treasury Pensions risk
Is monitored centrally with the cost borne across businesses

Barclays market risk objectives are to

- Understand and control market risk by robust measurernent, limit setting, reporting and oversight,
- Facilitate business growth within a controlled and transparent risk management framework,

- Ensure that traded market risk in the businesses resides pnmarily in Barclays Capital, and

- Minimise non-traded rmarket risk.

Organisation and structure (audited)

The BRC reviews and approves market risk appetite for the group The Group Market Risk Director 1s responsible for the Barclays Market Risk
Controf Framework and, under delegated authority from the Chief Risk Officer, sets a hmit framework within the context of the approved market
risk appetite Daily market risk reports summarise Barclays market nisk exposures against agreed imits and are distributed to the pancipal risk
owners

The Market Risk Committee approves, and makes recommendations concerning the market nsk profile across Barclays This includes approving
Barclays Market Risk Control Framework and Group Policies, reviewing current and forward Issues, imits and utilisation, and proposing risk
appetite levels for the Board The Commuttee 1s chaired by the Group Market Risk Director and attendees include the Chief Risk Officer, respective
business risk managers, group treasury and senior managers from Group Market Risk as well as Internal Audit

The head of each bustness, assisted by market risk management, is accountable for all market risks associated with its activities The head of each
business market nisk team is responsible for implementing the nsk control framework for non-traded market risk, while Barclays Capital Market
Risk implements the risk controt framework for traded market nsk The control frarmeworks for traded, non-traded and pensions risk are all
governed by the Barctays Market Risk Control Framework, which sets out how market risk should be Identified, measured, controlled, reported and
reviewed The Framework also outlines and references Group Market Risk policies

Market nsk oversight and challenge Is provided by business committees, Group committees including the Market Risk Committee and Group
Market Risk.

Traded market risk {audited)

Traded rmarket nsk anses primanly as a result of client facilitation 1n wholesale markets This involves market making, risk management sclutions
and executlon of syndications Mismatches between client transactions and hedges result in market nsk. In Barclays Capital, trading nsk 1s
measured for the trading book, as defined for regulatory purposes, and certain banking books

Risk measurement
Barclays uses a range of complementary technical approaches to measure and control traded market nisk including Daily Value at Risk (DVaR),
Expected Shortfali, 3W, primary and secondary stress testing and combined scenario stress testing

DVaR is an estimate of the potentsal loss arising from unfavourable market movements, if the current positions were to be held unchanged for one
business day For managerment purposes Barclays Capitat uses a histonical simulation methodology with a two-year equally weighted hustonical
period, at the 95% confidence leve! for all trading portfolios and certain banking books

Market volatility in 2011 was heightened, particularly in the second half, by uncertainty on the future economic growth and the sovereign debt
crisis The high volatility observations of early 2009 rofled-out of the two year DVaR historical data set, however new tail points were added in the
second half of 2011

As defined by the FSA, a green model is consistent with a good working DVaR model and s achieved for models that have four or fewer back-
testing exceptions in a i 2-month period Back-testing counts the number of days when a loss (as defined by the FSA) exceeds the corresponding
DVaR estimate, measured at the 99% confidence level For Barclays Capital’s DVaR model, green model status was maintained for 2011

The DVaR model is regularly assessed and reviewed internally by Group Executive Models Commuttee and within Barclays Capital




Barclays Bank PLC Annual Report 2011 www barclays com/annualreport n

When reviewing DVaR estimates the following considerations should be taken into account.

- Historical simulation uses the most recent two years of past data to generate possible future market moves, but the past may not be a good
indicator of the future,

- The one-day time honizon does not fully capture the market risk of positions that cannot be closed out or hedged within one-day,

- DVaR is based on positions as at close of business and consequently intra-day nisk, the risk from a position bought and sold on the same day,
15 not captured, and

- DVaR does not indicate the potential loss beyond the 95th percentile

In part to mitigate these issues, Barclays also use Expected Shortfall and 3W metrics which use the same two year historical simulation data set as
used to calculate DVaR Expected Shartfalt is the average of all one-day hypothetical losses beyond the 95% confidence level DVaR while 3W is the
average of the three largest one-day estimated losses

Stress testing provides an estimate of potential significant future losses that might anse from extreme market moves or scenanos Primary stress
tests apply stress moves to key iguid nsk factors for each of the major trading asset classes including interest rate, credit, commodity, equity
foreign exchange and secunitised products Secondary stress tests apply stress moves to less liquid nsks Combined scenarios apply simultaneous
shocks to several risk factors, reflecting defined extraordinary, but plausible macro scenarios This is assessed by applying respective changes on
foreign exchange rates, interest rates, credit spreads, commodities and equities to the portfolio

In 2011, Barclays Capital implemented new regulatory risk models to comply with the CRD3 revisions to the market nisk capital requirement. These
were Stressed VaR (SVaR), Incremental Risk Charge (IRC) and the All Price Risk {APR) All three models were approved by the FSA for calculation of
regulatory capital for designated trading book portfolios The SVaR approval matches the scope of the DVaR model as used for regulatory capital
catculations

SVaR 1s an estimate of the potential loss anising from a 12 month peried of significant financial stress SVaR uses DVaR methodology based on
inputs cahbrated to histonical data from a continuous 12 month period that maximises the DVaR based capital at a 99% one-tailed confidence imit.

IRC 1s computed on all fixed income posttions subject to specific market nisk. It calculates the incremental nisk ansing from rating migrations and
defaults, beyond what 1s zlready captured in specific market risk, to a 9 9% confidence level over a ane year holding penod

APR replaces specific nsk for the correlation trading portfolio and 1s intended to capture all nsk factors relevant to corporate nth-to-default and
tranched credit derivatives As for IRC, the capital requirement s based on a 99 9% confidence interval over a one year holding peniod

When reviewing estimates produced by the CRD3 models the following considerations should be taken into account

- SVaR uses the same methodology as the DVaR mode! and hence 15 subject to the same considerations as this model In addiion, SVaR 1s
calibrated to a specific 12 month historical stress period which may not reflect a stress peniod that could arise in the future,

- In common with DVaR, neither IRC nor APR indicate the potential loss beyond the 99th percentile, and they do not measure risk from trades
which are bought and sold in between weekly runs, and

- Both IRC and APR are computed to a 1-1n-1,000 year confidence level which cannot be meaningfully backtested This s in contrast to DVaR,
which can be meaningfully backtested

Risk control

Market Risk is controlled through the use of an appropnate limit framework Limits are set at the total Barclays Capital level, nisk factor level (e g
interest rate risk) and business line level {e g Emerging Markets) Stress limits and many book limits, such as foreign exchange and interest rate
sensitivity limits, are also used to control nsk appetite

The tota! DVaR limit, risk factor DVaR limits, and 3W hmit are approved by BRC Primary stress fimits are approved by the Chief Risk Officer and are
tabled for noting by BRC Compliance with limits 1s monitored by Barclays Caprtal Market Risk with oversight provided by Croup Market Risk.

In 2011 Group Market Risk continued its ongoing programme of conformance visits to Barclays Capital business areas These visits review both the
current market risk profile and potential market nsk developments, as well as verifying conformance with Barclays Market Risk Control Framework.

Risk reporting

Barclays Capital Market Risk produce a number of detailed and summary market nisk reports daily, weekly, fortnightly and monthly for business and
fnisk managers These are also sent to Group Market Risk for review and inclusion in the Group Daily Market Risk Report. A nisk summary 1s
presented at the Market Risk Commuttee and Barclays Capita! Traded Positions Risk Review




72 I Barclays Bank PLC Annual Report 2011

www barclays com/annualreport

Risk management
Market risk

All disclosures n this section are unaudited unless otherwise stated

Analysis of traded market risk exposures

The trading environment tn 2011 was characterised by weak underiying economic growth as well as uncertain market direction resulting in lower
client actmty particularly in the second half of 2011 In this environment, Barclays Capital's market risk exposure, as measured by average total

DVaR, increased 8% to £57m (2010- £53m)

The three main nsk factors affecting DVaR were spread, interest rate and equity risk. From 2010 levels, average DVaR for spread risk feil by £3m
(6%) and interest rate DVaR fell by £16m (48%) reflecting cautious positioning Equity DVaR increased by £4m (29%) on continued growth of the

global equities business and preduct offerings

The diversification effect fell 38% to an average of £40m in 2011 due to Increasing cross asset correlation as the European cnsis worsened
However, the tail nisk indicated by the expected shortfall and 3W measures fell 9% to £71m and 16% to £121m respectively from 2010 levels

The daily average, maximum and minimum values of DVaR, Expected Shortfall and 3W were calculated as below-

The dally average, maximum and minimum values of
DVaR, Expected Shortfall and 3W

Year ended 31 December 2011

Year ended 31 December 2010

(audited) Average High* Low* Average High* Low*
DVaR (95%) £m £m £m fm Em £m
Interest rate risk 17 47 7 33 50 21

Spread risk 45 69 25 48 62 30
Commodity nsk 12 18 7 16 25 9
Equity risk 18 34 9 14 29 6
Foreign exchange risk 5 8 2 6 15 2
Diversification effect {40) na na (64) na na
Total DVaR 57 88 313 53 75 36
Expected Shortfall 71 113 43 78 147 47
3w 121 202 67 144 311 72
The Bank

Barclays Capital's market risk exposure, as measured by average total DVaR of 95%, increased by 8% 1o £56m {2010 £52m) The high for the year

was £86m (2010 £74m) and the low for the year was £34m (2010 £35m)

Non-traded interest rate risk (audited)

Non-traded interest rate nsk anses from the proviston of reta:l and wholesale (nen-traded) banking products and services, when the interest rate
repricing date for loans {assets) is different to the repricing date for deposits (habilities) This includes current accounts and equity balances which
do not have a defined matunty date and an interest rate that does not change in line with Base rate changes The risk resides mainly in Retail and
Business Banking, Barclays Corporate, and Greup Treasury Barclays objective is to minimise non-traded interest rate nsk and this\s achieved by
transferring interest rate risk frorn the business to a local or Group Treasury, which In turn hedges the net exposure via Barclays Capital with the
external market. Limits exist to ensure no material risk 1s retained within any business or product area Trading activity fs not permitted outside

Barclays Capital

Risk measurement

The risk in each business 1s measured and controlled using both an income metrnic (Annual Earnings at Risk) and value metrics (Economic Value of

Equity, Economic Capital, DVaR, risk factor stress testing, scenano stress testing}

Annual Earnings at Risk (AEaR) measures the sensitvity of net interest income over the next 12 month period It is calculated as the difference
between the estimated income using the current yield curve and the lowest estimated income following a 100 basis point increase or decrease in

interest rates, subject to a mimmum interest rate of 0%
The main model assumptions are

- The balance sheet is kept at the current level s e no growth i1s assumed, and

- Balances are adjusted for an assumed behavioural profile This includes the treatment of fixed rate loans including mortgages

Note

a The high (and low) DVaR figures reportad for each category did not necessarily occur on the same day as the high {and low) DVaR reported as a whole Consequently a diversification effect

number for the high {and low) DVaR figures would not be meanngfid and it is therefore omitted from the above table
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Econormic Value of Equity (EVE) calculates the change in the present value of the banking book for a 100 basis point upward and downward rate
shock. This calculation 1s equivalent to that of AEaR except EVE 1s a present value sensitivity while AEaR 1s an income sensitivity

Economic Capital (EC) consistent models are used to measure recruitment risk, the risk from customers not taking up therr fixed rate loan offer,
and prepayment risk, the risk of a customer deciding not to carry on with their fixed rate loan Behavioural profiles are also used when modelling
the balance sheet

A combination of DVaR, stress imits, net open position and specrfic currency or tenor lirmits are in place for all local Treasury activities

Risk Control

Market risk s controlled through the use of hrmits on the abave risk measures Limits are set at the total business level and then cascaded down
The total business level limits for AEaR, EVE, EC, DVaR and stress are agreed by the Market Risk Commuttee Compliance with imits s momitored by
the respective business market nisk team with oversight provided by Group Market Risk.

Market risk Is also controiled through an ongoing programme of conformance reviews by both the business market risk departments and Group
Market Risk, These reviews examine both the current market nisk profile and potential market nsk developments, as well as venfying adherence
with Barclays policies and standards as detailed in the Barclays Market Risk Control Framework

The interest rate nsk for balances with no defined maturity date and an interest rate that s not linked to the base rate is managed by Group
Treasury A series of continuous rolling hedges 1s used to mitigate the interest rate risk in the banking book In 2011, the maturity of the rolling
hedge programme was extended following a review by the Group Treasury Commutiee of the most appropriate maturity This revision was agreed
by the Group Executive Committee

Risk Repeorting

Each business area 1s responsible for thelr respective market nisk reports A combination of daily and monthly sk reports are produced and used by
the business These are also sent to Group Market Risk for review and inclusion in the daily market risk report A nisk summary 1s also presented at
the Market Risk Commuttee and respective Asset and Liability Commuttees

Analysis of net interest income sensitivity

The table below shows sensitivity analysis on the pre-tax net interest income for the non-trading financial assets and financial liabilities held at 31
December 2011 and 31 Decemnber 2010 The sensitivity has been measured using AEaR methodology as described above The benchmark interest
rate for each currency s set as at 31 December 2011 The figures include the effect of hedging instruments but exclude banking book exposures
held or issued by Barclays Capital as these are measured and managed using DVaR

Net Interest Income Sensitivity (AEaR) by currency 31 December 2011 31 December 2010
(audited) +100 basis -100 basis +100 basis -100 basis
points points points points
The Group £m Em £m £m
GBP 68 {321) 297 (377)
uss (%) (1) (12) (8)
EUR (73} (5) (16) 12
ZAR 31 (29) 13 (10}
Others 14 (5} - -
Total 63 (371} 282 {383)
As percentage of net interest income 0 52% (3 04%) 2 25% (3 06%)

Non-traded interest rate risk, as measured by AEaR, was £371m as at 31 December 2011, a decrease of £12m compared to 31 December 2010
The decrease 1n risk reflects a reduction between Group Equity Balances and associated hedges, partly offset by margin compression in the retail
bank. If the interest rate hedges had not been in place the AEaR for 2011 would have been £553m (2010 £601m) AEaR is measured for a
reduction in rates for the purposes of this analysis
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Net Interest Income Sensitivity (AEaR) by currency

31 December 2011 31 December 2010

(audited) +100 basis -100 basis +100 basis -100 basis
points points ponts points

The Bank £m fm £rm £m
GBP 41 (194) 172 (219)
Uss (5) n 7) {5)
EUR (25) {3) (9 7
ZAR 19 (18) 8 (6)
Others 8 {E}] - -
Total EL: (225) 164 (223)
As percentage of net interest income 052% {3 05%) 2 25% (3 06%)

Note: This table excludes exposure held or issued by Barclays Capital as these are measured and managed using DVaR

Analysis of Equity sensitivity
Analysis of equity sensitivity 31 December 2011 31 December 2010
(audited} +100 basis -100 basls +100 basis -100 basis
points points points points
The Group £m £m £m £m
Net Interest Income 63 {371) 282 (383)
Taxation effects on the above (20) 120 {70) 96
Effect on profit for the year 43 (251) 212 (287)
As percentage of net profit after tax 1 06% (6 20%) 465% (6 29%)
Effect on profit for the year (per above} 43 (251) 212 (287)
Available for sale reserve (1.108) 1,102 (2,051) 2,051
Cash flow hedge reserve (2,248) 2,280 {1,298) 1,288
Taxation effects on the above 1,083 (1,091) 835 {833)
Effect on equity (2,230) 2,040 (2.302) 2,219
As percentage of equity 342% 313% {3 67%) 354%

Analysis of equity sensitivity 31 Decernber 2011 31 December 2010
{audited) +100 basls -100 basis +100 basis -100 basis
points points points points
The Bank £m Em £m £m
Net Interest Income 38 {225) 164 (223)
Taxation effects on the above (10) 61 19 (26)
Effect on profit for the year 28 {164) 183 (249)
As percentage of net profit after tax 140% (8 22%) 727% {9 89%)
Effect on profit for the year (per above) 28 {164) 183 (249)
Available for sale reserve (983) 977 {1.865) 1,865
Cash flow hedge reserve (2,119) 2,151 (1.136) 1,126
Taxation effects on the above 843 (850) (356) 355
Effect on equity (2,231) 2,114 (3,174) 3,097
As percentage of equity {4 40%) 4 16% (6 34%) 6 19%
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Foreign exchange risk (audited)
The Group 1s exposed to twa sources of foreign exchange risk

a) Transactional foreign currency exposure

Transactional foreign exchange exposures represent exposure on banking assets and labilies, denormunated in currencies other than the
functional currency of the transacting entity The Group’s nsk management policies prevent the holding of significant open pasitions in foreign
cusrencies outside the trading portfolio managed by Barclays Capital which 1s monitored through DVaR

There were no material net transactional foreign currency exposures outside the trading portfolio at ether 31 December 2011 or 2010 Due to the
low level of non-trading exposures no reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates would have a material effect on either The Group's
profit or movernents in equity for the year ended 31 December 2011 or 2010

b) Translational foreign exchange exposure

The Group’s investments in overseas subsidiaries and branches create capital resources denominated in foreign currencies principalty US3, Euro
and South African Rand Changes i the Sterling value of the investments due to foreign currency movements are captured in the currency
translation reserve, resulting in a movement 1n Core Tier 1 capital

Dunng 2011, total structural currency exposures net of hedging instruments increased from £15 3bn to £16 7bn, driven by redemption of US32bn
Reserve Capital Instruments that formed part of the economic hedges Structural currency exposures pre economic hedges remained broadly flat
US$ exposures increased by US$8bn due to the restructuring of our holding in BlackRock from a GBP entity to a US$ entity, offset by the increase in
US$ derivatives which hedge net investments South African Rand exposures increased £1 1bnasa result of a reduction in the hedge of the
investment in Absa Group Euro exposures reduced by £0 8bn driven by the Spain goodwill write off, which had no impact on Euro denominated
Core Tier 1 capital as goodwll 1s deducted for regulatory capital purposes

Functional currency of operations Structural
(audited) Foreign  Borrowings Derivatives currency Remaining
currency which hedge which hedge exposures structural
net the net the net pre economic Economic currency
Investments investments  Investments hedges hedges exposures
£m £m £Em £m £Em £fm

As at 31 December 2011

US Dollar 30,335 7.217 8,094 15,024 5,072 9,952
Euro 6,568 4,096 280 2,192 2,017 175
Rand 4,258 - - 4,258 - 4,258
Japanese Yen 681 293 336 52 . 52
Other 3,144 - 930 2,214 - 2,214
Total 44,986 11,606 9,640 23,740 7,089 16,651

As at 31 December 2010

US Dollar 22,646 7,406 - 15,240 6,330 8910
Euro 7,327 3,072 1,264 2,961 2,069 892
Rand 4,826 - 1.626 3,200 - 3,200
Japanese Yen 5,304 3,603 1,683 18 - 18
Swiss Franc 152 - 157 {5) - (5)
Other 3,139 - 824 2,315 - 2,315

Total 43,394 14,081 5,584 23,729 8,399 15,330
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The economic hedges primanly represent the US Dollar and Euro Preference Shares and Reserve Capital Instruments in issue that are treated as
equity under IFRS, and do not qualify as hedges for accounting purposes During the year US$2bn Reserve Capital Instruments were redeemed

The impact of a change in the exchange rate between Sterling and any of the major currencies would be

- A higher or lower Sterling equivalent value of non-5Sterling denominated capital resources and nsk weighted assets This includes a higher or
lower currency translation reserve within equity, representing the retranslation of non-Sterling subsidiaries, branches and associated
undertakings net of the impact of foreign exchange rate changes on denvatives and borrowings designated as hedges of net investments,

- A higher or lower profit after tax, ansing from changes in the exchange rates used to translate items in the consolidated income staterment,
and

- A higher or lower value of available for sale investrnents denorrunated in foreign currencies, impacting the avallable for sale reserve
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Overview

Barclays operates a centralised capital management model, considering both regulatory and economic capital The capital management strategy 1s
to continue to maximise shareholder value through optimising both the level and mix of capital resources Decisions on the allocation of capital
resources are conducted as part of the strategic planning review The Group’s capital management objectives are to

- Maintain sufficient capital resources to meet the minimum regulatory capital requirements set by the FSA and the US Federal Reserve Bank's
requirements that a financial holding company be weil capitalised,

- Maintain sufficient capital resources to suppert the Group’s risk appetite and economic capital requirements,

- Support the Group's credit rating,

- Ensure locally regulated subsidianes can meet their minimum capital requirements, and

- Allocate capital to businesses to support the Group's strategic objectives, including optirnising returns on economic and regulatory capital

External Regulatory Capital Requirements
The Group I1s subject to rmmimurm capital requirements imposed by the Financial Services Authonty (FSA), following guidelines develeped by the
Basel Committee on Banking Supervision (the Basel Committee) and implerented in the UK wia European Union Directives

Under Basel 2, effective from 1 January 2008, the Group has approval by the FSA to use the advanced approaches to credit and operational risk
management Pillar 1 caprital requirements are generated using the Croup’s nsk models

Under Pillar 2 of Basel 2, the Group 1s subject te an overall regulatory capital requirement based on individual capital guidance (‘ICC’) receved from
the FSA The ICG imposes additional capital requirements in excess of Pillar 1 mimmum capital requirements

Qutside the UK, the Group has operations {and main regulators) located in continental Europe, tn particular France, Germany, Spain, Portugal and
Italy (local central banks and other regulatory authornities), Asia Pacific (various regulatory authorities including the Hong Kong Monetary Authonty,
the Japanese FSA and the Monetary Authority of Singapere), Africa, where the Group’s operations are headquartered in Johannesburg, South Afnica
{The South African Reserve Bank and the Financial Services Board (FSB}) and the United States of America (the Board of Governors of the Federal
Reserve System (FRB) and the Secunties and Exchange Cormmission)

Local entity regulatory capital adequacy

The Group manages ts capital resources to ensure that those Croup entities that are subject to local capital adequacy regulation in indvidual
countries meet their minimum capital requirements The current policy of the Group s that the local capital requirements are met, to the greatest
possible extent, through the retention of profit Certain countries also operate exchange controf regulations which irmut the amount of dividends
that can be remitted to non-resident shareholders Local management manages comphance with subsidiary entity mimimum regulatory capital
requirements with reporting to local Asset and Liability Committees and to Treasury Commuttee, as required

Injections of capital resources into Group entities are centrally controlled by the Group Treasury Committee, under authorities delegated from the
Group Executive Committee The Group's policy is for surplus capital held in Group entities to be repatriated to Barclays Bank £LC in the form of
dividends and/or capital repatriation, subject to local regulatory requiremnents, exchange controls and tax implications

Other than as indicated above, the Group 1s not aware of any materal impediments to the prompt transfer of capital resources or repayment of
intragroup habidities when due

Regulatory Capital
The table below provides details of the regulatery capital resources managed by The Croup

Regulatory Capstal 201 2000

£m £m
Core Tier 1 Capital 43,040 43,240
Tier 1 Capital 50,447 53,729
Tier 2 Capital 16,063 15,823
Deductions from total Capital (2.588) (2.250)

Total Capital resources 63,922 67,302
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Liquidity Risk

The definition of liquidity risk is the risk that the Group 1s unable to meet its obligations as they fall due as a result of a sudden, and potentially
protracted, increase in net cash outflows Such outflows would deplete available cash resources for cllent lending, trading activities and
investments These outflows could be principally through customer withdrawals, wholesale counterparties remaving financing, collateral posting
requirements of loan draw-downs This risk is Inherent in all banking operations and can be affected by a range of Group-specific and market-wide
events which can resultin

- aninability to suppent normal business actwity, and

- afailure to meet hquidity regulatory requirernents

During periods of market dislocation, the Group's ability to manage liquidity requirements may be impacted by areduction in the availabiiity of
whalesale term funding as well as an increase in the cost of raising wholesale funds Asset sales, balance sheet reductions and the Increasing costs
of raising funding wll affect the earmings of the Group

In illiquid markets, the Group may decide to hold assets rather than securitising, syndicating or disposing of them. This could affect the Group’s
ability to originate new loans or support other custorner transactions as both capital and liquidity are consumed by existing or tegacy assets

In addition, the introduction of capital controls or new currencies by countries to mitigate current stresses could have a consequential effect on
performance of the balance sheets of certatn Group comparues based on the asset quality, types of collateral and mix of liabilties

The efficlent management of Liquidity is essential to the Group in retaining the confidence of the financial markets and ensuring that the business is

sustainable Liquidity risk 1s managed through the Liquidity Risk Framework, which is designed to meet the following objectives.

~  To maintain liquidity resources that are sufficient in amount and quality and a funding profile that s appropriate to meet the iquidity risk
framework as expressed by the Board,

- To maintain market confidence in the Group’s name,

- To set imits to control kquidity risk within and across lines of business and legal entitles,

- To accurately price liquidity costs, benefits and nsks and incorporate those into product pricing and performance measurement,

- To set early warning indicators to identify immediately the emergence of increased quidity risk or vulnerabilties Inciuding events that would
impair access to hquidity resources,

- To project fully ever an appropnate set of time honzons cash flows arising from assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet items, and

- To maintain a contingency funding plan that is comprehensive and proportionate to the nature, scale and complexity of the business and that
i1s regularly tested to ensure that it 1s operationally robust.

Governance and organisation

Barclays Treasury operates a centralised governance control process that covers all of the Group's liquidity risk management actvities The
Barclays Treasurer Is responsible for designing the Group Liquidity Risk Management framework (the Liquidity Framework} which Is sanctoned by
the Board Risk Committee The Liquidity Framework incorporates liguidity policies, systems and controls that the Group has implemented to
manage liquidity nisk within tolerances approved by the Board and regulatory agencies The Board sets the Group's Liquidity Risk Appetite (LRA),
being the level of risk the Group chooses to take in pursuit of Its business objectives and in meeting its regulatory obligations  The Treasury
Commuttee 1s responsible for the management and governance of the mandate defined by the Board The Group Asset and Liability Commitiees 1s a
sub-committee of the Treasury Committee with responsibility for review, challenge and approval of the Liquidity Framework. The Liquidity
Framework is reviewed regularly at Treasury Committee and Board Risk Commuttee In general, hquidity and funding are managed at a group level

Liquidity Is recogrised as a key risk and the Barclays Treasurer is the Group Key Risk owner, supported by Key Risk Owners at reglonal and country
levels Execution of the Group’s liquidity nsk management strategy is carried out at country level, with the country Key Risk Owners providing
reports to Barclays Treasury to evidence conformance with the agreed nsk profile  Further oversight Is provided by country, regional and business

level Asset and Liability Committees
Uity Risk Governance Structune:
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Liquidity risk framework
Barclays has a comprehensive Liquidity Framework for managing the Group’s liguidity nisk. The Liquidity Framework is designed to deliver the
appropriate term and structure of funding consistent with the Liquidity Risk Appetite set by the Board

The Liquidity Framework incorparates a range of ongoing business management tools to monitor, limit and stress test the Group's balance sheet
and contingent hiabilities  Limit setting and transfer pricing are tools that are designed to control the level of liquidity nsk taken and drive the
appropriate mix of funds, which together reduce the likelihood that 2 liquidity stress event could lead to an inability to meet the Group’s cbligations
as they fall due The stress tests assess potential contractual and contingent stress outflows under a range of scenarios, which are then used to
determine the size of the liquidity buffer that 1s immediately available to meet anticipated outflows if a stress occurred

in addition the Group maintains a Contingency Funding Plan which details how liquidity stress events of varying severity would be managed Since
the precise nature of any stress event cannot be known in advance, the plans are designed to be flexible to the nature and severity of the stress
event and provide a menu of options that could be used as appropriate at the time  Barclays also maintains Recovery Plans which consider actions
to generate additional liquidity in order to facilitate recovery in a severe stress and 1s developing documentation to meet Resolution Planming in line
with regulatory requirements The overall framework therefore provides the necessary tools to manage the continuum of liquidity risk, as
summarised below

Severe stress

QOnguoing business

Early signs/Mild stress

Recovery

management

- Liquidity Lirits — Monitoring and review - Activate Contingency - Asset and Liability actions to
- Pricing and incentives - Low cost actions and Funding Plan generate additonai liquidity
balance sheet optimisation - Balance sheet reductions
Early Warning Indicators and business limitations
— Risk Appetite and Planning

Ongoing business management

Liquidity Limits

Barclays manages to limits on a vanety of on and off-balance sheet exposures a samnple of which are shown in the table below These limits serve
to control the overall extent and composition of liquidity risk taken by managing exposure to particular sources of liabilities, asset hiability
mismatches and counterparty concentrations Barclays also limits activities permitted ata country level Businesses are only allowed to have
funding exposure to wholesale markets where they can demonstrate that their market is sufficiently deep and liquid and then only refative to the

size and comnplexity of thelr business

Liquidity Limits

Unsecured Limits

Secured Limits

Internal Pricing and Incentives

—By aurrency
— By maturity
=By habidtty type

— By currency

— By matunty

- By collateral type
- By counterparty

FX Limits

Counterparty
Concentration Limits

Conduit Facilities Limits

Off-Balance Sheet

Commitment Limits

Barclays actively manages the composition of the balance sheet and contingent liabilites through the appropriate transfer pricing of lquidity costs
and induce the correct behaviour and decision making These take the form of funds transfer pricing and economic funds allocation of
behaviouralised assets and liabilities and contingent hquidity risk charging to the businesses These transfer pnang mechanisms are designed to
ensure that iquidity nisk is reflected 1n product pricing and performance measurernent, thereby ensuring that the Liquidity Framework is integrated
into business leve! decision making to drive the appropriate rix of sources and uses of funds
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Early warning indicators

Barclays monitors a range of market indicators for early signs of liquidity risk either in the market or specific to Barclays, a sample of which are
shown in the table below Additionally country and business level Asset and Liability Committees moritor earty warning indicators appropriate to
thesr businesses. These are designed to immaediately identify the emergence of increased liguidity nsk to maxumise the time available to execute
appropriate mitigating actions A deterloration in Early Warning Indicators can lead to invocation of the Group’s Contingency Funding Plan, which
pravides a framewaork for how the liquidity stress would be managed

Early Warning indicators

Change in composition of eposits Level of febt huybacks Ricipq furdrgrosts

Widening LDS spreacds Change in matunity profile Repo harrcut widenin
) 9 P P 9

Liguichty Risk Appetite

Regulatory requirements are complied with at the Group and entity level, with the Liquidity Risk Appetite (LRA) prowiding a consistent Group wide
perspective that supplements these requirements Under the Liquidity Framework, the Group has established the LRA, which is the level of hquidity
risk the Group chooses to take In pursuit of its business objectives and in meeting its requlatory obligations It 1s measured with reference to the
{iquidity pool as a percentage of anticipated stressed net contractual and contingent outflows for each of three stress scenarios

The stress outflows are used to determine the size of the Group Liquidity Pool, which represents those resources immediatety available to meet
outflows in a stress In addition to the Liquidity Pool, the Liquidity Framework provides for cther management actions, inctuding generating
Iiquidity from other iquid assets on the Group’s balance sheet in order to meet additional stress outflows, or to preserve or restore the Liquidity
Pool In the event of a liquidity stress

Liquidity Pocl (audited}

The Group liquidity pool is held unencumbered against contractual and contingent stress outflows In the LRA stress tests  The liquidity pool 1s not
used to support payment or clearing requirements As of 31 December the Group hquidity pool was £152bn (2010 £154bn) and moved within a
month-end range of £140bn to £167bn during the year

Barclays does notinclude any own-name securities In its liquidity pool

Barclays manages the liquidity pool on a centralised basis As at 31 December 2011, 94% of the liquidity pool was located in Barclays Bank PLC
The residual liquidity pool is held predominantly within Barclays Capital Inc (BCI) against contractual and contingent stress outflows in the LRA
stress test at the lega! entity level The Group does not rely on any excess of liquid assets over outflows in BCI

Additionally the Absa Group holds a hiquidity pool of £2bn, which 1s managed independently due to local currency and funding requirements

Cash and Other

deposits with  Government available
Composition of The Group liquidity pool central banks* bonds® liquidity Total*
The Group {audited) £bn £bn £bn £bn
As at 31 December 2011 105 36 1 152
As at 31 December 2010 96 40 18 154

Liquidity nsk stress testing

Under the Liquidity Framework, the Group runs three iquidity stress scenarios, aligned to the FSA's prescnibed stresses a market-wide stress event,
a Barclays specific stress event and a combination of the two  Under normal market conditions, the iquidity pool must be in excess of 100% of
three months’ anticipated outflows for a market-wide stress and one month's anticipated outflows for each of the Barclays specific and combined
stresses

Barclays 1s primanly focused upon the Barclays specific stress scenano, which also results in the greatest net outflows of each of the hquidity stress
tests

Notes

a Of which over 95% Is placed with the Bank of England, US Federal Reserve, Eurcpean Central Bank, Bank of fapan and Swiss National Bank.
b Of which over 80% are comprised of UK US, Japanese French, Cerrnan and Dutch securities

¢ £140bn of which Is FSA efigible
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Key Liquidity Risk Appaetite assumptions include

Liquidity Risk Driver Barclays Specific Stress

Net wholesale funding outflow T Outflows at contractual matunty of wholesale funding and conduit commercial paper, with no rollover /
new issuance

- Prime Brokerage 100% loss of excess client dervative margin and 100% loss of excess client cash

Loss of secured financing & - Loss of repo capacity at contractual maturity date and incremental haircut widening, depending upon
increased haircuts collateral type

Retail & commercial bank deposit _ Substantial outflows as Barclays is seen as greater credit nisk than competitors

outflows

Intra-day risk _Liquid collateral held against intra-day requirement at cleaning and payment systems s regarded as

encumbered with no hquidity value assumed

- Liquid collateral is held against withdrawal of unsecured intra-day lines provided by third parties

Intra-group risk ~Risk of cash within subsidiaries becoming unavailable to the wider Group
Funding Concentration risk ~ Additional outflows recogmsed against concentration of providers of wholesale secured financing
Off-balance sheet fnisk " Collateral outflows due to market mavements, taking account of disputes and mismatches between

collateralised and uncollateralised OTC and exchange-traded positions
. Cutflow of all collateral owed by Barclays to counterparties but not yet called
- Anticipated increase in firm’s denvative initial margun requirement in a stressed environment
- Collateral outflows contingent upon a multi-notch credit rating downgrade of Barclays Bank PLC

- Sigreficant drawdown on committed facilities provided to corporates, based on counterparty type,
creditworthiness and facility type

- Drawdown on retaill commitments

Franchise Viability ~Barclays hquidity stress testing recogmises that it will be necessary to hold additional lquidity in order to
meet outflows that are non-contractual in nature, but are necessary in order to support the ongoing
franchise {for example, market-rmaking activities)

Mitigating actions T Unencumbered marketable assets that are held outside of the iquidity pool, and that are of known
liquidity value to the firm, are assumed to be monetised (subject to haircut / valuation adjustment)

The market-wide stress scenaric allows for a partial roll-over of wholesale funds, maintains repo market capacity {albeit at wider haircuts
depending upon collateral type) and includes lower cutflows on retall and commercial bank deposits given that Barclays would not be seen as a
greater credit nisk relative to competitors

The combined scenario 1s a combination of the market wide and Barclays specific stress assumptions

As at 31 December 2011, the Liquidity Pool exceeded net stress outflows under all three stress scenarios The results of the stress scenarios
expressed as the liquidity pool as a percentage of net anticipated stress outflows was

Barclays-
The Group Market wide specific Combined
3 month 1 month 1 month
Liquidity pool as a percentage of anticipated net outflows 127% 107% 118%

Barclays monitors the money markets closely, in particular for early indications of the tighterung of available funding In these conditions, the
nature and seventy of the stress scenanos are reassessed and appropnate action taken with respect to the iquidity pool This may include further
increasing the size of pool or using the pool to meet stress outflows

Contingency Funding Plan and Recovery and Resolution Plan

Barclays maintains a Contingency Funding Plan (CFP), which is designed to provide a framework under which a iquidity stress could be effectively
managed The CFP s proportionate to the nature, scale and complexity of the business and 1s tested to ensure that it 1s operationally rabust The
CFP details the circumstances 1n which the plan could be invoked, including, as a result of adverse movernents in Early Warning Indicators  As part
of the plan the Barclays Treasurer has astablished a Liquidity Management Commuttee (LMC ) On invocation of the CFP, the LMC would meet to
identify the hikely impact of the event on the Group and determine the response, which would be proportionate to the nature and severity of the
stress

Barclays also maintains Recovery Plans which consider actions to generate additional liqudity in order to facilitate recovery in a stress
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Liquidity requlation
Since June 2010, the Group has reported its hquidity position against backstop Individual Liquidity Guidance (ILG) provided by the FSA. The FSA
defines both eligible hquidity poo! assets and stress outflows against reported balances

Barclays also monitors compliance with BCBS LCR and NSFR As at 31 December 2011, the Group met 8§2% of the LCR (2010- 80%) and 97% of the
NSFR {2010 94%) requirements and is on track to meet the 100% compliance under Basel 3 required by 2015 and 2018 respectively

The LRA stress scenarios, the FSA ILG and BCBS LCR are all broadly comparable short-term stress scenarios in which the adequacy of defined
hquidity resources 15 assessed against contractual and contingent stress outflows The ILG and LCR stress tests provide an independent
assassment of the Group’s liqu/dity risk profile The BCBS NSFR 1s a longer-term metric designed to establish a minimum acceptable amount of
stable funding based en lquidity charactenstics of an Instution’s assets and activities over a one year time honzon

Stress Test Barclays Liquidity Risk FSA Indlvidual Liquidity Basel3 Liquidity Coverage Basel3 Net Stable Funding

Appetite (LRA) Guidance (ILG) Ratio (LCR) Ratlo (NSFR)

Time Horizen 1 -3 months 3 months 30 days 1 year

Calculation Liquid assets to nat cash Liquid assets to net cash Liquid assets to net cash Stable funding resources te
outflows outflows outflows stable funding requirements

Funding Structure
The basis for sound hgquidity nsk managements 2 solid funding structure that reduces the prebability of a liquidity stress leading to an inability to
meet funding obligations as they fall due

- The Group’s overall funding strategy is to develop a diversified funding base (both geographically and by depositor type) and maintain access
to a vartety of alternative funding sources, to minimise the cost of funding while providing protection agalnst unexpected fluctuations

- Within this, the Group aims to align the sources and uses of funding As such, retail and commercial customer loans and advances are largely
funded by customer deposits Other assets tagether with other loans and advances and unencumbered assets, are funded by long term
wholeszle debt and equity

- Trading portfolio assets and reverse repurchase agreements are largely funded in the wholesale markets by repurchase agreements and trading
portfollo liabilities, whilst derivative assets are largely matched by derivatives liabilities

- The iquidity pool 1s predominantly funded through wholesale markets
-~ These funding relationships are summansed below as of 31 December 2011

Assets Liabilities

Customer Loans and Advances® £379n Customer Deposits* £329bn

<1 year wholesale funding £130bn

£152b
Group Uiquidity Pool o >] year wholesale funding £135bn
Other Assets® £1655n | [TEquity and Other Liabilities” £1170n
Repo financing and matched assets and liabilities< £328bn Repo financing and matched assets and liabdibes* £328bn
Derivatives £536bn Derivatives £525bn
Note

a Excluding cash collateral and settlernent balances

b Absa Group balances other than custorer loans and advances of £38 Obn and customer deposits of £33 0bn are included in ather assets and other liabilities

¢ Comprised of reverse repos that provide financing to custarmers collateralised by highly liquid securities on a short term basis or are used to settle short Inventory positions, repo
financing of trading portfolio assets and matched cash collateral and settiement balances
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Deposit funding (audited)

Loans and Loan to
Advances to Customer Deposit
Composition of Loan to Deposit Ratios by Business® {audited) Customers Deposits Ratio
The Group
As at 31 December 2011 £bn £bn %
RBB 2316 1587 146
Barclays Corporate® 646 777 83
Barclays Wealth 188 465 40
Total funding excluding secured 3150 2829 1
Secured funding - 287 -
Sub-total including secured funding 3150 3116 101
RBB, Corporate and Wealth 3150 2829 m
Barclays Capital 634 460 138
Group Centre 09 - -
Trading settiement balances and cash collateral 526 371 142
Total 4319 3660 118

The Group loan to deposit ratio as at 31 Decernber 2011 was 118% (2010 124%) and the loan to deposit and long-term funding ratio was 75%
{2010 77%)

RBB, Barclays Corporate and Barclays Wealth activities are largely funded with customer deposits As at 31 December 2011, the loan to deposit
ratio for these businesses was 111% (2010 114%) and the loan to deposit and secured funding ratio was 101% (2010 105%) The funding gap
for these businesses Is met using asset backed secunities and covered bonds secured primardy over customer loans and advances such as
residential mortgages and credit card recevables

The excess of Barclays Capital loans and advances over customer deposits Is funded with long-term debt and equity

Included within RBB and Barclays Capital are Absa Group related balances totalling £38 0bn of loans and advances to customers funded by

£33 Obn of customer deposits and the gap of £5 0bn 1s funded with wholesale borrowings This i1s managed separately by the Absa Group due to
lecal currency and funding requirements During 2011, the Absa Group has issued additional senior unsecured debt to further extend its funding
term and diversify its funding base, reducing its reliance on wholesale money market funding

Although, contractually, current accounts are repayable on demand and savings accounts at short notice, the Group's broad base of customers —
numencally and by depositor type — helps protect against unexpected fluctuations in balances  Such accounts form a stable funding base for the
Croup's operations and liquidity needs Barclays models the behaviour of both assets and labiliies on a net cash flow basts using our experience of
customer behaviour to assess balance sheet behaviouralised funding gaps under business as usual conditions These behavioural maturities are
used to determine funds transfer pricing interest rates at which businesses are rewarded and charged for sources and uses of funds

Note
a in addition Barclays Corporate holds £17 2bn (2010 £14 4bn} loans and advances as financial assets held at far value
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Behavioural Maturity
Profile Cash Inflow
Behavioural Maturity Profile (Outflow)
Customer
Loans and Funding |

Advances to Customer Surplus/ Less than Greater than .
The Group Customers Deposits (Deficit) One Year One Year
As at 31 December 2011 £bn £bn £bn £bn £bn
RBB 2316 1587 {729) 138 591
Barclays Corporate 646 777 131 {11) (120)
Barclays Wealth 188 465 177 (40) (237)
Total funding excluding secured 3150 2829 (32 1) a7 234
Secured funding - 287 287 (10 1) (18 6)
Total RBB, Corporate and Wealth funding 3150 316 (34) (14) 48

The relatively low cash outflow within one year demonstrates that customer funding remains breadly matched from a behavioural perspective
Wholesale funding

Funding of Other Assets® as at 31 December 2011

Assets £bn Liabilities f£bn
Trading portfolio assets 104 Repurchase agreements 207
Reverse repurchase agreements 103

Reverse repurchase agreements 45 Trading portfolio liabilities 45
Denvative financial instrurnents 536 Dervative financial instruments 525
Liguidity pool 152 Less than 1 year wholesale debt 130
Other unencurmbered assets® 175 Greater than 1 year wholesale debt and equity 196

Trading portfollo assets are largely funded by repurchase agreements The majonty of reverse repurchase agreements (1 e secured lending) are
matched by repurchase agreements The remainder of reverse repurchase agreements are used to settle trading portfolio habilities

Dervative assets and lTabilities are largely matched A substantial proportion of balance sheet denivative positions qualify for counterparty netting
and the remaining portions are largely offset once netted against cash collateral received and paid

The liquidity pool 1s largely funded by wholesale debt maturing in less than one year, with a significant portion maturing in more than one year

Cther unencumbered assets {(mainly being available for sale mvestrents, trading portfolio assets and loans and advances to banks) are largety
matched by wholesale debt maturing over an average of 5 years and equity

Repurchase agreements and other securad funding are largely collateralised by government 1ssued bonds and other highly iquid securities The |
percentage of secured funding using each asset class as collateral 1s set out below I

Secured Funding by Asset Class Govt Agency MBS ABS  Corporate Equity Other
The Group % % % % % % %
As at 31 December 2071 66 6 9 3 7 7 2
As at 31 December 2010 64 7 9 3 7 7 3
Notes

a Excludes balances relating to the Absa Group, which are managed separately due to local currency and funding requirements.
b Predominantly unencumbered available for sale investments, trading portfolio assets, financial assets designated at fair value and loans and advances to banks funded by greater
than one year wholesale debt and equity
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Due to the high quality of collateral provided against secured sources of funds, the liquidity nsk associated with these liabilities is significantly lower
than unsecured wholesale funds Nonetheless, Barclays manages a range of secured mismatch limits to hmit refinancing nisk under a severe stress
scenario and a portion of the Group's iquidity pool 1s held against stress outflows on these positions

Composition of Wholesale Funding® (audited)

The Group maintains access to a variety of sources of wholesale funds in US$, EUR and GDP, including those avallable from money markets, repo
markets and from term investors, across a variety of distribution channels and geographies Barclays are an active participant in money markets,
have direct access to US, European and Asian capital markets through our global investrment banking operations and long-term investors through

our global client base As a result, wholesale funding is well diversified by product, matunty, geography and major currency

Over three Over six
months but months but Over one

Not more not more not more Sub-total year but not
Matunty of Wholesale Funding than three than six than one lessthanone morethan  Overthree
The Group {audited) months maonths year year three years years Total
As at 31 December 2011 £bn £bn £bn £bn £bn £bn £bn
Deposits from Banks 341 09 09 359 03 17 379
CDs and CP 350 75 40 465 19 10 49 4
ABCP 89 02 91 - - 91
Seror unsecured MTNs (Public benchmark) 47 01 25 73 mni 146 330
Senior unsecured MTNs (Privately placed) 31 16 34 81 65 17 263
Senior unsecured structured notes 32 21 39 92 124 230 496
Covered bonds/ABS 03 25 08 36 63 142 241
Subordinated habilities - - - - [£3:] 230 238
Other® 77 15 14 106 14 - 120
Total 970 164 169 1303 407 942 2652
of which secured 109 39 21 169 69 149 387
of which unsecured 861 125 1438 1134 338 793 226 5

The rmaturity of wholesale funding table includes £27bn of term financing maturning in 2012¢

The liquidity nisk is carefully managed primarily through the LRA stress tests, against which the hquidity poolis held Although not a requirement,
as at 31 December 2011, the iquidity pool was equivalent to more than one year of wholesale debt matunties

Excluding whalesale funding of the liguidity peol, the average maturity of wholesale funding was at least 58 months

Term financing (audited)

As outlined above, The Group has £27bn of term debt maturing tn 2012 and a further £16bn matunng in 2013

The Group continues to attract depesits in unsecured money markets and to raise addrtional secured and unsecured term funding in a vanety of
markets During 2011, The Group 1ssued approximately £30bn of term funding, compnising

—  £3 8bn equivalent of public benchmark semor unsecured medium term notes,

—  £50bn equivalent of privately placed semor unsecured medium term notes,

- £10 1bn equivalent of senior unsecured structured notes,

—  £10 3bn equivalent of public covered bonds/ABS, and
- £10bn equivalent of public subordinated debt

This term funding raised during 2611 re-financed all wholesale term debt matuning in 2011, funded strategic balance sheet growth and further
strengthened The Group’s term liquidity position In January 2012 £5bn of funding was raised

Notes

a The composition of wholesale funds 1s reconciled to the balance sheet reported Deposits from Banks {excluding cash collateral and settlement balances), Financial labilities at Fair
Value and Debt Secunties m Issue split by product and Subordinated Liabilties in all cases excluding Absa Group balances
b Pnimanly cormprised of Falr Value Deposits and secured financing of physical gold
¢ Term funding maturites are maturities of senior unsecured MTNs structured notes covered bonds/ABS ard subordinated debt where the original maturity of the Instrument was
more than 1 year In addition, as at 31 December 2011 £1 2bn of these instruments were not term financing as they had an original matunity of less than 1 year
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Currency composition of wholesale debt.

The Group uss EUR GBp Other
As at 31 December 2011 % % % %
Deposits from Banks 36 7 27 10
CDs and CP 59 15 15 1
ABCP 85 ] 7 -
Senior unsecured MTNs 26 40 13 21
Structured Notes 35 2 22 22
Covered bonds/ABS N 29 39 1
Subordinated Debt 16 52 32 -
Wholesale debt 37 30 22 1
Currency composition of Liquidity Pool 27 42 17 14

To manage cross-currency refinancing sk Barclays manages to FX cash-flow limits, which limit sk at specific maturities The Group's liquidity
pool is also well dwersified by major currency and the Group monitors the three LRA stress scenarios for major currencies

Secured funding against Customer Loans and advances
Barclays 1ssues asset backed securities {ABS) and covered bonds that are secured primanly over custorner loans and advances As of 31 December
2011 10% of customer foans and advances were used to secure external sources cf funds This was comprised of external 1ssuances of ABS and

covered bonds and repo financing

The Group currently manages three pnmary on balance sheet asset backed funding programmes to obtain term financing The UK regulated
covered bond and the residential mortgage master trust secunitisation programmes both utllise assets oniginated by the Group's UK residential
mortgage business The third programme is a credit card master trust secunitisation and uses receivables from the Group’s UK credit card business
The programmes utilise true sale mechanics to transfer the title of the mortgage loan assets or, as apphicable, current and future credit card
recesvables from Barclays Bank {BEBPLC) to insolvency remote special purpose vehicles

All programmes imitially transfer the respective assets by way of a beneficlal transfer of the assets However, should there be a ‘perfection’ event
(including, amongst other things, the insclvency of BBPLC or BBPLC not maintaining the appropriate credit rating required by the relevant rating
agency), then legal transfer of the assets would occur

External Funding Secured against Customer Loans and Advances

The Group

As at 31 December 2011 £bn
Externally issued ABS 17,090
Externally issued covered bonds 13,791

Repo financing 12,563
Total 43,444
Balance sheet loans and advances to customers 431,934
Group loans and advances used to secure external funding 10%

As at 31 December 2011, Barclays has an additional £16bn loans and advances within its asset funding programmes vehicles that can readily be
used to raise additional secured funding and available to support future issuance
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Credit Ratngs

In addition to monttering and managing key metrics related to the financial strength of Barclays, we also subscribe to independent credit rating
agency reviews by Standard & Poor’s, Moody's and Fitch These ratings assess the credit worthiness of Barclays and are based on reviews ofa
broad range of business and financial attributes including risk management processes and procedures, capital strength, earnings, funding, hiquidity,
accounting and governance

A credit rating downgrade could result in contractual outflows to meet collateral requirements on existng contracts Outflows related to a
multiple-notch credit rating downgrade are included in the LRA stress scenarios and a poruon of the Liquidity Pool 15 held against this nsk. Credit
ratings downgrades could also result in increased costs or reduced capacity te raise funding

Credit Ratings Standard & Pcor's Moody's Fitch
Barclays PLC

Long Term A(Stable) Al A{Stable)
Short Term A-1 P-1 F1
Bank Financial N/A N/A N/A

Strength Rating
Barclays Bank PLC

Long Term A+(Stable) Aa3 A(Stable)
Short Term A-1 P-1 F1
Bank Financaal N/A C(Stable) ‘N/A

Strength Rating

Contractual matunty of financial assets and habilities (audited)

Details of contractual maturities for assets and liabities form an important source of information for the management of iquidity nsk. Such
infarmation 1s used (amongst other things) as the basis for modelling a behavioural balance sheet, for input inte the liquidity framework, as
discussed above

The table below provides detail on the contractual maturity of all financial instruments and other assets and habilities Dervatives (other than those
designated in a hedging relationship) and trading portfolio assets and habilities are included i the on demand column at thewr fair value Liquidity
risk on these items 1s not managed on the basis of contractual maturity since they are not held for settlement according to such matunty and will
frequently be settled before contractual matunity at farr value Derivatives designated in z hedging relationship are included according to their
cantractual maturity

Financial assets designated at fair value n respect of linked habilities to customers under investment contracts have been included in other assets
and other liabilities as the Group is not exposed to liquidity nisk ansing from them, any request for funds from creditors would be met by
simultaneously iquidating or transferring the related investment
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Contractual matunity of financial assets and liabilities (audited)

Over three Oversix Overone
months months year Overthree Qver five
but but but not years but years but
Notmore notmore notmore morethan notmore not more
On thanthree thansix thanone three than flve thanten Overten
As at 31 December 2011 demand months months year years years years years Total
The Group £m £m £m £m £m £m £Em £m £m
Assets
Cash and balances at central
banks 58317 48,577 - - - - - - 106,894
Itemns in the course of collection
from other banks 1,188 624 - - - - - - 1,812
Trading portfolio assets 152,183 - - - - - - - 152,183
Financial assets designated at
fair value 802 4,257 1,046 1,725 4,252 1,915 2,532 19,118 35,647
Dernvative financal
instruments 535,306 122 109 188 417 1,036 904 882 538,964
Loans and advances to banks 6,048 35,238 2,022 817 1,559 373 3212 413 46,792
Loans and advances to
customers 37,747 79,949 8,107 16,561 52,827 52,414 61,754 122,575 431,934
Reverse repurchase agreements
and other similar secured
lending 24 141,751 7.674 3,423 401 101 133 158 153,665
Available for sale financial
Investments 363 10,504 4,833 4,079 14,516 10,212 12,489 12,027 69,023
Other financral assets - 1,978 - - 640 - - - 2,618
Total financial assets 791,978 323,000 23,791 26,793 74,612 66,051 78,134 155,173 1,539,532
Other assets 23,870
Total assets 1,563,402
Liabilities
Deposits from banks 7,866 79,507 880 896 416 1,218 333 - 91,116
Items in the course of collection
due to other banks 965 4 - - - - - - 969
Customner accounts 213,935 119,016 8,838 11,568 7.343 1,839 2,206 1,300 366,045
Repurchase agreements and
other similar secured
borrowing 23 196,066 9,356 1,554 125 130 36 2 207,292
Trading portfolio liabilities 45,387 - - - - - - - 45,887
Financial habilities designated at
fair value 1,525 11,743 4,033 11,077 19,826 16,283 11,51t 10,318 86,316
Derivative financial
Instruments 524,439 345 146 44 577 564 592 1,091 527,798
Debt secunties in issue 75 52,189 13,084 7,803 22,442 15,133 13,235 5,775 129,736
Subordinated habilities - 78 - 115 1,231 365 13,403 9,678 24 870
Cther financial lizbilities - 3,641 - - 1,594 - - - 5,235
Total financial labilities 794,715 462,589 36,337 33,057 53,554 35,532 41,316 28,164 1,485,264
QOther liabilities 12,968
Total liabilities 1,498,232
Cumulative liquidity gap (2,737) (142,326) (154,872) (161,136) (140,078} {109,559} (72,741} 54,268 65,170




Barclays Bank PLC Annual Report 2011

www barclays com/annualreport 89

Contractual maturity of financial assets and liabilties (audited)

Over three Over six  Over one Over three Over five
months months  yearbut yearsbut yearsbut
Not more but not butnot notmore notmore notmore
On thanthree morethan morethan thanthree thanfive thanten Overten
At 31 December 2011 demand months six months  one year years years years years Total
The Bank £m £m £m £Em £m £m £m £m £m
Assets
Cash and balances at central
banks 54,551 48,536 - - - - - - 103,087
Iterns in the course of collection
from other banks 1,184 450 - - - - - - 1,634
Trading portfolio assets 85,048 - - - - - - - 85,048
Financial assets designated at fair
value 105 5,288 2,517 3,001 7,202 5211 2,724 18,504 44,552
Denvative financial instruments 543,570 67 23 23 417 1,036 904 881 546,921
Loans and advances to banks 5,223 28,347 2,675 5,262 4,213 3,847 2,033 687 52,287
{ oans and advances to custorners 43,576 221,733 6,120 16,001 43,281 43,463 48,191 95,415 517,780
Reverse repurchase agreements
and other similar secured lending 277 150,572 6,479 3,315 401 101 133 158 161,436
Avallable for sale financial
investments 1 23N 2,443 2,957 10,890 8,826 11,273 9,218 47,979
Other financial assets - 1,020 - - 150 - - - 1,170
Total financial assets 733,535 458,384 20,257 30,559 66,554 62,484 65,258 124,863 1,561,894
Other assets 40,709
Total assets 1,602,603
Liabilities
Deposits from banks 27,316 76,243 1,153 1,351 1,232 1,015 493 13 108,816
Itemns in the course of collection
due to other banks 962 4 - - - - - - 966
Customer accounts 194,869 211,769 6,537 15,259 13,020 5,537 3,871 3,660 454,522
Repurchase agreements and other
similar secured borrowing 3 186,395 5210 1,554 125 130 36 - 193,453
Trading portfolio liabilities 28,632 - - - - - - - 28,632
Financial habihties designated at
fair value 1,104 12,782 5,848 12,902 25,808 19,711 12,581 10,333 101,069
Derwvative financial snstruments 532,648 334 38 44 559 549 570 1,095 535,837
Debt securities in issue 18 32,157 8,590 3,671 14,362 10,847 11,691 2,603 83,939
Subordinated habilities - - - - 764 166 13,386 12,448 26,764
Other financial habilities - 12,973 - - 232 - - - 13,205
Total financial liabilities 785,552 532,657 27,376 34,781 56,102 37,955 42,628 30,152 1,547,203
Other liabilities 4,641
Total liabilities 1,551,844
Cumulative liquidity gap (52,017) (126,290) (133,408) (137,631} {127.179) (102,650) {80,020) 14,69 50,759




a0 [ Barclays Bank PLC Annual Report 2011

www barclays com/annualreport

Risk management

Funding risk - Liquidity

All disclasures in this section are unaudited unless otherwise stated

Contractual maturity of financial assets and liabilities {audited)

Over three Oversix  Qvercne Overthree  OQver five
months months  yearbut yearsbut yearsbut
Not more but not butnot notmore notmore notmore
On thanthree morethan morethan thanthree thanfive thanten Overten
As at 31 December 2010 demand months sxmonths  oneyear years years years years Total
The Group £m £m £m £m Em £m fm £m fm
Assets
Cash and balances at central
banks 96,842 788 - - - - - - 97,630
Iterns in the course of collection
from other banks 1,168 216 - - - - - - 1,384
Trading portfolio assets 168,930 - - - - - - - 168,930
Financial assets designated at fair
value 789 5,678 1,110 2,773 7411 3,745 2,461 16,089 40,056
Derwative financial instruments 418,587 114 20 96 488 444 396 174 420,319
Loans and advances to banks 5,698 26,462 1,858 945 2,260 5 i 459 37,799
Loans and advances to customers 48,222 60,908 9,553 16,079 53,374 44,324 65,809 129,673 427,942
Reverse repurchase agreements
and other similar secured lending 14 192,423 7,366 5,089 390 124 238 28 205,772
Available for sale financial
investments 297 7,589 2,979 5,851 15,053 10,007 12,127 11,537 65,440
Other financial assets - 2,040 - - 784 - - - 2,824
Total financial assets 740,647 296,218 22,886 30,834 79,760 58,649 81,142 157,960 1,468,096
Other assets 21,942
Total assets 1,490,038
Liabilities
Deposits from banks 5,754 65,755 2,161 2,247 739 790 249 280 77,975
Itemns In the course of collection
due to other banks 1,312 9 - - - - - - 1,321
Customer accounts 230,895 77,607 13,958 11,423 5211 3,539 2,263 906 345,802
Repurchase agreements and other
sirmilar secured borrowing 907 216,454 4,358 2,755 739 256 59 6 225,524
Trading portfolio abilities 72,693 - - - - - - - 72,693
Financial habifities designated at
fair value 1,237 17,866 6,191 6,963 21,453 18,446 13,553 10,073 95,782
Denvative financial iInstruments 403,163 303 72 101 350 927 286 274 405,516
Debt securities in 1ssue 17 50,735 17,982 33,172 23,130 13,032 12,028 6,527 156,623
Subordinated habilities - 835 - 218 2,094 475 9,499 15,378 28,499
Other financial habilities - 4,295 - - 950 - - - 5,285
Total financial liabilities 715978 433,859 44,722 56,879 54,746 37,465 37,937 33,444 1,415,030
Other liabilities 12,367
Total habilities 1,427,397
Cumulative liquidity gap 24,669 {112,972) {134,808) (160,853) (135,839} (114,655) (71,450) 53,066 62,641
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Contractual maturity of financial assets and liabilities {(audited)
Over three Oversix Overone Overthree  Over five
months months  yearbut yearsbut years but
Not more butnot butnot notmore notmore not more
On thanthree morethan morethan thanthree thanfive thanten Overten
As at 31 December 2010 demand months six months  one year years years years yaars Total
The Bank £m £fm £m £fm £m fm £m £m £m
Assets
Cash and balances at central
banks 92,041 645 - - - - - - 92,686
Iterns 1n the course of collection
from other banks 1,165 103 - - - - - - 1,268
Trading portfolio assets 95,034 - - - - - - - 95,034
Financial assets designated at fair
value 77 3,496 346 1,824 4,202 1,991 2,295 14,950 29,181
Denwvative financial instruments 439,278 108 12 61 286 293 344 763 441145
Loans and advances to banks 5,303 20,529 1,900 3,978 5,274 134 1,933 939 40,390
Loans and advances to customers 51,708 230,225 5,774 12,711 39,694 35,288 53,752 93,784 522,936
Reverse repurchase agreements
and other similar secured lending 531 210,915 6,671 4,085 390 401 238 4,112 227,343
Available for sale financial
investments 7 3,750 1,289 2,003 10,338 7,616 12,141 8,077 45,221
Other financial assets - 1,263 - - 241 - - - 1,504
Total financial assets 685,144 471,434 15,992 24,662 60,425 45,723 70,703 122,625 1,496,708
Other assets 39,582
Total assets 1,536,290
Liabilities
Deposits from banks 23,008 67,112 231 2418 1,348 637 250 442 97,526
Itemns in the course of collection
due to other banks 1,261 9 - - - - - - 1,270
Customer accounts 182,057 223,697 19,040 8,741 9,374 5313 4346 1,258 453,826
Repurchase agreements and other
similar secured borrowing 884 205,814 5,326 1,123 739 256 59 6 214,207
Trading portfolio habilities 44,352 - - - - - - - 44,352
Financial labihties designated at
fair vatue 1,225 17,463 6,771 7.124 22,293 18,920 13,705 9,541 97,042
Denvative financial instruments 423,980 303 72 82 345 503 286 272 426,243
Debt securities inissue - 29,045 13,097 27,541 12,971 10,073 10,782 2,758 106,267
Subordinated liabilities - 833 - 218 760 155 9,499 15,529 26,994
Other financial habilities - 14,926 - - 291 - - - 15,217
Total financial liabilities 676,767 559,202 46,617 47,247 48,121 36,257 38,927 29,806 1,482,944
Other habilities 3,301
Totai labilities 1,486,245
Cumulative liquidity gap 8377 (79331} (110,016) (132,601) (120,297) {110831) (79,055) 13,764 50,045
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Expected maturity dates do not differ significantly from the contract dates, except for

~ Trading portfalio assets and habilities and derivative financial instruments, which may not be held to maturity as part of the Group's trading

strategies For these instruments, which are mostly held by Barclays Capital, hquidity and repncing nsk 1s managed through the Daily Value at
Risk {DVaR) methodology,

-~ Retall deposits, which are included within customer accounts, are repayable on demand or at short notice on a contractual basis In practice,

these instruments form a stable base for the Croup's operations and liquidity needs because of the broad base of customers — both numerically
and by depositor type, and

- Financial assets designated at fair value held in respect of linked liabilities, which are managed with the associated habilities
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Contractual matunty of financial liabilities on an undiscounted basis

The table below presents the cash flows payable by The Group under financial liabilities by remaining contractual maturities at the balance sheet
date The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows of all financial liabilies (i e nominal values), whereas The

Group manages the inherent liquidity risk based on discounted expected cash inflows

The balances in the above table do not agree directly to the balances in the consolidated balance sheet as the table incorporates all cash flows, on
an undiscounted bass, related to both principal as well as those associated with all future coupon payments

Derivative financial nstruments held for trading and trading portfoiio liabilities are included In the on demand column at their fair value

Financia! liabllities designated at fair value in respect of linked liabllities under investment contracts have been excluded from this analysis as The

Group 1s not exposed to hquidity nsk arising from them

Over one
year
but not more
Within one than five Over five
Contractual matunity of financial habuities - undiscounted {audited) Ondemand year years years Total
At 31 December 2011 £m £m £m £m £m
The Group
Deposits from banks 7.866 81,308 1,651 409 91,234
Iterns in the course of collection due to cther banks 965 4 - - 969
Customer accounts 213,935 139,620 9,417 5,659 368,631
Reverse repurchase agreements and other similar secured lending 23 207,000 257 L3 207,321
Trading portfolio habilities 45,887 - - - 45,887
Financral habilities designated at fair value 1,525 28,147 39,458 30,744 99,874
Derivative financial instruments 524,43% 828 1,512 2,333 529,112
Debt secuntles in issue 75 74,952 40,983 21,754 137.764
Subordinated habilities - 1,003 4,456 27,583 33,042
Other financial habilities - 3,641 1,594 - 5,235
Total financlal Habilities 794,715 536,503 99,328 88,523 1,519,069
Off-balance sheet items
Loan commutrnents 223,622 12,071 3,549 1,526 240,368
Other commitments 364 793 198 & 1,361
Total off-balance sheet items 223,986 12,864 3,747 1,132 241,729
Total financial liabilitles and off-balance sheet items 1,018,701 549,367 103,075 89,655 1,760,798
The Bank
Deposlts from banks 27316 78,727 2,269 583 108,945
Itemns tn the course of collection due to other banks 962 4 - - 966
Customer accounts 194,869 234,091 1931 8,479 456,750
Reverse repurchase agreements and other similar secured lending 3 193,182 257 33 193,480
Trading portfolio liabilities 28,632 - - - 28,632
Financlal labilites designated at fair value 1,104 32,849 49,182 32,453 115,588
Dervative financal instruments 532,648 705 1,462 2325 537,140
Debt securities in 1ssue 18 45,697 28,034 15,559 89,308
Subordinated liabilines - 875 4,163 29,464 34,502
Other financial lablities - 12,973 232 - 13,205
Total financial habilities 785,552 599,153 104,910 88,901 1,578,516
Off-balance sheet items
Loan commitments 179,028 10,955 2,867 388 193,238
Other cornrmitments 219 720 167 - 1,106
Total off-balance sheet items 179,247 11,675 3,034 388 194,344
Total financial liabilities and ofi-balance sheet items 964,799 610,828 107,944 89,289 1,771,860




94 | Barclays Bank PLC Annuaf Report 2011

www barclays com/annuatreport

Risk management
Funding risk - Liquidity

All disclosures in this section are unaudited unless otherwise stated

Contractual maturity of financial liabilities - undiscounted (audited)

Over one year

Within one  but not more

On demand year than five years Over five years Total
As at 31 December 2010 £m £m £m £m £m
The Group
Deposits from banks 5,754 70,197 1,636 613 78,200
Iterns in the course of collection due to other banks 1,312 9 - - 1,321
Customer accounts 230,895 103,119 9,169 3446 346,629
Repurchase agreements and other similar secured borrowing 907 223,589 1,099 71 225,666
Trading portfolio hiabilities 72,693 - - - 72,693
Financial labilities designated at fair value 1,237 32,408 45,573 34,745 113,963
Derwative financial instruments 403,163 509 1,478 1,131 406,281
Debt securities In issue 17 103,437 39519 26,304 169,277
Subordinated habilities - 1,934 5,645 26,785 34,364
Qther financial habilities - 4,295 390 - 5,285
Total financial liabilities 715,978 539,497 105,109 93,095 1,453,679
Off-balance sheet items
Loan commitments 188,958 17,755 5912 10.416 223,041
QOther commitments 227 806 183 - 1,216
Total off-balance sheet items 189,185 18,561 6,095 10,416 224,257
Total financial liablilities and off-balance sheet items 905,163 558,058 111,204 103,511 1,677,936
The Bank
Deposits from banks 23,008 71,893 2,114 766 97,781
Items in the course of collection due to other banks 1,261 9 - - 1,270
Customer accounts 182,057 251,514 15,060 6,064 454,695
Repurchase agreements and other similar secured borrowing 884 212,285 1,099 Fa 214,339
Trading portfolio habilities 44,352 - - - 44,352
Financial habilities designated at fair value 1,225 32,831 46,97 34,504 115,531
Denvative financial instruments 423,980 488 1,437 1,117 427,022
Debt securities in 1ssue - 71,119 26,429 19,364 116,912
Subordinated habilities - 1,932 4,008 26,918 32,858
Other financial habilities - 14,926 291 B 15,217
Total financlal liabilities 676,767 656,997 97,409 88,804 1,519,977
Off-balance sheet items
Loan commutments 160,266 11,650 2129 227 174,272
Other commitments 156 599 169 - 924
Total off-balance sheet items 160,422 12,249 2,298 227 175,196
Total financial liabilities and off-balance sheet items 837,189 669,246 99,707 89,031 1,695,173
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The Group's operations, including its overseas offices, subsidiaries and associates, are subject to a significant bedy of rules and regulations that are a
condition for authorisation to conduct banking and financial services business These apply to business operations and affect financial returns and
include reserve and reporting requirements and prudential and conduct of business regulations These requirements are set by the

relevant central banks and regulatory authorities that supervise the Group In the jurisdictions in which it operates The requirements reflect global
standards developed by, among others, the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision and the International Organisation of Securities Commissions
They also reflect reguirements derived frorm EU directives

In the UK, the Financial Services Authonty (FSA) remains, pending the reorganisation of the UK regulatory regime (see below}, the independent body
responsible for the regulation and superwvision of deposit taking, life insurance, home mortgages, general insurance and investment business Barclays
Bank PLC is authonised by the FSA under the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 to carry on a range of regulated activities within the UK and is
subject to consolidated supervision by the FSA In its role as supervisor, the FSA seeks to maintain the safety and soundness of financial institutions
with the aim of strengtherung, but not guaranteeing, the protection of custorners and the financial system The FSA’s continuing supervision of
finanaial institutions 1s conducted through a variety of regulatory tools, including the collection of information from statistical and prudential returns,
reports obtained from skilled persons, visits to firms and regular meetings with management to discuss 1ssues such as performance, nisk
management and strategy

The starting point for supervision of all finanwial institutions is a systematic analysis of the nsk profile of each authonsed firm The FSA has adopted a
homogeneoaus risk, processes and resourcing model in its approach te its supervisory responsibiliies (known as the ARROW rnodel} and the results
of the risk assessment are used by the FSA to develop a nsk mitigation programme for a firm This is supplemented with a rolling programme of
continuous intensive and intrusive engagement on prudential and conduct matters with high impact firms, such as Barclays The FSA also
promulgates requirements that banks and other financial institutions are required to meet on matters such as capital adequacy, mits on large
axposures to indmwdual entities and groups of closely connected entities, iquidity and rules of business conduct

The Banking Act 2009 {the Banking Act) provides a regime to allow the FSA, the UK Treasury and the Bank of England to resolve failling banks in the
UK Under the Banking Act, these authorities are given powers, including (a) the power to 1ssue share transfer orders pursuant to which all or some of
the securities 1ssued by a bank may be transferred to a commercial purchaser or Bank of England entity and (b) the power to transfer all or some of
the property, nights and habilities of the UK bank to a purchaser or Bank of England entity A share transfer order can extend to a wide range of
securities including shares and bonds issued by a UK bank (including Barclays Bank PLC) or its holding company (Barclays PLC) and warrants for
such shares and bonds The Banking Act powers apply regardless of any contractual restrictions and compensation may be payable in the context of
both share transfer orders and property appropriation

The Banking Act also gives the Bank of England the power to override, vary or impose contractual obligations between a UK bank or its holding
company and its former group undertakings for reasonable consideration, In order to enable any transferee or successor bank of the UK bank to
operate effectively There s also power for the Treasury to amend the law (excluding provisions made by or under the Banking Act) for the purpose
of enabling it to use the regime powers effectively, potentially with retrespective effect In addition, the Banking Act gives the Bank of England
statutory responsibility for financial stability in the UK and for the oversight of payment systems

The Financial Services Act 2010, among other things, requires the FSA to make rules about remuneration and to require regulated firms to have a
remuneration policy that is consistent with both effective isk management and the standards 1ssued by the Financial Stability Board The FSA s
mandated to make rules that require authonsed firms (or a subset of authorised firms) to draw up recovery and resolution plans and to consuft with
the Treasury and the Bank of England on the adequacy of firms’ plans This Act also allows the FSA to make rules requiring firms to operate a
collective consumer redrass scheme to deal with cases of widespread failure by regulated firms to meet regulatory requirements that may have
created consumer detriment

Banks, insurance companies and other financial institutions in the UK are subject to a single financial services compensation scheme (the Financial
Services Compensation Scheme — FSCS) which operates when an authonsed firm s unable or 15 ltkely to be unable to meet claims made agamst it
because of its financial circumstances Most deposits made with branches of Barclays Bank PLC within the European Economic Area (EEA)} which are
denominated in Sterling or other currencies are covered by the FSCS Most claims made in respect of investment business will also be protected
claims 1f the business was carned on frorn the UK or from a branch of the bank or investment firm in another EEA member state The FSCS s funded
by levies on authorised UK firms such as Barclays Bank PLC In the event that the FSCS raises those funds more frequently or significantly increases
the levies to be paid by firms, the associated costs to the Group may have a matenal rmpact on the Group's results Further details can be found in
Note 26 on page 162

Outside the UK, the Group has operations (and main regulators) located in continental Europe, in particular France, Gerrnany, Spain, Switzerland,
Portugal and [taly (local central banks and other regulatory authorites), Asia Pacific (various regulatory authenities including the Hong Kong Monetary
Authonty, the Financlal Services Agency of Japan, the Australian Secunties and Investments Commission, the Monetary Authority of Singapore, the
China Banking Regulatery Commission and the Reserve Bank of India), Africa and the Middle East {various regufatory authonties including the South
African Reserve Bank) and the United States of America (including the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System (FRB), the Office of the
Comptroller of the Currency (OCC), the Securities and Exchange Commussion (SEC)} and the Commodity Futures Trading Commussion (CFTC)

Regulation in the UK is considerably shaped and influenced by EU directives and regulations These provide the structure of the European Single
Market, an important feature of which is the framework for the regulation of authorised firms This framework is designed to enable a credit
institution or investment firm authonsed in one EU member state to conduct banking or nvestment business through the establishment of branches
or by the prowvision of services on a cross-border basis in other member states without the need for local authorisation Barclays operations m Europe
are autherised and regulated by a cornbination of both home (the FSA) and host regulators
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Barclays operations in South Africa, including Absa Group, are supervised and regulated by the South Afncan Reserve Bank {SARB} and the Financial
Services Board (F$B) SARB oversees the banking ndustry and follows a nsk-based approach to supervision whilst the FSB oversees the non-banking
financial services industry and focuses on enhancing consumer protection and regulating market conduct

In the United States, Barclays PLC, Barclays Bank PLC and Barclays US banking subsidiaries are subject to a comprehensive requlatory structure
involving numerous statutes, rules and regulations, including the international Banking Act of 1978, the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956, as
amended (BHC Act), the Foreign Bank Supervision Enhancement Act of 1991, the Financial Services Modernization Act of 1999, the USA PATRIOT
Act of 2001 and the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act of 2010 Such laws cover the activities of Barclays, including its US
banking subsidianies and the Bank’s US branches, as well as prudential restrictions, such as imits on extensions of credit by the Bank’s US branches
and the US banking subsidsaries to affilates The New York and Florida branches of Barclays Bank PLC are subject to extensive federal and state
supervision and regulation by the FRB and the New York and Florida banking supervisars Barclays Bank Delaware, a Delaware chartered commercial
bank, 1s subject to supervision and regulation by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation {(FDIC), the Delaware State Bank Commissioner and the
Bureau of Consumer Financial Protection Only the deposits of Barclays Bank Delaware are insured by the FDIC Barclays Wealth Trustees (US) NA 1s
an uninsured non-depository trust company chartered and supervised by the OCC

Barclays PLC and Barclays Bank PLC are bank holding companies registered with the FRB, which exercises umbrella authority over Barclays US
operations Barclays PLC and Barclays Bank PLC have each elected to be treated as a financial holding company under the BHC Act. Financial holding
corpanies may engage in a broader range of financial and related activities than are permitted to registered bank holding companies that do not
maintain financial holding company status, including underwriting and dealing in all types of secunties Financial holding companies such as Barclays
PLC and Barclays Bank PLC are required to meet or exceed certain capital ratios and be deemed to be ‘well managed,” and Barclays Bank Delaware
and Barclays Wealth Trustees (US) NA are each required to meet certain capital requirements, be deemed to be ‘well managed’ and must have at
least a ‘satisfactory’ rating under the Community Reinvestment Act of 1977 (CRA} Entities ceasing to meet any of these requirements, are allotted a
period of time in which to restore capital levels or the management or CRA rating If the capital level or rating 1s not restored, the Group may be
required by the FRB to cease certain activities in the United States

Barclays US secunties broker/dealer, investment advisory and Investment banking operations are subject to ongoing supervision and regulation by
the SEC, the Financlal Industry Regulatory Authority (FINRA), the CFTC and other government agencies and self-regulatory organisations (SROs) as
part of a comprehensive scheme of regulation of all aspects of the secunties and commeodities business under the US federal and state secunties
laws Simularly, Barclays US commodity futures and options-related operations are subject to ongoing supervision and regutation by the CTFC, the
National Futures Association and other SROs

The credit card-related activities of the Group in the US are subject to the Credit Card Accountability, Responsibihty and Disclosure Act of 2009
(Credit CARD Act) which was enacted by Congress in May 2009 to prohibit certain credit card pricing and marketing practices for consumer credit
card accounts Among the numerous provisions, which came into effect at various times through October 2011, are those that prohibit increasing
rates on existing balances and over lrnit fees in most instances, restrict increasing fees and rates prospectively, restrict what penalty fees can be
assessed, regulate how payments are to be allocated to different balances and how the billing process 1s to work, and revises all communications to
cardholders

Regulatory Developments

The financial crisis has generated regulatory change that, 1s having and will continue to have a substantial impact on all financial institutions,
including the Group While some of the bread lines of change and some of the impacts of these changes are becoming clearer, a significant armount
remains to be determined Regulatory change is being pursued at a number of levels, globally notably through the G20, Financial Stability Board (FSB)
and BCBS, regionally through the European Union and nationally, especially in the UK and US It is of importance to the Group and to the banking
industry generally that the varous bodies work harmomiously and that a globally consistent approach is taken to banking regulation Increased
prudential requirements and changes to what is defined to constitute capital may affect the Group’s planned activittes and could increase costs and
contribute to adverse impacts on the Croup’s earmings Strrifarly, increased requirements in relation to capital markets activities and to market
conduct requirements may affect the Croup's planned activities and could increase costs and thereby contribute to adverse impacts on the Group's
earnngs

Global
The programme of reform of the global regulatory framework that was agreed by G20 Heads of Government in Apnl 2009 has continued to advance
substantially during 2011

The FSB has been designated by the G20 as the body responsible for ca-ordinating the delivery of the global reform programme It has focused
particularly on the nsks posed by systemically important financial institutions {SIF1) At the Cannes summuit in Novemnber 2011, G20 Heads of
Government adopted FSB proposals for a programme to reform the regulation of globally systematically important financial institutions {G-SIFIs} A
key etement of this programme 1s that systemic institutions, including G-SIFIs should be capable of being resolved without recourse to taxpayer
support. Barclays has been designated a G-SIFI by the FSB C-SIFls will be subject to

- A new international standard for national resolution regimes Ameng cther things, this seeks to give resolution authornties powers to intervene
in and resolve a financial institution that is no longer viable, including through the transfers of business and creditor financed recapitalisation
{bail-in within resolution) that allocates losses to shareholders and unsecured and uninsured creditors tn their order of semonty, at a requlator-
determined point of non-viability that may precede insolvency,

- Requiremnents for resolvability assessments and for recovery and resolution planmng,
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- Requirements for banks determined to be globally systemically important to have additional loss absorption capacity above that required by
Basel 3 standards (see below) These surcharges have been tailored to the impact of the default of the G-SIFl using a methodology devetoped in
2011 by the BCBS The surcharges nse in increments from 1% to 2 5% of nsk-weighted assets (with an empty bucket of 3 5% to discourage
institutions from developing their business in a way that heightens their systemic nature) This additional buffer must be met with common
equity, and

- More intensive supervision, including through stronger supervisory mandates, resources and powers, and higher supervisory expectations for
nsk management functions, data aggregation capabilities, risk governance and internal controls

G-SIFIs will be subject to enhanced supervision and a comprehensive ¢nisis management framewark within supervisory colleges The concept of bail-
in may affect the rights of senior unsecured creditors subject to any bail-in in the event of a resolution of a faling bank.

G-SIFls will need to meet the resolution planning requirements by the end of 2012 The additional loss absorbency requirements will imtrally apply to
those banks identified in November 2014 as globally systermically important The loss absorbency requirements will be phased in starting in January
2016 with full implementation by January 2019 G-SIFls must also meet the higher supervisory expectations for data aggregation capabilities by
January 2016

The BCBS 1ssued the final guidelines on Basel 3 capital and liguidity standards in December 2010 It has continued to refine elements of this package,
notably in relation to counterparty credit risk where revisions were made i July and November 2011 The requirements of Basel 3 will be apphcable
from 1 January 2013 with a number of transitonal provisions that run to the end of 2018

The BCBS also maintains a number of active work streams that will affect the Group These include a fundamental review of the trading book whose
results are expected to be published in 2012 The BCBS 1s also understood to be examining a regime for large exposures These developments may
further increase the capital required by the Group to transact affected business and/or affect the ability of the Group to undertake certain
transactions

European Union

The EU has amended its regulatory structure as part of its response to the financial cnisis On 1 January 2011, a number of new bodies came into
being, including a European Systemic Risk Board ta monitor the financial system and advise on macro-prudential actions and a European Banking
Authority ¢charged with the development of a single rulebook for banks in the EU and with enhancing co-operation between national supervisory
authorities, especally in the context of the supervision of banks that operate across borders within the EU A European Securities Markets Authenty
has a simular role 1n relation to the capital markets and to banks and other firms doing investment and capital markets business The European
Banking Authonty and the European Securities Markets Authonty each have the power to mediate between and overnide national authorities under
certain circumstances National authornities, however, remain responsible for the day-to-day supervision of financial institutions

Basel 3 wall be implemented in the EU by amendment to the Capital Requirements Directive (CRD) Formal proposals to amend the CRD were adopted
by the European Commussion in july 2011 These take the form of a regulation and a directive which are currently going through the EU legislative
process Much of the detalled implementation 1s expected to be done through binding technical standards to be adopted by the European Banking
Authority, that are intended to ensure a harmonised application of rules through the EU but which have yet to be developed While there may be
some differences of detall between CRD 4 and Basel 3, the current expectation is that the overall impact will be similar

In addition, other amendments are being made to the EU framework of directives, including to the Directive on Deposit Guarantee Schemes This may
affect the amounts to which the Group may be lrable to fund the compensation of depositors of falled banks The proposal also envisages that
national schernes should be pre-funded, with a fund to be raised over a number of years This would be a significant change for UK banks where
levies are currently raised as needed after failure The proposals remain under debate and the financial impact on the Group is not yet clear

As anticipated, the European Commission has adopted proposals to amend the Markets in Financial Instruments Directive This will affect many of
the investment markets in which the Group operates and the instruments in which it trades, and how it transacts with market counterparties and
other customers These proposals are at a very early stage of their consideration by the EUinstitutions and the overall impact of them on the Group 15
not yet clear

Other EU developments of note include consideration of European arrangernents in respect of crisis management and the resolution of financial
institutions The European Commission issued a discussion paper in January 2011 and proposals for legislation which were expected in 2011 are now
expected later in 2012 These are likely to include provisions on bail-in within resolution and other matters that may have an impact on the rights of
shareholders and creditors of falling institutions The Commussion has also announced in Novemnber 2011 the creation of an expert group on the
structural aspects of the EU banking sector The group was due to start work in February 2012 and firish during the course of surnmer Its mandate
will be to determine whether, in addition to ongoing regulatory reforms, structural reforms of EU banks would strengthen financial stability and
improve efficiency and consumer protection, and +f that is the case make any relevant proposals as appropnate
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Risk management
Supervision and regulation

All disclosures in this section are unaudited unless otherwise stated

United Xingdom

The Government is reforming the structure of regulation to replace the FSA and the tripartite system that alsa involved the Bank of England and HM
Treasury This s intended to promote financial stability and to increase the intensity of supervisory scrutiny of the financral sector, including the
Group The Government has tabled a Bill that proposes that a Financial Policy Commmuttee should be established in the Bank of England with
responsibility for the monitering and control of systemic nsk, including the deployment of macro-prudential tools of supervision, which, while still to
be determined, may include the imposition of additional capital and hquidity buffers and interventions in the terms of transactions in particuiar
markets Responsibility for prudential regulation will pass to a Prudential Regulation Authority to be established as a subsidiary of the Bank of
England, while 2 Financial Conduct Authority (FCA), as a successor body to the FSA, will be responsible for 1ssues of business and market conduct
and market regulation The FCA will also be the UK listing authority This process 1s not expected to be complete before early 2013 In anticipation of
the new regulatory structure, an intenim Financial Policy Committee has been created and the FSA rearganised itself into separate Prudential and
Consumer and Markets business units on 4 Apnl 2011 In April 2012, the two business units will begin to shadaw the forthcorming regime and
operate as If they were the PRA and FCA to the extent permitted by existing faw

The ICB 1ssued its final report in September 2011 Among other things, the recommendations included that. (i) the UK and EEA retall banking
activities of a UK bank or building society should be placed in a legally distinct, operationally separate and economically independent entity (“nng-
fencing™), and (n) the loss-absorbing capacity of nng-fenced banks and UK-headquartered global systemically important banks (such as 8arclays
Bank PLC) should be increased to levels higher than the Basel 3 proposals The UK Government published its response to the ICB recommendations in
December 2011 and indicated that pnimary and secondary legisiation relating to the proposed ring-fence will be completed by May 2015, with UK
banks and building societies expected to be compliant as soon as practicable thereafter, and the requirements relating to increased loss-absorbing
capacity of ring-fenced banks and UK-headquartered global systemically impertant banks will be applicable from 1 January 2019 The Government
will publish a White Paper in late spring 2012 with further deta/ls on how the recommendations will be implemented

The FSA continues to develop and apply its more intrusive and assertive appreach to supervision and its policy of credible deterrence in relation to
enforcement that has continued to see significant growth in the size of regulatory fines In anticipation of international agreement, the FSA has
established and implemented capital and liquidity requirements that are substantially increased from pre-crisis levels, and has, together with the Bank
of England, proceeded to establish Recovery and Resolution Planning requirements In keeping with the requirements of the FSB, the Group is
required to submit a Recavery and Resolution Plan by 30 june 2012 The Retail Distribution Review and the Mortgage Market Review will affect the
economics of iInvestment advice and home finance provision respectively The FSA, following consultation, has also made clear its intention to take a
more interventionist approach to the design of financial products and te the governance processes around product design This approach will be
carned through into the FCA when its established

United States

The Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act (DFA) became law in July 2010 The full scale of the DFA’s impact on the Group
remains unclear because the rules required to implement many of the provisions of DFA have not been implemented and, in some areas, have yet to
be proposed by the responsible agencies In addition, market practices and structures may change in response to the requiremnents of the DFA in
ways that are difficult to predict but that could impact Barclays business Nonetheless, certain provisions of the DFA are particularly likely to have an
effect on the Group, including in the following

- Systernic Risk The DFA created the Financial Stability Oversight Council (FSOC) and empowered 1t to make recommendations to the FRB to
apply heightened supervisory requirernents and prudential standards applicable to “systematically important” entities and activities and to
work with all pimary financial regulatory agencies to establish regulations, as necessary, to address financial stability concerns In December
2011, the FRB issued proposed rules that bank holding companies with total consclidated assets of over US$50 billion, and other financial
companies designated by the FSOC as systemically important, be subject to enhanced prudential standards, including {1) capital requirements
and leverage hirmits, (1) mandatory stress testing of capital levels, () hquidity requirements, (iv) overall sk management requirements, and (v)
concentration and credit exposure imits  However, as drafted, these would not currentty affect the Group Although the relevant sections of
DFA apply bath to domestic US bank holding comparies with total consolidated assets of over US$50 billion and non-US banking organisations
with US operations that have total consolidated assets of over U5$50 billion, such as the Group, the FRB has deferred proposing rules to cover
such non-US organisations  Instead, the proposed rules would apply enly to a subsidiary of a foreign-owned US bank holding company if the
subsidiary itself has US$50 bilhon or more in total consolidated assets The Group's only US-domiciled subsidlary bank holding company,
Barclays Delaware Holdings, LLC, has total assets under this threshold Nenetheless, it is possible that the FRB could propose additional rules
that would apply similar enhanced prudential requirements to all non-US banking organisations with US operatrons that have tatal
consolidated assets of over U5350 billion, or to any other non-US banking organisation that the FSOC designates as systermically important In
this regard, it is potentially relevant that in November 2011 Barclays was listed by the FSB as a global systemically important bark. It s not yet
clear what regard the FSOC or the other agencies will hava to the home country prudential requiators of non-US organisations when
considenng the tmposition of heightened prudential requirements on such organisations pursuant to the DFA

- Other Enhanced Prudential Requirerrents In addition to the ability of the FSOC to recommend heightened prudential standards for specific
nstitutions, the DF A, separate and apart from Basel 3, also imposes higher capital, iquidity and leverage requirements on US banks and bank
holding companies generally
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Restrictions on Proprietary Trading and Fund-Related Activitles The so-called “Volcker Rule,” which will, once effective, significantly restrict the
ability of US bank halding companies and therr affiliates, and the US branches of foreign banks, to conduct proprietary trading n securities and
denwvatives as well as certain activities related to hedge funds and private equity funds In October 2011, US regulators consulted on rules to
implement the Volcker Rule The proposed rules are highly complex and many aspects remain unclear, including the exemption from the
proprietary trading and fund-related activity prohibitions for activibies conducted by non-US organisations “solely outside the United States "
The agencies appeared to construe this exemption very narrowly in the proposed rules Analysis continues of the proposals, but it is clear that
compliance with them would entail significant effort by the Group Although the Volcker Rule 1s hikely to impose sigruficant additional
compliance and operational costs on the Group, the full impact will not be known with certainty until the rules have been finalised Whilst the
Group has identified that its private equity fund, hedge fund and trading operations may be affected by the Volcker Rule, untl the final
regulations are adopted, the impact on the Croup’s ability to engage in these activities will be affected continues to remain uncertain As such,
it cannot currently be determined whether the restrictions will have a material effect on the Group  The statutory Volcker Rule prowisions are
scheduled to take effect in july 2012, regardless of whether the implementing rules have been finalised, and comparues will have two years
from that time to come into full compliance with them, subject to possible extensions

Resolution Plans The DFA requires bank holding companies with total consalidated assets of US$50 billion or rnore to subrmit to the FRB and
the FDIC, and regularly update, a plan for “rapid and orderly” resolution to be used iIf the company expenences matenal financial distress or
failure Non-US banking orgarisations that are treated as bank holding companies under US law, such as Barclays, are required to submit such
plans with respect to their US operations if they have more than US$50 billion in US assets  Barclays US assets exceed US$250 billion, and as a
resuft Barclays is required to submut a resolution plan by 1 July 2012

Reguiation of Derivatives Markets Among the changes mandated by the DFA are that many types of derwatives now traded in the over-the-
counter markets be traded on an exchange or swap execution facility and centrally cleared through a regulated clearing house In addition,
many partictpants in these markets will be required to register with the CFTC as “swap dealers” or “major swap participants” and/or with the
US SEC as “securities swap dealers” or “major securities swap dealers” and be subject to CFTC and SEC regulation and oversight Barclays Bank
PLC and, potentially, one or more of its US subsidianies may be subjected to these requirements Entities required to register will also be subject
to business conduct, capital, margin, recordkeeping and reporting requirements In addition, the CFTC, pursuant to the DFA, has adopted rules
on position limits on derivatives on physical cormmodities It1s possible that additional regulation, and the related expenses and requirements,
will restrict particspation in the derivative markets, thereby increasing the costs of engaging in hedging or other transactions and reducing
kquidity and the use of the denvative markets Barclays Bank PLC and its subsidianes and affilates may be exposed to these effects whether or
not they are required to register in the capacitias described The new regulation of the denvative markets could adversely affect the business of
Barclays Bank PLC and its affiliates in these markets and could make it more difficult and expensive to conduct hedging and trading activities
The DFA also contains a “derivatives push-out” requirement that, as early as 2013, could prevent the Group from conducting certain swaps-
related activities in the US branches of Barclays Bank PLC

Risk Retention Requrements for Securiisations The US federal banking agencies are required by the DFA to develop rules whereby anyone
who orgarises or mnitiates an asset-backed secunty transaction must retain a portion (generally, at least five percent) of any credit risk that the
person conveys to a third party This may impact the participation by the Group’s US operations i such transactions

Creation of the Bureau of Consumer Financial Protection (CFPB) The CFPB 1s empowered to regulate the credit card industry, including the
terms of credit card agreements with consumers, disclosures, and fees Actions by the CFPB in this area are likely to i/mpact the Group's US
credit card business The CFPB became operational in july 2011, and 1s soliciting public comment on a medel credit card disclosure form and
accepting consumer credit card complaints More broadly, the CFPB has the authaonty to examine and take enforcement action against any US
bank with over US$10 billion in total assets, such as Barclays Bank Delaware, with respect to its comphance with Federal laws regulating the
provision of consumer financal services
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Principal Activities and Business Review

The Directors are required to set out in this report a fair review of
the business of The Group dunng the financial year ended 31
December 2011 and of the position of The Group at the end of the
financal year and a description of the principal risks and
uncertainties facing The Group (known as a ‘Business Review') The
purpose of the Business Review 15 to enable shareholders to assess
how the Directors have performed their duty under Section 172 of
the Companies Act 2006 (duty to promote the success of the
Company)

The information that fulfils the requirements of the Business Review
can be found in the following sections of the Annual Report, which
are incorporated into this report by reference-

Pages
Key performance Indicators 2
Financial review 6
Risk Management 27

From the perspective of the Company, the review of the business
and the principal risks and uncertanties facing the Company are
integrated with those of Barclays PLC, the Company's ultmate
parent. Therefore additional infermation may be found in the 2011
Annual Report of Barclays PLC, which does not form part of this
report

Barclays is a major global financial services provider engaged In
retail banking, credit cards, corporate and investment banking and
wealth management. Barclays operates through branches, offices
and subsidanies in the UK and overseas

The results of The Group show a pre-tax profit of £5,974m (2010-
£6,079m) for the year and prefit after tax of £4,046m (2010
£4,563) The Group had net assets of £65,170m at 31 December
2011 (2010 £62,641m)

Profit Attributable
The profit attributable to Barclays PLC, the Company’s parent, for
the year 2011 amounted to £3,616m (2010 £4,172m)

Dividends

Total dividends on ordinary shares pald duning 2011 are set outin
Note 12 to the accounts Dividends pald on preference shares for
the year ended 31 December 2011 amounted to £467m (2010
£485m)

Share Capital
There was no increase in ordinary share capital during the year
Barclays PLC owns 100% of the 1ssued ordinary shares

Directers

The Directors of the Company are listed on page 102 The Directors’
interests in shares are set out on page 63 of the Remuneration
Report in Barclays PLC’s Annual Report and Accounts The
membership of the Boards of Directors of Barclays PLC and Barclays
Bank PLC 15 identical

Sir Richard Broadbent left the Board on 30 September 2011 There
were no other changes to Directors in 2011

Directors’ Indemnities

Qualifying third party indemnity provisions (as defined by section
234 of the Comparnies Act 2006} were in force during the course of
the financial year ended 31 December 2011 for the benefit of the
then Directors of the Company and of associated companies and, at
the date of this report, are in force for the benefit of the current
Directors of the Company and associated companies in relation to
certain losses and fabilities which they may Incur (or have incurred)
In connection with their duties, powers or office

Community Involvement

Barclays has an extensive community investment programme
covering many countries around the world The Group provides
funding and support to over 8,000 charities and voluntary
organisations, ranging from small, local chanities like The Passage,
supporting homeless people in Lendon, to international
orgamsations like Unicef The total commitment for 2011 was
£63 53m (2010 55 3m) The Group committed £30 3m in support
of the community in the UK (2010 £28 6m} and £33 2 was
committed in international support (2010- 26 7m) The UK
commitment includes £22 6m of chanitable donations {2010

£22 9m) Further information on our commurity involvement 1s
given on pages 4 and 5

Employee Involvement

Barclays s committed to ensuring that employees share in the
success of The Group Employees are encouraged to participate in
share option and share purchase schemes and have a substantial
sum invested in Barclays shares Employees are kept informed of
matters of concern to them in a variety of ways, including the
business unit news magaznes, intranets, briefings and mabile
phone SMS messaging These communications help achieve a
comman awareness among employees of the financlal and
economic factors affecting the performance of Barclays Barclays is
also committed to providing employees with opportunities to share
their views and provide feedback on 1ssues that are important to
them Employee Opinion Surveys are undertaken penodically across
The Group with results baing reported to the Board, all employees
and to our European Works Council, Africa Forum, Unite {Amicus
sectlon), our recogmised union in the UK and other recognised
unions worldwlde Roadshows and employee forums also take
place In addition, Barclays undertakes regular and formal
consultations with cur recognised trade unions and work councils
internationally

Diversity and Inclusion

The diversity agenda at Barclays seeks to include customers,
colleagues and supphers Our objective is to recruit and retan the
best people, regardless of (but not lim:ited to) race, religion, age,
gender, sexual onentation or disablity We stnve to ensure our
workforce reflects the communities in which we operate and the
international nature of the organisation We recognise that diversity
is a key part of responsible business strategy In support of our
increasingly global business In the UK, Barclays 1s committed to
providing additional support to employees with disabilities and
making it easier for them to inform us of their specific requirements,
including a dedicated intranet site and disability helpline Through
our UK Reasonable Adjustments Scheme, appropriate assistance
can be given, including both physicat workplace adjustrments, and
relevant training and access to trained mentors 1s also provided for
employees with disabihities A wide range of recruitment initiatives
have been taken to increase the number of people with disabilities
waorking in Barclays
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Environment

In 2011 we launched the Barclays Cimate Action Programme —a
four-year plan which focuses on addressing environmental issues
where we believe we have the greatest potential to make 2
difference The Chmate Action Programme focuses on managing
our own carbon footpnint and reducing our absclute carbon
ermissions, developing products and services to help enable the
transition to a low-carbon economy, and managing the nisks of
climate change We Invest in improving the energy efficency of our
operations and offset the ermissions remaining through the purchase
of carbon credits  We have cormmitted to reduce our carbon
ermissions by 4% by 2013 We also have a long-standing
commitment to managing the environmental and social nsks
assocated with lending and a governance structure is In place to
facilitate clear dialogue across the business and with suppliers
around 1ssues of potential environmental and social risk. More
details may be found on our website at Barclays com/citizenship

Creditors’ Payment Policy

Barclays values its suppliers and acknowledges the importance of
paying invoices, especially those of small businesses, ina timely
manner Barclays policy follows the Department for Business,
Innovation & Skills’ Prompt Payment Code, copies of which can be
obtained from the Prompt Payment Code website at

www promptpaymentcede org uk.

The trade creditor payment days for Barclays Bank PLC for 2010
were 33 days (2010 27 days) This is an anthmetical calculation
based on the Companies Act Regulations and does not necessarily
reflect our practice, which is described above, nor the experience of
any indwidual creditor

Essential business contracts

There are no persons with whom The Group has contractual or
other arrangements that are considered essenbial to the business of
The Group

Contracts of Significance

Barclays provided BlackRack, Inc {BlackRock) with customary
warranties and indemnities in connection with the sale of Barclays
Clobal Investors (BGI) to BlackRock i 2009 Barclays will continue
to provide support in respect of certain BCI cash funds until
December 2013 and indemnities in respect of certain of BGI's fully
collateralised secunties lending actvities untii November 2012

Research and development
In the ordinary course of business The Group develops new
products and services in each of its business units

Financial Instruments

Barclays financial nsk management objectives and policies,
including the palicy for hedging each major type of forecasted
transaction for which hedge accounting is used, and the exposure to
market risk, credit risk and iquicity nsk are set out In pages 34 to 76
and 78 to 94

The Auditors

The Board Audit Committee {(BAC) reviews the appointment of the
external auditors, as well as their relationship with The Group,
including monitoring The Group’s use of The Group’s auditors for
non-audit services and the balance of audit and non-audit fees paid
to the auditors More details on this can be found in Note 8 to the
accounts

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (PwC) has been The Group’s auditor
for many years, although the lead audit partner 1s rotated every five
years The current lead audit partner joined the audit team for the
2010 year end and will retire after the 2014 year end

Having reviewed the independence and effectiveness of the external
auditors, the Board has not considered it necessary to date to
require them to tender for the audit work but will keep this 1ssue
under review The external auditors are required to rotate the audit
partners responsible for The Group and subsidiary audits every five
years There are no contractual obligations restricting the
Company's choice of external auditor BAC has recommended to the
Board that the existing audrtors, PwC, be reappointed PwC have
sigrufied their willingness to continue in office and ordinary
resolutions reappointing them as auditors and authonsing the
Directors to set their remuneration will be proposed at the 2012
ACM So far as each of the Directors are aware, there is no relevant
audrt information of which the Company’s auditors are unaware
Each of the Directors has taken all the steps that he or she ought to
have taken as a Director in order to make himself or herself aware of
any relevant audit information and to establish that the Company’s
auditors are aware of that information For these purposes, ‘relevant
audit information’ means inforrmation needed by the Company’s
auditors in connection with prepanng their report.

By order of the Board

Lawrence Dickinson
Joint Secretary
7 March 2012
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Directors and Officers and Statement of

Directors’ responsibilities for accounts

Current Directors and Officers
Marcus Agius - Group Chairman

Executive Directors
Bob Diamond - Chief Executive
Chris Lucas - Group Finance Director

Non-executive Directors
David Booth

Alison Carnwath

Fulvio Conti

Simon Fraser

Reuben Jeffery 1|

Sir Andrew Likierman
Dambisa Moyo

Sir Michael Rake

Sir John Sunderland
Current Executive Committee members Appointed to Executive
Comrnittee
Bob Diamond Chief Executive 1997
Chris Lucas Croup Finance Director 2007
Jerry del Missier Co-Chief Executive of Barclays 2009
Capital and Co-Chief Executive of
Corporate and Investment
Banking
Mark Harding Group General Counsel 2009
Antony Jenkins Chief Executive, Retail and 2009
Busmess Banking
Tom Kalaris Chief Executive, Barclays Wealth 2009
Robert Le Blanc Chief Risk Officer 2009
Maria Ramos Chief Executive, Absa 2009
Rich Ricci Co-Chtef Executive of Barclays 2009
Capital and Co-Chief Executive of
Corporate and Investment
Banking
Sally Bott Group Hurnan Resources 2011
Director
Other Officers Appointed to position
Lawrence Dickinson  Joint Secretary 2002
Patrick Gonsalves Joint Secretary 2002
John Worth Group Financial Controller 2011

Going concern

The Group’s business activities and financial position, the factors likely
to affect its future development and performance, and its objectives
and policies in managing the financial nisks to which it is exposed and
its capltal are discussed in the Business Review

The Directors have assessed, in the hight of current and anticipated
economic condltions, The Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern The Directors confirm they are satisfied that the Company
and The Croup have adequate resources to continue in business for
the foreseeable future For this reason, they continue to adopt the
‘going concern’ basis for preparing accounts

Statement of Directors’ responsibilities for accounts

The following statement, which should be read in conjunction with the
Auditors’ report set out on page 104, 15 made with a view to distinguishing
for shareholders the respective responsibiiities of the Directors and of the
auditors In relation to the accounts

The Directors are required by the Comparues Act 2006 to prepare
accounts for each financial year and, with regards to Group accounts, in
accerdance with Article 4 of the |AS Regulation The Directors have
prepared indwidual accounts in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the
European Union The accounts are required by law and IFRS to present
fairly the financial position of the Company and The Group and the
performance for that period The Companies Act 2006 provides, in relation
to such accounts, that references to accounts giving a true and fair view
are references to falr presentation

The Directors consider that, in preparing the financial statements on pages
106 to 111, and the additional information contained on pages 112 to 199,
The Group has used appropriate accounting pollcies, supported by
reasonable judgements and estimates, and that all accounting standards
which they cansider to be applicable have been followed

The Directors have responsibility for ensuring that the Company and The
Group keep accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy
the financia! position of the Company and The Group and which enable
them to ensure that the accounts comply with the Companies Act 2006

The Directors have general responsibility for taking such steps as are
reasonably open to them to safeqguard the assets of The Group and to
prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities

Disclosure controls and procedures

The Group Chief Executive, Bob Diamond, and the Group Finance Director,
Chris Lucas, conducted with Group Management an evaluation of the
effectiveness of the design and operation of The Group's disclosure
controls and procedures as at 31 December 2011, which are defined as
those controls and procedures designed to ensure that information
required to be disclosed in reports filed or submitted under the US
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 1s recorded, processed, summarised and
reported within the tme periods specified in the US Securities and
Exchange Commission’s rules and forms As of the date of the evaluation,
the Group Chief Executive and Group Finance Director concluded that the
design and operation of these disclosure controls and procedures were
effective

The Directors confirm to the best of their knowledge that.

(a) The financial statements, prepared in accordance with the applicable
set of accounting standards, give a true and fair view of the assets,
liabilities, financial position and profit or loss of Barclays Bank PLC and the
undertakings included 10 the consohidation taken as a whole, and

{b) The management report, which is incorporated into the Directors’
Report on pages 100 and 101, mncludes a fair review of the development
and performance of the business and the position of Barclays Bank PLC
and the undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a whole,
together with a description of the principal nisks and uncertainties that
they face

Signed on behalf of the Board
L/{L‘-v'-v' LI

Marcus Agius
Group Chairman Barclays Bank PLC
7 March 2012 Registered in England Company No 1026167
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Presentation of information

Barclays Bank PLC 1s a public limited company, registered in England
under company number 1026167 The bank was incorporated on 7
August 1925 under the Colonial Bank Act 1925 and on the 4 October
1971 was registered as a company hmited by shares under the
Companies Act 1948 to 1967 Pursuant to The Barclays Bank Act
1984, on 1 January 1985 the Bank was registered as a public kmited
company and its name was changed from Barclays Bank
International Lirmited to Barclays Bank PLC

All of the 1ssued ordinary share capital of Barclays Bank PLC 1s owned
by Barclays PLC

BBA Code for Financial Reporting Disclosure

In September 2010, the Bntish Bankers’ Assoclation publhished a Code

for Financial Reporting Disclosure The Code sets out five disclosure

prnnciples together with supporting guidance The pninciples are that

UK banks will

- provide high quality, meaningful and decision-useful disclosures,

- review and enhance their financial instrument disclosures for key
areas of interest,

- assess the applicability and relevance of good practice
recommendations to their disclosures acknowledging the
importance of such guidance,

— seek to enhance the comparability of financial statement
disclosures across the UK banking sector, and

- clearly differentiate in their annua{ reports between infermation
that 1s audited and information that is unaudited

Barclays PLC, the Parent Company of Barclays Bank PLC has adopted
the BBA Code for Financial Reporting Disclosure and has prepared
the 2011 Annual Report and Accounts in compliance with the Code

The Group aims to continually enhance its disclosures and their
usefulness to the readers of the financial statements in the light of
developing market practice and areas of focus In 2011 we have

- continued to streamhne disclosure to focus on significant
decision useful information, for example providing detailed
disclosure on indwidual employee share schemes only where
matenal in the context of the income staternent charge, dilution
of capital or Executive remuneration,

— included certain more detailed or static information in other
published documents with clear references to where these may
be found, for example risk management methodologies
(included in Pillar 3 reporting) and the glossary (published
separately on-line),

- reorganised the information in the Notes to the Accounts under
carmmon topics to facilitate readers’ understanding,

— included descrptions of significant accounting policies, cntical
accounting estmates and future accounting developments
within the note to which they relate, thereby including related
information in one place,

— continued to enhance our disclosures, with speaific focus on
- the effects of collateral on our maximum exposure to credit
nsk following amendments to IFRS 7 Financial Instruments
(page 35),
- exposures to selected countries (page 61},
—  hquidity disclosures including information on funding
structure and secured funding (page 78),

— provisions relating to PPl redress (page 163),

- accounting for deferred employee remuneration and the
reconciliation of awards to performance costs (page 179),
and

— accounting for deferred tax assets {page 120)

Differences between Barclays Bank PLC and the Parent Company -
Barclays PLC

Barctays Bank PLC is a wholly owned subsidiary of Barclays PLC,
which is The Group’s ulimate parent company The consolidated
results and financial position of Barclays Bank PLC Group and
Barclays PLC Group are materially the same, with the key difference
being that, in accordance with IFRS

- Barclays PLC shares held by The Group in employee share
schemes and for trading purposes are deducted from reserves in
Barclays PLC but recogrised as available for sale and trading
portfolio assets within Barclays Bank PLC, and

- Preference shares issued by Barclays Bank PLC are included
within share capital and share premum in the Barclays Bank PLC
Group but represent non-controlling interests in the Barclays PLC
Group, and

- Certan issuances of reserve capital instruments and capital notes
by Barclays Bank PLC are included within shareholders’ equity in
the Barclays Bank PLC Croup, but represent non-controlling
interests in Barclays PLC

More extensive disclosures are contained in the Barclays PLC Annual
Report for the year ended 31 December 2011, including nsk
exposures and business performance, which are matenally the same
as thosa inBarclays Bank PLC The Barclays PLC Annual Report can
be accessed at www barclays com/annualreport or a copy can be
obtained by writing to

Shareholder Relations
Barclays PLC

1 Churchill Place
London

E14 SHP
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Independent Auditors’ report

Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of Barclays Bank PLC

We have audited the financial statements of Barclays Bank PLC for
the year ended 31 Decernber 2011 which compnse the Consolldated
income staternent and the related Consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, Consolldated and Parent balance sheets,
Consclidated and Parent Statements of changes in equity and
Consclidated and Parent cash flow statements, the related notes and
the parts of the risk management section that are referenced as
audited The financial reporting framework that has been applied in
therr preparation is applicable law and International Finanaial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union and,
as regards the parent company financial statements, as applied in
accordance with the provisions of the Comparies Act 2006

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Staternent,
the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
staternents and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view
Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial
statemments in accordance with applicable law and International
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us
to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for
Auditors

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only
for the company’s members as a body in accordance with Chapter 3
of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose We
do not, in giving these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for
any other purpose or to any other person to whom this repart is
shown or Into whose hands it may come save where expressly
agreed by our prior consent in writing

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable
assurance that the financiat statements are free from material
musstatement, whether caused by fraud or error This includes an
assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to
the group's and the parent company’s circumstances and have been
consistently applied and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by the directors, and the
overall presentation of the financial statements In additicn, we read
all the financial and non-financial information in the annual report to
identify material Inconsistencies with the audited financial
statements If we become aware of any apparent material
risstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for
our report.

Notes

a The maintenance and integrity of the Barclays plc website Is the responsibliity of
the directors, the work carried out by the auditors does not Involve consideration
of these matters and, accordingly, the auditors accept no responsibility for any
changes that may have occurred to the financial statemnents since they were
Initlalty presented on the website

b Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination
of financlal statements may differ from legistation in other jurisdictions.

Opintlen on financial statements
In our opinton

- thefinancial statements give a true and fair view of the state of
the group's and of the parent company’s affairs as at 31
December 2011 and of the group's profit and group’s and
parent company’s cash flows for the year then ended,

- the group financial statements have been properly prepared in
accordance with {FRSs as adopted by the European Unicn,

- the parent company financial statements have been properly
prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European
Union and as applied in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act 2006, and

- thefinancial statements have been prepared In accordance with
the requirernents of the Companues Act 2006

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our cpirion the information given in the Directors’ Repaort for the
financlal year for which the financial staternents are prepared Is
consistent with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where
the Companies Act 2006 requires us to feport to you If, in our
opinlon

- adeguate accounting records have not been kept by the parent
company, or returns adeguate for our audit have not been
received from branches not wisited by us, or

- the parent company financial statements are not in agreement
with the accounting records and returns, or

- certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law
are not made, or

- we have not recerved all the information and explanaticns we
require for our audit.

Andrew Ratchffe (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London, United Kingdom

7 March 2012
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Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm’s report

Report of independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Barclays Bank PLC

In our opimicn, the accompanying Consolidated income statement
and the related Consalidated statement of comprehensive iIncome,
Consclidated balance sheets, Consolidated staterments of changes in
equity and Consolidated cash flow statements present fairly, in all
matenial respects, the financial position of Barclays Bank PLC and its
subsidiaries at 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010, and the
results of their operations and ther cash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended 31 December 2011 in confornuty with
International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management
Our responsibility 1s to express an opinion on these financial
statemnents based on our audits We conducted our audits of these
statements In accordance with the standards of the Pubiic Company
Accounting Oversight Board (United States) Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
rmatenal misstatement  An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
staternents, assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation We believe that our audits provide
a reasonable basis for our opinion

? ) J
e U Goo . LV
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP '

London, Umited Kingdom

7 March 2012
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Consolidated financial statements
Consolidated income statement

For the year ended 31 December The Group
2011 2010

Notes £m £m
Continuing operations
Interest incorme 3 20,589 20,035
Interest expense 3 (8,393} (7,517)
Net Interest income 12,196 12,518
Fee and comrnission income 4 10,208 10,368
Fee and commission expense 4 (1,586) (1,497)
Net fee and cormmission income 8,622 8,871
Net trading income 5 7,738 8,080
Net investment income 6 2,322 1,490
Net premiums from insurance contracts 1,076 1,137
Gains on debt buy-backs and extinguwshments 1,130 -
Other income 39 118
Total income 33,123 32,214
Net claims and benefits incurred on insurance contracts (741) (764}
Total income net of insurance claims 32,382 31,450
Credit impairment charges and other provisions 7 {3,802) (5,672
Impairment of investment in BlackRock, Inc 7 {1,800) -
Net operating income 26,780 25,778
Staff costs 35 {11,407) {11,9186)
Administration and general expenses 8 (6,351) (6,581)
Deprectation of property, plant and equipment 23 , (673) (790)
Amortisation of intangible assets 24 (419) (437)
Goodwill impairment 24 (597) (243)
Provision for PPl redress 7 {1,000) -
UK Bank Levy 9 (325) -
Qperating expenses (20,772) {19,967}
Share of post-tax results of associates and joint ventures 60 58
(Loss)/ Profit on disposal of subsidianes, associates and joint ventures 10 (94) 81
Gain on acguisitions - 129
Profit before tax from continuing operations 5,974 6,079
Taxation 11 {1,928) {1,516)
Profit after tax from continuing operations 4,046 4,563
Profit attributable to equuty holders of the Parent 3,616 4,172
Profit attnbutable to non controlling interests 34 430 391

The Board of Directors approved the financial statements set out on pages 100 to 102 on 7 March 2012

Note
As permitted by section 408(3) of the Companies Act 2006 an income statement for the parent company has not been presented
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Consolidated financial statements

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

For the year ended 21 December The Group
201 2010
fm £m
Profit after tax 4,046 4,563
Other comprehensive income from continuing operations
Currency translation reserve
- Currency translation differences (1,607) 1177
Available for sale reserve
- Net gains/(losses) from changes in fair value 2,581 {152)
- Net gains transferred to net profit on disposal (1,614) (1,020)
- Net losses transferred to net profit due to impairment 1,860 53
- Net gains transferred to net profit due to fair value hedging (1,803) (308)
- Changes in insurance Labilities 18 31
- Tax 170 141
Cash flow hedging reserve
- Net gains from changes in fair value 2,406 601
- Net gains transferred to net profit (753) (684)
- Tax (390) 39
Other (74) 59
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax, from continuing operations 794 (63)
Total comprehensive income for the year 4,840 4,500
Attributable to
Equity holders of the Parent 5,041 3,609
Non-controlling interests (201) 891
4,840 4,500

ot

-
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Consolidated financial statements
Consolidated balance sheet

As at 31 December The Group The Bank
2011 2010 201 2010

Notes £m £m £m f£m
Assets
Cash and balances at central banks 106,894 97,630 103,087 92,686
Itemns in the course of collection from other banks 1.812 1,384 1,634 1,268
Trading portfolio assets 13 152,183 168,930 85,048 95,034
Financial assets designated at fair value 14 16,949 41,485 44,552 29,181
Derlvative financial instrurnents 15 538,964 420,319 546,921 441,145
Available for sale financ:al investments 16 69,023 65,440 47,979 45,221
Loans and advances to banks 19 46,792 37,799 52,287 40,390
Loans and advances to customers 19 431,934 427942 517,780 522,936
Reverse repurchase agreements and other similar secured lending 22 153,665 205,772 161,436 227,343
Prepayments, accrued income and other assets 4,560 5,143 10,384 14,486
Investments in associates and joint ventures 40 427 58 174 181
Investments in subsidianes 38 - - 22,073 19,033
Property, plant and equipment 23 7.166 6,140 1,937 1,878
Coodwill and Intangible assets 24 7,846 8,697 4333 4,110
Current tax assets 11 3174 196 166 161
Deferred tax assets [A] 3,010 2517 1,104 1,228
Retirement benefit assets 37 1,803 126 1,708 9
Total assets 1,563,402 1,490,038 1,602,603 1,536,290
Liabilities
Deposits from banks 91,116 77,975 108,816 97,526
Items in the course of collection due to other banks 969 1321 966 1,270
Customer accounts 366,045 345,802 454,522 453,826
Repurchase agreements and other similar secured borrowing 22 207,292 225,534 193,453 214,207
Trading portfolic liabikities 13 45,887 72,693 28,632 44,352
Financial lizbilities designated at fair value 17 87,997 97,729 101,069 97,042
Derivative financial instruments 15 527,798 405,516 535,837 426,243
Debt securities in Issue 129,736 156,623 83,939 106,267
Subordinated liabilities 3 24,870 28499 26,764 26,994
Accruals, deferred income and other iabilities 26 12,580 13,233 15,471 17,570
Provisions 27 1,529 947 939 651
Current tax liabilities 1 1,397 646 979 126
Deferred tax habilitles 1 695 514 348 3
Retirement benefit habilities 37 321 365 109 168
Total liabilities 1,498,232 1,427,397 1,551,844 1,486,245
Shareholders’ equlty
Shareholders’ equity excluding non-controlling interests 62,078 59,174 50,759 50,045
Non-controlling Interests 34 3,092 3,467 - -
Total shareholders’ equity 65,170 62,641 50,759 50,045
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 1,563,402 1,490,038 1,602,603 1,536,290

Marcus Agius '
Group Charrman

Bob Diamond
GCroup Chief Executive \

Chris Lucas
Group Finance Director
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Consolidated financial statements
Consolidated statement of changes in equity
The Group Called up
share Cash Nen-
capital Avallable flow Currency Other controlling Total
and share far sale hedging transtation shareholders  Retained Total interests equity
premium® reserve® reserve® reserve® equity"  earnings
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Balance as at 1 January 2011 14,494 (1,348) 152 2,357 2,069 41,450 59,174 3,467 62,641
Profit after tax - - - - - 3,616 3,616 430 4,046
Currency translation movements - - - (1,009) - - {1,009) (598) (1,607}
Available for sale investments - 1,218 - - - - 1,218 (6) 1,212
Cash flow hedges - - 1,290 - - - 1,290 27 1,263
Other - - - - 18 (92) (74) - (74)
Total comprehensive income for
the year - 1,218 1,290  (1,009) 18 3,524 5,041 (201) 4,340
Issue of shares under employee
share schemes - - - - - 838 838 - 838
Vesting of Barclays PLC shares
under share-based payment
schemes - - - - - (499) (499) - {499)
Dvidends pad - - - - - (643) (643) (188) (831)
Dividends on preference shares
and other shareholders’ equity - - - - - {539) (539) - {539)
Redemption of Reserve Capital
Instruments - - - - (1,415) - (1,415) - (1,415)
Qther reserve movements - - - - (24) 145 121 14 135
Balance as at 31 December 2011 14,494 (130) 1,442 1,348 648 44,276 62,078 3,092 65,170
Balance as at 1 January 2010 14,494 (84) 252 1,615 2,559 37,089 55,925 2,774 58,699
Profit after tax - - - - - 4,172 4,172 391 4,563
Currency translation movements - - - 742 - B 742 435 1,177
Avallable for sale investrments - {1,264) - - - B (1,264) 9 (1,255)
Cash flow hedges - - (100) - - - (100) 56 (44)
Other - - - - 45 14 59 - 59
Total comprehensive income for
the year - (1,264) (100) 742 45 4,186 3,609 891 4,500
Issue of shares under employee
share schemes - - - - - 830 830 - 830
Vesting of Barclays PLC shares
under share-based payment
schemes - - - - - (718) {718) - (718)
Dividends paid - - - - - (235) (235} (158) (393)
Dividends on preference shares
and other shareholders’ equity - - - - - (645) (645) - {645)
Capital injection from Barclays
PLC - - - - - 1,214 1.214 - 1,214
Redemption of Reserve Capita!
Instruments - - - - (487) - (487) - (487)
Other reserve movements - - - - (48) {271) (319) (40} (359)
Balance as at 31 December 2010 14,494 (1,348) 152 2,357 2,069 41,450 59,174 3,467 62,641

Notes
a For further detalls refer to Note 32
b For further details refer to Note 33
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Consolidated financial statements

Statement of changes in equity

The Bank Called up
share Cash
capital Available flow Currency Other
and share for sale hedging transiation  shareholders Retalned Total
premium resarve reserve reserve equity” earnings
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Balance as at 1 January 2011 14,494 (265) 39 126 2,133 33,518 50,045
Profit after tax - - . - - 1,994 1,994
Currency translation movements - - - (284) . - (284)
Available for sale investments - (199) - B - - (199)
Cash flow hedges - - 1,327 - - - 1,327
Other - - - - 18 10 28
Total comprehensive income for
the year - (199) 1,327 (284) 18 2,004 2,866
Issue of shares under employee
share schemes - - - - - 169 169
Vesting of Barclays PLC shares
under share-based payment
schemes - - - - - (56) (56)
Dividends paid - - - - . (643) (643)
Divdends on preference shares
and other sharehalders’ equity - - - - - (539) {539)
Redemption of Reserve Capital
Instruments - - - - (1,415) - (1.415)
QOther reserve movements - - - - {24) 356 332
Balance as at 31 December 2011 14,494 (464) 1,366 {158) 712 34,809 50,759
Balance as at 1 January 2010 14,494 (6} 209 (309) 2,623 30,820 47,831
Profit after tax - - - - - 2,518 2,518
Currency translation movements - - - 435 - - 435
Available for sale investments - {259) - - - - {259)
Cash flow hedges - - {170) - - - (170)
Other - - - - 45 4 49
Total comprehensive income far
the year - {259) (170) 435 45 2,522 2,573
Equity settled share schernes - - - - - 174 174
Vesung of Barclays PLC shares
under share-based payment
schemes - - - - - (99) (99)
Capital injjection from Barclays
PLC - - - - - 1,214 1,214
Diwvidends paid - - - - - (235) (235}
Dividends on preference shares
and other shareholders’ equity - - - - - (645) {645)
Redemption of Reserve Capital
Instruments - - - - (487) - {487)
Other reserve movements - - - - (48} (233) {281)
Balance as at 31 December 2010 14,494 {265) 39 126 2,133 33,518 50,045

Notes
a For further detalls refer to Note 32
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Consolidated financial statements
Consolidated cash flow statement

For the year ended 31 December The Group The Bank
2001 2010 201 2010
£m £m £m £m

Continuing operations
Reconciliation of profit before tax to net cash flows from operating activities

Profit before tax 5974 6,079 2,738 2,251

Adjustment for non-cash items.

Allowance for impairment 5,602 5,672 4,397 3,512

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment of property, plant, equipment and intangibles 1,104 1,346 467 590
Other provisions, including pensions 1,787 914 1,252 678

Net profit on disposal of investments and property, plant and equipment (1,645) (1,057) (1,320} (958)
Other non-cash movements 432 (6,886) 2,838 (6,300)
Changes 1n operating assets and liabilities

Net decrease/(increase) in loans and advances to banks and customers 38,994 (63,212) 61,955 (95,403)
Net (decrease)/increase in deposits and debt secunties in 1ssue (11,555) 63,699 (31,096) 89,718

Net decrease/(increase) in derivative financial instrurments 3618 (1,298) 3,818 (3,361)
Net decrease/(increase) in trading assets 21,423 (17,517) 9,906 {1,211)
Net (decrease)/increase in trading liabilities (26,899) 21,441 (15,720) 10,818

Net (increase)/decrease tn financial investments (4,255) 11,126 (11,344) 11,960

Net decrease/(increase) in other assets 122 1,366 3,764 {9,193)
Net (decrease)/increase in other Labilties (4,148) (2,521) (5,1686) 10,064

Corporate income tax paid (1,686)  (1,430) (239) {90)
Net cash from operating activities 28868 17,722 26,250 13,075

Purchase of avallable for sale investments (67,525) (76,418) (66,546) (69,792}
Proceeds from sale or redemption of available for sale investments 66,941 71,251 68,111 64,587
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (1,454) (1,767) (519) (732)
Other cash flows assoctated with investing activities 126 1,307 {1,521) 515

Net cash from investing activities (1,912) (5,627) (475)  (5.422)
Dividends paid (1,370) (1,011) (1,182) (235)
Proceeds of borrowings and issuance of subordinated debt 830 23 880 2,038
Repayments of borrowings and redemption of subordinated debt (4,003) (1,211} (2,656) (1,075)
Net redemption of shares and other equity instruments (1.257) - {1,257) -

Capital injection from Barclays Plc - 1,214 - 1,214

Net cash from financing activities (5,750) 1,123 (4,215) 1,942

Effect of exchange rates on cash and cash equivalents (2,933) 3842  (1,997) 3,057

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 18,273 17060 19,563 12,652

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 131,400 114,340 109,009 96,357

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 149,673 131,400 128,572 109,009

Cash and cash equivalents comprise

Cash and balances at central banks 106,894 97,630 103,087 92,686

Loans and advances to banks with onginal maturity less than three months 40,481 31,934 24,963 15,989

Avatlable for sale treasury and other eligible bills with onginal maturity less than three months 2,209 1,667 433 165

Trading portfolio assets with original maturity less than three months 89 169 89 169

149,673 131,400 128572 109,009

Interest received by The Group in 2011 was £28,673m (2010 £28,631m) and interest pad by The Group in 2011 was £20,106m (2016 £20,759m)

The Group Is required to maintain balances with central banks and other regulatory authorities and these amounted to £2,500m at 31 December
2011 (2010 £2,310m) For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits and cash equivalents
comprise highly hquid investments that are convertible into cash with an insignificant risk of changes in value with original matunties of three months
or less Repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements are not considered to be part of cash equivalents
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31December 2011

Significant accounting policies

This section describes Barclays’ significant accounting policies and critical accounting estimates that relate
to the financial statements and notes as a whole. If an accounting policy or a cnitical accounting estimate
relates to a specific note, the applicable accounting policy and/or critical accounting estimate 1s contained
within the relevant note

1 Significant accounting policies

1 Reporting entity

These financial statements are prepared for Barclays Bank PLC Group under Section 399 of the Companies Act 2006 The Group is a major global
financial services provider engaged in retail banking, credit cards, wholesale banking, investment banking, wealth management and investment
management services In addition, individual financial statements have been presented for the holding company, Barclays Bank PLC (the Bank)
Barclays Bank PLC Is a public limited company, incorporated and domiciled in England and Wales having a registered office in England and is the
hotding cempany of The Group

2 Compliance with International Financlal Reporting Standards

The consohdated financial statements of the Barclays Bank PLC Group, and the individual financial statements of Barclays Bank PLC, have been
prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and interpretations (IFRICs) issued by the Interpretations
Commuttee, as published by the International Accounting Standards Board {IASB) They are also in accordance with IFRS and IFRIC interpretations
endorsed by the European Unlon The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the consolidated and indwidual financial
statements are set out below, and in the relevant notes to the financial statements These policies have been consistently applied There were no
changes in accounting policy in the year

3 Basis of preparation

The consoldated and individual financlal statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention modified to include the falr valuation
of investment property and particular financial instruments to the extent required or permitted under IFRS as set out in the relevant accounting
policies They are stated in milllons of pounds Sterling (€m), the functional currency of Barclays Bank PLC.

4 Accounting policies

Barclays prepares financial statements in accordance with IFRS The Group's significant accounting policies relating to specific financial staternent
itemns, together with a description of the accounting estimates and judgements that were critical to preparing them, are set out under the relevant
notes Accounting policies that affect the financial statements as a whole are set out below

(1) Consolidation
Barclays applies |AS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Staternents and SIC 12 Consolidation - Special Purpose Entitles (SPEs)

The consolidated financlal statements combine the financial statements of Barclays Bank PLC and all its subsidiaries Subsldiaries are entities over
which it has control of the financial and operating policies through its holdings of voting shares and SPEs, which are consolidated when the
substance of the relationship between The Group and the entity indicates control The control assessment for special purpose entities includes an
assessment of The Group's exposure to the nsks and benefits of the entity The consolidation of SPEs is considered at inception, based on the
arrangements in place and the assessed nsk exposures at that time The Initial consclidation analysis Is revisited at a later date (f

- The Group acquires additional interests in the entity,
- The contractual arrangements of the entity are amended such that the relative exposures to nsks and rewards change, and
- The Group acquires control over the main cperating and financial decisions of the entity

There are a number of subsidiaries in which The Group has less than half of the voting nghts which are consohdated when the substance of the
relatonship between The Group and the entity indicates that the entity is controlled by The Group Such entities are deemed to be controlled by
The Group when relatlonships with such entities give rise to benefits that are in substance no different from those that would arise were the entity
a subsidiary

Intra-group transactions and balances are eliminated on consolidation and consistent accounting policies are used throughout The Group for the
purposes of the consolidation

Changes in ownership Interests in subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions if they occur after control has already been obtained and
they do not result in loss of control

Detalls of the principal subsidiaries are glven in Note 38

{ii) Foreign currency translation

The Group applles IAS 21 The £ffects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates Transactions and balances in foreign currencies are translated into
Sterling at the rate ruling on the date of the transaction Foreign currency balances are translated into Sterling at the period end exchange rates
Exchange gains and losses on such balances are taken to the income statement.
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The Group's forelgn operations (including subsidianes, joint ventures, assaciates and branches) based mainly outside the UK may have different
functionai currencies The functional currency of an operation is the currency of the main economy to which it 1s exposed

Prior to consolidation (or equity accounting) the assets and habilities of non-Sterling operations are translated at the closing rate and items of
ncorne, expense and other comprehensive income are translated into Sterling at the rate on the date of the transactions Exchange differences
arising on the translation of foreign operations are included in cusrency translation reserves within equity These are transferred to the income
statement when The Group loses control, joint cantrol or significant influence over the foreign operation or on partial disposal of the operation

{id) Financial assets and liabilities
The Group applies IAS 39 Financial Instruments Recognition and Measurement (IAS 39) for the recognition, classification and measurement and
derecognition of financial assets and financial iabiliies for the impairment of financial assets, and for hedge accounting

Recogmition
The Group recognises financial assets and habilities when it becomes a party to the terms of the contract, which 1s the trade date or the settlement
date

Classificatiorr and measurement
Financial assets and llabiities are intially recognised at fair value and may be held at farr value or amortised cost depending on The Group's
\ntention toward the assets and the nature of the assets and hiabilities, mainly determined by their contractual terms

The accounting policy for each type of financial asset or hability 1s included within the relevant note for the item The Group's policies for
determining the fair values of the assets and habilities are set outin Note 18

Derecogrition

The Group derecognises a financial asset, or a portion of a financial asset, from rts balance sheet where the contractual rights to cash flows from
the asset have expired, or have been transferred, usually by sale, and with them either substantially all the nsks and rewards of the asset or
sigruficant nsks and rewards, along with the unconditional ability to sell or pledge the asset.

Financial liabilities are de-recognised when the liability has been settled, has expired or has been extinguished An exchange of an existing financial
liability for a new hability with the same lender on substantially different terms - generally a difference of 10% in the present value of the cash flows
—is accounted for as an extinguishment of the enginal financial liability and the recognition of a new financial lability

Transactions 1n which The Group transfers assets and liabilities, portions of assets and habilities, or financial nisks associated with thern can be
complex and it is not obvious whether substantially all of the nsks and rewards have been transferred It 1s often necessary to perform a
quantitative analysis Such an analysis will compare The Croup’s exposure to vaniability in asset cash flows before the transfer with its retained
exposure after the transfer

A cash flow analysis of this nature may require judgement In particular, it 1s necessary o esumate the asset’s expected future cash flows as well as
potential vaniability around this expectation The methed of estmating expected future cash flows depends on the nature of the asset, with market
and market-implied data used to the greatest extent possible The potential vanability around this expectation 1s typically determined by stressing
underlying parameters to create reasonable alternative upside and downside scenarios Probabilities are then assigned to each scenano Stressed
parameters may include default rates, loss seventy or prepayment rates

(iv) Issued debt and equity instruments
The Group apphes 1AS 32, Finanicial instruments Presentation, to determine whether funding 1s either a financial kability (debt) or equity

Issued financial Instruments or their components are classified as habilities if the contractual arrangement results in The Group having a present
obligation to either deliver cash or another financial asset, or a variable number of equity shares, to the holder of the instrument, if this s not the
case, the instrument 1s generally an equity mnstrument and the praceeds included in equity, net of transaction costs Dvidends and other returns to
equity holders are recogmsed when paid or declared by the members at the annual general meeting and treated as a deduction from equity

Where 1ssued financial instruments contain both liability and equity compenents, these are accounted for separately The fair value of the debt 1s
estimated first and the balance of the proceeds 1s included within equity

5 Future accounting developments
As at 31 December 2011 the IASB had issued the following accounting standards These are effective on 1 January 2013, subject to EU
endorsement, unless otherwise indicated

- IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements which replaces requirements in |AS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements and 5IC 12
Consolidation - Special Purpose Entities. This introduces new critenia to determine whether entities in which The Group has interests should
be consolidated The Group 1s considering the impact of the new standard and i1s currently unable to provide an estimate of the financial
effects of its adoption,
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- IFRS 11 Jount Arrangements, which replaces 1AS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures, This specifies the accounting for joint arrangements whether
these are [oint operations or joint ventures |t s not expected to have a material impact on The Group,

- IFRS 12 Disclosures of Interests in Other Entitles This specifies the required disclosures in respect of interests in, and nsks ansing, from
subsidianes, joint ventures, associates and structured entities whether consolidated or not. As a disclosure only standard 1t will have no
financial impact,

- IFRS 13 Fair Value Measuremment. This provides comprehensive guidance on how to calculate the fair value of financial and non-financial
assets and liabilities. It is not expected to have a material impact on The Group financial statements,

- |1AS 19 Employee Benefits (Revised 2011) This requires that actuanal gains and losses arising from defined benefit pension schemes are
recognised in full Previously The Group deferred these over the remaining average service lives of the employees (the ‘corridor’ approach)
See Note 37 for more Informatlon and an estimate of the financial effects of adoption, and

- |AS 32 and IFRS 7 Amendments Offsetting Financial Assets and Financlal Liabllities. The circumstances in which netting is permitted have
been clanfied and disclosures on offsetting have been considerably expanded The amendments on offsetting are effective from 1 January
2014 and those on disclosures from 1 January 2013

In 2009 and 2010, the IASB Issued IFRS 9 Financial Instrurments which contains new requirements for accounting for financial assets and liabilities,
and will contain new requirements for impairment and hedge accounting, replacing the corresponding requirements in IAS 39 It will lead to
significant changes in the way that The Group accounts for financial instruments The key changes issued and proposed relate to

- Financiat assets Financial assets will be held at either falr value or amortised cost, except for equity investments not held for trading, which
may be held at fair value through other comprehensive income,

- Financial habilities Gains and losses on far value changes in own credit ansing on non-derivative financlal liabilities designated at fair value
through profit or loss will be exciuded from the Income Statement and instead taken to other comprehensive income,

- Impairment Expected losses {rather than only Incurred losses) will be reflected tin impairment allowances for financial assets that are not
classified as fair value through profit or loss, and

- Hedge accounting Hedge accounting will be more closely aligned with financial risk management

Adoption is not mandatory until periods beginming on or after 1 January 2015, subject to EU endorsernent. Earlier adoption s possible, subject to
endorsement and finalisation of the standards At this stage, it 1s not possible to fully determine the potential financial impacts of adoption of IFRS
9 on The Group

In addition, the 1ASB has indicated that it will issue a new standard on accounting for leases Under the proposals, lessees would be required to
recognise assets and liabihties arising from both operating and finance leases on the balance sheet The IASB also plans to issue new standards on
insurance contracts and revenue recognition The Group will consider the financlal impacts of these new standards as they are finalised

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with IFRS requires the use of estmates It also requires management to exercise judgernent
in applying the accounting policies The key areas Involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions are
significant to the consolhdated and individual financial statements are highlighted under the relevant note Critical accounting estimates and
judgements are disclosed in

Page Page
Credit in charges and impairment on avaiable for 117 Goodwill and intangble assats 157
sale assets
Tax 120 Prowisions 163
Available for sale assets 135 Retirement benefit obligations 183
Fair value of financial instruments 136

6 Other disclosures

To improve transparency and ease of reference, by concentrating related information in one place, and to reduce duphcation, certain disclosures
required under IFRS have been Included within the Risk management and Financial review section as follows

- segmental report:ng on pages $to 10,

- credit fisk, on pages 34 to 69, including exposures to selected countries,

- market nisk, on pages 70 to 76,

- funding nsk-capital resources, on page 77, and

- funding nsk -liquidity risk, on pages 73 to 94

These are covered by the Audit opinlon included on page 104
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Performance
The notes included in this section focus on the results and performance of Barclays Information on the
income generated, expenditure incurred, segmental performance, tax and dividends are included here.

2 Segmental reporting

Presentation of segmental reporting

The Group's segmental reporting 1s in accordance with IFRS 8 Operating Segments Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the Executive Commuttee, which is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments and has been identfied as the chief operating decision maker All transactions between business segments are conducted on
an arm’s length basis, with intra-segment revenue and costs being eiminated in Head Office Income and expenses directly assaciated with each
segment are included in determining business segment performance

An analysis of The Group's performance by business segment and income by geographic segment 1s included on pages 9 and 10

3 Net interest income

Accounting for interest income and expense

The Group applies IAS 39 Ffinancial instruments Recogrition and Measurement Interest ncome on loans and advances at amortised cost, available
for sale debt investments, and interest expense on financial liabilives held at amorused cost, are calculated using the effective interest method
whuch allocates interest, and direct and incremental fees and costs, over the expected iives of the assets and habilities

The effective interest method requires The Group to estimate future cash flows, tn some cases based on its experience of customers’ behaviour,
considening all contractual terms of the financial nstrument, as well as the expected lives of the assets and liabilities Due to the large number of
products and types {both assets and liabilities), there are ne individual estimates that are materia! to the results or financial pesition

2011 2010
£m £m
Cash and balances with central banks 392 21
Available for sale investments 2,137 1,483
Loans and advances to banks 350 440
Loans and advances to customers 17,271 17,677
Other 439 164
Interest income 20,589 20,035
Deposits from banks (366) (370)
Customer accounts (2,531) {1,415)
Debt secunities in 1ssue (3,524) {3,632)
Subordinated liabilities (1,813) (1,778)
Other (159) (322)
Interest expense (8,393) (7.517)
Net interest income 12,196 12,518

Interest income includes £243m (2010 £213m) accrued onimparred loans

Other interest ncome principally includes interest income relating to reverse repurchase agreements and hedging activity Simularly, other interest
expense principally includes interest expense relating to repurchase agreements and hedging activity

Included in net interest income 1s hedge ineffectiveness as detailed on page 134
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4 Net fee and commission income

Accounting for net fee and commission income
The Group applies IAS 18 Revenue Fees and commussions charged for services prowvided or received by The Group are recogmsed as the services
are provided, for example on completion of the underlying transaction

201 2010

£m £m

Banking, investment management and credit related fees and commussions 9,958 10,142
Brokerage fees 87 77
Foreign exchange commission 163 149
Fee and commission income 10,208 10,368

Fee and commission expense (1.586) {1,497)
Net fee and commission income 8,622 8,871

5 Net trading income

Accounting for net trading income
In accordance with IAS 39, trading posittons are held at fair value and the resulting gamns and losses are Included in the Income statement, together
with interest and dividends arising from long and short positions and funding costs relating to trading activities

Income arises from the sale and purchase of trading pesitions, margins which are achieved through market-making and customer business, and
from changes in far value caused by movements in interest and exchange rates, equity prices and other market variables

Own credit gains/(losses) anse from the fair valuation of financial abilities designated at fair value through profit or loss See Note 17 Financial
liabilities designated at fair value

20 2010

£m Em

Trading Income 5,030 7,689
QOwn credit gain 2,708 391
Net trading income 7.738 8,080

included within net trading income were losses of £16m (2010- £32m gain) on financial assets designated at fair value and gains of £3,850m
{2010 £903m loss} on financial hiabilities designated at fair value

& Net investment Income

Accounting for net investment income
Dividends are recognised when the right to receive the dividend has been established Other accounting policies relating to net investment income
are set out In Note 16, Avallable for sale financial investments, and Note 14, Financizl assets designated at fair value

201 2010

£m £m

Net gain from disposal of available for sale assets 1,652 1,027
Dividend income 139 129
Net gain from financial instruments designated at fair value 287 274
Other investment income 244 60

Net investment Income 2322 1,490
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7 Credit impairment charges and impairment on avallable for sale assets

Accounting for the impairment of financial assets

Loans and other assets held at amortised cost

in accordance with 1AS 39, The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is objective evidence that loan assets or available for sale
financial investments (debt or equity) will not be recovered in full and, wherever necessary, recognises an imparment less In the income statement.

An impairment loss 15 recognised if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of events that have occurred and these have adversely

impacted the estimated future cash flows from the assets These events include

- becoming aware of significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor,

- a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal payments,

- The Group, for economic or legal reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, grants a concession that it would not ctherwise
consider,

- it becomes probable that the borrower will enter barkruptcy or other financial reorganisation,

- the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties, and

- observable data at a portfolio level indicating that there 1s a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, although the decrease
cannot yet be ascribed to individual financial assets in the portfolio — such as adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers in the
portfolic or national or local economic conditions that correlate with defaults on the assets in the portfolio

Impairment assessments are conducted individually for significant assets, which compnise all whalesale customer loans and larger retail business
loans and collectively for smaller loans and for portfolio level nisks, such as country or sectoral nsks For the purposes of the assessment, loans with
similar credit nisk characteristics are grouped together — generally on the basis of their product type, iIndustry, geographical location, collaterat type,
past due status and other factors relevant to the evaluation of expected future cash flows

The impairment assessment includes estimating the expected future cash flows from the asset or The Group of assets, which are then discounted
using the onginal effective interest rate caleulated for the asset If this 15 lower than the carrying value of the asset or the portfolio, an impairment
allowance is raised

If. \n a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurnng after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recogrised impairment loss is reversed by adjusting the allowance account The amount of the reversal
1s recogrused in the income statement

Following impairment, interest income continues to be recognised at the original effective interest rate on the restated carrying amount

Uncollectable loans are written off against the related allowance for foan impairment on completion of The Group’s internal processes and all
recoverable amounts have been collected Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to the iIncome statement

Avarlable for sale financial assets

Impairment of available for sale debt instruments

Debt instruments are assessed for impairment in the same way as loans If impairment is deemed to have accrued, the cumulative decline in the fair
value of the instrument that has previously been recognised in equity is removed from equity and recogrused in the income staternent This may be
reversed if there is ewidence that the circumstances of the issuer have improved

Impairment of available for sale equity instruments

Where there has been a prolonged or significant decline in the fair value of an equity Instrument below its acquisition cost, 1t 1s deemed to be
impaired The cumulative net loss that has been previously recogmsed directly in equity 15 removed from equity and recognised in the income
statement

Increases in the fair value of equity instruments after impairment are recognised directly in other comprehensive income Further declines in the fair
value of equity instruments after impairment are recognised in the income statement
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7 Credit impairment charges and impairment on available for sale assets {(continued)

201 2010
£m £m

New and increased impairment allowances 4,962 6,939
Releases (931} {1,189)
Recovenes (265) (201)
Impairment charges on loans and advances 3,766 5,549
Charges in respect of prowision for undrawn contractually committed facilities and guarantees provided 24 76
Loan impairment 3,790 5,625
impairment charges on available for sale assets 60 51
Impairment releases cn reverse repurchase agreements {48) (4)
Credit impairment charges and other provisions 3,802 5672
Impairment of investment in BlackRock, Inc 1,800 -

Loan impairment fell 33% to £3,790m, reflecting generally Improving underlying trends across the majority of retail and wholesale bustnesses
Retail impairment charges reduced 27%, principally relating to Barclaycard, UKRBB and Africa RBB Wholesale impairment charges reduced 41%,
principally reflecting lower charges in Spain and in Barclays Capital, including a release of £223m relating to the loan to Protium which has now

been repaid

As at 30 September 2011, an impalrment charge of £1,800m was recogmsed resulting from an assessment that there was objective ewidence that

The Group's available for sale equity investment In BlackRock, inc was impaired The impairment reflects the recycling through the income

statement of the cumulative reduction in market value previously recognised In the available for sale reserve, since The Group’s acquisition of its

holding In BlackRock, Inc. as part of the sale of Barclays Global Investors on 1 December 2009

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The calculation of the impairment allowance involves the use of judgement, based on The Group's experience of managing credit risk Within the
retail and small businesses portfolios, which comprise large numbers of small homogeneous assets with sirmilar risk characteristics where credit
scoring techniques are generally used, statistical techmques are used to calculate impairment allowances on a portfolio basis, based on historical
recovery rates and assumed emergence periods These statistical analyses use as prmary Inputs the extent to which accounts in the portfolio are in
arrears and historical information on the eventual losses encountered from such delinquent portfolios There are many such models in use, each
tailored to a product, ine of business or customer category Judgement and knowledge Is needed in selecting the statistical methods to use when
the models are developed or revised The impairment allowance reflected in the financial statements for these portfolios 1s therefore considered to

be reasonable and supportable

For individually significant assets, impairment allowances are calculated on an individual basls and all relevant considerations that have a bearing
on the expected future cash flows are taken into account (for exarnple, the business prospects for the customner, the realisable value of collateral,
The Group's position relative to other claimants, the reliability of customer information and the likely cost and duration of the work-out process)
The level of the impairment allowance is the difference between the value of the discounted expected future cash flows {discounted at the loan's
original effective interest rate), and its carrying amount Subjective judgements are made in the calcufation of future cash flows Furthermore,

Judgements change with time as new infarmation becomes available or as work-out strategies evolve, resulting in frequent revisions to the

impairment allowance as individual decisions are taken Changes in these estimates would result in a change in the allowances and have a direct

impact on the impawrment charge

8 Administration and general expenses

201 2010

£m £m

Property and equipment 1,763 1,813
Outsourcing and professional services 1,864 1,704
Operating lease rentals 659 637
Marketing, advertising and sponsorshlp 585 631
Commumications, subscriptions, publications and stationery 740 750
Travel and accommodation 328 358
Other administration and general expenses 400 563
Impairment of property, equipment and intangible assets (excluding goodwl) 12 125
Administration and general expenses 6351 6,581
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8 Administration and general expenses (continued)
Auditors’ remuneration
Auditors’ remuneration 1s included within the outsourcing and professional services costs above and compnises

Audit Taxation Other

Audit  related services services Total
£m £m £m £m £m

2011
Audit of The Group's annual accounts 13 - - - 13
Other services:
Fees payable for the Company's associates pursuant to legislation® 26 - - - 26
Other services supplied pursuant to such legislation® - 3 - - 3
Other services relating to taxation
- compliance services - - 5 - 5
- adwvisory services® - - 1 - 1
Services refating to corporate finance transactions entered into or proposed to be entered
into by or on behalf of the Company or any of its associates? _ R . 2 2
Cther - 3 - 1
Total auditors' rermnuneration 39 6 6 3 54
2010
Audit of The Group's annual accounts 12 - - - 12
Cther services
Fees payable for the Company's associates pursuant to legislation® 26 - - - 26
Other services supphed pursuant to such legislation® - 3 - - 3
Other services refating to taxation
- compliance services - - 7 - 7
- advisory services® - - 1 - 1
Services relating to corporate finance transactions entered into or proposed to be entered
nto by or on behalf of the Company or any of its associates® _ . . 1 1
Other - 4 - 2 6
Total auditors’ remuneration 38 7 3 3 56

The figures shown in the above table relate to fees paid to PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP and its associates for continuing operations of business Fees
paid to other auditors not associated with PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP in respect of the audit of the Company’s subsidiaries were £6m (2010 £4m)

Notes
a  Comprises the fees for the statutory audit of the subsidianies and associated pension schemes both inside and outside Great Britain and fees for the work performed by associates of

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP in respect of the consolidated financial statements of the Company The fees relating to the audit of the associated pension schemes were £0 2m
(2010 £04m)
b Comprises services in relation to statutory and regulatory filings These include audit services for the review of the interim financial information under the Listing Rules of the UK
listing authority
Includes consultation on tax matters tax advice relating to transactions and other tax planning and advice
Comprises due diligence related to transactions and other work in connection with such transactions

an
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9 UK bank levy

UK legislation was enacted in july 2011 to introduce an annual bank levy, which applies to elements of The Group's consolidated habilities and equity
held as at the year end The levy has resulted in an additional charge to the Income statement of £325m, which was recognised as at 31 December
2011 and 1s presented within operating expenses The IFRS Interpretations Commuttee s considening the timing of recognition of the levy going
forward

10 Loss on disposal of subsidiarles, associates and jaint ventures

On 25 October 2011, Barclays completed the disposal of Barclays Bank Russia (BBR) as part of refocusing its Russian activities A loss en disposal of
£73m has been recognised in the incomne staternent within Barclays Corporate and the accumulated foreign exchange losses of £23m, previously
recognised directly in equity, have been recycled through income within Head Office Functions

11 Tax

Accounting for income taxes

Barclays applies 1AS 12 Income Taxes in accounting for taxes on income Income tax payable on taxable profits ("Current Tax') is recogmsed as an
expense in the period in which the profits anse Withholding taxes are also treated as income taxes Income tax recoverable on tax allowable losses 15
recogrised as a current tax asset only to the extent that it i1s regarded as recoverable by offset against taxable profits ansing in the current or prior
periad Current tax s measured using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date

Deferred tax i1s provided in full, using the liability methed, on temporary differences anising from the differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and thewr carrying ameunts in the conschdated financial statements Deferred tax s determined using tax rates and legislation enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date which are expected to apply when the deferred tax asset is realised or the deferred tax hability 1s
settled Deferred tax assets and labilittes are only offset when there is both a legal nght to set-off and an intention to settle on a net basis

2011 2010
£m £m
Current tax charge
Current year 2,690 1,413
Adjustment for prior years (61) {20)
2,629 1,393
Deferred tax (credit)/charge
Current year (631) 118
Adjustment for prior years (70) 5
(701} 123
Tax charge 1,928 1,516

On 27 February 2012, the UK tax authority, HMRC announced its intention to implement new tax legislation, to apply retrospectively from 1 Decernber
2011 that would result in the £1,130m gams on debt buy-backs becormng fully taxable Barclays voluntanly disclosed the transaction to HMRC and, as
at 31 December 2011, held a provision for the potential tax payable in refation to the debt buy-back. If the legislation had been enacted as at 31
December 2011 it would not have had a material impact on The Group's 2011 results

Tax relating to each component of other comprehansive income can be found in the consohidated statement of comprehensive income, which includes
within Other, a tax charge of £74m (2010 £59m credit) principally relating to share based payments
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11 Tax {continued)
The table below shows the reconcibiation between the actual tax charge and the tax charge that would result from applying the standard UK
corperation tax rate to The Group's profit before tax.

2011 2010
£m £m
Profit before tax from continuing operations 5,974 6,079
Tax charge based on the standard UK corporation tax rate of 26 5% (2010 28%) 1,583 1,702
Effact of non-UK profits or losses at local statutory tax rates different from the UK statutory tax rate* 190 108
Non-creditable taxes® 567 454
Non-taxable gains and income (519) (576)
Impact of share pnce movements on share-based payments 147 41
Deferred tax assets (previously not recognised) / not recognised (816} (160)
Change in tax rates 17 34
Non-deductible impairment charges, loss on disposals and UK bank levy 770 68
Other items including non-deductible expenses 120 (140)
Adjustments in respect of pnor years {131) {15)
Tax charge 1,928 1,516
Effective tax rate 32% 25%
Current tax assets and liabilities
Moverments on current assets and habilities were as follows
2011 2010
£.m £m
The Group
Assets 196 349
Liabilittes (646) {964)
As at 1 January (450) (615)
Income statement (2,629) (1,393)
Equity 104 180
Corporate income tax paid 1.686 1,430
Other movements 266 (52)
(1,023) {450)
Assets 374 196
Liabilities (1,397) {646)
As at 31 December (1,023) {450)
Not:

es

a in 2010 £205m was previously included in the effect of non-UK profits or losses at local statutory rates that differ from the UK rate and related to a deferred tax benefit on the
rearganisation of Spanish securitisation financing This benefit is now included in other items including non-deductible expenses

b This is a new item in the reconciliation to show the impact of non-creditable taxes mainly relating to the impact of wathholding taxes. In 2010 £420m was previously included In non-
taxable gains and income, £72m was praviously included In other iterns including non-deducuble expenses and £(38)m was previously included in the effect of non-UK profits or
losses at local statutory rates that differ from the UK rate

¢ This s a new stem In the reconciliation to show the impact of non-deductible impairments charges, loss on disposals and the UK bank levy In 2010 non-deductible impairment

charges of £68m was previously included in other items including non-deductible expenses
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11 Tax {continued}

201 200
£m £m
The Bank
Assets 161 221
Liabihties (126) (277)
As at 1 January 35 (56}
income statement (696) (161)
Equity 120 145
Corparate income tax paid (239) AN
Other movements (33) 16
(813) 35
Assets 166 161
Liabilittes (979) (126)
As at 31 December (813) 35

Other movements include current tax amounts relating to acquisitrons, disposals and exchange

Deferred tax assets and liabilities
The deferred tax amounts on the balance sheet, after offsetting asset and hability balances where there is a legal nght to set-off and an intention to
settle on a net basis, were as follows

The Group The Bank
2011 2010 201 2010
£m £m £m £m

Barclays Group US Inc tax group (BGUS}) 1,039 B75 - -
US Branch of Barclays Bank PLC {US Branch) 704 197 704 197
Spamish tax group 696 49 311 271
Other 571 549 89 760
Deferred tax asset 3,010 2,517 1,104 1,228
Deferred tax liabifity {695) (514) (348) (3)
Net deferred tax 2,315 2,003 756 1,225

The deferred tax asset increased by 20% in 2011 largely due to the improved financial performance in the US Branch resulting in a deferred tax asset in
2011 not previously recognised There Is no net deferred tax asset in the UK

US deferred tax assets in BGUS and the US Branch

The deferred tax asset in BGUS and the US Branch includes amounts relating to tax losses of £329rm and £603m respectively, which first arose in 2007
In accordance with US tax rules tax losses can be carried forward and offset against profits for a perod of 20 years and therefore any unused tax

losses may begin to expire in 2028 The remaining balance primarily relates to temporary differences which are not time imited The deferred tax asset
for the US Branch has been measured using a marginal tax rate being the excess of the US tax rate (a combination of Federal, City and State taxes) over
the UK statutory rate

BGUS is forecast to return to profitability 1n 201 2, primarily driven by BCl, its US Broker Dealer, with tax losses expected to be fully utiised by 2014
2011 losses were dniven in a large part by macroecanomic conditions, affected by the European sovereign debt crisis and regulatory uncertainty, as
opposed to underfying business strategy A significant proportion of prior period losses related to real estate portfolios and businesses that have now
been sold or liquidated

Profit forecasts reflect the continued focus on operating as a prermier full service global investment bank. They also reflect markets re-stabilising and
returning to conditions similar to those in 2010 Included in these projections are revenue assumptions based on maintaining our current share in FICC
and certain growth prospects that exist in [BD and Equities Cost projections reflect savings based on continwing intiatives 1n this area as well as further
costs associated with increased levels of hquidity for the US business As with any current forecast, there are significant uncertainties in relation to
macroeconomic conditions and regulatory requirements A 20% reduction in forecasted profit would not extend the recovery period The assumptiens
used in the profit forecasts do not include any incremental tax planning strategies
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11 Tax (continued)

The tax losses in the US Branch primartily relate to losses on legacy credit market exposures, the majority of which the US Branch no longer holds The
tax losses are projected to be fully utilised by 2016, based on profit forecasts covering the peniod from 2012 to 2014, with no profit growth assurmed
after 2014 The underlying assurmptions used in the farecast are consistent with those used for BGUS A 20% reduction in forecasted profit would
extend the recovery penod by 1 year to 2017 The assumptions used in the profit forecasts do not include any incremental tax planming strategies

Spain deferred tax asset
The deferred tax asset in Spain includes £417m relating to tax losses incurred in 2010 and 2011 In accordance with Spanish tax rules tax losses can be

carried forward and offset against profits for a period of 18 years The remaining balance primarily relates to temporary differences which are not time
limited

The 2010 losses are expected to be fully utilsed by 2021 and the 2011 losses by 2024 Additional tax losses are anticipated to anise in 2012 and 2013
The recoverability of the deferred tax asset has been determined using business profit forecasts covering the perod from 2012 to 2015, witha
subsequent annual growth rate of 1% pa The forecasts are consistent with those used for the purposes of the goodwill impairment assessment They
reflect the expected benefits from changes in product mix and improved product pricing following the restructuning of the business during 2011, as
well as impairment levels coming back into ine with histoncal loan [oss rates

A 20% reduction in forecasted profits for 2015 would extend the recovery period of the 2010 and 2011 losses by 2 years to 2023 and 2026,
respectively A reduction in profits of more than this may result in a partial impairment of the deferred tax asset depending upon the tming of the
reversal of deductible temporary differences The forecast assumptions do not include any incremental tax planning strategies

Other deferred tax assets

The deferred tax asset of £571m (2010 £949m) in other entities includes £144m (2010 £700m) relating to tax losses carried forward Entities which
have suffered a loss in either the current or prior year have a total deferred tax asset of £189rm (2010 £344m) relating to tax losses carried forward and
temporary differences Recognition 1s based on profit forecasts which indicate that it is probable that the entities will have future taxable profits against
which the losses and temporary differences can be utiised
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11 Tax {continued)

The tables below show movements on deferred tax assets and liabilities duning the year for The Group and the Bank. The amounts are different from
those disclosed in the balance sheet as they are presented before offsetting asset and liability balances where there is a legal nght to set-off and an

intention to settle on a net basis

The Group
Fixed asset  Available Retirement Loan Tax losses
timing for sale Cash flow benefit impairment Other carried Share based
differences investments hedges obligations allowance provisions forward payments Other Total
£m £m £m £m Em £m £m £m £m £m
Assets 134 76 - 1s 345 162 1.558 372 668 3,433
Liabilities {558) {43) (109) - - - - - (7200 (1.430)
At 1 January 2011 {424) 33 (109) ns 345 162 1,558 372 (52) 2,003
Income staternent 267 10 - (180) 91 110 (54) 37 420 70
Equity - 73 (393) - - - - (82) 3 (399)
Other movements 7 5 13 15 {5) {11) (1) 29 (32) 10
{150} 121 {489) {47) 431 261 1,493 356 339 2,315
Assets 254 186 - 85 431 261 1,493 356 1,435 4,501
Liabilities (404) (65) (489) (132) - - - - (1,096)  (2,186)
At 31 December
2011 (150) 121 {489) {47) 411 261 1,493 3156 339 2,315
Assets M7 28 139 219 379 94 1,038 335 472 3,022
Liabilties (660) {54) (278) - - - - - (197)  {1,189)
At 1 January 2010 (543) (26) (139) 219 379 294 1,038 336 275 1,833
Income staternent 42 12 (€E)] (101) {46) {151) 591 25 (492) (123)
Equity 53 38 - - - - 12 (44) 59
Other movements 77 {6) (5) - 12 19 {71) {1) 209 234
(424) 33 (109) 118 345 162 1,558 372 {52) 2,003
Assets 134 76 - 18 345 162 1,558 372 668 3.433
Liabihties (558) {43) (10%) - - - - - (720) {1.430)
At 31 December
2010 (424) 33 (109) 118 345 162 1,558 372 (52) 2,003
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11 Tax (continued)
The Bank Tax
Fixed asset Available Retirement Loan losses Share
timing for sale Cash flow benefit impairment Other  carrled based
differences investments hedges obligations  allowance prowisions forward payments Other Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Assats - 1 - 54 138 - 983 24 215 1,415
Liabilities (44) - (64) - - (47) - - (35) (190)
At 1 January 2011 (44) 1 (64) 54 138 47) 983 24 180 1,225
Income statement 117 - - (184) 147 97 (73} 3 {159) (52)
Equity - (6) (394) - - . - (10 8 (402)
Other movements 4 (1) - 16 {15) (1) 147 30 {195) (15)
77 (6) {458) (114) 270 49 1,057 47 (166) 756
Assets 77 - - - 270 49 1,057 47 158 1,658
Liabilities - (6) {458) (114) - - - - (324) (902)
At 31 December
2011 77 () (458) (114) 270 49 1,057 47 (166) 756
Assets 36 - B 142 170 5 368 44 121 932
Liabilities - (i9) (140) - - - - - (38) (197)
At 1 [anuary 2010 36 {(19) (140) 142 170 51 368 44 83 735
Income staterment (45) 5 - (88} (43) {100) 684 {2) 17 428
Equity - 15 77 - - - - 4 {7) 89
Other movements (35) - (1) - 11 2 (69) (22) 87 (27)
(44) 1 (64) 54 138 (47) 983 24 180 1,225
Assets - 1 - 54 138 - 983 24 215 1,415
Liabilities (44) - (64) - - (47) - - {35) (190)
At 31December
2010 (44) 1 (64) 54 138 (47) 983 24 180 1,225

Other movernents include deferred tax ameunts relating to acquisitions, disposals and exchange

The amount of deferred tax liability expected to be settled after more than 12 months for The Group 1s £1,044m (2010 £911m) and for the Bank s
£958m (2010 £1,303m) The amount of deferred tax asset expected to be recovered after more than 12 months for The Group is £2,050m (2010
£1,645m) and for the Bank 1s £1,172m (2010 £165m) These amounts are before offsetting asset and hability balances where there s a legal nght to
set-off and an intention to settle on a net basis

Unrecognised deferred tax
For The Group, deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of gross deductible temporary differences of £1,163m (2010 £506m), and
gross tax losses of £2,299m (2010 £6,178m) which includes capital losses of £2,034m (2010- £1,607m) Tax losses of £97m (2010 £70m) expire
within 5 years, £101m (2010 £239m) expire within 6 to10 years, £5m (2010 £4,262m) expire within 11 to 20 years and £2,096m (2010 £1,607m)
can be carried forward indefirtely Unrecogrused losses that expire within 11 to 20 years have decreased because of an increased recognition of the
deferred tax asset in the US Branch as a result of improved financial performance Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these
items because it 1s not probable that future taxable profits and gains will be available aganst which The Group can utilise benefits

For the Bank, deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of gross deductible temporary differences of £1,125m (2010 £436m), and gross

tax losses of £260m {2010 £4,844m) which includes capital fosses of £190m (2010 £513m) Tax losses of £24m (2010 Enif) expire within 5 years,

£20m {2010 £70m) expire within & to10 years, £l (2010 £4,262m) expire within 11 to 20 years and £216m (2010 £513m) can be carried forward
indefirutely Unrecognised losses that expire within 11 to 20 years have decreased because of an increased recognition of the deferred tax asset in the
US Branch as a result of improved financial performance Deferred tax assets have not been recogrised in respect of these items because 1t is not
probable that future taxable profits and gains will be available against which the Bank can utilise benefits

Deferred tax is not recognised in respect of The Group's investments in subsidiaries and branches where remittance is not contemplated and for those
associates and interests in joint ventures where it has been determined that no addtional tax will anse The aggregate amount of temporary differences

for which deferred tax habilities have not been recognised 1s £703m (2010 £530m)
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11 Tax {continued)

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous junsdictions and the calculation of The Group’s tax charge and worldwide provisions for income
taxes necessarily involves a degree of estmation and judgernent. There are many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax treatment Is
uncertain and cannot be determined until resolution has been reached with the relevant tax authority The Group recogmises liabilities for anticipated
tax audt issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due after taking Inta account external advice where appropriate Where the final
tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the current and deferred income
tax assets and Liabilities in the period in which such determination is made These nisks are managed in accordance with The Group’s Tax Risk
Framewaork.

Deferred tax assets have been recogrised based on business profit forecasts Further detail on the recognition of deferred tax assets are provided on
page 122

12 Dividends on Ordinary Shares

201 2010
£m £m

Dividends paid during the year
Final dividend 288 -
Interim dividend 355 235
Total 543 235

Ordinary dividends were paid to enable Barclays PLC to fund its dividend to shareholders

Dwdends per ordinary share for 2011 were 15p {2010+ 10p) Dwvidends paid on the 4 75% €100 preference shares amounted to £408 27 per share
(2010- £433 27) Dividends paid on the 4 875% €100 preference shares amounted to £412 64 per share (2010- £408 11) Dwidends paid on the 6 0%
£100 preference shares amounted to £600 00 per share (2010 £60000) Dividends paid on the 6 278% US$100 preference shares amounted to
£394 48 per share {2010 £413 25) Dividends paid on the 6 625% US$0 25 preference shares amounted to £1 04 per share (2010 £109) Dividends
pawd on the 7 1% US$0 25 preference shares amounted to £1 11 per share (2010 £1 17) Dividends paid on the 7 75% US$0 25 preference shares
armounted to £1 22 per share (2010- £1 28) Dividends paid on the B 125% US$0 25 preference shares amounted to £1 28 per share (2010 £1 34)

Dividends paid on preference shares amounted to £467m {2010 £485m) Dividends paid on other equity instruments amounted to £72m {2010
£160m)
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Assets and liabilities held at fair value

This section presents information regarding assets and habilities The Group holds and recogrises at fair value
Fair value refers to the price that would be received to sell an asset or the price that would be paid to transfer
a hiability in an arms length transaction with a willing counterparty which may be an observable market price
or, where there 1s no quoted price for the instrument, may be estimated based on available market data
Detail regarding the Group's approach to managing market risk can be found on pages 70 to 76.

13 Trading portfolio

Accounting for trading portfolio assets and hiabilities
In accordance with 1AS 39, all assets and liabilities held for trading purposes are held at fair value with gains and losses in the changes in fair value
taken to the Income statement 1n net trading income (Note 5)

The Group The Bank
201 2010 2011 2010

£m £m £m £m
Debt secunties and other eligible bills 123,364 139,240 77,279 86,328
Equity securities 24,861 25,676 3,944 4,901
Traded loans 1,374 2,170 1,361 2,500
Commodities 2,584 1,844 2,464 1,305
Trading portfolio assets 152,183 168,930 85,048 95,034
Debt securities and other eligible bills (35,063) (64,607) (23,347) (40,677)
Equity Securities (10,741) (7,568} (5,205) (3,157)
Commodities (83) {518) (80) (518)
Trading portfolio liabities (45,887) {72,693) (28,632) {44,352)

14 Financsal assets designated at fair value

Accounting for financial assets designated at fair value

tn accordance with IAS 39, financial assets may be designated at farr value, with gains and losses taken to the incorne statement in net investment
income (Note 6) The Group has the ability to do this when holding the instruments at fair value reduces an accounting mismatch (caused by an
offsetting liability or asset being held at far value), 1s managed by The Group on the basis of its fair value, or includes terms that have substantve
dervative charactenistics (Note 15 Derivative financial instruments)

The Group The Bank

2011 2010 2011 2010
£m £m £m fm

Loans and advances 21,960 22352 21,899 25,093
Debt secunties 2,095 1,918 19,198 783
Equity secunties 4,018 5,685 36 1
Reverse repurchase agreements 5779 7,559 2,492 2,489
Customers' assets held under investment contracts 1,302 1,429 - -
Other financial assets 1,795 2,542 927 805
Financial assets designated at fair value 36,949 41,485 44,552 29,181

The total portfalio of linked habilities to customers under nvestment contracts also includes £379m (2010 £518m) of cash and bank balances
included within cash and balances at central banks The carrying value of the total portfolio assets equals the carrying value of the liabilities to
customers under investment contracts as shown in Note 17 Any change in the value of the assets results in an equal but opposite change in the
value of the amounts due to the policyholders Therefore, The Group 1s not exposed to the financial risks inherent in the investments

Credit nsk of loans and advances held at falr value and related credit denivatives
The following table shows the maximum exposure to credt nisk, the changes in fair value due to credit risk and the cumulative changes in fair value
since imtial recognitton together with the amount by which related credit denvatives mitigate this nsk.
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14 Financial assets designated at fair value (continued)

The Group ___The Bank
Changes in fair value Cumulative changes Changes In fair value Cumulative changes
Maximum exposure during the year in falr vatue from  Maximum exposure during the year in falr value from
as at 31 December ended Inception as at 31 December ended inception

2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010

Loans and advances
designated at farr value,
attributable to credit risk 21,960 22,352 {75) 326 (5,070) (4,995) 21,899 25093 (94) 298 (3,492) (3,398)

Fair value of reiated credit
derivatives 1,198 2,206 138 (481) 401 263 1,198 1,977 138 (481) 384 246

15 Derivative financial instruments

Derlvative nstruments are contracts whose value 1s derived from one or more underlying financial instruments or indices defined in the contract.
They include swaps, forward rate agreements, futures, options and combinations of these instruments and primarily affect The Group's net interest
income, net trading income, net fee and commssion income and dervative assets and liabilities Motional amounts of the contracts are not recorded
on the balance sheet The Group's objectives and policies on managing the risks that arlse in connection with dervatives, including the policies for
hedging, are discussed in the Risk Management section on pages 70 to76 Trading derlvatives are managed within the Group’s market risk
management policies, which are outhned on pages 27 to 99

The Group’s exposure to credit risk ansing from dervative contracts, as well as the Group's participation In exchange traded and over the counter
derivatives markets are outlined in the Credit Risk section on page 34

Accounting for derivatives

The Group applies IAS 39 All denivative instruments are held at fair value through profit or loss, except for derivatives held for risk management
purposes 1n an effective hedge relationship (see hedge accounting below) This includes terms included in a contract or other financial asset or
hability {the host), which, had it been a standalone contract, would have had met the definition of a derivative These are separated from the host and
accounted for in the same way as a derivative

Hedge accounting

The Group applies hedge accounting to represent, to the maximum possible extent permitted under accounting standards, the economic effects of
its Interest and currency nsk management strategies Derivatives are used to hedge Interest rate, exchange rate, commodity, and equity exposures
and exposures to certain indices such as house price indices and retail price indices related to non-trading positions Where derivatives are held for
risk management purposes, and when transactions meet the required criteria for documentation and hedge effectiveness, The Group applies farr
value hedge accounting, cash flow hedge accounting, or hedging of a net investment in a foreign operation, as appropriate to the risks being hedged

Falr value hedge accounting

Changes in fair value of denivatives that qualify and are designated as fair value hedges are recorded In the income statement, together with changes
in the fair value of the hedged asset or hability that are attnibutable to the hedged risk. The fair value changes adjust the carrying value of the hedged
asset or fiabiiity held at amortised cost.

If hedge relationships no longer meet the criteria for hedge accounting, hedge accounting is discontinued For farr value hedges of interest rate risk,
the farr value adjustment to the hedged item is amortised to the iIncome statement over the period to maturity of the previously designated hedge
refationship using the effective interest method If the hedged item s sold or repaid, the unamortised falr value adjustment is recognised immediately
in the iIncome statement.

Cash flow hedge accounting

For qualifying cash flow hedges, the fair value gain or loss associated with the effective portion of the cash flow hedge is recogrused imtally in other
comprehensive Income, and then recycled to the income statement in the perieds when the hedged 1tem wall affect profit or loss Any ineffective
portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument i1s recogrnised in the income statement immediately

When a hedging instrument expires or 1s sold, or when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss
existing 1n equity at that time remains i1 equity and 15 recognised when the hedged item is ultimately recognised in the income statement. When a
forecast transaction i1s no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss that was recogmsed in equity s Immedsately transferred to the
income staterment

Hedges of net investments

The Croup’s net investments in foreign operations, including monetary tems accounted for as part of the net investment, are hedged for foreign
currency risks using both derwvatives and foreign currency borrowings. Hedges of net investments are accounted for similarly to cash flow hedges,
the effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is being recognised directly in other comprehensive income and the ineffective
portion being recognised immediately in the income statement. The cumulative gain or loss recognised in other comprehensive income Is recogmsed
in the income statement on the disposal or partial disposal of the foreign operatton, or other reductions in The Group's investment in the operation
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15 Derivative financial instruments (continued)

Types of derivatives held

Foreign exchange denivatives

The Croup's principal exchange rate related contracts are forward foreign exchange contracts, currency swaps and currency options Forward foreign
exchange contracts are agreements to buy or sell a specified quantity of foreign currency, usually on a specified future date at an agreed rate A
currency swap generally involves the exchange, or notional exchange, of equivalent amounts of two currencies and a commitment to exchange
interest periadically until the principal amounts are re-exchanged on a future date

Currency options provide the buyer with the nght, but not the obhigation, either to purchase or sell a fixed arnount of a currency at a specified
exchange rate on or before a future date As compensation for assuming the option nsk, the option writer generally receives a premium at the start of
the cption period

Currency denvatives are pnimarily designated as hedges of the foreign currency nsk of net investments in foreign cperations

Interest rate dervatives

The Group's principal interest rate related contracts are interest rate swaps, forward rate agreements, basis swaps, caps, floors and swaptions
Included in this product category are transactions that include combinations of these features An interest rate swap Is an agreement between two
parties to exchange fixed rate and floating rate interest by means of peniodic payments based upon a notional principal amount and the interest rates
defined in the contract Certain agreements combine interest rate and foreign currency swap transactions, which may or may not include the
exchange of principal amounts A basis swap 1s a form of interest rate swap, in which both parties exchange interest payments based on floating
rates, where the floating rates are based upon different underlying reference indices In a forward rate agreement, two parties agree a future
settlement of the difference between an agreed rate and a future interest rate, applied to a notional principal amount The settlement, which generally
occurs at the start of the contract period, 1s the discounted present value of the payment that would otherwise be made at the end of that period

Interest rate denivatives, designated as cash flow hedges, pnmanly hedge the exposure to cash flow variability from interest rates of vaniable rate
loans to banks and customers, variable rate debt secunties held and highly probable forecast financing transactions and renvestments

interest rate denvatives designated as fair value hedges pnimarily hedge the interest rate sk of fixed rate borrowings inissue, fixed rate loans to
banks and customers and investments in fixed rate debt secunties held

Credit derivatives

The Group’s principal credit denvative-related contracts include credit default swaps and total return swaps A credit dernivative is an arrangernent
whereby the credit nisk of an asset (the reference asset) is transferred to the seller of protection A credit default swap is a contract where the
protection seller receives premium or interest-related payments in return for contracting to make payments to the protection buyer upon a defined
credit event Credit events normally include bankruptcy, payment default on a reference asset or assets, or downgrades by a rating agency A total
return swap 1s an instrument whereby the seller of protection receves the full return of the asset, including both the income and change in the capital
value of the asset The buyer of the protection i return receives a predetermined amount

Equity denvatives

The Group's principal equity-related contracts are equity and stock index swaps and options (including warrants, which are equity options listed on
an exchange) An equity swap 1s an agreement between two parties to exchange periodic payments, based upon a notional principal amount, with
one side paying fixed or floating interest and the other side paying based on the actual return of the stock or stock index. An equity option provides
the buyer with the night, but not the obligation, either to purchase or sell a specified stock, basket of stocks or stock index at a speaified price or level
on or before a speaified date The Group also enters into fund-linked derivatives, being swaps and options whose underlyings include mutual funds,
hedge funds, indices and multi-asset portfolios

Commaodity derivatives
The Group’s principal commodity-related derivative contracts are swaps, options, forwards and futures The main commodities transacted are base
metals, precious metals, ol and oil-related products, power and natural gas
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15 Derlvative financial instruments (continued)

The Group’s total dervative asset and liability position as reparted on the balance sheet ts as follows

The Group The Bank
Fair value Fair value
Notional Notional
contract contract
amount Assets Liabilities amount Assets Liabilities
£m £m £m £m £m £fm
Year ended 31 December 2011
Total derivative assets/{liabilities) held for trading 43,095,991 535,306 (524,440) 42,835377 543,434 (532,017)
Total dervative assets/{labilities) held for nsk
management 243,534 3,658 (3,358) 237,538 3,487 (3,820)
Derivative assets/(llabilities) 43,339,525 538,964 (527,798) 43,072915 546,921 (535,837)
Year ended 31 December 2010
Total dervative assets/{liabilties) held for trading 48,517,204 418,586 {403,163) 48,268,152 439,763 (423,938)
Total derivative assets/(liabilities) held for risk
management 240,353 1,733 (2,353) 222,403 1,382 {2,305)
Derivative assets/({liabilities) 48,757,557 420,319 {405,516) 48,490,555 441,145 (426,243)

The fair value of gross derivative assets increased by 28% to £539bn (2010 £420bn) reflecting decreases i the major forward curves, offset by the
impact of optimisation initiatives Derwative asset exposure would be £492bn (2010 £378bn) lower than reported under IFRS if netting were
permitted for assets and habilities with the same counterparty or for which we hold collateral Dervative habilities would be £478bn (2010 £362bn)

lower reflecting counterparty netting and collateral placed
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15 Derivative financial instruments (continued)

The fair values and notional amounts of denivatives held for trading are set out in the following table

Derivatives held for trading The Group The Bank
Fair value Falr value

Notional Notional

contract contract

amount Assets Liablilities amount Assets Liabilities

£m £m £m £m £m £m

Year ended 31 December 2011
Foreign exchange derivatives
Forward foreign exchange 2,346,638 29,165 (26,968) 2,312,524 28,685 (26,055)
Cusrency swaps 1,158,267 27,388 (33,641) 1,128,168 26,637 (32,877)
OTC options bought and sold 713,690 7,269 (6,669} 711,489 7,239 {6,637)
OTC derivatives 4,218,595 63,822 (67,278} 4,152,181 62,561 (65,569)
Exchange traded futures and options — beught and
sold 234,279 - {2) 253,801 - -
Foreign exchange derivatives 4,452,874 63,822 (67,280} 4,405,382 62,561 {65,569)
Interest rate derivatives
Interest rate swaps 8,974,201 251,629 (240,849) 8,770,089 249,513 (238,468)
Forward rate agreements 4,556,842 3,249 {3,374) 4,218,994 2,372 (2,413)
OTC options bought and sold 5,426,331 117,689 (113,214) 5,412,639 117,599 (113.071)
OTC derwvatives 18,957,374 372,567 (357,437) 18,401,722 369,484 (353,952)
Exchange traded futures and options — bought and
sold 1,040,636 3 (3) 971,590 - -
Exchange traded swaps 15,543,970 - - 15,543,970 166 (304)
Interest rate derivatives 35,541,980 372,570 (357,440) 34,917,282 369,650 {354,256)
Credit denivatives
OTC swaps 1,666,786 60,481 (57,972) 1,649,880 60,433 (57.897)
Exchange traded credit default swaps 219,864 2,831 (3,376) 219,073 2,825 (3,390)
Credit derivatives 1,886,650 63,312 (61,348) 1,868,953 63,258 (61,287)
Equity and stock index derivatives
OTC options bought and sold 95,233 7,393 {10.768) 88,006 7,253 (10,219)
Equity swaps and forwards 167,098 2,516 (2,696) 43,167 2,355 (1,693)
OTC derivatives 262,331 9,909 {13,464) 131,173 9,608 (11,912)
Exchange traded futures and options — bought and
sold 237,779 3,293 (2,616) 82,584 - {4)
Equity and stock index derivatives 500,110 13,202 {16,080) 213,757 9,608 (11,916)
Commodity derivatives
OTC options bought and sold 91,573 2,810 (2,554) 84,131 2,806 (2,548}
Commodity swaps and forwards 300,100 17,778 {17,579) 299,271 17,724 (17,491)
OTC derivatives 391,673 20,588 {20,133) 383,402 20,530 (20,039)
Exchange traded futures and options - bought and
sold 322,704 1,812 (2,159) 322,704 1,813 (2,158)
Commodity derivatives 14377 22,400 (22,292) 706,106 22,343 (22,197)
Dernvatives with subsidiaries 723,297 16,014 (16,792}
Derivative assets/(liabilities) held for trading 43,095,991 535,306 {524,440) 42,835,377 543,434 {532,017}
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15 Derivative financial instruments {continued}

Denvatlves held for trading The Group The Bank
Far value Fair value
Notional Notional
contract contract
amount Assets Liabilities amount Assets Liabilities
£m £m £m £m £m £m

Year ended 31 December 2010

Fareign exchange derivatives

Forward foreign exchange 1,823,186 22,882 (22,674) 1,794,499 224381 (22,248)
Currency swaps 935,420 29,802 (32,433) 913,494 28,040 (30,647)
OTC options bought and sold 739,949 7,736 (7,034) 738,583 7,681 (7,008}
OTC derivatives 3,498,555 60,420 (62,141) 3,446,576 58,202 (59,903)
Exchange traded futures and options — bought and

sold 15,356 - - 15,356 - -
Foreign exchange derivatives 3,513,911 60,420 (62,141) 3,461,932 58,202 {59,503)
Interest rate derivatives

Interest rate swaps 10,316,455 202,050 (183,665) 10,124,429 199,367 (181,432)
Forward rate agreements 4,711,960 2,625 (2,881) 4,393,227 1,596 (1.686)
OTC options bought and sold 4,551,516 66,055 (65,395) 4,535,975 66,008 {65,360)
OTC dervatives 19,579,931 270,730 (251,941) 19,053,631 266,971 (248,478)
Exchange traded futures and options— bought and

sold 975,533 - - 927,145 - -
Exchange traded swaps 21,209,173 - - 21,209,145 - -
Interest rate derivatives 41,764,637 270,730 (251,941) 41,189,921 266,971 (248,478)
Credit derivatives

OTC swaps 1,780,264 45,977 (44.068) 1,778.812 46,054 (44.078)
Exchange traded credit default swaps 172,211 1,040 {976) 172,211 1,040 (976)
Credit derivatives 1,952.475 47,017 (45,044) 1,951,023 47,094 {45,054)
Equity and stock index derlvatives

OTC options bought and sold 118,363 9,340 (13.424) 106,796 9,137 {12,959}
Equity swaps and forwards 56,478 2,226 {2,359) 45,186 1,566 (1.519)
OTC derivatives 174,841 11,566 (15,783) 153,982 10,703 (14,478)
Exchange traded futures and options— bought and

sold 303,463 3,017 {2,816) 121,970 - (4)
Equity and stock index derlvatives 478,304 14,583 {18,599) 273,952 10,703 (14,482)
Commodity derivatives

OTC optlons bought and sold 93,937 3,778 {3,751) 82,220 3,764 (3.746)
Commadity swaps and forwards 326,336 18,743 {19,133) 325,448 18,567 (18,989)
OTC denvatives 420,273 22,521 (22,884) 417,668 22,331 (22,735)
Exchange traded futures and opticns — bought and

sold 387,604 3,315 {2,554) 387,144 3,315 {2.554)
Commodity derivatives 807,877 25,836 {25,438) 804,812 25,646 (25,289)
Derivatives with subsidiaries 586,512 31,147 (30,732)

Derivative assets/(liabilities) held for trading 48,517,204 418,586 (403,163) 48,268,152 439,763 (423,938)
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15 Derivative financial instruments (continued)
The fair values and notional amounts of derivative instruments held for risk management are set out in the following table
Derivatives held for risk management The Group The Bank
Fair value Fai value

Notional Notional

contract contract

amount Assets Liabilities amount Assets Liabilties

£m £m £m £m £m £m

Year ended 31 December 2011
Derivatives designated as cash flow hedges
Interest rate swaps 120,557 2,147 (1,725) 102,640 1,90 (1,113)
Forward foreign exchange 328 3 (1) 328 3 )
Exchange traded interest rate swaps 36,264 - - 36,264 - -
Derivatives designated as cash flow hedges 157,149 2,150 (1,726) 139,232 1,904 (1,114)
Denvatives designated as fair value hedges
Interast rate swaps 38,574 1,447 (1,238) 28,092 1,387 {1,677)
Forward foreign exchange - - - 22,115 133 (635)
Exchange traded interest rate swaps 35,801 - - 35,801 - -
Derivatives designated as fair value hedges 74,375 1,447 (1,238) 86,008 1,520 {2,312)
Derivatives designated as hedges of net investments
Forward foreign exchange 11,391 61 {388) 12,298 63 (394)
Currency swaps 619 - (6) - - -
Derivatives designated as hedges of net investment 12,010 61 {394) 12,298 63 (394)
Dernivatives held for risk management 243,534 3,658 {3,358) 237,538 3,487 (3,820)
Year ended 31 December 2010
Derivatives designated as cash flow hedges
Interast rate swaps 126,904 760 {882) 102,655 393 (866)
Forward foreign exchange 581 - (43) 581 - (43)
Exchange traded interest rate swaps 22,278 - - 22,278 - -
Derivatives designated as cash flow hedges 149,763 760 (925) 125,514 353 {909)
Derivatives designated as fair value hedges
Currency swaps 679 - {54) - - -
Interest rate swaps 42,301 905 (872) 39,324 826 (754)
Equity options - - - - - (L))
Forward foreign exchange 4,561 19 (86) 14,516 135 (225)
Exchange traded interest rate swaps 36,427 - - 36,427 - -
Derivatives designated as fair value hedges 83,968 924 (1,012) 90,267 961 {980)
Derivatives designated as hedges of net investments
Forward foreign exchange 5,870 28 (199} 5,870 28 (199)
Currency swaps 752 21 (217} 752 - (217)
Derivatives designated as hedges of net investment 6,622 49 (416) 6,622 28 (416)
Derivatives held for nsk management 240,353 1,733 (2,353) 222,403 1,382 (2,305)
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15 Derivative financial instruments (continued)
The Group has hedged the following forecast cash flows, which primarily vary with interest rates These cash flows are expected to impact the
income staterment in the following periods, excluding any hedge adjustments that may be applied

Between
Uptoone Betweenone Betweentwo threeto four Between four More than
Tatal year totwoyears tothreeyears years  tofive years five years
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
2011
The Group
Forecast receivable cash flows 3,818 700 582 597 612 596 731
Forecast payable cash flows 177 108 28 24 9 - 8
The Bank
Forecast recewvable cash flows 3,544 573 500 555 595 591 730
Forecast payable cash flows 166 106 29 23 8 - -
2010
The Group
Forecast recewvable cash flows 2,861 440 570 625 526 291 409
Forecast payable cash flows 307 69 52 76 82 22 &
The Bank
Forecast recervable cash flows 2,530 289 469 574 505 285 408
Forecast payable cash flows 293 65 51 74 81 22 -

The maximum length of time over which The Group hedges exposure to the vanability in future cash flows for forecast transactions, excluding those
forecast transactions related to the payment of variable interest on existing financial instruments, 1s 9 years (2010 14 years), and for the Bank, 9
years {2010 8 years)

Amounts recognised in net interest income The Group The 8ank
£m £m
Year ended 31 Decernber 2011
Losses on the hedged items attributable to the hedged nisk (765) {754)
Gains on the hedging instruments 683 751
Fair value ineffectiveness (82) 3
Cash flow hedging ineffectiveness 8 16
Net investment hedging ineffectiveness (1) {1)

Year ended 31 December 2010
Fair value hedging

Losses on the hedged items attributable to the hedged nsk (1.172) {1,171}
Gains on the hedqing instruments 1,286 1,310
Fair value ineffectiveness 114 139
Cash flow hedging ineffectiveness 138 136
Net investrment hedging ineffectiveness {10} (10}

All gains or lesses on hedging denvatives relating to forecast transactions, which are no lenger expected to occur, have been recycled to the income
statement

Gains and losses transferred from the cash flow hedging in the current year to interest income was a £86m gain (2010 £88m gain), interest expense
a £732m gain (2010 £515m gain), nat trading income a £157m loss (2010 £148m loss), administration and general expenses a £2m gain {2010
£99m gain), and for the Bank, interest income a £22m loss (2010 £nil), interest expense a £735m gain (2010 £518m gain), net trading income a
£57m loss (2010 £73m loss), and administration and general expenses was £nil {2010 £99m gain)
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16 Available for sale financial assets

Accounting for available for sale financial assets

Available for sale financial assets are held at fair value with gains and iosses being included in other comprehensive income The Group uses this
ciassification for assets that are not derivatives and are not held for trading purposes or at amortised cost. Dividends and interest {calculated using
the effective interest method) are recognised in the income statement in net investment income {Note 6) On disposal, the cumulative gain or loss
recognised in other comprehensive income 1s also included in net investment incorne

For irmpairment of available for sale debt and equity investments, see Note 7, Credit impairment charges and impairment on available for sale
assets

The Group The Bank
2011 2010 2011 2010
£m £m Em £m
Debt securities and other eigible biils 63,610 59,629 47,805 45,076
Equity securities 5,413 5,811 174 145
Available for sale financial investments 69,023 65,440 47,979 45,221

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Approximately US$4 2bn (£2 7bn) of the assets acquired as part of the 2008 acquisition of the North Amenican business of Lehman Brothers had
not been received by 31 December 2011 Approximately US$ 3 Obn (E2 Obn) of this amount was recognised as part of the acquisition accounting
and 1s included as an available for sale asset in the balance sheet As discussed in Note 29, Barclays entitlement to these assets was the subjact of
legal proceedings in the United States Bankruptcy Court for the Southern District of New York (the Court) between the SIPA Trustee for Lehman
Brothers inc {the Trustee) and Barclays On 22 February 2011, the Court issued its Opinion in ralation to the legal proceedings deciding some of
the clains in the Trustee's favour and some in favour of Barclays On 15 July 2011, the Court entered final Orders implementing its Opinion The
final Orders prowide that Barclays is not entitled to receive approximately US$2 4bn (£1 6bn), and 1s only conditionally entitled to recerve
approximately US$0 8bn (£0 5bn), of the undelivered assets In addition, the final Orders provide that Barclays s not entitled to approximately
US$2 1bn (£1 3bn) of assets it had already received

Barclays and the Trustee have each filed a notice of appeal from the Court’s adverse rulings There continues to be significant judgement involved
in the valuation of this asset and uncertainty relating to the outcome of the appeal process The Group takes the view that the effective provision of
US$1 2bn (£0 8bn) that is reflected in its estimate of fair value 1s approprate If the final Orders were to be unaffected by the appeals, Barclays
estimates that after taking into account the US$1 2bn {E0 8bn) effective provision, its loss would be approximately US$4 3bn (£2 8bn) The
valuation of this asset will be kept under review as legal proceedings progress

17 Financial hiabilities designated at fair value

Accounting for liabilities designated at fair value through profit and loss
In accordance with 1AS 39, financial habiities may be designated at fair value, with gains and losses taken to the income statement within net

trading income (Note 5) and net investment income (Note 6) The Group has the ability to do this when holding the instruments at fair value
reduces an accounting mismatch (caused by an offsetting liability or asset being held at fair value), 1s managed by The Group on the basis of its fair
value, or includes terms that have substantive denvative characteristics (Note 15, Dervatve financial instruments)

The Group The Bank The Group The Bank
2011 2010

Contractual Contractual Contractual Contractual

amount due amount due amount due amount due

Fair Value onmaturity FarrValue onmatunty FalrValue onmatnty FarValue onmatunty

£m £m £m £m £rn £m £m £m

Debt secunties 66,565 70,787 85,319 90,465 76,907 81,589 80,227 83,139

Deposits 10,755 11,422 7.898 8,027 10,243 10,950 8,607 8,784

Other financial habilities 8,996 9,561 7,852 8377 8,632 9,533 8,208 8,897
Liabilities to customers under investment

contracts 1,681 - - - 1,947 . . .

Financial liabilities designated at fair value 87,997 91,770 101,069 106,869 97,729 102,072 97,042 100,820

The curnulative own credit net gain that has been recognised 1s £3,600m at 31 December 2011 (2010 £892m)
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18 Fair value of financial instruments

Accounting for financial assets and liabllities - fair values
The Group applies 1AS 39 All financial instruments are initially recogrused at far value on the date of initial recognition and, depending on the
classification of the asset, may continue to be held at fair value either through profit or loss or other comprehensive income

The fair value of a financial instrument is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a hability settled, 1n an arm's length transaction
between knowledgeable willing parties

Wherever possible, fair value 1s determined by reference to a quoted market price for that Instrument. For many of The Group's financial assets and
liabilities, especiaily derivatives, quoted prices are not available, and valuation models are used to estimate far value The models calculate the
expected cash flows under the terms of each specific contract and then discount these values back to a present value These models use as ther
basis independently sourced market parameters including, for example, Interest rate yield curves, equities and commodities prices, option
volatilties and currency rates

For financial habilitles measured at fair value, the carrying amount reflects the effect on fair value of changes in own credit spreads derived from
observable market data, such as spreads on Barclays 1ssued bonds or credit default swaps Most market parameters are either directly observable
or are implied from instrument prices The model may perform numerical procedures In the pricing such as interpolation when input values do not
directly correspond to the most actively traded market trade parameters

On mitial recognition, it 1s presumed that the transaction price is the fair value unless there is observable information available in an active market
to the contrary

For valuations that have made use of significant uncbservable inputs, the difference between the model valuation and the initial transaction price
{'Day One profit’) is recogmsed In profit or loss either

- onastraight-line basis over the term of the transaction, or over the period until all model inputs will become observable where appropriate, or
- released in full when previously unobservable inputs become observable

Various factors influence the availability of observable inputs and these may vary from product to product and change over time Factors include
the depth of activity in the relevant market, the type of product, whether the product Is new and not widely traded in the marketplace, the matunity
of market modelling and the nature of the transaction (bespoke or genenc) To the extent that valuation is based on models or inputs that are not
observable in the market, the determination of fair value can be more subjective, dependant on the significance of the uncbservable input to the
overall valuation Unobservable inputs are determined based on the best information available, for example by reference to similar assets, sirmilar
matuntes or other analytical techniques

The sensitvity of valuations used in the financial statements to reasonably possible changes in variables is shown on page 149




Barclays Bank PLC Annual Report 2011

www barclays com/annualreport 137

18 Fair value of financial instruments (continued)
Comparison of carrying amounts and fair values

The following table summarises the fair value of financial assets and habriities presented on The Group’s balance sheet where the carrying amount i1s

not a reasonable approximation of fair value

The Group 2011 2010
Carrying Fair Carrying Faw
amount value armount value
£rn £m £m £m
Financial assets*
Loans and advances to banks 46,792 46,792 37,799 37,768
Loans and advances to customers
— Home loans 121,272 163,433 168,055 161,439
- Credit cards, unsecured and other retail lending 64,492 63,482 59,269 58,944
—Wholesale 196,170 191,408 200,618 196,124
Reverse repurchase agreements and other similar secured lending 153,665 153,365 205,772 205,527
Financial liabilities®
Deposits from banks 91,116 91,137 77975 77,949
Customer accounts
— Current and demand accounts 116,208 116,208 110,443 110,443
- Savings accounts 93,160 93,160 91,928 91,928
— Other ime deposits 156,677 156,700 143,431 143,553
Debt securities in 1ssue 129,736 128,997 156,623 155,974
Repurchase agreements and other similar secured lending 207,292 207,292 225,534 225,511
Subordinated liabilities 24,870 20,745 28,499 27,183
The Bank 2011 2010
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
amournt value amount value
£m £m £m £m
Financial assets®
Loans and advances to banks 52,287 52,287 40,390 40,216
Loans and advances to customers
—Home loans 133,516 125,665 123,995 117,361
— Credit cards, unsecured and other personal lending 32,821 32,626 26,640 26,738
—Wholesale and corporate loans and advances 351,443 347,406 372,301 366,632
Reverse repurchase agreements and other similar secured lending 161,436 161,136 227343 227,132
Financial liabilities®
Deposits from banks 108,816 108,886 97,526 97,530
Customer accounts
— Current and demand accounts 82,242 82,242 73,623 73,623
— Savings accounts 82,870 32,870 80,616 80,616
— Other time deposits 289,410 289,422 299,758 299,758
Debt secunities in 1ssue 83,939 83,271 106,267 105,839
Repurchase agreements and other sumilar secured lending 193,453 193,453 214,207 214,207
Subordinated liabilities 26,764 21,288 26,994 25,601

Notes

a The carrying value of financial assets measured at amortised cost (Inctuding loans and advances, and other lending such as reverse repurchase agreernents and cash collateral on

securities borrowed) I1s deterruned in accordance with the accounting policy noted onpage 113 Fair value s determined using discounted cash flows, applying market derived interest
rates Alternatively, the fair vatue 1s deterrrined by applying an average of avallable regional and industry segmental ¢redit spreads to the loan portfolio, taking the contractual maturity

of the loan facilities nte consideration.

o

The carrying value of financial labilities measured at amortised cost (including customer accounts and other deposits such as repurchase agreements and cash colfateral on securities

lent, debt secunities in issue and subordinated liabihties) is determined in accordance with the accounting policy noted on page 113 Falr values of other debt securites Inissue are
based on quoted prices where available or where these are unavailable, are estimated using a valuation model Fair vahies for dated and undated convertible and non convertible loan
capital are based on quoted market rates for the 1ssue concerned or simular Issues with terms and conditians




138 I Barclays Bank PLC Annual Report 2011 www barclays com/annualreport

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31December 2011 continued

18 Fair value of financial instruments (continued)

Valuation inputs

{FRS 7 Financial instruments, Disclosure requires an entity to classify its financial instruments held at falr value according to a huerarchy that reflects the
significance of observable market inputs The classification of a financial instrument is based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement in its entirety The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are defined below

Quoted market prices — Level 1

Financial instruments are classifled as Leve! 1 if their value 1s observable In an active market. Such instruments are valued by reference to unadjusted
quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities In actlve markets where the quoted price 15 readily available, and the price represents actual and regularly
occurnng market transactions en an arm's length basls An active market is one in which transactions occur with sufficient volume and frequency to
provide pricing information on an ongoing basis

This categery includes liquid government bonds actively traded through an exchange or clearing house, actively traded listed equities and actively
exchange-traded derlvatives

Valuation technique using observable inputs — Level 2

Financial instruments classified as Level 2 have been valued using models whose inputs are observable in an actve market. Valuations based on
observable Inputs include financial Instruments such as swaps and forwards which are valued using market standard pricing techmiques, and options
that are commeonly traded in markets where all the Inputs to the market standard pricing models are observable

This category includes most investment grade and fiquid high yield bonds, certain asset backed secunties, US agency securities, government bonds,
less actively traded listed equibes, bank, corporate and municipal obligations, certaln OTC derivatives, certain convertible bonds, certificates of deposit,
commercial paper, collateralised loan obligations {CLOs), most commodities based derivatives, credit derivatives, certain credit default swaps (CDSs),
most fund units, certain loans, foreign exchange spot and forward transactions and certain 1ssued notes

Valuation technique using significant unobservable Inputs - Level 3

Financial instruments are classified as Level 3 if their valuation incorporates significant inputs that are not based on cbservable market data
(unobservable inputs) Such inputs are generally determined based on observable inputs of a sumilar nature, histoncal observations on the leve! of the
input or other anatytical techniques

This category Includes certain corporate debt securlties, distressed debt, private equity investments, commercial real estate foans, certain OTC
denvatives {requiring cormplex and unobservable inputs such as correlations and long dated volatilities), certain convertible bonds, certain CDS,
derivative exposures to moncehne insurers, certain fund units, certain asset backed securlties, certain issued notes, certain CDOs (synthetic and some
cash underlyings), certain CLOs and certain loans
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18 Fair value of financial instruments {continued)

The following table shows The Group's financial assets and habilities that are measured at fair value analysed by level within the fair value hierarchy

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value

Valuation technigue using

Quoted Significant
market  Observable unobservable
prices Inputs Inputs
(Level 1) {Level 2) (Level 3) Total
The Group £m £m fm £m
As at 31 Decemnber 2011
Trading portfolic assets 61,530 81,449 9,204 152,183
Financial assets designated at fair value 4,179 24,091 8,679 36,949
Derivative financia! assets 2,550 525,147 11,267 538,964
Available for sale financial investments 31,389 34,761 2,873 69,023
Total assets 99,648 665,448 32,023 797,119
Trading portfolio habilities {26,155) {19,726) (6) (45,887)
Financial llabilities designated at fair value {39) (84,822) (3.136) (87.997)
Derivative financial habilities (2,263) {516,954) (8,581) (527,798)
Total habilities {28.457) {621,502) (11,723) (661,682)
As at 31 December 2010
Trading portfolio assets 48,466 114,723 51 168,930
Financial assets designated at fair value 5,406 25,175 10,904 41,485
Denvative financial assets 3,023 408,214 9,082 420,319
Available for sale financial Investments 25,949 36,201 3,290 65,440
Total assets 82,844 584,313 29,017 696,174
Trading portfolic habilities (30,247) {42,345) (101) (72,693)
Financial liabilitles designated at fair value (4) {94,088) (3,637) (97,729)
Denvative financial liabilities (2,567) (396,695) (6,254) (405,516)
Total liabilitles (32,818) (533,128) (9,992) {575,938)
Financial assets and llabilities measured at fair value Valuation technique using
Quoted Significant
market  Observable unobservable
prices inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) ({Level 3) Total
The Bank £m £m £m fm
As at 31 December 2011
Trading portfolio assets 27,998 48,796 8,254 £5,048
Financial assets designated at fair value 7 39,936 4,589 44,532
Denvative financial assets 1 535,572 11,346 546,919
Available for sale financial investments 15,738 30,120 2,119 47,977
Total assets 43,744 654,424 26,308 724,476
Trading portfolio habilities (13,240) (15,386) {6) {28,632)
Financial liabilities designated at fair value - (98,632) {2.437) {101,069)
Dernvative financial habilities (8) {527,371) (8,458) {535,837)
Total Liabilitles {13.248) (641,389) (10,901} (665,538)
As at 31 December 2010
Trading portfolio assets 19,611 69,654 5,769 95,034
Financial assets designated at fair value 8 22,486 6,687 29,181
Derivative financial assets - 431,643 9,502 441,145
Available for sale financial investments 12,567 30,306 2,348 45,221
Total assets 32,186 554,089 24,306 610,581
Trading portfolio liabilities (11,235) (33,115) {2) (44,352)
Financial liabibties designated at fair value (3) (94,331) (2.708) (97,042)
Denvative financial habifibes (8) {420,014) {6,221) {426,243)
Total Liabilities {11,246) (547,460) {8,931) (567,637)
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18 Fair value of financial Instruments (continued)
Transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 pnmanly comprised government bonds that had more observable market prices maoving from Levet 2 to Level 1

The followang table shows The Group's financlal assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value disaggregated by valuabion technique and product
type

Financial assets and liabilities measured at falr Assets Liabilities
value by product type Valuatlon technique using Valuation technique using
Significant Significant
Quoted Observable unobservable Quoted Observable unobservable
market prices inputs Inputs market prices Inputs inputs
(Level 1) {Level 2} (Level 3) {Level 1) (Level 2) {Level 3)
The Group £m £m £m £m £m £m
At 31 December 2011
Commercial real estate loans - - 2,452 - - -
Asset backed products 30 29,995 5,752 - {5.,595) (1.020)
Other Credit products - 55,347 4,386 - (57,608) (3,765}
Derlvative exposure to menoline insurers - - 1,129 - - -
Non-asset backed debt Instruments 66,622 84,296 4,213 (15,788) (77,966) (2,086)
Equity products 30,673 7,810 1,079 {12,589) (11,612) (1,531)
Private equity - 39 2,827 - - -
Funds and fund-linked products 968 3,169 1.290 - {(1,017) -
Fx products - 34,658 457 - (33,536) (187}
Interest rate products - 405,635 2,433 - {399,254) (2,090)
Commeodity products 857 26,551 773 %) {33,120) {991)
Other 498 17,948 5,232 {76) (1.794) (53)
Total 99,648 665,448 32,023 (28,457) (621,502) {11,723)

At 31 December 2010

Commercial real estate loans - - 5424 - - -
Asset backed products - 39,649 4,628 . (6,287) (1,912)
Other Credit products - 50,230 1,097 - (42,216) (1,318)
Derivative exposure to monoline insurers - - 1,449 - - -
Non-asset backed debt instruments 47,108 99,688 2,956 (23,008) (105,481) (2.719)
Equity products 33,384 9,708 1,478 (9.292) (14,342) {1.895)
Private equity - 27 2,844 - - -
Funds and fund-linked products 591 3,674 1,084 - (1,827) -
Fx preducts - 29,883 506 - (30,349) (241)
Interest rate products - 305,235 2,407 - {291,420) (1,079)
Commodity preducts 1378 28,520 493 {518) (36,191) (629)
Other 383 17,699 4,651 - (5.015) {199}

Total 82,844 584,313 29,017 {32,818) (533,128) {9,992}
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18 Fair value of financial instruments (continued)
Level 3 classification
The follawing table shows Level 3 financial assets and liabilities disaggregated by balance sheet classification and product type

Level 3 financial assets and liabilities by balance

sheet classification and product type Non-derivative assets Non-derivative liabilities Derivatives
Financial Financial
Trading assets Trading liabilities Net derivative
portfolio  designated at  Available for portfolio designated as financial
assets fair value sale assets liabilities fair value  instruments®

The Group £m £m £m £m £m £m
At 31 December 2011
Commercial real estate loans - 2,452 - - - -
Asset backed products 3,306 693 252 (1) {13) 495
Other Credit products - 196 - - (1,007) 1.432
Derivative exposure to monoline insurers - - - - - 1,129
Non-asset backed debt instruments 3,953 223 36 (5) (2,081) 1
Equity products 115 - 15 - - (582)
Private equity - 2,238 589 - - -
Funds and fund-linked products 1,258 32 . - - -
Fx products [ - - - - 264
Interest rate products . 3 - - - 340
Commodity products - - 18 - (35) {201)
OQther 566 2,842 1,963 - - {192)
Total 9,204 8,679 2,873 {6) (3,136) 2,686

At 31 December 2010

Commercial real estate loans - 5424 - - - -
Asset backed products 1,720 364 312 (5) (L) 342
Other Credit products - 237 - (4) (716) 262
Derivative exposure to monoline insurers - - - - - 1,449
Non-asset backed debt instruments 2,460 325 168 (M (2.690) (25)
Equity products 135 - 27 - - (579)
Private equity 50 1,995 799 - - -
Funds and fund-linked products 1,084 - - - - -
Fx products - - - - - 265
Interest rate products - &1 - - (27) 1,294
Cormmodity products - 14 4 - (161) 7
QOther 292 2,484 1,980 (91) (26) (187)
Total 5,741 10,904 3,290 (101) (3,637) 2,828
Note

a  The denvative financial instruments in the tables above are represented on a net basis On a gross basis denvative financial assets as at 31 December 2011 totalled £11,267m (2010
£9 082m) and derivative financlal liabilities totalled £8 581m (2010 £6 254m)
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18 Fair value of financial instruments (continued)

Level 3 movement analysis

The foliowing table summanses the movements In the Level 3 balance during the year The table shows gains and losses and includes amounts for al!
financial assets and liabilities transferred to and from Level 3 duning the year Transfers have been reflected as if they had taken place at the beginning
of the year

Analysis of movements in level 3 financlal assets and

liabilities Financial Financial Net

assets liabilitles derivative

Trading designated Avallable  Trading designated financial

portfolio at falr forsale  portfolio at fair instruments®
assets value assets  llabilitles value o Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

The Group

As at 1 January 2011 5,741 10,504 3,290 (101) (3.637) 2,828 19,025
Purchases 6,863 1,659 74 2 - 420 9,018
Sales (5,390) (2.210) Gin 5 223 (144) (7,833)
Issues - 57 A - (647) {389) (979)
Settlernents (190) (2.157) 39 - 523 60 (1,803)

Tota! gains and losses in the penod recogrused in the - - - - - - -
income statement

-trading income (355) 17 - 2 282 {688) 60
-other ncome - {(12) 90 - 150 - 228
Total gains or losses recogmised in other comprehensive - - (26) - - - (26)
income

Transfers in/{transfers out) 2,535 321 {199) 86 (730) 597 2,610
As at 31 December 2011 9,204 8,679 2,873 (6) (3,136) 2,686 20,300
The Bank

As at 1 January 2011 5,769 6,687 2,348 {2} (2,708) 3,281 15,375
Purchases 5,297 464 2 - - 401 6,164
Sales (4.573) {428) - 2 71 (175)  (5.103)
Issues - - - . (611) (344) (955}
Settlemments {104) (1,065) (28) - 428 (67) (836)
Total gains and losses in the penod recognised in the - - - - - - -
Income statement

-trading income (349) {152) - - 1,014 {522) (9)
-other income - 23 (3) - - (29) {9)
Total gains or losses recognised in other comprehensive - - 16 - - - 16
income

Transfers in/{transfers out} 2,214 (940} {218) {6) (631) 343 764
As at 31 December 2011 8,254 4,589 2,119 {6) (2:437) 2,888 15,407
Note

a The Group's derivative financial instruments in the table above are represented on a net basls On a gross basis dervative financial assets as at 31 Decemnber 2011 totafled £11,267m
(2010 £9 082m) and derivative finzncial iabilities totalled EB.S81m (2010- £6 254m)

b The Bank s derivative financial instruments in the table above are represented on a net basis) On a gross basis derivative financial assets as at 31 Decemnber 2011 totalled £11,346m
(2010 £9.502m) and denvative financ:al Kabilities totalled £8,458m (2010 £6 221m)
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Analysis of movements in level 3 financial assets and

liabilittes
Financial Financial Net
Trading assets  Available Trading  labilities  dervative
portfolo  designated forsale  portfolio designated financial
assets at far value assets  habilities atfar value instruments Tota
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
The Group
As at 1 January 2010 6,078 10,700 1,277 (78) (3.828) 3,087 17.236
Purchases 2,830 890 234 (96) {12) 762 4,608
Sales (3334) (7 (121) - 39 147 (4,386)
Issues - - - - (243) (555) (798)
Settlements (455) (924) {206) 63 601 (94)  (1.015)
Total gains and losses in the period recognised in the
income statement
~trading income 683 03 - - (730) (5) 151
-other income - 173 (54) - - - 79
Total gains or losses recognised in other comprehensive - - 208 - - - 208
income
Transfers in/{transfers cut) (61) 979 1,992 10 536 (514) 2,942
As at 31 December 2010 5,741 10,904 3,290 (101)  (3,637) 2,828 19,025
The Bank
As at | January 2010 4,444 5,980 867 9 (2622) 4012 12672
Purchases 1141 285 165 - (12) 738 2,37
Sales {1,856) (157) - - 24 147 (1,842)
Issues - - - - (176) (566) (742)
Settlements (345) (570) (126) 3 293 (135) (830)
Total gains and losses in the period recognised in the
income statement
-trading incorne 1,068 (23) - 2 {465) (421) 161
-other income - 15 (135) - - - (116)
Total gains or losses recognised in other comprehensive - - 93 - - - 93
income
Transfers in/{transfers out) 1,317 1,153 1,484 2 250 (494) 3,712
As at 31 December 2010 5,769 6,687 2,348 {2) (2,708) 3,281 15375

The significant moverments in the Level 3 positions during the year ended 31 December 2011 are as follows

—  Purchases of £9 Obn, primanly compnsing £5 1bn of assets acquired as part of the acquisition of Pretium, £2 1bn of other non-asset backed
debt instruments, £0 6bn of asset backed products and £0 4bn of denvative products,

- Sales of £7 8bn including the sale of £2 8bn Protium assets post acquisition, the sale of £1 9bn of non-asset backed debt instruments, £1 Obn
of asset backed products, £1 Obn of legacy cornmercial real estate loans and £0 3bn of Private Equity investments,

- Settlements of £1 8bn including the £0 8bn Baubecon debt restructuring and repayments received on other legacy commercial real estate
loans For further details, on Baubecon, refer to Note 39,

- Net Transfers into Level 3 of £2 6bn pnmarly comprised transfers of inflation inked bond trading portfolio assets, for which fair values have
become less observable in the market, and

- Issuances of £1 0bn, compnsing £0 4bn of derivatives products, £0 3bn of structured notes and £0 3bn of non-asset backed products

Movements on the fair value of Level 3 assets recogrised in the income statement totalled £0 3bn (2010 £0 2bn)
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18 Fair value of financial instruments {continued)
Gains and losses on Level 3 financial assets and liabilities
The following table discloses the gains and losses recognised in the year ansing on Level 3 financial assets and habilities held at year end

Gains and losses reognised during the period on level 3 Financial Financial
financial assets and liabilities held assets liabilities Net
Trading designated Available  Tradlng designated  derivative
portfolio at fair forsale portfolio at fair financial
assets value assets  liabilities value Instruments Total
£m £m £m E£Em £m fm £m
The Group

Total gans and losses held as at 31 December 2011
Recogmsed n the iIncome statement

-trading income (44) 270 - - 729 (324) 631
-other income - 118 (54} - - - 64
Totat gains or losses recognised in other comprehensive - - 135 - - - 135
income

Total (44) 388 81 - 729 (324) 830
The Bank

Total gans and losses held as at 31 December 2011
Recogmised in the income statement

-trading wncome (69) 216 - - 794 (206) 735
-ather income - 20 (32) - - (1)) (43)
Total gains or losses recognised in other comprehensive - - 3 - - - 3
income

Total (69) 236 (29) - 794 (237) 695

Gains and losses reognised dunng the period on level 3

financial assets and liabilities held Financial Financial Net
Trading assets  Available Trading  lizbiities dervative
portfolie  designated forsale  portfolio designated financial
assets at fair vafue assets  liabiltties atfarvalue instruments Total
£m £m £m £m £Em £m £m
The Group

Total gains and losses held as at 31 December 2010
Recognised in the iIncome statement

-trading income 345 215 - {1 (528) (66) (35)
-other income - 115 (166) - - - (51
Tatal gains or losses recogrised in other comprehensive - - 133 - - - 133
ncome

Total 345 330 (33} (1) {528) (66) 47
The Bank

Total gains and losses held as at 31 December 2010
Recognised in the income statemnent

-trading income 339 142 - 2 (434) (449) {400)
-other income - 18 (301) - B - {283)
Total gains or losses recognised in other comprehensive - - (3) - - - (3)
ncome

Total 339 160 (304) 2 {434) (449)  (686)
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Valuation control framewaork

The Independent Valuation Control function is responsible for independent price verification, oversight of fair value adjustments and escalation of
valuation 1ssues This process covers all fair value positions and is a key control in ensunng the matenal accuracy of valuations

Price verification uses independently sourced data that is deemed most representative of the market The characteristics against which the data source
Is assessed are independence, reliability, consistency with other sources and evidence that the data represents an executable price The mast current
data available at balance sheet date 1s used Where significant vanances are noted in the independent price verification process, an adjustment is taken
to the falr value position Additional fair value adjustments may be taken to reflect such factors as bid-offer spreads, market data uncertainty, model
lirmitations and counterparty risk.

Independent price verification resufts and far value adjustments are reported on a monthly basis to the Valuation Commuttee This committee is
responsible for overseeing valuation and farr value adjustment policy within Corporate and Investment Banking and this is the forum to which valuation
\ssues are escalated The Valuation Committee detegates more detailed review to the following five Sub-Commattees Independent Valuations, Legacy
and Other Assets, Liigation Risk, Models, and Governance

The Independent Valuatlons Sub-Committee reviews the results of the independent price verification and fair value adjustments process on a monthly
basis This includes, but is not limited to, reviewing fair value adjustments and methodelegres, independent price verification results, limits and
valuation uncertainty The Legacy and Other Assets Sub-Commuttee 1s responsible for overseeing the valuation and measuremnent Issues arising in
legacy assets, certain AFS pesitions and other assets as delegated by the Valuation Committee  The Liigation Risk Sub-Committee is responstble for
overseeing the valuation and measurement issues arising from legal risks within Barclays Corporate and Investment Banking

The Models Sub-Committee is responsible for overseeing policies and controls related to the use of valuation models This includes but is not limited to
review of global madel nisk reports, the trade approval process and model validation, model-related fair value adjustments, and independent price
venfication varances or collateral disputes relating to mode! usage

The Governance Sub-Committee is responsible for overseeing the governance of valuation processes, policies and procedures This Sub-Commuttee
monitors the developrent of the Valuation control framework, completeness of balance sheet oversight and appropnate representation of Semor
Management at the Valuation Committee and each of the above referenced Sub-Cornmuttees Regulatory and accounting 1ssues related to fair value
are assessed by the Governance Sub-Commuttee

Valuation techniques

Current year valuation methodologies were consistent with the prior year unless otherwise noted below These methodologies are commenly used by
market participants The valuation techniques used for the main products that are not determined by reference to unadjusted quoted prices {Level 1),
are described below

Cammercial real estate loans
This category includes lending on a range of commercial property types including retall, hotel, office, multi-famuly and industnal properties

Performing loans are valued using a spread-based approach, with consideration of characterlstics such as property type, gecgraphic location, yields,
credrt quality and property performance reviews Where there is significant uncertainty regarding loan performance, valuation Is based on the
underlying collateral, whose value 1s determined through property-specific information such as third party valuation reports and bids for the underlying
properties

Since each commercial real estate loan is umgue in nature and the secondary commercial loan market is relatively illiquid, valuaton inputs are generally
considered unobservable

Asset backed products

These are debt and derivative products that are linked to the cash flows of a pool of referenced assets via secuntisation This category includes
residential mortgage backed secunties, commercial mortgage backed secunties, asset barked securities COOs (collateralised debt obligations), CLOs
{collateralised loan obligations) and derivatives with cash flows linked to securitisations

Where available, valuations are based an observable market prices which are sourced from broker quotes and inter-dealer prices Otherwise, valuations
are determuned using industry standard cash flow models that calculate falr value based on loss projections, prepayment, recovery and discount rates

These Inputs are determined by reference to a number of sources including proxying to observed transactions, market indices or market research, and
by assessing underlying collateral performance

Proxying to observed transactions, indices or research requires an assessment and companson of the relevant securities’ underlying attributes including
collatera), tranche, vintage, underlying asset composition (historical losses, borrower characteristics. and loan attributes such as loan-to-value ratio and
geographic concentration) and credit ratings {original and current)
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Other credit products

These products are linked to the credit spread of a referenced entity, index or basket of referenced entities This category includes synthetic COOs,
single name and index COS and Nth to default basket swaps Within this population, valuation inputs are unobservable for CDS with dhiquid reference
assets and certain synthetic COOs

CDS are valued using a market standard model that incorporates the credit curve as its principal Input. Credit spreads are observed directly from broker
data, third party vendors or pnced to proxies Where credit spreads are unobservable, they are determined with reference to recent transactions or
bond spreads from observable issuances of the same 1ssuer or other simuilar entities as a proxy

Synthetic CDOs are valued using a model that calculates farr value based on observable and uncbservable parameters including credit spreads, recovery
rates, carrelations and interest rates and 1s calibrated daity For index and bespoke synthetlc CDOs with unobservable inputs, correlation is set with
reference to the index tranche market.

Dervative exposure to moneline msurers
These products are derivatives through which credit protection has been purchased on structured debt instruments {primarlly CLOs} from monoline
insurers

The value of the COS is denved from the value of the cash Instrument that it protects A valuation adjustment is then applied to reflect the counterparty
credit risk associated with the relevant monoline This adjustment is calculated using an assessment of the likely recovery of the protected cash
security, which 1s derived from a scenario-based calculation of the mark-to-market of the instrument using an appropnate valuation model, and the
probability of default and loss given default of the manoline counterparty, as estimated from independent fundamental credit anatysis Due to the
counterparty credit risk associated with these insurers, derivative exposure to menoline counterparty insurers is generally considered unobservable

Non-asset backed debt instruments
These are government bonds, US agency bonds, corporate bonds, commerclal paper, certificates of depesit, convertible bonds, notes and other non-
asset backed bonds Within this population, valuation inputs are unobservable for certain convertible bonds and corporate bonds

Liquid government bonds actively traded through an exchange or clearing house are marked to the closing levels observed in these markets Less kquid
goevernment bonds, US agency bonds, corporate bonds, commercial paper and certificates of deposit are valued using observable market prices which
are sourced from broker quotes, inter-dealer prices or other rellable pricing services Where there are no observable market prices, fair value 1s
determined by reference to either issuances or CDS spreads of the same issuer as proxy inputs to obtain discounted cash flow amounts In the absence
of observable bond or CDS spreads for the respective issuer, similar reference assets or sector averages are applied as a proxy {the appropriateness of
proxles being assessed based on issuer, coupon, matunty and industry}

Convertible bonds are valued using prices observed through broker sources, market data services and trading activity Where rellable external sources
are not avallable, fair value 1s determined using a spread to the equity conversion value or the value of the bond without the additional equity
conversion The spread level is determined with reference to similar proxy assets

Fair valued issued notes are valued using discounted cash flow techniques and industry standard models incorporating various observable input
parameters depending on the terms of the instrument  Any uncbservable inputs generally have insignificant Impact on the overall valuation

Equity products
This category includes hsted equities, exchange traded equity derivatives, OTC equity dervatives, preference shares and contracts for difference

OTC equity dervatives valuations are determined using industry standard models The models calculate fair value based on input parameters such as
stock prices, dividends, volatilities, Interest rates, equity repo curves and, for multi-asset products, correlabions In general, input parameters are deemed
observable up to liquld matunties which are determined separately for each parameter and underlying instrument. Unobservable model inputs are
determined by reference to liquid market instruments and applying extrapolation techniques to match the appropriate nisk profile

Private equity

Private equity investments are valued sn accordance with the ‘International Private Equity and Venture Capital Valuation Cuidelines’ This requires the
use of a number of individual pricing benchrmarks such as the pnices of recent transactions in the same or similar entsties, discounted cash flow
analysis, and companson with the earnings multiples of listed comparative companies Unobservable inputs include earnings estimates, multiples of
comparative companies, marketability discounts and discount rates Maodel inputs are based on market conditions at the reporting date The valuation
of unquoted equity instruments 1s subjective by nature However, the relevant methodologies are commonly applied by other market participants and
have been consistently applied over time Full valuations are performed at least bi-annually, with the portfolio reviewed on a monthly basis for matenal
events that might Impact upon fair value

Funds and fund-linked products

This category includes holdings in hedge funds, funds of funds, and fund derivatives. Fund derivatives are derivatives whose underlyings include mutual
funds, hedge funds, fund indices and multi-asset pertfolios They are valued using underlylng fund prices, yield curves and other available market
information
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In general, fund holdings are valued based on the latest available valuation received from the fund adrrinistrator Funds are deemed unobservable
where the fund s either suspended, in wind-down, has a redemption restriction that severely affects liquidity, or where the latest net asset value from
the fund adrministrators 1s more than three months old In the case of iliquid fund holdings the valuation will take account of all avaitable information in
relation to the underlying fund or collection of funds and maybe adjusted relative to the performance of relevant index benchmarks

Foreign exchange products
These products are denvatives linked to the foreign exchange market This category includes forward contracts, FX swaps and FX options Exotic
dervatives are valued using industry standard and bespoke models

Input parameters include FX rates, interest rates, FX volatilities, interest rate volatilities, FX interest rate correlations and others as appropriate Certain
correlations and long dated forward and volatilibes are unobservable Unobservable model nputs are set by referencing liqud market instruments and
applying extrapolation techniques to match the appropriate risk profile

Interest rate products

These are products Linked to interest rates or inflation indices This category includes interest rate and inflation swaps, swaptions, caps, floors, inflation
options, balance guaranteed swaps and other exotic interest rate derivatives Interest rate products are valued using standard discounted cash flow
techmques

Interest rate dervative cash flows are valued using interest rate yield curves whereby observable market data 15 used to construct the term structure of
forward rates This 1s then used to project and discount future cash flows based on the parameters of the trade Instruments with optionality are valued
using a volatility surface constructed from market observable inputs Exotic interest rate derivatives are valued using industry standard and bespoke
models based on observable market parameters which are determined separately for each parameter and underlying instrument. Where unobservable,
a pararneter will be set with reference to an observable proxy Inflation forward curves and interest rate yield curves are extrapolated beyond
observable tenors

Balance guaranteed swaps are valued using cash flow models that calculate fair value based on loss projections, prepayment, recovery and discount
rates These parameters are determined by reference to underlying asset performance, independent research, ABX indices, broker quotes, cbservable
trades on similar secunities and third party pnicing sources Prepayment is projected based on observing historic prepayment

During 2010, in line with changes in market practice, the methedology for valuing certain collaterahised interest rate products was updated to make use
of more relevant interest rate yield curves to discount cash flows For certain collateralised derivatives, Overnight Indexed Swap (OIS} rates were used
rather than other market reference rates such as LIBOR Duning 2011, in line with market practice, the methodology for valuing certain collateralised
interest rate products was further amended to reflect the impact of “cheapest to deliver” callateral on discounting curves, where counterparty CSA
(Credit Support Annex) agreements specify the nght of the counterparty to choose the currency of collateral posted

Commodity products
These products are exchange traded and OTC dervatives based on undertying commodities such as metals, crude ol and refined products, agncuhtural,
power and natural gas

The valuations of certain commodity swaps and options are deterrmined using models incorporating discounting of cash flows and other industry
standard modelling techniques Valuation iputs include forward curves, volatility surfaces and tenor correlation Within this populatien, certain
forward curves and volatility surfaces for longer dated exposures are unobservable These unobservable inputs are set with reference to similar
observable products or by applying extrapolation techniques from the observable market.

Other

This category 15 largely made up of fixed rate loans, which are valued using models that discount expected future cash flows These models calculate
fair value based on observable interest rates and unobservable credit spreads Unobservable credit spreads are deterruned by extrapolating observable
spreads

The recevables resulting from the acquisition of the North Amernican businesses of Lehman Brothers 1s included within 'Other’ For more details, refer to
Note 29 Legal Proceedings

Complex denvative instruments

Valuation estimates made by counterparties with respect to complex derivative instruments, for the purpose of determining the amount of collateral to
be posted, often differ, sometimes significantly, from Barclays' own estimates In almost all cases, Barclays has been able to successfully resolve such
differences or otherwise reach an accommodation with respect to collateral posting levels, including in certain cases by entering into compromise
collateral arrangements  Due to the ongoing nature of collateral calls, Barclays will often be engaged in discussions with one or mare counterparties in
respect of such differences at any given time  Valuation estimates made by counterparties for collateral purposes are, like any other third-party
valuation, considered when determumng Barclays' own fair value esimates
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Fair value adjustments
The main valuation adjustments required to arrive at a fair value are descnbed below

Bid-Offer valuation adustments

For assets and habilities where the firm is not a market maker, rmid prices are adjusted to bid and offer prices respectively Bid-offer adjustments reflact
expected close out strategy and, for dervatives, the fact that they are managed on a portfolio basis The methodology for deterrmining the bid-offer
adjustment for a derivative portfolio will generally involve netting between long and short positions and the bucketing of nsk by strike and term in
accordance with hedging strategy 8id-offer levels are derived from market sources, such as broker data For those assets and liabiliues where the firm
15 a market maker and has the ability to transact at, or better than, rmd price (which 1s the case for certain equity, bond and vanilla denvative markets),
the mid price is used, since the bid-offer spread does not represent a transaction cost.

Uncertainty adjustments

Market data input for exotic dervatives may not have a directly observable bid offer spread In such instances, anuncertainty adjustrment is applied as a
proxy for the bid offer adjustment An example of this 15 correlation nsk where an adjustment is required to reflect the possible range of values that
market participants apply The uncertainty adjustment may be determined by calibrating to dervative prices, or by scenano analysis or historical
analysis

Model valuation adjustments

New valuation models are reviewed under the firm's model governance framework. This process identifies the assumpticns used and any model
lirrutations (for example, if the model does not incorporate volatility skew) Where necessary, farr value adjustments will be applied to take these factors
Into account Model valuation adjustments are dependant on the size of portfolio, complexity of the model, whether the model s market standard and
to what extent it incorporates all known nsk factors All models and model valuation adjustments are subject to review on at least an annual basis

Credit and debit valuation adjustments

Credit valuation adjustments {CVAs) and debit valuation adjustments (DVAs) are incorporated into derivative valuations to reflect the Impact on fair
value of counterparty credit nisk and Barclays’ own credit quality respectively These adjustments are modelled for OTC dervatives across all asset
classes Calculations are derived fremn estimates of exposure at default, probability of default and recovery rates, on a counterparty basis
Counterparties include (but are not lirited to) corporates, monolines, sovereigns and sovereign agencies, supranationals, and special-purpose vehicles

Whereas in 2010 certain highly-rated sovereigns, supra-nationals and government agencies were excluded from the CVA calculation, following the
sovereign debt crisis it has been considered appropriate to include these entities, for which the impact of doing so was a £79m increase in the CVA

Exposure at default s generally based on expected positive exposure, estimated through the simulation of underlyng risk factors  For sore complex
products, where this approach is not feasible, ssmphifying assumptions are made, either through proxying with a more vanilla structure, or using current
or scenano-based mark-to-market as an estimate of future exposure Where strong collateralisation agreement exists as a mitigant to counterparty
nisk, the exposure 1s set to zero

Probability of defauit and recovery rate information is generally sourced from the CDS markets For counterparties where this information 15 not
available, or considered unreliable due to the nature of the exposure, alternative approaches are taken based on mapping internal counterparty ratings
onto histoncal or market-based default and recovery information  In particular, this applies to sovereign related names where the effect of using the
recovery assumptions implied in CDS levels would imply a £300m increase in CVA

Correlation between counterparty ¢redit and underlying denvative nsk factors may lead to a systematic bias in the valuation of counterparty credit nisk,
termed “wrong-way™ or “nght-way” nsk. This i1s not incorporated into the CVA calculation, but is monitored regularly via scenario analysis and has
been found to be tmmater:al

Own credit adjustments

The carrying amount of 1ssued notes that are designated under the IAS 39 farr value option 1s adjusted to reflect the effect of changes in own credit
spreads The resulting gain or loss 1s recognised in the income statement For funded instruments such as issued notes, mid-level credit spreads on
Barclays 1ssued bonds are the basis for this adjustment

At 31 December 2011, the own credit ad;ustment arose from the fair valuation Barclays Capital’s financial habilities designated at fair value Barclays
credit spreads widened during 2011, leading to a profit of £2,708m (2010 £391m) from the fair value of changes primarily in own credit itself but also
reflecting the effects of foreign exchange rates, time decay and trade activity
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Unrecognised gains as a result of the use of valuation models using unobservable inputs

The amount that has yet to be recognised in incomne that relates to the difference between the transaction price (the far value at intial recogrution) and
the arnount that would have ansen had valuation models using unobservable inputs been used on initial recognition, less amounts subsequently
recognised, is as follows

The Group The Bank
201 2010 20N 2010
£m £m £ £m
Opening balance 137 99 99 70
Additions 93 56 43 41
Amortisation and releases (113} (18) (63) (12)
Closing balance 117 137 79 99

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Quoted market prices are not available for many of the financial assets and liabilities that are held at farr value and The Group uses a variety of
techriques to estimate the fair value The above note descnbes the more jJudgemental aspects of valuation in the period, including credit valuation
adjustments on monoline exposures, commercial real estate loans, private equity investments, and fair value loans to government and business and
other services The following sensitivity analysis is performed on products with significant unobservable parameters (Level 3) to generate a range of
reasonably possible alternative valuations These numbers are calculated before taking advantage of any diversification in the portfolic

Sensitivity analysis of valuations using unobservable inputs

Fair value Favourable changes Unfavourable changes

The Group Total assets Total liabilities Profitand loss Equity Profit and loss Equity
Product type £m £m £m £m £m £m
As at 31 December 2011

Commercial real estate loans 2,452 - 102 - {(118) -
Asset backed products 5,752 {1,020} 488 2 (388) 2)
Other credit products 4386 (3,765) 167 - (167) -
Dervative exposure to monoline insurers 1,129 - - - {133) -
Non-asset backed debt instruments 4,213 (2,086) 24 - (22) -
Equity products 1,079 {1,531) 169 1 {169) (15)
Private equity 2,827 - 375 81 {364) (82)
Funds and fund-linked products 1.290 - 174 - {174) -
FX products 457 (187) 57 - {57) -
Interest rate products 2,433 (2,090) 60 - {60) -
Commaodity products 773 (991) 116 - {123) -
Other 5,232 {53) 196 - {196) -
Total 32,023 (11,723) 1,928 94 (1,971) (99)
As at 31 December 2010

Commercial rezl estate loans 5,424 - 183 - (167) -
Asset backed products 4,628 (1,912) 317 11 (289) {1
Credit products 1,097 (1,318) 38 - (66) -
Dervative exposure to monoline insurers 1,449 - 78 - (230) -
Non-asset backed debt instruments 2,956 {2,719) 56 - {55) -
Equity products 1,478 {1,895) 156 8 {154) (8)
Prwate equity 2,844 - 279 m {280) (69)
Funds and fund-hrked products 1,084 - 275 - (275) -
Fx products 506 (241) 5 - (52 -
Interest rate products 2,407 {1,079) 38 - (52} .
Commodity products 493 (629) 30 - (55) -
Other 4,651 (199) 51 - (55} .

Total 29,017 (9,992) 1,552 130 (1,730) (88)




150 I Barclays Bank PLC Annual Report 2011 www barclays com/annualreport

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31December 201 1continued

18 Fair value of financial instruments {continued)

An analysis is performed on products with significant unobservable parameters (Level 3) to generate a range of reasonably possible alternative
valuations The methodologies applied take account of the nature of valuation techniques used, as well as the avallability and reliability of observable
proxy and historical data Sensitwities are calculated without reflecting the impact of any diversification in the pertfolio

The effect of stressing unobservable inputs to a range of reasonably possible alternatives would be to increase far values by up to £2 0bn {2010
£17bn) or to decrease fair values by up to £2 1bn {2070 £1 8bn) with substantially all the potential effect impacting profit and loss rather than equity

Sensitivities are dynamically calculated on a monthly basis The calculation 1s based on a range, standard dewiation or spread data of a reliable
reference source or a scenario based on alternative market views The level of shift or scenarios appled 1s considered for each product and varied
according to the quality of the data and vanability of underlying market The approach adopted in determining these sensitivities has continued to
evolve during the year, in the context of changing market conditions

Cornmercial real estate loans

Sensitivity Is determined by applying an adjusted spread of 15% for each loan (both up and down} The adjusted spread is derived from loan
ongination spreads provided by independent market research  For non-performing loans, a plausible worst-case valuation is deterrmined from the
history of third-party valuation reports or bids recerved

Asset backed products

The sensitivity anzlysis for asset backed products Is based on bid offer ranges defined at the asset class level which take into account security level
liquidity Half of the observed bid offer range i1s multiplied by the market value of the position to calculate the valuation sensitivity Where there is no
observabie bud offer data, price movements on appropriate indices are used Sensitivity 1s based on the average of the largest upward and downward
price movermnent in the preceding 12 month period

Other credit products
The sensitivity of valuations of the illigud CDS portfolio 1s deterrmined by applying a shift to each underlying reference asset The shift s based upon the
average bid offer spreads observed in the market for similar CDS

Bespoke Collateralised Synthetic Obhgation (CSO) sensitivity is calculated using correlation evels denved from the range of contributors to a consensus
bespoke service

Derivative exposure to monoline insurers

Sensitivity 1s meastured by stressing inputs to the counterparty valuation adjustment including our expected expesures and the probability of default of
the monoline dervative counterparty The modelled expected exposures are stressed by shifting the recovery rate assumptions on the underlying
protected assets The probability of default of the moneline denvative counterparty is stressed by shifting the internal default curve, which 1s

generated through the analysis performed by credit risk management

Non-asset backed debt instruments
The sensitivity for convertible bonds 1s determinad by applying a shift to each underlying position based upon the bid offer spreads observed in the
market for similar bonds

The sensitivity for corporate bonds portfolio 15 deterrmined by applying a shift to each underlying position driven by average bid offer spreads observed
n the market for similar bonds

Equity products
Sensitivity 1s estimated based on the dispersion of consensus data services either directly or through proxies

Private equity

The relevant valuation models are each sensitive to a number of key assumptions, such as projected future earnings, comparator mulftiples,
marketability discounts and discount rates Valuation sensitivity 1s estimated by flexing such assumptions to reasonable alternative levels and
determining the tmpact on the resulting valuation

Funds and fund-linked products
Sensitivity i1s calculated on an indivadual fund basis using a loss based scenario approach which factors in the underlying assets of the specific fund and
assumed recovery rates

Foreign exchange products
sensitrvity relating to unobservable valuation inputs s based on the dispersion of consensus data services



Barclays Bank PLC Annual Report 2011 www barclays com/annualreport 151

18 Fair value of financial Instruments {continued)
Interest rate products
Sensitivity relating to the valuation of the products is mainly driven from the dispersion of the consensus data

Commodity products

Sensitivity 1s determined pnmarily by measuring historical vaniability over two years The estimate is calculated using data for short dated parameter
curves to generate best and worst case scenarios Where historical data is unavailable or uncertainty is due ta velumetric nisk, sensitivity 1s measured by
applying appropnate stress scenarios or using proxy bid-offer spread levels

Other
The sensitivity for fixed rate loans 1s calculated by applying a 25% shift 1n borrower credit spreads

No stress has been applied to the receivables relating to the Lehman acquisition {refer to Note 16) Due to the uncertainty inherent in legal proceedings,
it1s not possible to identify reasorable upside and downside stresses on a basis comparable with the other assets analysed

The sensitivity for credit valuation adjustrments is calculated by assessing the impact on the counterparty credit spreads of stressing therr credit ratings
by two ratings notches
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Financial instruments held at amortised cost

This section contains information about assets that are held at amortised cost arising from The Group’s
retait and wholesale lending including loans and advances, finance leases, repurchase and reverse
repurchase agreements and similar secured lending. For more information about The Group’s funding and
liguidity position, see Liquidity Risk and Capital on pages 78 and pages 79 to 94.

Accounting for financial instruments held at amortised cost

Loans and advances to customers and banks, custorner accounts, debt secunties and the majornity of other financiali habilities, are held at amortised
cost That s, the irutial fair value (which s normally the amount advanced or borrowed) is adjusted for repayments and the amortisation of coupon,
fees and expenses to represent the effective interest rate of the asset or liability

19 Loans and advances to banks and customers

The Group The Bank

on 2010 2011 2010
As at 31 December £m £m £m £m
Gross loans and advances to banks 46,837 37,847 52,332 40,438
Less allowance for imparrment (45) (48) (45) (48)
Loans and advances to banks 46,792 37,799 52,287 40,390
Gross loans and advances to customers 442,486 440,326 525,154 531,012
Less allowance for impairment {10,552) (12,384) (7.374) {8.076)
Loans and advances to customers 431,934 427,942 517,780 522,936

20 Finance feases

Accounting for finance leases

The Group applies IAS 17 Leases In accounting for finance leases, both where it is the lessor or the lessee A finance lease is a lease which confers
substantlally all the nsks and rewards of the leased assets on the lessee  Where The Group Is the lessor, the leased asset is not held on the balance
sheet, Instead a finance lease recewvable 15 recognised representing the minimum lease payments receivable under the terms of the lease,
discounted at the rate of Interest Imphait in the lease Where The Group is the lessee, the leased asset 15 recognised in property, plant and
equipment and a finance lease liability 1s recogrised, representing the minimum lease payments payable under the lease, discounted at the rate of
interest implicit in the lease

Interest income or expense is recognised In tnterest receivable or payable, allocated to accounting perlods to reflect a constant perlodic rate of
return

Finance lease receivables

Finance fease recervables are included within loans and advances to customers The Group specialises in asset-based lending and works with a
broad range of international technology, industrial equipment and commercial companies to provide customised finance programmes to assist
manufacturers, dealers and distributors of assets
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20 Finance leases (continued)

2011 2010
Present Present
Gross value of Gross value of
investment minimum Un- investment minimum Un-
in finance Future lease guaranteed Infinance Future lease guaranteed
lease finance payments residual lease finance  payments residual
receivables income  receivable values receivables income  receivable values
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
The Group
Not more than one year 2,977 (437) 2,540 71 3,440 (479) 2,961 60
Over one year but not more than five years 6,333 {934) 5,399 122 7,200 {1,058) 6,142 123
Qver five years 1,379 (320) 1,059 395 1,591 (340) 1,251 560
Total 10,689 {1,691) 8,998 588 12,231 (1,877} 10,354 743
The Bank
Not more than one year 18 - 18 - - - - -
Qver one year but not more than five years 181 (10} 17 - 132 - 132 -
Over five years 310 (29) 281 - 92 - 92 -
Total 509 (39) 470 - 224 - 224 -

The impairment allowance for uncollectable finance lease receivables amounted to £290m at 31 December 2011 (2010 £351m)

Finance lease liabilities
The Group leases items of property, plant and equipment on terms that meet the definition of finance leases Finance lease liabilities are included
within accruals, deferred income and other Liabilities (5ee Note 26)

As at 31 Decernber 2011, the total future mirimum payments under finance leases were £64m (2010 £87m), of which £10m (2010 £16m) was

due within one year and the total future mummum payments under finance leases for the Bank were £2m (2010 nil) As at 31 December 2011, the
carrying amount of assets held under finance leases was £28m (2010 £29m)

21 Reclassification of financial assets held for trading

Accounting for the reclassification of financial assets held fer trading

In accordance with IAS 39, where The Group no longer intends to trade in financial assets it may transfer them out of the held for trading
classification and measure thern at amortised cost if they meet the definition of a loan The initial value used for the purposes of establishing
amortised cost 1s fair value on the date of the transfer

Prior to 2010, The Group reclassified certain financial assets, ongnally classified as held for trading that were deemed to be not held for trading
purposes to loans and recewvables There were no reclassifications of financial assets during 2011 or 2010

The carrying value of the securities previously reclassified into loans and receivables has decreased from £8,625m to £7,652m primarily as a result
of sales, paydowns and matunties of the undeslying securities, and increases due to the reversal of the discount on reclassification Sales of
securities from the 16 December 2008 reclassification totalled £91m (31 December 2010 £390m) and sales of secunities from the 25 November
2009 reclassification totalled £482m (31 December 2010 £178m)

The foliowing table provides a summary of the assets reclassifled from held for trading to loans and recewvables

Carrying Falr Carrying Fair
value value value value
£m £m £m £m

Trading assets reclassified to loans and receivables
Reclassification 25 November 2009 7,434 7,045 8,081 7,842
Reclassification 16 December 2008 218 217 544 545

Total financial assets reclassified to loans and receivables 7,652 7.262 8,625 8,387
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21 Reclassification of financial assets held for trading (continued}

If the reclass/fications had not been made, The Group's Income statement for 2011 would have included a net loss on the reclassifled trading assets

of £152m (2010 loss of £189m) The reclassified financial assets contnbuted £396m (2010- £359m) to interest income

22 Reverse repurchase and repurchase agreements including other similar lending and borrowing

Reverse repurchase agreements {and stock borrowing or similar transactlon} are a form of secured lending whereby The Group provides a loan or
cash collateral in exchange for the transfer of collateral, generally in the form of marketable securities subject to an agreement to transfer the
securities back at a fixed price in the future Repurchase agreements are where The Group obtains such loans or cash collateral, In exchange for the

transfer of collateral

Accounting for reverse repurchase and repurchase agreements including similar lending and other borrowing
The Group purchases (a reverse repurchase agreement) or borrows secunties subject to a commitment to resell or return them: The secunties are
not included in the balance sheet as The Group does not acquire the risks and rewards of ownership Consideration pald (or cash collateral

provided) 15 accounted for as a foan asset at amortised cost.

The Group may also sell {a repurchase agreement) or lend securities subject to a commutment to repurchase or redeem them. The securities are
retained on the balance sheet as The Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership Consideration received (or cash collateral

provided) 1s accounted for as 2 financial llability at amortised cost

The Group The Bank
2011 2010 2011 2010
£m £m £Em £m
Assets
Banks 64,470 104,233 43,463 72,997
Customers 89,195 101,539 112,973 154,346
Reverse repurchase agreements and other simllar secured lending 153,665 205,772 161,436 227,343
Liabilities
Banks 69,544 95,997 46,430 61,692
Customers 137,748 125,537 147,023 152,515
Repurchase agreements and other similar secured borrowing 207,292 225,534 193,453 214,207
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Fixed assets and investments

This section details The Group’s tangible and intangible assets, property plant and equipment and
investments, which 1t utilises to generate profit for the business

23 Property, plant and equipment

Accounting for property, plant and equipment
The Group applies IAS 16 Property Plant and Equipment and IAS 4G Investment Properties.

Property, plant and equipment 1s stated at cost, which includes direct and incremental acquisition costs less accumulated depreciation and
provisions for irmpairment, If required Subsequent costs are capitalised if these result in the enhancement to the asset

Depreciation 1s provided on the depreciable amount of items of property, plant and equipment on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
economic lives Depreciation rates, methods and the residual values underlying the calculation of depreciation of items of property, plant and
equipment are kept under review to take account of any change in circumstances Following a review in 2011, the depreciation rates for certain
categones of fixed assets were revised to reflect their currently expected useful lives Theimpact of the change was not materlal The Croup uses
the following annual rates in calculating depreciation

Annual rates in calculating depreciation

Freehold land Depreciation rate

Freehold buildings and long-leasehold property (more than 50 years to run) ';_0; :;frecmted

Leasehold property aver the remaining life of the lease (less than 50 years to run) Over the remaining Iife of the lease
Costs of adaptation of freehcld and leasehold property* 5-10%

Equipment installed in freehold and leasehold property* 6-10%

Computers and similar equipment 17-33%

Fixtures and fittings and other equipment 9-20%

Investment property
The Group Initially recogrises investment property at cost, and subsequently at their fair value at each balance sheet date reflecting market
conditions at the reporting date Cains and losses on remeasurement are included in the income statement
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23 Property, plant and equipment {continued)

The Group The Bank
Investment Leased tnvestment
property  Property Equipment assets Total property Property Equipment Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £Em £Em
Cost
As at 1st January 2011 1,570 4,229 4,749 75 10,623 4 2,115 2,064 4,183
Acqguisitions and disposals of subsidiaries 1,201 - - - 1,201 - - -
Additions and disposals 277 (183) 256 1 L) - {47) 129 82
Change In fair value of investment properties (138) - - - (138) - - - -
Exchange and other movements 18 (87) (250) (56) (375) - {12) {24) (36)
As at 31st December 2011 2,928 3,959 4,755 20 11,662 4 2,056 2,169 4,229
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
As at ist January 2011 - (1.326) (3.133) (24) (4,483} - {935) (1,370} (2.305)
Depreciation charge - {206) (453) (4) (673) - (110) (204} (314)
Disposals - 275 175 4 454 - 205 108 313
Exchange and other movements - 12 177 17 206 1 13 14
As at 31st December 2011 - (1,245) (3.244) (7) (4,496) - {839) (1,453) (2.292)
Net book value 2,928 2,714 1,511 13 7,166 4 1,217 716 1,937
Cost
As at 1st January 2010 1,207 3,830 4,197 66 9,300 - 1,956 2,073 4,029
Acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries 46 2 4 - 52 - 2 2
Additions and disposals 353 283 120 9 765 4 172 (22) 154
Change In fair value of investment properties (54) - - - (54) - - -
Exchange and other movemnents 18 114 428 - 560 (13) 11 (2}
As at 31st December 2010 1,570 4,229 4,749 75 10,623 4 2,115 2,064 4,183
Accumulated depreciation and Impalrment
As at 1st January 2010 - (1,128) (2529) (17)  (3.674) {881y (1,316) (2.197)
Depreciation charge - {231) (555) (4) {790) (129} (256) (385)
Disposals - 86 3N (3) 424 58 221 279
Exchange and other movements - {53} (390) - {443) 17 {(19) (2)
As at 31st December 2010 - (1,326} (3,133) (24) (4,483) (935) (1,370) (2,305)
Net book value 1.570 2,903 1616 51 6,140 4 1,180 694 1,878

Property rentals of £94m (2010 £105m)and £61m (2010 £48m) have been included in Investment incerne and other Income respectively and
gains on property disposals of £13m {2010 £29m) have been included in administration and general expenses

The fair value of investment property is determined by reference ta current market prices for similar properties, adjusted as necessary for condition
and location, or by reference to recent transactions updated to reflect current economic conditions Discounted cash flow techniques may be
employed to calculate fair value where there have been no recent transactions, using current external market inputs such as market rents and
interest rates Valuations are carnied out by management with the support of appropriately qualfied sndependent valuers
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24 Goodwill and intangible assets

Accounting for goodwill and other intangible assets
Goodwill
The carrying value of goadwill 1s determined in accordance with IFRS 3 Busmess Combinations and 1AS 36 impairment of Assets

Goodwill anses on the acquisition of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, and represents the excess of the farr value of the purchase
consideration over the fair value of The Group’s share of the assets acquired and the habilites and contingent habiliies assumed on the date of the
acquisition

Goodwill 1s reviewed annually for impairment, or more frequently when there are indications that impairment may have occurred The testinvolves
comparing the carrying value of goodwill with the present value of the pre-tax cash flows, discounted at a rate of interest that reflects the inherent
risks, of the cash generating unit to which the goodwill relates, or the cash generating unit’s fair value if this is higher

Intangible assets
The accounting standard that The Group applies in accounting for intangible assets other than goodwill 1s IAS 38 Intangible Assets

Intangible assets include brands, customer lists, licences and other contracts, core deposit intangibles and mortgage servicing nghts They are
initially recogrised when they are separable or arise from contractual or other legal nghts, the cost can be measured reliably and, 1 the case of
intangible assets not acquired in a business combination, where it 1s probable that future econormic benefits attributable to the assets will flow from
thetr use

Intangible assets are reviewed for impairment when there are indications that impairment may have incurred
They are stated at cost {which 15, in the case of assets acquired in a business combination, the acquisition date fair value) less amortisation and

provisions for impairment, if any, and are amortised over their useful lives in a manner that reflects the pattern to which they contnibute to future
cash flows, generally over 4-25 years
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24 Goodwill and intangible assets (continued)

Internally Core Mortgage
generated Other deposit Customner servicing Licences
Goodwill software software intangibles Brands lists rights and other Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m

The Group
Cost
As at 1 January 2011 7.259 1,091 234 347 202 1.686 - 473 1,292
Additions and disposals (210) 375 93 (1) - 144 - (19) 387
Exchange and other movements (352) {29) {4) (59) (36) (106} - {10) {596)
As at 31 December 2011 6,697 1,437 328 287 166 1,724 - 444 11,083
Accumulated amortisation and
impairment
As at 1 January 2011 {1.040) {552) (86) (121} (109) {493) - (194) {2,595)
Disposals 210 2 5 - - - - 23 240
Amortisation charge - (157) (35) (13) (18) (158) - (38) (419)
Impairment charge {597) (4} - - - - - - {(601)
Exchange and other movements 35 17 2 20 21 36 - 7 138
As at 31 December 2011 (1,392) {694) (114) (114) {106) (615) - (202) (3,237)
Net book value 5305 743 214 173 60 1,109 - 242 7.846
The Bank
Cost
As at 1 January 2011 4,279 707 118 7 - 16 - 17 5,244
Additions and disposals - 295 80 - - 91 - 9 475
Exchange and other movements {2) {13) (3) (1) - - - {2) {21)
As at 31 December 2011 4,277 939 195 6 - 107 - 124 5,698
Accumulated amortisation and
impairment
As at 1 January 2011 (727) (339) (34) {(4) - (8) - (227 (1,134)
Disposals - 1 - - - - - - ]
Amortisation charge - (96) (15) - - (30) - (12) {153)
Impairment charge (89) {4) - - - - - - (93)
Exchange and other movements - 12 1 - - - - 1 14
As at 31 December 2011 (816) (426) (48) (4) - (38) - (33) (1,365)
Net book value 3,461 563 147 2 - 69 - 9 4,333
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24 Goodwill and intangible assets (continued)
Internally Core Mortgage
generated Other deposit Customer servicing Licences
Goodwill software software intangibles Brands lists rights and other Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
The Group
Cost
As at 1 January 2010 7,058 963 237 L] 175 1.521 164 462 10,881
Additions and disposals 12 83 3 - - 28 (168) 22 {15)
Exchange and other movements 189 40 (6) 46 27 137 4 (11) 426
As at 31 December 2010 7,259 1,091 234 347 202 1,686 - 473 11,292
Accumnulated amortisation and
impairment
As at 1 January 2010 (826) (465) (58) (82) (84) (318) (117) (136)  (2.086)
Disposals - 100 - - - 2 144 n 257
Amortisation charge - (178) (36) (19) (18) {141) (7 (38) (437)
Impairment charge (243) (14) - (V)] - (15) (19) a7 {315)
Exchange and other movements 29 5 8 {13) {7) {21) (1) (14) (14)
As at 31 December 2010 (1,040) (552) (86) (121) (109) {493) - (194)  (2,595)
Net book value 6,219 539 148 226 93 1,193 - 279 8,697
The Bank
Cost
As at 1 January 2010 4,283 675 136 7 4 17 164 117 5,401
Additions and disposals - 32 (18) - - 28 (168) 2 {124)
Exchange and other movements (2) - - - (4) (29) 4 (2) (33)
As at 31 December 2010 4,279 707 118 7 - 16 - 17 5,244
Accumulated amortisation and
impairment
As at 1 )anuary 2010 (727) (320) @1) @) (6) 0] (115) @n (0,220
Disposals - 94 - - - - 144 n 245
Amortisation charge - (1) (13) (M) - (5) (7) (11) (148)
Impairment charge - {13) - - - (10} (19} 9 (33)
Exchange and other movements - 11 - - [ 14 (3) (10) 18
As at 31 December 2010 (727) (339) (34) 4) - (8) - (22)  (1,134)
Net book value 3,552 368 84 3 - 8 - 95 4,110
Goodwill
Goodwill is allocated to business operations according to business segments as follows
The Graup The Bank
2011 2010 2011 2010
£m £m £m £m
UK RBB 3,145 3,148 3,130 3,130
RBB Europe 64 505 64 108
RBB Afrnica 1,078 1,307 - -
Barclaycard 505 585 172 220
Barclays Capital 102 133 - -
Barclays Corporate 20 150 - -
Barclays Wealth 39N 391 95 94
Total net book value of goodwill 5,305 6,219 3,461 3,552
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24 Goodwilll and intangible assets {continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill

Total impairment charges of £597m (2010- £243m charge relating to Barclays Bank Russia) have been recognised during the year as the
recoverable amount of goodwill in FirstPlus and Spain was not supported based on the value-in-use calculations The impairment charge of £47m
(2010 nll) in respect of all of the goodwill held by Barclaycard arising from the acquisitfon of FirstPlus reflected the continued run-off of the foan
portfolio and the impact of the paymant protection insurance redress Further details on the impalrment of Spain goodwill are set out below

Key assumptions

The key assumptions used for iImpairment testing are set out below for each significant goodwill balance Other Group goodwill of £1,133m (2010
£1,253rm) and Bank goodwill of E331m (2010 £375m) was allocated to multiple cash-generating units which are not considered individually
sigmificant.

UK RBB

At 31 December 2011, goodwill relating to Woolwich was £3,130m (2010 £3,130m) of the total UK RBB balance The recoverable amount of
Woolwich has been determined using cash flow predictions based on financial budgets approved by management and covering a five year period,
with a terminal growth rate of 3% (2010 2%) applied thereafter The forecast cash flows have been discounted at a pre-tax rate of 13% (2010
13%) Based on these assumptions, the recoverable amount exceeded the carrying amount including goadwill by £8 7bn (2010 £4 0bn) A one
percentage point change in the discount rate or the terminal growth rate would reduce the recoverable amount by £1 4bn (2010 £1 Cbn) and

£0 9bn (2030- £0 8bn) respectively A reduction in the forecast cash flows of 10% per annum would reduce the recoverable amount by £1 5bn
(2010 £1 1bn)

Africa RBB

At 31 December 2011, goadwill relating to the Absa Group was £1,042m (2010 £1,271m) of the total Africa RBB balance The recoverable
amount of the Absa Group has been determined using cash flow predictions based on financial budgets approved by management and covering a
five year period, with a terminat growth rate of 6% (2010 6%) applied thereafter The forecast cash flows have been discounted at a pre-tax rate of
14% (2010 149%) The recoverable amount calculated based on value-in-use exceeded the carrying amount including goodwill by £4 7bn (2010
£50bn) A one percentage point change in the discount rate or the termma| growth rate would reduce the recoverable amount by £0 9bn (2010
£1 0bn) and £0 7bn (2010 £0 8bn) respectively A reduction in the forecast cash flows of 10% per annum would reduce the recoverable amount
by £0 8bn (2010- £0 9bn)

Spain

At 31 December 2011, Barclays recogrnised an impairment charge of £550m {2010 nil) in respect of the whole goodwill balance held by Barclays
Corporate (£123m) and Europe RBB (£427m) ansing from the acquisitions of the Iberla Woolwich business in 2000 and Zaragozano in 2003 The
cash flow forecasts were reassessed during the fourth quarter as a result of uncertainty in econormic conditions in Spain and increased risk
assaciated with the future cash flows. The pre-tax discount rate was increased to 16% (2010 12%) and the long term growth rate was reduced to
1% (2010 2%) Based on these assumptions the value-In-use was no longer able to support the recagnition of the goodwaill and it was fully
impaired as at 31 December 2011

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Goodwill

Testing goodwill for impairment Involves a significant amount of estmation This Includes the identification of Independent cash generating units
and the allocation of goodwill to these units based on which units are expected to benefit from the acquisition The allocation Is reviewed following
business reorganisation Cash flow projections necessarily take into account changes in the market in which a business operates including the level
of growth, compettive activity and the impacts of regulatory change Determining both the expected pre-tax cash flows and the risk adjusted
interest rate appropriate to the operating unit require the exercise of judgement The estimation of pre-tax cash flows 1s sensitive to the periods for
which detalled forecasts are avallable and to assumptions regarding the long-term sustalnable cash flows

Other intangible assets

Determining the estmated usefu! lives of intangible assets (such as those arising from contractual relationships} requires an analysis of
arcumstances and judgement The assessment of whether an asset s exhibiting indicators of impairment as weli as the calculation of impairment,
which reguires the estimation of future cash flows and fair values less costs to sell, also requires the preparation of cash flow forecasts and fair
values for assets that may not be regularly bought and sold The most significant amounts of intang:ble assets relate to Absa and Lehman Brothers
North American businesses
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25 Operating leases

Accounting for operating leases
The Group applies IAS 17 Leases, for operating leases An operating lease is a lease where substantially all of the risks and rewards of the leased

assets remain with the lessor Where The Group s the lessor, lease income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease unless
another systematic basis is more appropriate The Group holds the leased assets on balance sheet within property, plant and equipment

Where The Group s the lessee, rentals payable are recognised as an expense in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the lease term
unless another systematic basis I1s more appropnate

Operating lease receivables
The Group acts as lessor, whereby items of plant and equipment are purchased and then leased to third parties under arrangements qualifying as
operating leases The future minimum lease payments expected to be recewed under non-cancellable operating leases as at 31 December 2011

was £14m (2010 £43m)

Operating lease commitments

The Group leases various offices, branches and other premises under non-cancellable operating lease arrangements With such operating lease
arrangements, the asset 1s kept on the lessor’s balance sheet and The Group reports the future minimum lease payments as an expense over the
fease term The leases have vanous terms, escalation and renewal rights There are no cantingent rents payable

Operating lease rentals of £659m (2010 £637m) have been included in admnistration and general expenses

The future ririmum lease payments by The Group under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows

The Group The Bank
2011 2010 2011 2010

Property Equipment  Property Equpment Property Equipment  Property Equipment

£m £m £m £m £m £m £rm £m

Not more than one year 585 12 628 7 266 1 245 3
QOver one year but not more than five years 1,673 2 1,477 2 857 1 877 2
Over five years 2,830 - 3,146 - 1,466 - 1,505 -
Total 5,088 14 5,251 9 2,589 2 2,627 5

The total of future mimmum sublease payments to be received under non-cancellable subleases at the 31 December 2011 was £121m (2010
£111m) for The Group and £114m (2010 £108m) for the Bank.
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Accruals, provisions and contingent liabilities

The section describes The Group’s accruals, provisions and contingent liabilities arising from it's banking
and insurance businesses. Provisions are recognised for present obligations arising as consequences of
past events where it s probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be necessary to settle the
obligation, and it can be reliably estimated Contingent liabilities reflect potential liabilities that are not
recognised on the balance sheet

26 Accruals, deferred income and other liabilities

The Group The Bank

2011 2010 201m 2010

£m £m £m £m

Accruals and deferred income 4,959 5,539 2,446 2,353
Other creditors 517 5.198 13,023 15,217
Obl:gations under finance leases (see Note 20) 64 87 2 -
Insurance contract lizbihties including unit-linked abilities 2,386 2,409 - -
Accruals, deferred income and other liabilities 12,580 13,233 15,471 17,570

Insurance habilities relate principally to The Group's long-term business Insurance contract habilites associated with The Group's short-term non-
life business are £118m {2010- £131m) The maximum amounts payable under all of The Group’s insurance products, ignoning the probability of
Insured events occurning and the contribution from investments backing the insurance policies were £104bn (2010- £114bn)* or £82bn (2010
£95bn)* after reinsurance Of this insured risk £89bn (2010- £99bn)* or £69bn (2010 £82bn) after relnsurances was concentrated in short-term
insurance contracts in Africa

The impact to the income statement and equity under any reasonably possible change in the assumptions used to calculate the insurance liabilities
would be £8m (2010 £12m)

Accounting for insurance contracts

The Group applies IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts to its insurance contracts An insurance contract is a contract that protects against a third party or a
non-financial risk. Some wealth management and other products, such as life assurance contracts, combine investment and insurance features,
these are treated as insurance contracts when they pay benefits that are at least 5% more than they woutd pay if the insured event does not occur

Insurance liabilities include current best estimates of future contractual cash flows, clams handling, and administration costs in respect of claims
Liability adequacy tests are performed at each balance sheet date to ensure the adequacy of contract liabilities Where a deficiency is highlighted by
the tests, insurance habilities are Increased, any deficiency being recognised in the income statement.

Insurance premium revenue is recognised in the iIncome statement in the period earned, net of rensurance premiums payable, in net prermiums
from insurance contracts Increases and decreases in insurance labilitles are recognised in the ncome statement in net claims and benefits on
imsurance contracts

The Financial Services Compensation Scheme (FSCS)

The FSCS is the UK's compensation fund for customers of authonsed financial services firms that are unable to pay claims The FSCS raises levies
on all UK deposit taking tnstitutions Previously compensation has been paid out by loan facilities provided by HM Treasury to FSCS in support of
FSCS's obligations to the depositors of banks declared in default. The outstanding loan facilities, totalling approximately £18 Sbn, are to be
reviewed from 1 April 2012 and the ongoing terms are still to be agreed with HM Treasury While it 1s anticipated that the substantial majonty of
these loans will be repaid wholly from recoveries from the institutions concerned, there is the nsk of a shortfall, such that the FSCS may place
additional levies on all FSCS participants Barclays has inciuded an accrual of £58m in other habiliies as at 31 Decemnber 2011 (2010- £63m)in
respect of levies raised by the FSCS, based on the Indicative costs published by the FSCS

Note
a Comparatives have been restated to include Motor Liabilty and Engineering insured exposures within ABSA Group.
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27 Provisions

Accounting for provisions
The Group applies IAS 37 Prowisions, Contingent Liatiimies and Contingent Assets 1n accounting for non-financial habilities

Provisions are recogmised for present obligations ansing as consequences of past events where it is more likely than not that a transfer of
economic resources will be necessary to settle the obligation, which can be reliably estimated Prowision 1s made for the anticipated cost of
restructuring, including redundancy costs when an obligation exists, 1 €, when The Group has a detalled formal plan for restructuring a business
and has raised valid expectations in those affected by the restructunng by announcing its main features or starting to implement the plan
Provision 15 made for undrawn loan commitments if it 15 probable that the faciity will be drawn and result in the recognition of an asset at an
amount less than the amount advanced

Undrawn
contractually
committed Payment
Redundancy facilities and Protection
Onerous and re- guarantees Insurance Sundry
contracts structuring provided redress Litigation provisions Total
£m £m £m £m £m f£m £m

The Group
As at 1 January 2011 74 177 229 - 151 316 947
Additions ral 330 m 1,000 176 36 1,724
Amounts utilised (31) (257) 2 (435) {104) (64) (893)
Unused amounts reversed - (31) (109) - (73) (13) (226)
Exchange and other movernents 2 (3) 1 - (10) {13} (23)
As at 31 December 2011 116 216 230 565 140 262 1,529
The Bank
As at 1 Japuary 2011 68 166 184 - 116 117 651
Additions ra| 193 83 580 135 94 1,162
Amounts utilised (30) {140) (4)] {355) (97) (41) (664)
Unused amounts reversed (1) (29) {66) - (62) (47) (205)
Exchange and other movements 2 (1) 2 - (7) (1) (5)
As at 31st December 2010 110 195 202 225 85 122 939
The Group
As at 1 January 2010 68 162 162 - 27 i¥a 590
Additions 36 139 118 - 130 403 826
Amounts utiised (28) (68) (8) - (4) {225) (333)
Unused amounts reversed (4) (56) (50) - (5) (48) (163)
Exchange and other movements 2 - 7 - 3 15 27
As at 31 December 2010 74 177 229 - 151 316 947
The Bank
As at 1 January 2010 58 148 196 - - 62 464
Additions 36 132 34 - 119 272 593
Amounts utilised (24) {59) (8) - m (208) (300)
Unused amounts reversed (4) {55) {48) - (2) (14) {123)
Exchange and other movements 2 - 10 - - 5 17
As at 31 December 2010 68 166 184 - 116 117 651

Provisions expected to be recovered or settled within no more than 12 months after 31 December 2011 for The Group were £1,260m (2010
£658m) and for the Bank were £694m {2010 £468m) Prowisions relating to taxation are included in current and deferred tax disclosures on pages
120t0 126
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Critical accounting estimates and judgements

On 20 April 2011, the Judicial review proceedings brought by the British Bankers’ Association in October 2010 against the FSA and the Financial
Ombudsman Service regarding the assessment and redress of PPl complaints were dismissed On 9 May 2011, Barclays announced that it would
not be participating in any application for perrmission to a2ppeal against the High Court judgment and that Barclays had agreed with the F5A that it
would process all on-hold and any new complaints from customers about PP policies that they hold Barclays also announced that, as a goodwill
gesture, it would pay out compensation to customers who had PPl complaints put on hald during the judicial review Barclays took a provision of
£1bn in the second quarter of 2011 to cover the cost of future redress and administration

As at 31 December 2011, following payments made during the year, the provislon was £565m and £225m for the Bank, and represents
management's best estimate of the remaining anticipated costs of related customer redress, including administration expenses The prowision
requires sigmficant judgement by management in determining appropriate assumptions The key assumptions include

- Customer claims - the volume and timing of actua!l customer claims The assumption is based upon recent experience of claims received
and has factored in a component for the amount of duplicate or non-PP| eligible requests that have been submitted in addition,
expectations in relation to claims management companies and other such activity have been conslidered,

- Uphold rates - the percentage of claims that are upheld as betng valid upon review The rate considers recent experience and excludes
“gestures of goodwlll” paid without challenge by The Group for claims received during the judicial Review period and not processed until
the Review was completed, and

- Average payment — this s the expected average payment to customers for upheld claims The assumption is based upon recent
expernence and the calculation of payment requirements as defined by the agreements and the FSA Policy Paper

There are a large number of Inter-dependent assumptions under-pinmng the PP provision Many of those assumptions remaln highly subjective,
and trends have been difficult to ascertain across all portfolios Therefore, it is possible that the eventual outcome could differ from current
managernent estimates, resulting in a matenal change to the amounts provided in the 2011 financial statements

When considering the key assumptions independently, the most significant driver of the provision is complaint flow (f the level of complaints were
10% higher (lower) than the estimated level for all policies, assuming no change in other assumptions, then the provision would have increased
(decreased) by approximately £100m for The Group and £60m for the Bank.

The Group will re-evaluate the assumptions underlying Its analysis at each reporting date as more information becormes available

28 Contingent liabilities and commitments

Accounting for contingent liabllities and commitments
Contingent liabilties are possible obligations whose existence will be confirmed only by uncertain future events, and present cobligations where
the transfer of economic rescurces Is uncertain or cannot be rehably measured, are not recognised but are disclosed unless they are remote

Thae following table summarises the nerminal principal amount of contingent liabilities and commutments which are not recorded on batance sheet.

The Group The Bank

20N 2010 2011 2010

£m £m £m £m

Securities lending arrangements 35,996 27,672 35,996 27,672
Guarantees and letters of credit pledged as collateral security 14,181 13,783 14,356 11,823
Performance guarantees, acceptances and endorsements 8,706 9,175 7.023 7,301
Contignent Liabilities 58,883 50,630 57,375 46,796
Documentary Credits and other short-term trade refated transactions 1,358 1,194 1,106 924
Standby facilities, credit lines and other commitments 240,282 222,963 190,736 173,795

In common with other banks, The Group conducts business involving acceptances, performance bonds and indemnities The majority of these
facilities are offset by corresponding obligations of third partles

Contingent llabilities

Up to the disposal of Barclays Global Investors on 1 December 2009, The Group facilitated secunities lending arrangements for its managed
investment funds whereby securities held by funds under management were lent to third parties Borrowers provided cash or investment grade
assets as collateral equal to 100% of the market value of the securities lent plus a margin of 2%-10% The Group agreed with BlackRock, inc to
continue to prowide indermnities to support these arrangerents for three years following the disposal As at 31 December 2011 the far value of
collateral held was £37,072m (2010 £28,465m) compared to the far value of stock lent of £35,996m (2010 £27,672m)
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28 Contingent liabilities and commitments (continued)

Guarantees and letters of credit are given as secunty to support the performance of a customer to third parties In addition, The Group issues
guarantees on its own behalf The main types of guarantees provided are- financial guarantees given to banks and financial institutions an behalf of
customers to secure loans, overdrafts, and other banking faciiities, including stock borrowing indemnities and standby letters of credit Other
guarantees provided include performance guarantees, advance payment guarantees, tender guarantees, guarantees to Her Majesty’s Revenue and
Customs and retention guarantees As The Group wall only be required to meet these cbligations in the event of the customer's default, the cash
requirements of these instruments are expected to be considerably below their nominal amotints

Performance quarantees are generally, short-term commitments to third parties which are not directly dependent on the customer’s
creditworthiness An acceptance 1s an undertaking by a bank to pay a bill of exchange drawn on a customer The Group expects most acceptances
1o be presented, but reimbursement by the customer is normally immediate Endorsements are residual liabilities of The Group in respect of bills of
exchange, which have been paid and subsequently rediscounted

Documentary credits and other short-term trade related transactions
Documentary credits commit The Group to make payments to third parties, on production of documents, which are usually reimbursed
immediately by customers

Standby facilities, credit lines and other commitments
Standby facilities, credit lines and other commutments to lend are agreements to lend to a customer n the future, subject to certain condittons
Such commitments are either made for a fixed period, or have no specific maturity but are cancellable by the lender subject to notice requirements

Barclays Capital US Mortgage Activities

Barclays actwities within the US residential mortgage sector during the period of 2005 through 2008 included sponsoring and underwriting of
approximately US$39bn of private-label secuntisations, underwriting of approximately US$34bn of other private-label secuntisations, sales of
approximately US$150m of loans to government sponsored enterprises {(GSEs), and sales of approxsmately US$3bn of loans to others In addition,
Barclays sold approximately US$4bn of loans to Protium in 2009 As a result of Barclays acquisiion of Protium in Apni 2011, Barclays reacquired
the loans previously sold to Protium Some of the loans sold by Barclays were enginated by a Barclays subsidiary Barclays also performed servicing
actvities through its US residential mortgage servicing business which Barclays acquired in Q4 2006 and subsequently sold in Q3 2010

In connection with Barclays loan sales and some of its sponsored private-label securitisations, Barclays made certain loan level representations and
warranties (R&Ws) generally relating to the underlying borrower, property and/or mortgage documentation Under certain circumstances, Barclays
may be required to repurchase the refated loans or make other payments related to such loans if the R&Ws are breached As at 31 December 2011,
Barclays R&Ws in respect of approximately US$1bn of loans sold to others (which excludes the reacquired loans previously sold to Protium and
loans sotd to GSEs) had exprred The R&Ws with respect to the balance of the loans sold to others were not subject to expiration previsions
However, such loans were generally sold at significant discounts and contained more imted R&Ws than loans sold to GSEs Thurd party onginators
provided loan level R&Ws directly to the secunitisation trusts for approximately US$34bn of the US$39bn in Barclays sponsored secunitisabons
Barclays or a subsidiary provided loan fevel R&Ws to the secuntisation trusts for approximately US$5bn of the Barclays sponsored securiisations
R&Ws made by Barclays in respect of such secuntised loans, and the loans sold by Barclays to GSEs, are not subject to expiration provisions Total
unresolved repurchase requests associated with alf loans sold to others and private-lahel activities were US$21m at 31 December 2011 Current
provisions are adequate to cover estimated losses associated with outstanding repurchase claims However, based upon a large number of defaults
occurring in US residential mortgages, there is a potential for additional claims for repurchases

Clairns against Barclays as an underwnter of RMBS offerings have been brought in certain civil actions (see page 166) Addiuonally, Barclays has
received inquines from vanous regulatory and governmental authonties regarding its mortgage-related actvities and 15 cooperating with such
inquines it 1s not practicable to provide an estimate of the financial impact of the potential exposure in relation to Barclays Capital US Mortgage
activities
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29 Legal proceedings

Lehman Brothers Holdings Inc

On 15 September 2009, motions were filed in the United States Bankruptcy Court for the Southern District of New York (the Court) by Lehman
Brathers Holdings Inc {LBHI), the SIPA Trustee for Lehman Brothers Inc {the Trustee) and the Officlal Commuttee of Unsecured Creditors of
Lehman Brothers Holdings Inc (the Committee) All three motians challenged certain aspects of the transaction pursuant to which BCl and other
companies in the Group acquired most of the assets of Lehman Brothers Inc {LBI) in September 2008 and the court order approving such sale The
claimants were seeking an order voiding the transfer of certaln assets to BC), requiring BCl to return to the LB estate alleged excess value BCI
received, and declaring that BCl s not entitled to certain assets that it claims pursuant to the sate documents and order approving the sale (the Rule
60 Claims) On 16 November 2009, LBHI, the Trustee and the Cormnmittee filed separate comptaints in the Court asserting claims against BCl based
on the same underlying allegatrons as the pending motions and seeking relief similar to that which is requested i the rotions On 29 January
2010, BCI filed its response to the motions and alsc filed a motion seeking delivery of certain assets that LBHI and LBI have falled to deliver as
required by the sale documents and the court order approving the sale (together with the Trustee's competing claims to those assets, the Contract
Claims) Approximately US3$4 2bn {£2 7bn) of the assets acquired as part of the acquisition had not been received by 31 Decemnber 2011,
approximately US$3 Obn (£2 Obn) of which were recognised as part of the accounting for the acquisition and are included in the balance sheet as .
at 31 December 2011 Thus results in an effective provision of US$1 2bn (£0 8bn) against the uncertainty inherent in the itigation

On 22 February 2011, the Court 15sued tts Opinion in relation to these matters, rejecting the Rule 60 Claims and deciding some of the Contract
Claims in the Trustee’s favour and some in favour of BCl On 15 July 2011, the Court entered final Orders Implementing its Opinion BCl and the
Trustee have each filed a notice of appeal from the Court’s adverse rulings on the Contract Claims LBHI and the Committze have withdrawn their
notices of appeal from the Court’s ruling on the Rule 60 Claims, rendering the Court's Order on the Rule 60 Claims final

If the final Orders relating to the Contract Claims were to be unaffected by future proceedings, Barclays estirmates that after taking into account the
effective provision of USS1 2bn (£0 8bn), its loss would be approxirmately US$4 3bn (E2 8bn) Any such loss, however, 1s not considered probable
and Barclays is satisfied with the current level of provision

In addition, LBHI had been pursuing a claim for approximately US$500m relating to bonuses that BCl was allegedly abligated to pay to former
Lehman employees On 14 September 2011, the Court issued a decision dismissing that claim and entered a final Order to that effect on 21
September 2011 LBHI has stated that it will not appeal that decision, rendenng the Order dismissing that claim finat

American Depositary Shares

Barclays Bank PLC, Barclays PLC and various current and former members of Barclays PLC's Board of Directors have been named as defendants in
five proposed secunties class actions {which have been consolidated) pending in the United States District Court for the Southern District of New
York {the Court) The consolidated amended complaint, dated 12 February 2010, alleges that the registration statements relating to Amencan
Depositary Shares representing Preferred Stock, Series 2, 3, 4 and 5 {the ADS) offered by Barclays Bank PLC at various times between 2006 and
2008 contained misstatements and omissions concerning (amongst other things) Barclays portfolio of mortgage-related (including US subpnme-
related) securities, Barclays exposure to mortgage and credit market risk and Barclays financial condition The consolidated amended complaint
asserts claims under Sections 11, 12(a)(2) and 15 of the Securities Act of 1933 On 5 January 2011, the Court issued an order and, on 7 January
2011, judgment was entered, granting the defendants' motion to dismuss the complaint i its entirety and closing the case On 4 February 2011, the :
plaintiffs filed a rmotion asking the Court to reconsider in part its dismissal order On 31 May 2011, the Court denled in full the plaintiffs’ motion for
reconsideration The plaintiffs have appealed both decisions {the grant of the defendants’ motion to dismiss and the denial of the plaintiffs’ motion
for reconsideration) to the United States Court of Appeals for the Second Circuit

Barclays considers that these ADS-related claims against it are without ment and is defending themn vigorously Itis not practicable to estimate
Barclays possible loss in relation to these claims or any effect that they mught have upon operating results tn any particular financeal period

US Federal Housing Finance Agency and Other Residential Mortgage-Backed Securities Litigation

The United States Federal Housing Finance Agency (FHFA), acting for two US government sponsored enterprises, Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac

{collectively, the GSEs), filed lawsuits against 17 financial institutions in connection with the GSEs’ purchases of residential mortgage-backed ‘
secunties (RMBS) The lawsuits aflege, among other things, that the RMBS offering matertals contained matenally false and misleading statements

and/or omussions  Barclays Bank PLC and/or certain of its affiliates or former employees are named in two of these lawsuits, relating to sales

between 2005 and 2007 of RMBS, in which Barclays Capital Inc was lead or co-lead underwriter

Both complaints demand, among other things rescission and recovery of the consideration paid for the RMBS, and recavery for the GSEs’ alleged
monetary losses ansing out of their ownership of the RMBS  The complaints are sirnilar to other civil actions filed aganst Barclays Bank PLC and/or
certain of its affiliates by ather plaintiffs, including the Federal Home Loan Bank of Seattle, Federal Homne Loan Bank of Boston, Federal Home Loan
Bank of Chicago, Cambnidge Place Investment Management, Inc , HSH Nordbank AG {and affihates) and Stchting Pensioenfonds ABP, relating to
therr purchases of RMBS  Barclays considers that the claims against it are without menit and intends to defend them vigorously

The onginal amount of RMBS related to the claims against Barclays in these cases totalled approxamately US$6 8bn, of which approximately
US$2 0bn was outstanding as at 31 December 2011 Cumulative losses reported on these RMBS as at 31 December 2011 were approximately
US$0 Tbn If Barclays were to lose these cases it could incur a loss of up to the cutstanding amount of the RMBS at the time of judgment (taking
inte account further principal payments after 31 December 201 1) plus any cumulative losses on the RMBS at such time and any interest, fees and
costs, less the market value of the RMBS at such time Barclays has estimated the total market value of the RMBS as at 31 December 2011 to be
approximately US$1 1bn  Barclays may be entitled to indemnification for a portion of any losses
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29 Legal proceedings (continued)

Devonshire Trust

On 13 lanuary 2009, Barclays commenced an action in the Ontano Supenior Court seeking an order that its early terminations earlier that day

of two credit default swaps under an ISDA Master Agreement with the Devenshire Trust (Devonshire), an asset-backed commercial paper conduit
trust, were valid On the same day, Devonshire purported to terminate the swaps on the ground that Barclays had failed to provide hguidity
support to Devonshire's commercial paper when required to do so On 7 September 2011, the court ruled that Barclays early terminations were
invalid, Devonshire’s early terminations were valid and, consequently, Devonshire was enttled to recaive back from Barclays cash collateral of
approxtmately C$533m together with accrued interest thereon Barclays 1s appealing the court's decision  If the court’s decision were ta be
unaffected by future proceedings, Barclays estimates that its loss would be approximately C$500m, less any impairment provisions taken by
Barclays for this matter

Other

Barclays is engaged in various other legal proceedings both in the Uruted Kingdom and a number of overseas junsdictions, including the United
States, invalving claims by and against it which anse in the ordinary course of business, including debt collection, consumer claims and contractual
disputes Barclays does not expect the ultimate resolution of any of these proceedings to which Barclays is party ta have a matenai adverse effect
on its results of operations, cash flows or the financial position of the Group and Barclays has not disclosed the contingent habilities associated with
these claims erther because they cannot reliably be estimated or because such disclosure could be prejudicial to the conduct of the clamns
Provisions have been recognised for those cases where Barclays is able reliably to estimate the probable loss where the probable loss 1s not de
minimis

in addition, the Bank has baen named as a defendant in a number of {awsuits, including class actions, filed in US federal courts involving claims by
purported classes of purchasers and sellers of LIBOR-based derivative products or Eurodollar futures or option contracts between 2006 and 2009,
further details are provided on the following page
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30 Competition and regulatory matters
This note highlights some of the key competition and regulatory challenges facing Barclays, many of which are beyond our control The extent of
the impact of these matters on Barclays cannot always be predicted but may materally impact our businesses and earmings

Regulatory change

The scale of requlatory change remains challenging with a significant tightering of regulation and changes to regulatory structures globally,
especially for banks that are deemed to be of systemic importance Concurrently, there 1s continuing political and regulatory scrutiny of the
operation of the banking and consumer credit industnies which, in some cases, Is leading to increased or changing regulation which is likely to have
a significant effect on the industry Examples include Basel 3, the emerging proposals on bank resolution regimes and proposals relating to over-
the-counter denvatives cleanng and giebal systemically important banks

In the UK, the FSA's current responsibilities are to be reallocated between the Prudential Regulatory Authonty (a subsidiary of the Bank of England)
and a new Financial Conduct Authority In addition, the Independent Commission on Banking (the ICB) completed its review of the UK banking
system and published its final report on 12 September 2011 The ICB recommended (amongst other things) that (1) the UK and EEA retail banking
activities of a UK bank or building society should be placed in a legally disunct, operationally separate and economically independent entity (so-
called “ring-fencing”}, and (1) the loss-absorbing capacity of ning-fenced banks and UK-headquartered global systemically important banks (such
as Barclays Bank PLC) should be increased to levels higher than the Basel 3 proposals The UK Government published its response to the ICB
recommendations in December 2011 and indicated that primary and secondary legislation relating to the proposed ring-fence will be completed by
May 2015, with UK banks and bullding societies expected to be compliant as soon as practicable thereafter, and the requirements relating to
increased loss-absorbing capacity of ring-fenced banks and UX-headquartered global systermically important banks will be applicable from 1
January 2019

The US Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consurner Protection Act contains far reaching regulatory reform The full impact on Barclays
businesses and markets will not be known until the pnincrpal implementing rules are adopted n final form by governmental authorities, a process
which is underway and which will take effect over several years

Payment Protection Insurance (PPI)
See Note 27

Interchange

The Office of Fair Trading, as well as other competition authorities elsewhere i Europe, conttnues to investigate Visa and MasterCard credit and
debit interchange rates These investigations may have an impact on the consumer credit industry as well as having the potential for the imposition
of fines Timing 1s uncertain but outcomes may be known within the next 2-4 years

London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) :
The FSA, the US Commodity Futures Trading Commussion, the SEC, the US Department of Justice Fraud Section of the Crirminal Division and
Antitrust Division and the European Cormmission are amongst various authorities conducting investigations inte submussions made by Barclays and
other panel members to the bodies that set various interbank offered rates Barclays i1s co-operating in the relevant investigations and is Keeping
regulators informed In addition, Barclays has been named as a defendant in a number of class action lawsuits filed in US federal courts involving
claims by purported classes of purchasers and sellers of LIBOR-based denvative preducts or Eurodollar futures or options contracts between 2006
and 2009 The complaints are substantially similar and allege, amongst other things, that Barclays and other banks indvidually and collectively
violated US antitrust and commodities laws and state common law by suppressing LIBOR rates during the relevant penod Barclays has been
informed by certain of the authonties investigating these matters that proceedings against Barclays ma y be recommended with respect to some
aspects of the matters under investigation, and Barclays is engaged in discussions with these authonities about potential resolution of those
aspects Itis not currently possible to predict the ultimate resclution of the issues covered by the various investigations and lawsuits, including the
nming and the scale of the potential impact on the Group of any resofution
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Capital instruments, equity and reserves

This section details information about The Group’s loan capital and shareholders equity including 1ssued
share capital, retained earnings, other equity balances and interests of minority shareholders in our
subsidiary entities (non-controlling interests). For more information on capital and the management of
capital and how The Group maintains sufficient capital to meet our regulatory requirements see page 77,

31 Subordinated labilities

Accounting for subordinated debt
Subordinated debt 1s measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method under IAS 39 See Net Interest Income (Note 3)

Subordinated habilities include accrued interest and comprise dated and undated loan capital as follows

The Group The Bank
201 2010 201 2010
fm £m £m £m
Undated loan capual 6,741 9,094 9,749 8,923
Dated lean capital 18,129 19,405 17,015 18,071

Total subordinated liabilities 24,870 28,499 26,764 26,994
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31 Subordinated liabilities {continued)

Undated loan capital The Group The Bank
2011 2010 a20Mm 2010
Imbial call date £m £m £m £m
Non-convertible
Barclays Bank PLC
Tler One Notes (TONs)
6% Callable Perpetual Core Tier One Notes 2032 103 453 50 453
6 86% Callable Perpetual Core Tier One Notes {US$1,000m) 2032 753 866 1,105 866
Reserve Capital Instruments (RCls}
5 926% Step-up Callable Perpetual Reserve Capitat Instruments (US$1,350m) 2016 414 1,010 1,048 1,010
6 3688% Step-up Callable Perpetual Reserve Capital Instruments 2019 122 608 629 608
7 434% Step-up Callable Perpetual Resarve Capital Instruments (US$1,250m} 2017 273 950 990 950
14% Step-up Callable Perpetual Reserve Capital Instruments 2019 3,210 2,887 3,210 2,887
5 3304% Step-up Callable Perpetual Reserve Capital Instruments 2036 120 599 696 599
Undated Notes
6 875% Undated Subordinated Notes 2015 158 156 158 156
6 375% Undated Subordinated Notes 2017 157 150 157 150
7 7% Undated Subordinated Notes (US$99m) 2018 75 69 75 69
8 25% Undated Subordinated Notes 2018 166 156 166 156
7 125% Undated Subordinated Notes 2020 214 190 214 190
6 125% Undated Subordinated Notes 2027 233 234 233 234
junior Undated Floating Rate Notes (US$121m) Any interest payment date 78 78 141 139
Undated Floating Rate Pnimary Capital Notes Seres 3 Any interest payment date 146 145 146 145
Bonds
9 25% Perpetual Subordinated Bonds (ex-Woolwich PLC) 2021 99 13 99 96
9% Permanent Interest Bearing Capital Bonds At any time 46 41 46 41
Loans
503% Reverse Dual Currency Undated Subordinated Loan (Yen 8,000m) 2028 53 70 53 70
5% Reverse Dual Currency Undated Subordinated Loan (Yen 12,000m} 2028 82 104 82 104
Barclays SLCSM Funding B V guaranteed by the Bank
6 140% Fixed Rate Guaranteed Perpetual Subordinated Notes 2015 239 232 - -
Undated loan capital - non-convertible 6,741 9094 9749 8923

Undated loan capital

Undated loan capital is issued by the Bank and its subsidranes for the development and expansion of their business and to strengthen their capital

bases The principal terms of the undated loan capita are described below

Subordlnation

Ali undated loan capital ranks behind the clalms against the bank of depositors and other unsecured unsubordinated creditors and holders of dated
loan capital in the following order Junior Undated Floating Rate Notes, other issues of Undated Notes, Bonds and Loans-ranking pan passu with

each other, followed by TONs and RCls-ranking pari passu with each other

Interest

All undated loan capital bears a fixed rate of Interest until the initial call date, with the exception of the 9% Bands which are fixed for the life of the

issue, and the Jumor and Senes 3 Undated Notes which are floating rate

After the initial call date, in the event that they are not redeemed, the 6 875%, 6 375%, 7 125%, & 125% Undated Notes, the 9 25% Bonds and the
6 140% Perpetual Notes will bear interest at rates fixed penodically in advance for five year periods based on market rates All other undated loan
capital except the two floating rate Undated Notes will bear interest, and the two floating rate Undated Notes currently bear interest, at rates fixed

periodically in advance based on London Interbank rates
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31 Subordinated liabilities (continued)

Payment of interest

Barclays Bank PLC 15 not obliged to make a payment of interest on its Undated Notes, Bonds and Loans excluding the 7 7% Undated Notes, 8 25%
Undated Notes, 9 25% Bonds and 6 140% Perpetual Notes if, in the preceding six months, a dwidend has not been declared or paid on any class of
shares of Barclays PLC or, In certain cases, any class of preference shares of the 8Bank The Bank is not obliged to make a payment of interest on its
9 25% Perpetual Subordinated Bonds 1f, in the immediately preceding 12 months’ interest period, a dwvidend has not been paid on any class of its
share capital Interest not so paid becomes payable in each case if such a dividend 1s subsequently paid or in certain other circumstances During
the year, the Bank declared and paid dvidends on its ordinary shares and on all classes of preference shares

No payment of principal or any interest may be made unless the Bank satisfies a specified solvency test.

The Bank may elect to defer any payment of interest on the 7 7% Undated Notes and 8 25% Undated Notes Unt! such time as any deferred
nterest has been paid in full, neither the Bank nor Barclays PLC may declare or pay a dividend, subject to certain exceptions, on any of its ordinary
shares, preference shares, or other share capital or satisfy any payments of interest or coupons en certain other junior obligations

The Issuer and the Bank may elect to defer any payment of interest on the 6 140% Perpetual Notes However, any deferred interest will
automatically become immediately due and payable on the earlier of {1) the date on which any dividend or other distribution or interest or other
payment is made in respect of any pari passu or any junior obligations or on which any par passu or any junior obhgations are purchased, (i} the
date of redermption or purchase of the 6 140% Perpetual Notes and (u1) certain other events including bankruptcy, iquidation or winding up of the
Issuer or the Bank.

The Bank may elect to defer any payment of interest on the RCls  Any such deferred payment of interest must be paid on the earher of () the date
of redemption of the RCls, {n} the coupon payment date falling on or nearest to the tenth anniversary of the date of deferral of such payment, and
(1) in respect of the 14% RCls only, substitution Whilst such deferral is continuing, neither the Bank nor Barclays PLC may declare or pay a
dividend, subject to certain exceptions, on any of its ordinary shares or preference shares

The Bank may elect to defer any payment of interest on the TONs if it determines that it is, or such payment would result in it betng, in non-
compliance with capital adequacy requirements and policies of the FSA Any such deferred payment of interest will only be payable ona
redemption of the TONs Until such time as the Bank next makes a payment of interest on the TONs, neither the Bank nor Barclays PLC may {1)
declare or pay a dividend, subject to certain exceptions, on any of thelr respective ordinary shares or Preference Shares, or make payments of
nterest in respect of the Bank’s Reserve Capital Instruments and (1) certain restrictions on the redemption, purchase or reduction of their
respective share capital and certain other securities also apply

Repayment

All undated loan capital is repayable, at the option of the Bank generally in whole at the mitial call date and on any subsequent coupon or interest
payment date or in the case of the 6 875%, 6 375%, 7 125%, 6 125% Undated Notes, the 9 25% Bonds and the 6 140% Perpetual Notes on any
fifth anniversary after the initial call date In addition, each 1ssue of undated foan capital 1s repayable, at the option of the Bank, in whale for certain
tax reasons, either at any time, or on an interest payment date There are no events of default except non-payment of principal or mandatory
Iinterest Any repayments require the prior notification to the FSA.

All issues of undated loan capital have been made in the Euro currency market and/or under Rule 144A, and no issues have been registered under
the US Secunties Act of 1933
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31 Subordinated liabilities (continued)

Dated loan capital The Group The Bank
2011 2010 2011 2010
Initial call date  Maturity date £m £m £m £m
Barclays Bank PLC
5 75% Suberdinated Notes (€1,000m} 2N - 836 - 836
5 25% Subordinated Notes(€250m) (ex-Woolwich plc) 20m - 221 - 221
Floating Rate Subordinated Step-up Callable Notes (US$750m) 2011 2016 484 - 484
Callable Floating Rate Subordinated Notes (€1,250m)} 2011 2016 - 1,082 - 1,082
Callable Floating Rate Subordinated Notes (US$500m) 2012 207 324 323 324 323
10 125% Subordinated Notes {ex-Woolwich plc) 2012 207 102 105 102 105
Floating Rate Subordinated Step-up Callable Notes (US$1,500m) 2012 m7 972 969 972 969
Floating Rate Subordinated Step-up Callable Notes (€1,500m) 2012 2017 1,259 1,296 1,259 1,296
5 015% Subordinated Notes (US$150m) 23 103 104 103 104
4 875% Subordinated Notes {(€750m} 2013 659 670 659 670
Callable Fixed/Floating Rate Subordinated Notes (€1,000m) 2014 2019 900 204 900 904
4 38% Fixed Rate Subordinated Notes (U5%75m) 2015 55 55 55 35
4 75% Fixed Rate Subordinated Notes {US$150m) 2015 110 111 10 11
5 14% Lower Tier 2 Notes {US$1,250m) 2015 2020 900 791 900 791
6 05% Fixed Rate Subordinated Notes (£5$2,250m) ;7 1.723 1,662 1,723 1,662
Floating Rate Subordinated Notes(€40m) 2018 34 35 34 35
6% Fixed Rate Subordinated Notes {€1,750m) 208 1,556 1,596 1,556 1,596
CMS-Linked Suberdinated Notes (€100m} 2018 88 A€o as 90
CMS-Linked Subordinated Notes (€135m} 2018 17 121 17 121
Fixed/Floating Rate Subordinated Callable Notes 2018 2023 621 590 621 590
Floating Rate Subordinated Notes (€50m) 2019 41 42 41 42
6% Fixed Rate Subordinated Notes (€1,500m) 2021 1,333 1316 1,333 1,316
9 5% Subordinated Bonds (ex-Woolwich plc) 2021 344 292 344 292
Subordinated Floating Rate Nates (€100m) 2021 83 a5 83 85
10% Fixed Rate Subordinated Notes 2021 2,389 2,160 2,389 2,160
10 179% Fixed Rate Subordinated Notes (LUS$1,521m) 2021 1,174 1,040 1,174 1,040
Subordinated Floating Rate Notes (€50m) 2022 42 43 42 43
6 625% Fixed Rate Subordinated Notes (€1,000m) 2022 954 - 954 -
Subordinated Floating Rate Notes (€50m) 2023 42 43 42 43
5 75% Fixed Rate Subordinated Notes 2026 781 675 781 675
5 4% Reverse Dual Currency Subordinated Loan (Yen 15,000m) 2027 104 132 104 132
6 331% Subordinated Notes 2032 62 53 62 533
Subordinated Floating Rate Notes (€100m) 2040 84 86 84 86
Other loans from subsidianes - - 59 59
Absa Bank Limited
8 75% Subordinated Callable Notes (ZAR 1,500m) 2012 2017 124 154 - -
Subordinated Callable Notes (ZAR 1,886m) 2013 2018 181 210 - -
8 8% Subordinated Fixed Rate Cailable Notes (ZAR 1,725m) 2014 2019 148 178 - -
Subordinated Callable Notes (ZAR 3,000m) 2014 2019 286 331 - -
8 1% Subordinated Callable Notes (ZAR 2,000m}) 2015 2020 167 200 - -
10 28% Subordinated Callable Notes (ZAR 600m) 2017 2022 49 60 - -
Subordinated Callable Notes (ZAR 400m) 2017 2022 32 41 - -
Subordinated Callable Notes (ZAR 1,500m) 2023 2028 135 156 - -
Other capital issued by Barclays Spain, Ghana, Kenya, Botswana and Zambia 2011- 2016 51 63 - -
Total dated loan capital 18,129 19,405 17,015 18,071
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31 Subordinated liabilities (continued)

Dated loan capital

Dated loan capital is issued by the Bank for the development and expansion of The Group’s business and to strengthen its capital base, by Barclays
Bank Spain SA (Barclays Spain), Barclays Bank of Botswana Ltd (BBB), Barclays Bank Zambia PLC (Barclays Zambia) and Barclays Bank of Kenya
{Barclays Kenya) to enhance therr respective capital bases, and by Absa and Barclays Bank of Ghana Ltd (BBG) for general corporate purposes

The principal terms of the dated loan capital are described below

Subordination
All dated foan capital ranks behind the claims against the bank of depositors and other unsecured unsubordinated crediters but before the claims
of the undated loan capital and the holders of their equity The dated loan capital 1ssued by subsidianies, are sirmilarly subordinated

Interest
Interest on the floating rate Notes are fixed periodically in advance, based on the related interbank or lecal central bank rates

All other non-convertible Notes except the 10 125% Subordinated Notes 2017 are generally fixed interest for the kfe of the issue, but some are
reset to a floating rate after a fixed pericd, with varying interest rate terms  The 10 125% Subordinated Notes 2017, if not called in 2012, will bear
interest at a rate fixed in advance for a further penod of 5 years

The 5 14% Lower Tier 2 Notes were registered under the US Secunittes Act of 1933 All other issues of dated loan capital have been made in the
eurc currency market, locai markets and/or under Rule 144A.

Repayment

Those Notes with a call date are repayable at the option of the issuer, on conditions governing the respective debt obhigations, some in whole or in
part, and some only in whole The remaining dated loan capntal outstanding at 31 December 2011 15 redeemable only on maturity, subject in
particular cases, to provisions allowing an early redemption in the event of certain changes in tax law or, in the case of BBB and Barclays Zambia, to
certain changes in legislation or regulations

Any repayments prior to matunty require, in the case of the Bank, the prior notification to the FSA, or in the case of the overseas issues, the
approval of the local regulator for that junsdiction

There are no commutted facilities in existence at the balance sheet date which permit the refinancing of debt beyond the date of maturity

The other capital 1ssued by Barclays Spain, Ghana, Kenya, Botswana and Zambia includes amounts of £26m (2010 £26m) issued by Barclays
Botswana and Zambia that are convertible These are repayable at the option of the 1ssuer, prior to maturity, on conditions governing the respective
debt obligations, some in whole or in part and some only in whole

32 Ordinary shares, share premium, and other equity

Ordinary Shares

The i1ssued ordinary share capital of Barclays Bank PLC, as at 31 Decernber 2011, comprised 2,342 million ordinary shares of £1 each (2010 2,342
million)

Preference Shares

The 1ssued prefarence share capital of Barclays Bank PLC, as at 31st December 2011, compnsed 1,000 Sterling Preference Shares of £1 each (2010
1,000), 240,000 Euro Preference Shares of €100 each (2010 240,000), 75,000 Sterling Prefarence Shares of £100 each (2010 75,000), 100,000 US
Dollar Preference Shares of US$100 each (2010 100,000), 237 mullion US Dollar Preference Shares of US$0 25 each (2010 237 mullion)
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32 Ordinary shares, share premium, and other equity {(continued)

Share capital 2011 2010
£m £m
Cailed up ordinary share capital, alloted and fully paid
As at 1 January 2,342 2,342
As at 31 December 2,342 2342
Called up preference share capital, allotted and fully paid as at 1 January and 31 December 60 60
Called up share capital 2,402 2,402
Share premium 2011 2010
£m £m
As at 1 January 12,092 12,092
As at 31 December 12,092 12,092

Sterling £1 Preference Shares
1,000 Sterling cumulative callable preference shares of £1 each (the £1 Preference Shares) were 1ssued on 31 December 2004 at nil premium

The £1 Preference Shares entitle the holders thereof to receive Sterling cumulative cash dvwdends out of distributable profits of Barclays Bank PLC,
semi-annually at a rate reset semi-annually equal to the Sterling interbank offered rate for six-month stering deposits

Barclays Bank PLC shall be obliged to pay such dividends if {1) 1t has profits available for the purpose of distributien under the Companies Act 2006
as at each dividend payment date, and (2) it 1s solvent on the relevant dividend payment date, provided that a caputal regulations condition is
satisfled on such dividend payment date The dvidends shall not be due and payabfe on the relevant dividend payment date except to the extent
that Barclays Bank PLC could make such payment and still be solvent immecdhately thereafter Barclays Bank PLC shall be considered solvent on any
date if (1) It s able to pay its debts to seruor creditors as they fall due, and (2) its auditors have reported within the previous six months that its
assets exceed its habilities If Barclays Bank PLC shal! not pay, or shall pay only in part, a dwdend for a period of seven days or more after the due
date for payment, the holders of the £1 Preference Shares may mstitute proceedings for the winding-up of Barclays Bank PLC No remedy against
Barclays Bank PLC shall be available to the holder of any £1 Preference Shares for the recovery of amounts owing in respect of £1 Preference
Shares other than the institution of proceedings for the winding-up of Barclays Bank PLC and/or proving in such winding-up

On a winding-up or other return of capital (other than a redemption or purchase by Barclays Bank PLC of any of its Issued shares, or a reduction of
share capital, permitted by the Articles of Barclays Bank PLC and under applicable law), the assets of Barclays Bank PLC available to shareholders
shall be applied in prionty to 2ny payment to the holders of ordinary shares and any other class of shares In the capital of Barclays Bank PLC then in
issue ranking junior to the £1 Preference Shares on such a return of capital and pari passu on such a return of capital with the holders of any other
class of shares in the capital of Barctays Bank PLC then in Issue (other than any class of shares in the capital of Barclays Bank PLC then in issue
ranking in priority to the £1 Preference Shares on a winding-up or other such return of capital), in payment to the holders of the £1 Preference
Shares of a sum equal to the aggregate of {1) an amount equal to the dividends accrued thereon for the then current dvidend period (and any
accurmnulated arrears thereof) to the date of the commencemant of the winding-up or other such return of capital, and (2) an amount egual to £1
per £1 Preference Share After payment of the full amount of the hiquidating distributions to which they are entitled, the holders of the £1
Preference Shares will have no right or claim to any of the remaining assets of Barclays Bank PLC and will not be entitled to any further participation
n such return of capital

The £1 Preference Shares are redeemable at the option of Barclays Bank PLC, in whole but not in part only, subject to the Companies Act 2006 and
1ts Articles Holders of the £1 Preference Shares are not entitled to receive notice of, or to attend, or vote at, any general meeting of Barclays Bank
PLC

Euro Preference Shares

100,000 Euro 4 875% non-cumulative callable preference shares of €100 each (the 4 875% Preference Shares) were issued on 8 December 2004
for a consideration of €993 6m (£688 4m), of which the nominal value was €310m and the balance was share premium The 4 B75% Preference
Shares antitle the holders thereof to recerve Eure non-cumulative cash dividends out of distributable profits of Barclays Bank PLC, annually at a
fixed rate of 4 875% per annum on the amount of €10,000 per preference share untit 15 Decernber 2014, and thereafter quarterly at a rate reset
quarterly equal to 1 05% per annum above the Eure interbank offered rate for three-month Euro deposits

The 4 B75% Preference Shares are redeemable at the option of Barclays Bank PLC, in whole but not in part only, on 15 December 2014, and on
each dividend payment date thereafter at €10,000 per share plus any diwdends accrued for the then cusrent dividend period to the date fixed for
redemptlon
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32 Ordinary shares, share premium, and other equity (continued)

140,000 Euro 4 75% non-cumulative callable prefarence shares of €100 aach {the 4 75% Preference Shares) were issued on 15 March 2005 for a
consideration of €1,383 3m (£966 7m), of which the nominal value was €14m and the balance was share premium The 4 75% Preference Shares
entitle the holders thereof to receive Euro non-cumulative cash dividends out of distributable profits of Barclays Bank PLC, annually at a fixed rate of
4 75% per annum on the amount of €10,000 per preference share untit 15 March 2020, and thereafter quarterly at a rate reset quarterly equal to

0 71% per annum above the Euro interbank offered rate for three-month Euro deposits

The 4 75% Preference Shares are redeemable at the option of Barclays Bank PLC, in whole but not in part only, on 15 March 2020, and on each
dividend payment date thereafter at €10,000 per share plus any dividends accrued for the then current dividend period to the date fixed for
redemption

Sterling Preference Shares

75,000 Sterhng 6 0% non-cumulative callable preference shares of £100 each (the 6 0% Preference Shares) were issued on 22 June 2005 for a
consideration of £743 7m, of which the norminal value was £7 5m and the balance was share premium The 6 0% Preference Shares enutle the
holders thereof to receive Sterling non-cumulative cash dividends out of distributable profits of Barclays Bank PLC, annually at a fixed rate of 6 0%
per annum on the amount of £10,000 per preference share until 15 December 2017, and thereafter quarterly at a rate reset quarterly equal to

1 42% per annum above the London interbank offered rate for three-month Sterling deposits

The 6 0% Preference Shares are redeemable at the option of Barclays Bank PLC, in whole but not in part anly, on 15 December 2017, and on each
dividend payment date thereafter at £10,000 per share plus any dividends accrued for the then current dividend period to the date fixed for
redemption

US Dollar Preference Shares

100,000 US Dollar 6 278% non-cumulative callable preference shares of US$100 each (the 6 278% Preference Shares), represented by 100,000
American Depositary Shares, Senies 1, were 1ssued on 8 june 2005 for a consideration ¢f U5$995 4m (£548 1m), of which the nominal value was
US$10m and the balance was share premium The 6 278% Preference Shares entitle the holders thereof to recerve US Dollar non-cumulative cash
dividends out of distributable profits of Barclays Bank PLC, semi-annually at a fixed rate of 6 278% per annum on the amount of US$10,000 per
preference share until 15 December 2034, and thereafter quarterly at a rate reset quarterly equal to 1 55% per annum above the London interbank
offered rate for three-month US Dollar deposits

The 6 278% Preference Shares are redeemable at the option of Barclays Bank PLC, in whale but not in part only, on 15 December 2034, and on
each dwidend payment date thereafter at US$10,000 per share plus any dividends accrued for the then current dividend period to the date fixed for
redemption

30 millian US Dollar 6 625% non-cumulative callable preference shares of US$0 25 each {the 6 625% Preference Shares), represented by 30 million
American Depositary Shares, Series 2, were issued on 25 and 28 April 2006 for a consideration of US3727m (£406m), of which the norminal value
was US$7 5m and the balance was share premium The 6 625% Preference Shares entitle the holders thereof to receive US Dollar non-cumulative
cash dividends out of distnbutable profits of Barclays Bank PLC, quarterly at a fixed rate of 6 625% per annum on the amount of US$25 per
preference share

The 6 625% Preference Shares are redeemable at the option of Barclays Bank PLC, 1n whole but not in part only, on any dividend payment date at
US$25 per share plus any dividends accrued for the then current dividend period to the date fixed for redemption

55 mullion US Daltar 7 1% non-cumulative callable preference shares of US$0 25 each (the 7 1% Preference Shares), represented by 55 million
American Depositary Shares, Series 3, were 1ssued on 13 September 2007 for a consideration of US$1.335m (£657m), of which the norminal value
was US$13 75m and the balance was share premium The 7 1% Preference Shares entitle the holders thereof to receive US Dollar non-cumulative
cash dividends out of distnbutable profits of Barclays Bank PLC, quarterly at a fixed rate of 7 1% per annum on the amount of US$25 per preference
share

The 7 1% Preference Shares are redeemable at the option of Barclays Bank PLC, in whole or in part, on 15 December 2012, and on each dividend
payment date thereafter at US$25 per share plus any dwvidends accrued for the then current dividend pened to the date fixed for redemption

46 mullion US Dollar 7 75% non-cumulative callable preference shares of US$0 25 each (the 7 75% Preference Shares), represented by 46 milhion
American Depositary Shares, Series 4, were issued on 7 December 2007 for a consideration of US$1,116m {£550m), of which the nominal value
was US$11 5m and the balance was share premium. The 7 75% Preference Shares entitle the helders thereof to receive US Dollar non-cumulative
cash diwvidends out of distnbutable profits of Barclays Bank PLC, quarterly at a fixed rate of 7 75% per annum on the amount of US$25 per
preference share

The 7 75% Preference Shares are redeemable at the option of Barclays Bank PLC, in whole or in part, on 15 December 2013, and on each dvidend
payment date thereafter at US$25 per share plus any dividends accrued for the then current dividend period 1o the date fixed for redemption
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32 Ordinary shares, share premium, and other equity (continued)

106 mullion US Dollar 8 125% non-cumulative callable preference shares of US$0 25 each (the 8 125% Preference Shares), represented by 106
rmillion Amencan Depositary Shares, Senes 5, were 1ssued on 11 April 2008 and 25 April 2008 for a total consideration of US$2,650m (£1,345m), of
which the nominal value was U$$26 5m and the balance was share premium The 8 125% Preference Shares enttle the holders thereof to receve
US Dollar non-cummulative cash dividends out of distributable profits of Barclays Bank PLC, quarterly at a fixed rate of 8 125% per annum on the
amount of US$25 per preference share

The 8 125% Preference Shares are redeemabte at the option of Barclays Bank PLC, in whole or in part, on 15 June 2013, and on each dividend
payment date thereafter at US$25 per share ptus any dividends accrued for the then current dividend period to the date fixed for redemption

No redemption or purchase of any 4 875% Preference Shares, the 4 75% Preference Shares, the 6 0% Preference Shares, the 6 278% Preference
Shares, the 6 625% Preference Shares, the 7 1% Preference Shares, the 7 75% Preference Shares and the 8 125% Preference Shares (together, the
Preference Shares) may be made by Barclays Bank PLC without the prior notification to the UK FSA and any such redemption will be subject to the
Companias Act 2006 and the Articles of Barclays Bank PLC.

On a winding-up of Barclays Bank PLC or other return of capital (ather than a redemption or purchase of shares of Barclays Bank PLC, or a
reduction of share capital), a holder of Preference Shares will rank in the application of assets of Barclays Bank PLC available to shareholders (1)
junior to the helder of any shares of Barclays Bank PLC In 1ssue ranking in prionty to the Preference Shares, (2) equally in all respects with holders of
other preference shares and any other shares of Barclays Bank PLC in Issue ranking pari passu with the Preference Shares, and (3) in prionty to the
holders of ordinary shares and any other shares of Barclays Bank PLC in issue ranking junior to the Preference Shares

The holders of the £91m 6% Callable Perpetual Core Tier One Notes and the US$681m 6 86% Callable Perpetual Core Tler One Notes of Barclays
Bank PLC (together, the TONs}and the holders of the £81m 5 3304% Step-up Callable Perpetual Reserve Capital Instruments, the US$533m

5 926% Step-up Callable Perpetual Reserve Capital Instruments, the £95m 6 3688% Step-up Callable Perpetual Reserve Capital Instruments, the
US$347m 7 434% Step-up Callable Perpetual Reserve Capital Instruments and the £3,000m 14% Step-up Callable Perpetual Reserve Capital
Instruments of Barclays Bank PLC (together, the RCIs) would, for the purposes only of calculating the amounts payable in respect of such securities
on a winding-up of Barclays Bank PLC, subject to limited exceptions and to the extent that the TONs and the RCls are then in issue, rank pari passu
with the holders of the most senior class or classes of preference shares then in issue in the capital of Barclays Bank PLC. Accordingly, the holders
of the preference shares would rank equaily with the holders of such TONs and RCls on such a winding-up of Barclays Bank PLC (unless one or
more classes of shares of Barclays Bank PLC ranking in prionty to the preference shares are in issue at the time of such winding-up, in which event
the holders of such TONs and RCIs would rank equally with the holders of such shares and in priority to the holders of the preference shares)

Subject to such ranking, in such event, holders of the preference shares will be entitled to receive out of assets of Barclays Bank PLC available for
distributions to shareholders, liquidating distributions in the amount of €10,000 per 4 875% Preference Share, €10,000 per 4 75% Preference
Share, £10,000 per 6 0% Preference Share, US$10,000 per 6 278% Preference Share, US$25 per 6 625% Preference Share, US$25 per 7 1%
Preference Share, US$25 per 7 75% Preference Share and USS0 25 per B 125% Preference Share, plus, in each case, an amount equal to the
accrued dividend for the then current dvidend perlod to the date of the commencement of the winding-up or other such return of capital If a
dividend is not paid 1n full on any preference shares on any dividend payment date, then a dividend restriction shall 2pply

This dvidend restriction will mean that neither Barclays Bank PLC nor Barclays PLC may (a) declare or pay a dividend {other than payment by
Barclays PLC of a final dvidend declared by its shareholders prior to the relevant dividend payment date, or a dividend paid by Barclays Bank PLC to
Barclays PLC or to a wholly owned subsidiary) on any of their respective ordinary shares, other preference shares or other share capital or (b)
redeem, purchase, reduce or otherwise acquire any of thew respective share capital, other than shares of Barclays Bank PLC held by Barclays PLC or
a wholly owned subsidiary, until the earier of (1) the date on which Barclays Bank PLC next declares and pays in full a preference dividend, and (2)
the date on or by which all the preference shares are redeerned in full or purchased by Barclays Bank PLC

Holders of the preference shares are not entitled to receive notice of, or to attend, or vote at, any general meeting of Barclays Bank PLC Barclays
Bank PLC is not permitted to create a class of shares ranking as regards participation in the profits or assets of Barclays Bank PLC in prionty to the
preference shares, save with the sanction of a special resolution of a separate general meeting of the holders of the preference shares (requiring a
majority of not less than three-fourths of the holders of the preference shares voting at the separate general meeting) or with the cansent in writing
of the holders of three-fourths of the preference shares

Except as described above, the holders of the preference shares have no nght to paruicipate In the surplus assets of Barclays Bank PLC
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32 Ordinary shares, share premium, and other equity {continued)
Other shareholders’” equity

The Group The Bank

£m £m
As at 1st January 2011 2,069 2,133
Tax Credits 18 18
Other Movements (24) (24)
Redemption {1.415) {1,415)
As at 31st December 2011 648 712
As at 1st January 2010 2,559 2,623
Tax Credits 45 45
Other Movements (48) (48)
Redemption {487) (487)
As at 31st December 2010 2,069 2,133

Included in other shareholders’ equity are

issuance of capital notes which bear interest at rates fixed penodically in advance, based on London interbank rates These notes are repayable in
each case, at the option of the Bank, in whole on any interest payment date The Bank Is not obliged to make a payment of interest on its capital
notes if, In the preceding six months, a dividend has not been declared or paid on any class of shares of Barclays PLC

The remaining equity accounted reserve capital instruments were redeemed in full during 2011, resulting in a reduction in other shareholders®
equity of £1,415m

33 Reserves

Currency translation reserve

The currency translation reserve represents the cumulative gains and fosses on the retranslation of The Group’s net investment in foreign
operations, net of the effects of hedging Currency transiation movements in 2011 of £1,607m (2010 £1 ,177m), including £598m (2010 £435m)
assaciated with non-controlling interests, are largely due to the depreciation of the Rand, Eurc and Indian Rupee against Sterting

The impact of the currency translation reserve recognised in the Income staterment during the year was nif (2010 £279m), as the £23m loss from
the disposal of Barclays Bank Russia was offset by other movements

Available for sale reserve

The available for sale reserve represents the unrealised change in the fair value of available for sale investments since initial recogmition  The
available for sale reserve increased £1,218m (2010 decreased £1,264m), largely driven by £2,581m gains from changes in fair value, offset by
£1,557m of net gains transferred to the tncome statement after recognition of impairment on The Group’s investment in BlackRock, Inc

Cash flow hedging reserve

The cash flow hedging reserve represents the cumulative gains and losses on effective cash flow hedging instruments that will be recycled to the
Income statement when the hedged transactions affect profit or loss Movements in the cash flow hedge reserve principally reflected increases in
the fair value of interest rate swaps held for hedging purposes more than offset by related gains transferred to net profit
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34 Non-controlling interests

Profit attributable to non- Equity attributable to non-

controlling interests controlling interests
201 2010 0 2010
£m £m £m £m
Absa Group 401 362 2,361 3,208
Other non-controlling interests 29 29 231 259
Total 430 391 3,092 3,467

The decrease in Absa Group equity attributable to non-controlling interest to £2,861m {2010 £3,208m) 15 principzlly due to £583m depreciation of
Afrnican currencies against Sterling and £162m of dividends paid, offset by retained profits of £401m
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Employee benefits

Employee benefits outlines the costs and commitments associated with employing our staff.

35 Staff costs

Accounting for staff costs
The Group apples |AS 19 Employee benefits in its accounting for most of the components of staff costs

Short-term employee benefits - salaries, accrued perfoermance costs, social security and the Bonus Payroll Tax are recognised over the period in
which the employees provide the services to which the payments relate

Performance costs - recognised to the extent that The Group has a present obligation to its employees that can be measured reliably and are
recognised over the period of service that employees are required to work to quabfy for the services

Deferred cash bonus awards and deferred share bonus awards are made to employees to incentivise performance over the vesting perod To
receive payment under an award, employees must provide service over the vesting period, typically three years from the grant date The period over
which the expense for deferred cash and share bonus awards 1s recogrused is based upon the common understanding between the employee and
The Group and the terms and conditions of the award The Group considers that 1t Is appropriate to recogrise the awards over the period from the
date of grant to the date that the awards vest as this is the period over which the employees understand that they must provide service in order to
receive awards No expense has been recogmised in 2011 for the deferred bonuses granted in March 2012, as they are dependent upon future
performance rather than performance during 2011, instead the income statement charge 15 expected to be recognised in 2012 (48%), 2013 (35%),
2014 (15%) and 2015 (2%), subject to all performance conditions baing met

The accounting policies for share based payments and pensions and other post retirement benefits are under Note 36 and Note 37 respectively

Staff costs 2011 2010
£m £m
Performance costs 2,527 3,350
Salanes 6,277 6,151
Other share based payments 167 168
Soaal security costs 716 719
Post-retirement benefits 727 528
Total compensation costs 10414 10916
Bank payroll tax 76 96
Other 917 904
Non compensation costs 993 1,060
Staff costs 11,407 11,916

Staff costs above relate to continuing operations only Staff costs arising on discantinued eperations for 2011 and 2010 totalled nl The average
total number of persons employed by The Group including both continuing and discontinued operations was 149,708 (2010 151,300)

The UK Government applied a bank payroll tax of 50% to all discreticnary bonuses over £25,000 awarded to UK bank employees between 9
December 2009 and 5 Apnl 2010 The total bank payroll tax paid was £437m, of which £321m was recogrised between 2009 and 2010 For 2011,
a charge of £76m has been recagnised in relation to prior year deferrals, with the remaining £40m to be recognised over the period 2012 to 2013

1t 1s currently anticipated that deferred bonuses will be charged to the incomes statement in the following years

Year in which Income Statement Charge is Expected to be Taken for Deferred Bonuses Actual Expected
2013 and
2010 201 20t2  beyond
£m Em Em fm
Deferred bonuses from 2009 and earlier bonus pools a04 405 139 23
Deferred bonuses frorn 2010 bonus pool - 590 387 205
Deferred bonuses from 2011 bonus pool - - 601 651

Income statement charge for deferred bonuses 904 995 1,127 879
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36 Share based payments

Accounting for share based payments
The Group apphes IFRS 2 Share Based Payments in accounting for employee remuneration in the form of shares

Employee incentives include awards in the form of shares and share options, as well as offening employees the opportunity to purchase shares on
favourable terms The cost of the employee services received n respect of the shares or share options granted is recognised in the income
statement over the perniod that employees prowvide services, generally the penod in which the award is granted or notified and the vesting date of
the shares or options The overall cost of the award 15 calculated using the number of shares and options expected to vest and the farr value of the
shares or options at the date of grant

The number of shares and options expected to vest takes into account the likelihood that performance and service conditiens included n the terms
of the awards will be met Failure to meet the non-vesting condition is treated as a cancellation, resulting in an acceleration of recognition of the
cost of the employee services

The fair value of shares 1s the market price ruling on the grant date, in some cases adjusted to reflect restrictions on transferability The fair value of
options granted 1s determined using option pricing models to estimate the numbers of shares likely to vest These take into account the exercise
pnce of the option, the current share price, the nsk-free interest rate, the expected volanlity of the share price over the life of the option and other
relevant factors Market conditions that must be met in order for the award to vest are also reflected in the fair value of the award, as are any other
non-vesting conditions — such as continuing to make payments into a share based savings scheme

The charge for the year ansing from share based payment schernes was as follows

Charge for the year

201 2010
£m £m

Share Value Plan 634 361
Executive Share Award Scheme 101 304
QOthers 137 172
Total equity settled 872 837
Cash Settied 34 23
Total continuing operations 906 860
Dhscontinued operations - -
Total share based payments 906 860

The terms of the main current plans are as follows

Share value plan {SVP)

The SVP was introduced in March 2010 and appraved by shareholders {for Executive Director participation and use of new issue shares) at the
AGM n April 2011 SVP awards are granted to participants 1n the form of a conditional nght to receive Barclays shares (awards granted prior to
May 2011 were granted as prowsional allocations of Barclays shares) which vest over a penod of three years in equal annual tranches Participants
do not pay to receive an award or to receive 2 release of shares The grantor may also make a divdend equivalent payment to participants on
vesting of a SVP award SVP awards are also made to eligible employees for recrutment purposes under schedule 1 to the SVP From 2010, the
portion of a business umt LTIP award that was previously granted under ESAS 1s normally granted under SVP All awards are subject to potential
forfeiture in certain leaver scenarios

Executive Share Award Scheme (ESAS)

For certam emptoyees of The Group an element of their annual bonus s in the form of a deferred award of a provisional allocation of Barclays PLC
shares under ESAS The total value of the bonus made to the employee, of which ESAS 1s an element, 1s dependent upon the business unit, Group
and individual employee performance The ESAS element of the annual bonus must normally be held for at least three years Additional bonus
shares are subsequently awarded to recipients of the provisional allocation and vest upon achieving continued service for three and five years from
the date of award ESAS awards are also made to eligible employees for recrutment purposes under JSAP (loiners Share Award Plan) All awards
are subject to potential forfeiture if the indmvidual resigns and commences work with a competitor business LTIP plans are cash and equity
perfarmance plans which after 3 years (dependant on performance) pay half in cash and the remaining half in shares which are placed into ESAS
for a further 1 or 2 years

Other schemes

In addition to the above schemes, The Group operates a number of other schemes including schemes operated by and settled in the shares of
subsidizry undertakings, none of which are indidually or in aggregate matenal in relation to the charge for the year or the dilutive effect of
outstanding share options Included within other schemes are the Performance Share Plan, Incentive Share Plan, Sharesave, Sharepurchase, and
the Barclays Long Term Incentive Plan which was introduced and approved at the AGM in Apnil 2011
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36 Share basad payments (continued)
Share option and award plans
The weighted average farr vaiue per award granted and weighted average share price at the date of exercise/release of shares duning the year was

Weighted average fair value ~ Weighted average share price
per award granted in year  at exercise/release dunng year

201 2010 201 2010

£ £ £ £

Svypee 280 354 308 310
ESAS*< 284 288 287 339
Others® 065-277 129-355 218-303 302-346

SVP and ESAS are nil cost awards and nil cost options respectively on which the performance conditions are substantially completed at the date of
grant. Consequently the fair value of these awards/options is based on the market value at that date

As descnbed above, the terms of the ESAS scheme require shares to be held for a set number of years frem the date of vesting The calculation of
the vesting date fair value of such awards includes a reduction for this post-vesting restnction This discount is deterrmined by calculating how
much a willing market participant would rationally pay to remove the restriction using a Black-Schales option pricing model The total discount
required 1n 2011 (s Eml (2010 £22Zm)

Movements in options and awards
The movermnent in the number of options and awards for the major schemes and the weighted average exercise price of options was

Svpet ESAS! ¢ Others!?¢
Weighted average
Number {000s) Number {000s) Number (000s) ex price (£)

2011 2030 2011 2010 2011 2010 201 2010
Outstanding at beginning of
year/acquisition date 226,842 - 383,483 464,511 175,253 189,871 280 X))
Granted in the year 255,592 241,931 11,267 85,489 111,374 32,763 152 246
Exercised/released in the year (77.315) (4932) (117,126) (139,220) (38,164}  (11,211) 203 267
Less forfeited in the year (12,481)  (10,157)  (25,596)  (27,297) (46,480}  (36,170) 259 342
Less expired in the year - - - - (7,620} - 394 -
QOutstanding at end of year 392,638 226,842 252,028 383,483 214,363 175,253 193 2 80
Of which exercisable - - 25,025 5,220 20,424 8,383 278 435

Certain of The Group's share option plans enable certain directors and members of staff employees the option to subscrtbe for new ordinary shares
of Barclays PLC between 2011 and 2019

Notes

a Options/award granted over Barclays PLC shares

b Nil cost award and therefore the weighted average exercise price was il

¢ Nil cost options and therefore there was no weighted average exercise price

d The number of awards within others at the end of the year principally relates to Sharesave (number of awards exercisable at end of year was 15,825 000) The weighted average
exercise price relates to Sharesave The weighted average exercise price for the other schemes was nil
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36 Share based payments (continued)

The weighted average contractual remaining ife and number of options and awards outstanding {including those exercisable) at the balance sheet

date are as follows

2011 2010
Weighted Number of Weighted Number of
average options/ average options/
remaining awards remaining awards
contractual  outstanding contractual  outstanding
life in years (000s) life in years ~ (000s)
svp® 2 392,633 2 226,842
ESAS* 2 252,028 3 383,483
Others® 0-4 214,362 0-4 175,252

There were no significant modifications to the share based payments arrangements in the years 2011 and 2010

As at 31 December 2011, the total liability arising from cash-settled share based payments transactions was £12m (2010 £23m)

Holdings of Barclays PLC shares

The Group, through various employee benefit trusts, holds shares in Barclays PLC to meet its obligations under its share based payment schames
The total number of Barclays shares held in Group employee benefit trusts at 31 December 2011 was 3 9 million (2010 259 0 million) The
reduction 1s due to a change in the funding approach by the trustee, whereby holdings of treasury shares have been replaced with instruments that
hedge the economic exposure to movements in the Barclays share price Dividend nights have been waived on nd (2010 nil) of these shares The
total market value of the shares held in trust based on the year end share price of £1 74 (2010 £261) was £6 8m (2010 £676m)

Notes

a Options/award granted over Barclays PLC shares
b Miicast award

¢ Nil cost options.
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37 Pensions and post retirement benefits

Accounting for pensions and post retirement benefits
The Croup operates a number of pensicn schemes including defined contribution, defined benefit and post-employment benefit schemes

Defined contribution schemnes - The Croup recognises contributions due n respect of the accounting peried in the income statement. Any
contributions unpaid at the balance sheet date are included as a hability

Defined benefit schemes - The Croup recognises its obligation to members of the scheme at the period end, less the fair value of the scheme assets
and unrecogrised actuanal gains or losses Each scheme's obligations are calculated using the projected unit credit method on the assumptions set
aut in the note below Scheme assets are stated at fair value as at the period end

The Group uses the option within 1AS 19 Employee Benefits to defer actuanal gains and losses over the remaining service [ives of the employees

Actuanial gains and losses comprise experience adjustments (differences between previous actuarial assumptions and what has actually occurred)
and the effects of changes in actuanal assumptions Cumulative actuanal gains and losses, to the extent that they exceed the greater of 10% of the
fair value of the scheme assets or 10% of the prasent value of the defined benefit obligation, are deferred and the excess amortised in the income
statement over the average service lives of scheme members Gains and losses on curtalments are recogrised when the curtaiiment occurs, which
may be when a demonstrable commitment to a reduction in benefits, or reduction in eligible employees, occurs The gain or loss compnses any
change in the present value of the obligation, the fair value of the assets and any refated unrecognised actuarial gain or loss and past service costs

Where a scheme’s assets and its unrecognised actuaral losses exceed its cbligation, an asset 1s recagnised to the extent that it does not exceed the
present value of future contribution holidays or refunds of contnbutions

Post-employment benefits - the cost of providing health care benefits to retired employees 1s accrued as a hability 1n the financial statements over
the period that the employees provide services to The Group, using a methodology sumular to that for defined benefit pension schemes

Future accounting development

From 1 January 2013, in accordance with amendments to tAS 19, The Group balance sheet will fully reflect the pension hability or asset, including
any unrecognised actuanal losses or gains As at 31 December 2011 there were unrecognised actuarial losses of £1 7bn  In addition, The Group
will recognise interest charge or income on the net pension liability or asset, rather than the expected return on the schemes’ assets and interest
cost on the schemes’ benefit obligation The Group will no longer recognise the amortisation of unrecognised actuanal gains or losses which in
201% gave nse to a charge of £0 1bn Given these amendments the charge for 2011 would have been £0 1bn higher under the amended standard,
and a charge of £1 7bn would have been recognised in other comprehensive income

J

Pension schemes
The UK Retirement Fund (UKRF)} 1s The Group's main scheme, representing 92% of The Croup's total retirement benefit obligations The UKRF
compnises ten sections, the most significant of which are

- Afterwerk. compnsing of a voluntary defined contribution element and a contnbutory cash balance defined benefit The cash balance element
1s revalued until Normal Retirement Age in ine with the increase in Retail Price Index (maximum 5%) An investment related increase of up to
2% a year may also be added at Barclays discretion Since 1 October 2003 the majornity of new employees outside of Barclays Capital have been
eligible to join

—  The Pension Investment Plan (PIP) a defined contribution section providing benefits for Barclays Capital employees from 1 July 2001

- The 1964 Pension Scheme most employees recruited befare July 1897 built up benefits in this non-contributory defined benefit scherne in
respect of service up to 31 March 2010 Pensions were calculated by reference to service and pensionable salary From 1 April 2010 members
became eligible to accrue future service benefits in either Afterwark or PIP

The costs of ill-health retirements and death in service benefits are borne by the UKRF

Governance

The UKRF operates under trust faw and 1s managed and administered on behalf of the members in accordance with the terms of the Trust Deed
and Rules and all relevant legislation The Corporate Trustee i1s Barclays Pension Funds Trustees Limited, a private limited company incorporated on
20 December 1990 and a wholly owned subsidiary of Barclays Bank PLC The Trustee 1s the legal owner of the assets of the UKRF which are held
separately from the assets of The Group

The Trustee Board compnses six Management Directors selected by Barclays, of whom three are independent Directors with no relationship with
Barclays or the UKRF, plus three Mernber Nominated Directors selected from eligible actve staff and pensioner members who apply for the role

The same principles of pension governance apply to The Group’s other pension schemes, although different legislation covers overseas schernes
where, In most cases, The Group has the power to determune the funding rate
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37 Pensions and post retirement benefits {continued)

Amounts recognised

The following tables include the amounts recagnised in the income statement, an analysls of benefit obligations and an analysis of scheme assets
for all Group schemes The net position 15 reconciled to the assets and habilities recognised on the balance sheet. The UKRF scheme is booked into
UK branches, hence throughout this note the numbers disclosed for UKRF are the same for the Bank, as the consolidated Group The tables include
funded and unfunded post-retirement benefits

Income statement charge

2011 2610
Em £m
Current service cost 348 349
Interest cost 1,154 1,146
Expected return on scherne assets (1,176) (1,122)
Recognised actuarial loss 57 75
Past service cost 23 {233)
Curtailment or settlements 3 16
Total 409 231
Balance sheet reconciliation 2011 2010
Of which Of which
The Group The Bank relatesto  The Group The Bank relates to
Total Total UKRF Total Total UKRF
£m Em £m £m £m £m
Benefit obligation at beginning of the year (21,801) {20,535) (20,173) {20,646) (19,524) {19,209}
Current service cost (348} (309) (300) (349) (304) (293)
Interest cost (1,154) (1,071) (1,053} {1,146) (1,068) (1,049)
Past service cost (23) - - 238 238 240
Actuarial loss (569) (460) (418) (590) (534) (522)
Benefits paid 802 697 684 779 688 678
Exchange and other movements 99 (1} (3) (87) {31) (18)
Benefit obligation at end of the year (22,994) (21,679} {21,263} (21,801) (20,535) {20,173)
Falr value of scheme assets at beginning of the year 18,905 17,783 17,621 16,700 15810 15,675
Expected return on scheme assets 1,176 1,105 1,094 1,122 1,042 1,03
Employer contribution 2,220 2,162 2,128 728 676 666
Actuarial gain 1.419 1,476 1,470 1,012 999 995
Benefits paid {802) (597) (684) 779 {688) (678)
Exchange and other movements {170) (67) (89} 122 {56) (68)
Fair value of scheme assets at the end of the year 22,748 21,762 21,540 18,905 17,783 17,621
Net (deficit}/asset (246} 83 277 (2.896) {2,752) (2.552)
Unrecogrised actuarial losses 1,728 1,516 1,403 2,657 2,593 2,501
Net recognised asset/(liability) 1,482 1,599 1,680 (239) (159) (s1)
Recognised assets 1,803 1,708 1,680 126 9 -
Recogmised hiabilities {321) (109} - {365) (168) (51)
Net recognised asset/(lability) 1,482 1,599 1,680 {239) {159) (51)

As at 31 December 2011, the UKRF’s IAS 19 scheme assets exceeded obligations by £277m (2010 deficit of £2,552m) The most significant
drivers for this change were favourable asset performance and deficit contributions paid over the year

Included within The Group's benefit obligation was £1,560m (2010 £1,470m) relating to overseas pensions and £171m (2010 £158m)} relating to
other post-retirement benefits Included within the Bank's benefit obligation was £345m (2010- £294m) relating to overseas pensions and £71m
(2010- £68m) relating to other post-retirement benefits Of the benefit obligations of £22,994m (2010- £21,80:im), £334m (2010- £258m) were
wholly unfunded Out of the Bank’s benefit obligations of £21,679m (2010 £20,535m), £150m (2010 £88m) were wholly unfunded
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37 Pensions and post retirement benefits (continued}

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Actuanial valuation of the schemes’ obligation 15 dependent upon a serses of assurnptions Below 1s a summary of the main financial and
demographic assumptions adopted for UKRF

UKRF financial assumptlons

2011 2010

%pa %pa

Discount rate 474 531
Rate of increase in salanes 354 400
Inflation rate 304 350
Rate of increase for pensions in payment 294 335
Rate of increase for pensions in deferment 294 350
Afterwork revaluation rate® 347 397
Expected return on scheme assets 500 630

The UKRF discount rate assumption 1s based on a hability-weighted rate derived from an AA corporate bond yield curve and the inflation
assumption reflects long-term expectations of RPI

The UKRF’s post-retirement mortality assumptions are based on a best estimate assumption derved from an analysis in 2011 of Barclays own post-
retirement mortality experience which was carred out at the ume of the latest triennial funding valuation, and taking account of the recent
evidence from published mortality surveys An allowance has been made for future mortality improvements based on the medium cohort
projecticns published by the Continuous Mortality Investigation Bureau subject to a floor of 1% p a on future iImprovements

The table below shows how the assurned life expectancy at 60, for members of the UKRF, has varied over the last five years

Assumed life expectancy 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
Life expectancy at 60 for current pensioners (years)

- Males 277 276 275 274 267
- Females 238 287 287 285 279
Life expectancy at 60 for future pensioners currently aged 40 (years)

- Males 291 297 296 295 280
- Females 304 307 306 305 291

Sensitivity analysis on actuarial assumptions
The following table shows a sensitivity analysis of the most material assumptions on the UKRF benefit obligation

Change in key assumption Impact on UKRF benefit obligatton
{Decrease)/ {Decrease)/
Increase Increase
% £bn
0 5% increase in
- Discount rate (87) (18)
- Rate of inflation 91 19
1 year increase to life expectancy at 60 25 05
Note

a Thisis the assumption applied to the Afterwork cash balance element.
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37 Pensions and post retirement benefits (continued)

Assets

A long term strategy has been set for the asset allocation of the UKRF which comprises a mixture of equities, bonds, property and other appropriate
assets This recognises that different asset classes are likely to produce different long-term returns and some asset classes may be more volatile
than others The long term strategy ensures that investments are adequately diversified Asset managers are permitted some flexibility to vary the
asset allocation from the long term strategy within control ranges agreed with the Trustee from time to time

The UKRF also employs derivative instruments, where appropriate, to achieve a desired exposure or return, or to match assets more closely to
habiliies The value of assets shown reflects the actual physical assets held by the scheme, with any denvative holdings reflected on a mark 10

market basis

The value of the assets of the schemes, their percentage in relation to total scheme assets, and their expected rate of return were as follows

The Group Total The Bank Total Of which relates to UKRF
% of total % of total % of total
fairvalue Expected fairvalue Expected fair value Expected
Analysis of scheme of scheme rate of of scheme rate of of scheme rate of
assets Value assets return Value assets return Value assets return
£m % % £m % % £m % %
As at 31 December 2011
Equities 4,979 219 78 4,534 208 77 4,452 207 77
Bonds 11,246 494 38 10,971 504 37 10,872 505 37
Property 1,389 61 62 1,357 62 61 1,356 63 61
Derivatives 1,296 57 - 1,296 60 - 1,296 60 -
Cash 3,253 143 06 3,173 146 05 3,167 147 o5
Other 585 26 44 431 20 31 397 18 25
Fair value of scheme assets 22,748 100 51 21,762 100 49 21,540 100 50
As at 31 Decemnber 2010
Equities 5,865 310 83 5,409 304 84 5349 304 84
Bonds 9,641 510 47 9,237 519 46 9,164 520 46
Property 1,297 69 69 1,277 72 68 1,277 72 68
Derivatives 410 22 - 410 23 - 410 23 -
Cash 1,215 64 12 1,060 60 05 1,057 60 05
QOther 477 25 56 390 22 47 364 21 43
Fair value of scheme assets 18,905 100 63 17,783 100 63 17,621 100 63

Included within fair value of scheme assets were £15m (2010 £14m) relating to shares in Barclays Group, £12m (2010- £13m) relating to bonds
1ssued by the Barclays Group, and £12m (2010 £10m) relating to property occupied by Group companies The UKRF also invests in pooled
investment vehicles which may hold shares or debtissued by the Barclays Group Amounts included in the Bank fair value of plan assets include
£1m (2010 £nil) relating to property accupied by Bank compames The UKRF scheme assets also includes £50m (2010 £58m) relating to UK
private equity investments and £1,34Zm (2010 £1,128m) relating to overseas private equity investments These are disclosed above within
Equities

The expected return on assets is determined by calculating a total return estimate based on wetghted average estmated returns for each asset
class Asset class returns are estimated using current and projected economic and market factors such as inflation, credit spreads and equity nsk
prermums The Group actual return on scheme assets was an increase of £2,595m (2010 £2,134m increase) The Bank actual return on plan
assets was an increase of £2,581m (2010 £2,041m increase)

The overall axpected return on assets assumptien has recognised that some of the cash holding at 31 December 2011 was due to be reinvested
shortly after year end in ine with the long term strategy The overall expected return on asset assumption has also been based on the portfolio of
assets created after allowing for the net impact of the derivatives on the nisk and return profile of the holdings
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37 Pensions and post retirement benefits (continued)
Actuarial gains and losses

The actuanal gains and losses arising on scheme oblgations and scheme assets are as follows

Total actuarial gains and losses (The Group) 201 2010 2009 2008 2007
£m £m £m £m £m
Present value of obligations (22,994) (21,801} (20,646) {15,783) (17,634}
Fair value of scheme assets 22,748 18,905 16,700 14,496 18,027
Net (deficit)/surplus in the schemes {246) (2,896) {3,946) {1,287) 393
Expernence {losses) and gains on scheme liabilities
—amount (57) (215) 62 a7 (376)
— as percentage of scheme liabilities - {1%) - (1%) (2%}
Difference between actual and expected return on scheme assets
—amount 1,419 1,012 1,416 {4.655) {343)
—as percentage cf scheme assets 6% 5% 8% (32%) (2%)
Total actuarial gains and losses (The Bank) 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
£m £m £m £m £m
Present value of obligations (21,679) (20,535) (19,524) (14,735) {16,851)
Fair value of scheme assets 21,762 17,783 15,810 13,697 17,372
Net surplus/(deficit) in the scheme a3 (2,752) (3.714} {1,038) 521
Experience (losses) and gains on scheme liabilities
-amount (33) (209) 102 (77 {308)
- as percentage of scheme habilities - (1%) 1% {1%) (2%}
Difference between actual and expected return on scheme assets
- amount 1,476 999 1,41 {4,599) {(334)
— as percentage of scheme assets 7% 6% 9% (34%) (2%}
Actuarial gains and losses relating to UKRF 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
£m £m £m £m £m
Present value of obligations (21,263} (20,173) (19.209) (14,395) (16,563)
Fair value of scheme assets 21,540 17,621 15,675 13537 17,231
Net surplus/({deficit) in the scheme 277 (2,552) (3,534) (858) 668
Expernence {losses) and gains on scheme liabilities
-amount (34) (207) 106 as -
- as percentage of scheme liabilities - (1%) 1% 1% -
Difference between actual and expected return on scheme assets
- amount 1,470 995 1,424 (4,534) 332
~ as percentage of scheme assets 7% 6% 9% (33%) 2%
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37 Pensions and post retirement benefits (continued)

Funding

The latest triennial funding valuatian of the UKRF was carned out with an effective date of 30 September 2010, and showed a deficit of £5 Obn In
compliance with the Pensions Act 2004, the Bank and Trustee agreed a scheme-specific funding target, statement of funding principles, a schedule
of contributions and a recovery plan to eliminate the deficit in the Fund

The recovery plan to eliminate the deficit will resuit in the Bank paying deficit contributions to the Fund unbl 2021 Deficit contributions of £1 8bn
were paid to the fund in December 2011 and a further £0 5bn wil be pa:d in 2012 Further deficit contributions are payable from 2017 to 2021
starting at £0 65bn m 2017 and increasing by approximately 3 5% per annum until 2021 These deficit contributions are in addition to the regular
contributions to meet The Group's share of the cost of benefits accruing over each year Including deficit contributions, The Group’s estimated
contribution to the UKRF in 2012 wili be £877m  Excluding the UKRF, The Group is expected to pay contributions of approximately £1m to UK
schemes and £94m to overseas schemes in 2012 The Bank is expected to pay contributions of approximately £1m to UK schemes and £22m to
overseas schemes n 2012

The Scheme Actuary prepares an annual update of the funding position as at 30 Septernber The latest annual update was carried out as at 3¢
September 2011 and showed a deficit of £6 4bn This was prior to the payment of £1 8bn in December 2011

Contributions paid with respect to the UKRF were as follows

Contributions paid £m
2011 2,128
2010 666

2009 525
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Scope of consolidation

This section presents information on The Group's investments in subsidianies, joint ventures and
associates Detail Is also given on securttisatton transactions The Group has entered into and arrangements
that are held off-balance sheet.

38 Investment in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries, the prnincipal of which are engaged in banking related activities, are recorded on the balarice sheet at historical cost less
any impairment. At 31 December 2011 the historical cost of investments in subsidianes was £24,383m (2010 £20,858m), and allowances
recogrnised aganst these investments was £2,310m (2010 £1,825m) of impawrment

Principal subsidiaries for The Group are set out below This list has been revised to include those subsidiaries that are significant in the context of
The Group’s business, results or financial position

Country of Percentage of
registration or equity capital
incorporation Company name Nature of business held (%)
England Barclays Bank Trust Company Limited Banking, securities industries and trust services 100
England Barclays Stockbrokers Limited Stockbroking 100
England Barclays Capital Secunties Limited Secunties dealing 100
England FIRSTPLUS Financral Group PLC Secured loan prowider 100*
isle of Man Barclays Private Clients International Limited Banking 100*
Japan Barclays Capital fapan Luruted Securities dealing 100
Kenya Barclays Bank of Kenya Limited Banking 68 5*
South Africa Absa Group Limited Banking 55 5*
Spamn Barclays Bank SA Banking 100*
USA Barclays Capital Inc Securities dealing 100
LISA Barclays Bank Delaware US credit card issuer 100
USA Barclays Group US Inc Holding company 100*

The country of registration or incorporation 1s also the principal area of operation of each of the above subsidiaries Investments in subsidiares held
directly by Barclays Bank PLC are marked * Full information of all subsidianies will be Included i the Annual Return to be filed at UK Cornpanies
House

Although The Group's interest in the equity voting rights in certain entities listed below may exceed 50%, or it may have the power to appoint a
majority of thewr Boards of Directors, they are excluded from consolidation because The Group esther does not direct the financial and operating
policies of these entities, or another entity has a controlling interest in them Consequently, these entities are not controlled by Barclays

Percentage of ordinary Equity Retained profit for
Country of registration or share capital held  shareholders' funds the year
mncerporation Company name % Em £m
UK Fitzroy Finance Limited 100 - -
Cayman Islands Palomino Limited 100 1 -
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39 Acquisition of subsidiarles {(continued)

tn April 2011, Barclays acquired the third party investments in Pretium for their carrying value of £163m and restructured the related management
arrangernents. This resulted In the general partner interest being acquired by Barclays for a nominal consideration and the remaining interest in
Protium held by Protium’s investment manager, redeemed for consideration of £50m (In accordance with the performance fees that would have
been due under the onginal agreement, based on investment performance to date) Barclays is now the sole owner and centroling party of
Protium, which is consolidated by The Group The investment manager continues to provide management senvices to Barclays in relation to the
acquired assets There was no gain or loss and no goodwilll arising as the impairment on the foan was already calculated by reference to Protium's
net asset value of £5,856m.

As part of this transaction, US$750m of proceeds from a partial redemption of the loan to Protium was invested into Helix, an existing fund
managed by Protlum’s investment manager This represents a majonty interest in the fund, which has also been consolidated by The Group

The pre-acquisition carrying amount of the acquired assets and liabilities, stated in accordance with The Group's accounting policies, was equal to
their fair value on acquisition There was no gain or loss and no ansing on the transaction

Fair Values
£m
Assets
Trading portfolic assets 4,731
Financial assets designated at fair value 1,004
Derivative financial instruments 5
Loans and receivables 472
Reverse repurchase agreements 29
Other assets 46
Total assets 6,287
Liabilities
Deposits from banks 1
Trading portfollo liabilities 93
Financial habilities designated at fair values 76
Dervative financiai Instruments 23
Repurchase agreements 24
Other habilities 51
Total liabilities 268
Net assets acquired (group share 100%) 6,019
Considerations - cash 163
- loan 5,856
Total consideration 6,019

The Group's exposure to Protium prior to acguisition represented a loan Subsequent to acquisition the underlying assets held by Protium were
consolidated by The Group and have been Integrated into the corresponding business lines

The contribution of Protium and related underlying assets on The Group’s profit before tax for the year of £55m reflected a £223m imparrment
release and £36m interest income on the |oan prior to acquisition, offset by £204m post acquisition fair value reductions in the underlying assets
offsets by gains ansing on the unwind of structured assets Post acquisition losses comprised £27m gain on US sub prime and Alt-A, £249m losses
on commercial mortgage backed secunties, £92m gans on CDO and other assets, £56m of net interest and other income, £74m of funding
charges and£56m of fees to Protlum’s investment manager

The £50m consideration pald by Protium to redeem the remaining interest held by its investment manager represents the settlement of an existing
liabiity As pre-acquisition impairment was calculated by reference to Protium’s net asset value, this amount was reflected in the impairment
charge and did not give nse to a loss on acquisition

At the acqusition date, the contractual amounts due 1o maturity an the acguired assets were £28bn These assets are pre dominantly held for
trading purposes so are not expected to be held to matunty

Acquisition related costs of Enul have been included in operating expenses The aggregate net outflow from acquisition duning the year was £163m
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39 Acquisition of subsidiarles {continued)

During the year, Barclays acquired £2 1bn consumer credit card assets from Egg UK, a £130m corporate card portfolio from MBNA Europe Bank
Limited and US$1 4bn Upromise by Sallie Mae credit card portfolio from FIA Card Services, N A (part of Bank of Amenca) These acquisitions were
asset purchases and therefore, have not been included in the table above In addition Barclays acquired the Baubecon portfolio of German
residential properties following a debt restructuring transaction for £0 8bn The properties have a current fair value of £1bn and are accounted for
as investment properties

40 Investments n associates and joint ventures

Accounting for associates and joint ventures

Barclays applies 1AS 28 Investments in Associates and I1AS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures Associates are entities in which The Group has significant
influence, but not contral, over its operating and financial policies Generally The Group holds more than 20%, but less than 50%, of their voting
shares Joint Ventures are entities whose activities are governed by a contractual arrangement between The Group and one or more parties to share
equally in decisions regarding operating and financial policies

The Group’s investments in associates and Joint ventures are initially recorded at cost and increased (or decreased) each year by The Group’s share
of the post acquisition profit (or loss) In some cases, nvestments in these entities may be held at fair value through profit or loss, for example,
those held by private equity businesses

2011 2010
£m £m

Investment in associates 169 261
Investment in joint ventures 258 257
Total 427 518

Summarised financial mformation for The Group's associates and joint ventures 15 set out below The amounts shown are assets, habilities and net
income of the investees, not just The Group’s share, as at and for the year ended 31 December 2011 with the exception of certain undertakings for
which the amounts are based on accounts made up to dates not earher than three months before the balance sheet date

2011 2010
Assoclates Joint ventures Associates  Joint ventures
£m £m £m £m
Total assets 4,001 3,447 4,819 3,452
Total habilities 3,603 2,938 4,089 3,024
Profit/(loss) after tax 45 88 (167) 93

The Group's share of commutrments and centingencies of its associates and joint ventures was comprised of insurance guarantees of £nil (2010
£n) unutihsed credit faciliies provided to customers of £1,265m (2010 £1,237m)

41 Securitisations

Accounting for securitisations
The Group uses securitisations as a source of finance and a means of nsk transfer Such transactions generally result tn the transfer of contractual
cash flows from portfolios of financial assets to holders of 1ssued debt securities

Securitisations may, depending on the individual arrangement, result in continued recegrition of the securitised assets and the recognition of the
debt secunties 1ssued in the transaction, lead to partial continued recognition of the assets to the extent of The Croup’s continuing invoiverment in
those assets or to derecognition of the assets and the separate recognition, as assets or liabilities, of any rights and abligations created or retained
1 the transfer Full derecognition only occurs when The Group transfers both its contractual nght to receve cash flows from the financial assets, or
retains the contractual nghts to recewve the cash flows, but assurnes a contractual cbligation to pay the cash flows to another party without
material delay or reinvestment, and also transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership, including credit nsk, prepayment risk and
interest rate risk.

The Group is party to securitisation transactions for funding purposes, invohing its residential mortgage loans, business loans and credit card
balances In addition, The Group acts as a condunt for commercial paper, whereby it acquires static pools of residential mortgage loans from other
lending institutions for securitisation transactions  In these transactions, the assets, or Interests in the assets, or beneficial interests in the cash
flows arising from the assets, are transferred to a special purpose entity, or to a trust which then transfers its benefical interests to a special
purpose entity, which then issues floating rate debt securities to third-party investors
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41 Securitisations (continued)
The following table shows the carrying amount of securitised assets, stated at the amount of The Group’s continuing involvement where
appropnate, together with the associated liabilities, for each category of asset on the balance sheet

2011 2010
Carrying Carrying
amount of Associated amount of Associated
assets liabtlities assets liabiliies
£m £m £ £m
The Group
Loans and advances to customers
Residential mortgage lcans 7.946 (8,085) 9,709 {(10,674)
Credit card recervables 4,059 (3.477) 801 (723)
Whoalesale and corporate loans and advances 1,391 (1,428) 2,560 (2,878)
Total 13,396 {12,990) 13,070 {14,275)
Assets designated at fair value through profit or loss
Retained interest In residential mortgage loans 1 5
The Bank
Loans and advances to customers
Residential mortgage loans 6,230 (6,477) 6,700 (7.789)
Credit card recewables 3,913 (3.325) 362 (315)
Wholesale and corporate loans and advances 1,787 (1,843) 2,974 (3,355)
Total 11,930 {11,645) 10,036 {11,459)
Assets designated at fair value through profit or loss
Retained interest In residential mortgage loans 1 5

Balances included within loans and advances to customers represent securitisations where substantially all the nisks and rewards of the asset have
been retained by The Group As a result these securitisations represent secured financing, atthough for regulatory capital purposes they may give
nsk to a regulatory capital benefit due to risk shanng with investors

The excess of total associated habilities over the carrying amount of assets primarily reflects tirming differences in the receipt and payment of cash
flows, and foreign exchange movemants where the assets and assoclated habllities are denominated in different currencies Foreign exchange
movements and associated risks are hedged economically through the use of cross currency swap derivative contracts

Retained interests in residential mortgage loans are secunities which represent a continuing expesure to the prepayment and credit risk in the
underlying secuntised assets The total amount of the loans was £2,299m (2010 £15,458m) The retained interest is iniially recorded as an
allocation of the onginal carrying amount based on the relative fair values of the portion derecogmised and the portion retained

42 Off-balance sheet arrangements

1n the ordinary course of business and primarily to facilitate chent transactions, The Group enters into transactions which may involve the use of
off-balance sheet arrangements and speclat purpose entities (SPEs) These arrangements include the provision of guarantees, loan commitments,
retained interests in assets which have been transferred to an unconsolidated SPE or obligations ansing from The Group's involvements with such
SPEs

Guarantees

The Group 1ssues guarantees on behalf of its customers In the majority of cases, The Group wilk held collateral against the exposure, have a nght of
recourse to the customer or both In addition, The Group issues guarantees on its own behalf The main types of guarantees provided are- financial
guarantees given to banks and financial institutions on behalf of customers to secure loans, overdrafts, and other banking facilities, including stock
borrowing indemnities and standby letters of credit Other guarantees provided Include performance guarantees, advance payment guarantees,
tender guarantees, guarantees to Her Majesty’s Revenue and Customs and retention guarantees The nominal principal amount of contingent
liabilities with off-balance sheet risk 15 set out i Note 28

Loan commitments
The Group enters into commitments to lend to its customers subject to certain conditions Such loan commitments are made either for a fixed
perlod or are cancellable by The Group subject to notice condittans Information on loan commitments and similar facilities 1s set out in Note 28
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42 Off-balance sheet arrangements (continued)

Leasing

The Group leases vanous offices, branches, other premises and equipment under non-cancellable operating lease arrangements With such
operating lease arrangements, the asset is kept on the lessor's balance sheet and The Group reports the future memimum lease payments as an
expense over the lease term Information on leasing can be found in Note 25

SPEs
SPEs are entities that are created to accomplish a narrow and well defined objective There are often specific restnctions or lirits around their
ongoing activities The Group’s transactions with SPEs take a number of forms, including

- the prowision of financing to fund asset purchases, ar commitments to provide finance for future purchases,

- derivative transactions to provide investors in the SPE with a specified exposure,

- the provision of liquidity or backstop facilities which may be drawn upon if the SPE experiences future funding difficulties, and
- direct investment in the notes 1ssued by SPEs

A number of The Group’s transactions have recourse only to the assets of unconsalidated SPEs Typically, the majonty of the exposure to these
assats 1s borne by third parties and The Group’s risk 1s mitigated through over-callateralisahon, unwind features and other protective measures

The business actwities within The Group where SPEs are used include multi-seller condurt programmes, asset secunitisations, client intermediation,
credit structuring, asset realisations and fund management These actvities are described below In addition, fater sections provide quantitative
infarmation on The Group’s involvements with CDOs, SIVs SIV-Lites and conduits

Multi-seller conduit programmes

Barclays creates, administers and provides hquidity and credit enhancements to several commercial paper conduit programmes, primarily m the
United States These conduits provide clients access to hquidity in the commercial paper markets by allowing them to sell consumer or trade
receivables to the conduit, which then 1ssues commercial paper to investers te fund the purchase The conduits have sufficient collateral, credit
enhancements and liquidity support to maintain an investment grade rating for the commercial paper

Asset securitisations

The Group has assisted its customers with the formation of asset securitisations, some of which are effected through the use of SPEs These
entibies have rmimmal equity and rely on funding in the form of notes to purchase the assets for securitisation As these SPEs are created for other
companies, The Group does not usually control these entities and therefore does not consalidate them The Group may provide financing in the
form of senior notes or junior notes and may also provide dervatives to the SPE These transactions are included on the batance sheet

The Group has also used SPEs to securitise part of its originated and purchased retail and commercial lending portfolios and credit card receivables
These SPEs are usually consolidated and derecogmtion only occurs when The Group transfers its contractual right to receive cash flows from the
financial assets, or retains the contractual nights to receive the cash flows, but assumes a contractual abligation to pay the cash flows to another
party without material delay or reinvestment, and also transfers substantially all the nsks and rewards of ownership, including credit nisk,
prepayment risk and interest rate nsk The carrying amount of secuntised assets together with the associated habilities are set out in Note 41

Client intermediation

The Group has structured transactions as a financial intermediary to meet investor and clent needs These transactiens involve entities structured
by erther The Group or the client and are used to modify cash flows of third party assets to create investments with specific nsk or return profiles or
1o assist clients in the efficient management of other nisks Such transactions will typically result in a dervative being shown on the balance sheet,
representing The Group's exposure to the relevant asset The Group also invests n lessor entities specifically to acquire assets for leasing Client
ntermediation alse includes arrangements to fund the purchase or construction of specific assets {most common in the property industry)

Credit structuring

The Group structures investments to provide specific sk profiles to nvestors This may Involve the sale of credit exposures, often by way of
dervatives, to an entity which subsequently funds those exposures by 1ssuing securities These securities may initially be held by Barclays prior to
sale outside of The Group

Asset realisations
The Group establishes SPEs to faciktate the recovery of loans in arcumstances where the borrower has suffered financial loss

To the extent that there are guarantees and commutments in relation to SPEs the details are included in Note 28

Collateralised debt obligations (CDOs)

The Group has structured and underwnitten CDOs At inception, The Group’s exposure principally takes the form of a Iiquidity facility provided to
support future funding difficulties or cash shortfalls in the vehicles If required by the vehicle, the facility 1s drawn with the amount advanced
\ncluded within loans and advances on the balanice sheet. Upon an event of default or other triggenng event, The Group may acquire controfof a
CDO and, therefore, be required to fully consolidate the vehicle for accounting purposes The potential for transactions to hit default triggers before
the end of 2011 has been assessed and s included in the determination of a £6m creditimpairment charge and other provisions (2010 £137m
release) in relation to ABS COO Super Servor and other credit market exposures for the year ended 31 December 2011
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42 Off-balance sheet arrangements (continued)

The Group's exposure to ABS CDO Super Seniar positions before hedging was £1,842m as at 31 December 2011 {2010 £1,992m), equivalent to an
aggregate 51 68% (2010 50 97%) decline in value on average for all investors This represents The Group’s exposure to High Grade CDOs, stated
net of write downs and charges These facilities are fully drawn and included within loans and advances on the balance sheet

Collateral

The collatera} underlying unconsclidated CDOs comprised 78% (2010 78%) residential mortgage-backed secunties, 2% {2010 3%) nen-
residential asset-backed securities and 20% (2010 19%) in other categories (a proportion of which will be backed by residential mortgage
collateral) The remaining Weighted Average Life (WAL} of all collateral 15 7 41 years (2010 6 25 years) The combined Net Asset Value (NAV) for
all of the CDOs was £1bn (2010 £1bn)

Funding

The CDOs were funded with semor unrated notes and rated notes up to AAA. The capital structure senior to the AAA notes on cash CDOs was
supported by a iquidity facility provided by The Group The senior portion covered by liquidity faciities 1s on average 82% of the capital structure
The inial WAL of the notes in 1ssue averaged 6 7 years (2010 6 7 years) The full contractual maturity 1s 38 2 years (2010 38 2 years)

Interests in third party CDOs

The Group has purchased securities in and entered into derivative instruments with third party CDOs These interests are held as trading assets or
liabilities on The Group's balance sheet and measured at fair value The Group has not prowided iquidity facilities or sirmilar agreements to third
party CDOs

Structured investment vehicles (51Vs)
The Group does not structure or manage SIVs Group exposure to third party SIVs compnsed £mil (2010 Enil} of senior hquidity facilities and
dervative exposures included on the balance sheet at their net fair value of £6m (2010 £46m)

SIV-Lites
The Group has no exposure to a SIV-Lite transaction The Group 1s not involved in its ongoing management Exposures have decreased to £nil
{2010 £345m) representing assets designated at farr value

Commerclal paper {CP) and medium-term note conduits

The Group provided £14bn (2010 £17bn} in undrawn backstop hquidity facilities to its own sponsored CP cenduits The Group fully consolidates
these entities such that the underlying assets are reflected on The Group balance sheet These consolidated entities in turn prowvide facilities of
£717m {2010 £740m)} to third party conduits containing prime UK buy-to-let Residential Mortgage Backed Secunties (RMBS) assets As at 31
December 2011, the entire facility had been drawn and 1s included i available for sale financial investments

The Group provided backstop facilities to support the paper issued by one third party conduwit This facility totalled £259m (2010 £129m}), with
underiying collateral comprising 100% auto loans There were no drawings on this facility as at 31 December 2011

The Group provided backstop facilities to five third party SPEs that fund themselves with medwim term notes These notes are sold to investors as a
senes of 12 month securities and remarketed to investors annually If investors decline to renew their holdings at a price below a pre-agreed
spread, the backstep facility requires The Group to purchase the outstanding notes at scheduled matunty The Group has provided facilities of
£09bn (2010 £1 2bn) to SPEs holding prime UK and Australian owner-occupled RMBS assets As at the balance sheet date these facilities had
been drawn and were included in loans and advances



Barclays Bank PLC Annual Report 2011 www barclays com/annualreport I 195

43 Assets pledged

Assets are pledged as collateral to secure habilities under repurchase agreements, secunitisations and stock lending agreements or as secunty
deposits relating to derivatives The following table summarises the nature and carrying amount of the assets pledged as security against these
labilities

The Group The Bank
2011 2010 2011 2010
£m £m £m £Em
Trading portfolio assets 86,677 111,703 50,354 54,716
Loans and advances 40,613 30,584 38,729 27,550
Available for sale investments 19,974 22,941 17,203 18,907
Other 2 45 - -
Assets Pledged 147,266 165,273 106,286 101,173

As at 31 December 2011, Barclays has an additonal £16bn loans and advances within its asset backed funding programs that can readily be used
to raise additional secured funding and available to support future 1ssuance

Collateral held as security for assets
Under certain transactions, including reverse repurchase agreements and stock borrowing transactions, The Group 15 allowed to resell or repledge
the collateral held The fair value at the balance sheet date of collateral accepted and repledged to others was as follows

The Group The Bank
2011 2c10 2o 2010
£m £m £m £m
Fair value of securities accepted as collateral 391,287 422,890 419,462 394,851
Of which fair value of secunties repledged/transferred to cthers 341,060 347,557 334,527 358,593

The full disclosure as per IFRS7 has been included in collateral and other credit enhancements {page 35 to 38)
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Other disclosure matters

This section details other disclosure matters, comprising related party transactions, directors
remuneration, reference to detailed nsk disclosures and events after the balance sheet date. Related party
transactions include any subsidiaries, associates, joint ventures, entities under common directorships and
key management personnel. Events after the balance sheet date represent noteworthy matters up to the
date of approval of the annual report. These events are those that may be considered significant to
shareholders and the reported financial position of The Group

44 Related party transactions and Directors’ remuneration

a) Related party transactions

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to contro! the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making
financlal or operation decisions, or one other party controls both The definition includes subsidianes, associates, joint ventures and The Group's
pension schemes, as well as other persons.

(i} The Group
Parent company
The parent company, which 1s aiso the ultimate parent company, 1s Barclays PLC, which holds 100% of the issued ordinary shares of Barclays Bank PLC

Subsidiaries
Transactions between Barclays Bank Pt.C and subsidiaries also meet the definition of related party transactions Where these are eliminated on
consolidation, they are not disclosed in The Group financial statements A list of The Group's principal subsidiarles is shown in Note 38

Associates, joint ventures and other entities

The Group provides banking services to its associates, joint ventures, The Group pension funds {principally the UK Retirement Fund) and to entities
under common directorships, providing foans, overdrafts, Interest and non-interest bearing deposits and current accounts to these entities as well as
other services Group companles also prowide investment management and custodian services to The Group pension schemes The Group also
provides banking services for unit trusts and investment funds managed by Group companies and are not individually material All of these transactions
are conducted on the same terms as third-party transactions

Entities under commeon directorships

The Group enters into normal commerclal relationships with entities for which members of The Group's Board also serve as Directors The amounts
included in The Group's financial staterments relating to such entities that are not publicly hsted are shown in the table opposite under Entities under
common directorships

Amounts Included in the accounts, in aggregate, by category of related party entity are as follows

Pension funds,
Entities under NIt trusts and

common Investment
Assoclates loint ventures directorships funds®
£m £m £m £m
For the year ended and as at 31 December 2011
Income (40) 20 1 17
Impalrment (2) (6) - -
Total Assets 176 1,529 364 -
Total Liabilities 36 454 112 182
For the year ended and as at 31 December 2010
Incorme 19 (15) 10 -
Impairment (5) 9) - -
Total Assets 135 2,113 45 -
Total Liabllities 28 477 110 142

No guarantees, pledges or commitments have been given or received in respect of these transactions In 2011 or 2010 Derivatives transacted on behalf
of the Pensions Funds Unit, Trusts and Investment Funds were £568 3m (2010 £206 8m)°

a 2010 balances have been revised to include cash callateral, deposit balances and derivatives transacted on behalf of Pension Funds Unit Trusts and Investment Funds
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44 Related party transactions and Directors’ remuneration (continued)
(i) The Bank

Subsidiaries

Details of principal subsidiaries are shown in Note 38

The Bank provides certain banking and financial services to subsidiaries as well as a number of normal current and interest bearing cash accounts to
The Group pension funds (principally the UK Retirement Fund) in order to facilitate the day to day financial admirustration of the funds

Group companies also provide investment management and custodian services The Bank also provides normal banking services for unit trusts and
investment funds managed by Group companies These transactions are conducted on similar terms to third-party transactions and are not indwidually

matenal

In aggregate, amounts included n the accounts are as follows

Pension
funds,
Entities unit trusts
under and
Joint common  'nvestment
Subsidiaries  Associates ventures directorships funds®
£m £m £rm £m Em
For the year ended and as at 31 December 2011
Total assets 327,898 176 1,529 364 -
Total habilities 349,205 36 454 112 182
For the year ended and as at 31 December 2010
Total assets 377,797 135 2,113 45 -
Total liabilities 392,770 28 477 110 142

It 15 the normai practice of the Bank to provide its subsidianies with support and assistance by way of guarantees, indemnities, letters of comfort and
commutments, as may be appropriate, with a view to enabling thern to meet their obligations and to maintain their goed standing, including
commtment of capital and facilities

For dividends paid to Barclays PLC see Note 12

Key Management Personnel

The Group’s Key Management Perscnnel, and persons connected with thern, are also considered to be related parties for disclosure purposes Key
Management Persennel are defined as those persons having authonty and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of Barclays
Bank PLC (directly or indirectly) and compnse the Directars of Barclays Bank PLC and the Officers of The Group, certain direct reports of the Group
Chief Executive and the heads of major business units

There were no material related party transactions with Entities under common directorship where a Director or other member of Key Management
Personnel (or any connected person) 1s also a Director or other member of Key Management Personnel {or any connected person) of Barclays

The Group provides banking services to Directors and other Key Management Personnel and persons connected to them Transactions during the year
and the balances outstanding at 31 December 2011 were as follows

Notes
a 2010 balances have been revised to Include cash collateral deposit balances and derlvatives transacted on behalf of Pension Funds, Unit Trusts and Investment Funds.
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44 Related party transactions and Directors’ remuneration (continued)
Directors, other Xey Management Personnel and connected persons

20M1 2010

£m £m

Loans cutstanding at 1 January 48 70
Loans issued during the year o7 05
Loan repayments during the year 07) (22)
Loans outstanding at 31 December 48 53

Mo allowances for impairment were recagrised in respect of loans to Owectors or other members of Key Management Personnel {or any connected
person}in 2011 or 2010

2011 2010

£m £m

Deposits outstanding at 1 January 35.0 303
Deposits received during the year 2442 1049
Deposits repaid dunng the year (240.4) (99 3)
Deposits outstanding at 31 Decernber 388 359
Interest expense on deposits 01 -

Of the loans outstanding abave, £0m (2010 £0 5m) relates to Directors and other Key Management Personnel (and persons connected to them) who
left during the year Of the deposits outstanding above, £1 1m (2010 £0 2m) relates to Directors and other Key Management Personnel (and persons
connected to them) who left The Group during the year The amounts disclosed as at 1 anuary includes deposits outstanding for those who became
Directors or Key Management Personnel during the year

All loans to Directors and other Key Management Personnel {and persons connected to thern) (a) were made in the ordinary course of business, (b)
were made on substantially the sarme terms, Including Interest rates and collateral, as those prevailing at the same time for comparable transactions
with other persons and (c) did not involve more than a normal risk of collectability or present other unfavourable features, with the exception of £3,465
{2010 £2,120) provided on an interest free basis

The loan of £3,465 (2010- £2,120) provided on an interest free basis was granted to a non-Director member of Barclays key management to purchase
commuter rall tickets The maximum lean outstanding during the year was £4,620 (2010 £4,240) Commuter rai ticket loans are provided to all
Barclays staff members upon request on the same terms

Remuneration of Directors and other Key Management Personnel

Total remuneration awarded to Directors and other Key Management Personnel below represents the awards made to individuals that have been
approved by the Board Remuneration Commuttee as part of the latest payround decisions Costs recognised in the income statement reflect the
accounting charge for the year included within operating expenses The difference between the values awarded and the recognised income statement
charge principally relates to the recognition of deferred costs for prior year awards Figures are provided for the penod that individuals met the
definition of Directors and other Key Management Personnel
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44 Related party transactions and Directors’ remuneration (continued)

Directors, other Key Management Personnel and connected persons

2011 2010
£m £m
Salaries 211 283
Employer social security costs 91 125
Post retirement benefits 04 10
Share-based payment awards 337 393
Other long-term benefit awards 391 419
Costs recognised for accounting purposes 103 4 1230
Employer social security costs {91) (1zs)
Share-based payment awards - difference between awards granted and costs recogrised (7z7n (209)
Other long term benefit - difference between awards granted and costs recognised (14 2) {9 2)
Total remuneration awarded 624 804
b) Disclosure required by the Companies Act 2006
The following information 1s presented in accordance with the Companies Act 2006
2011 2010
£m £m
Aggregate emoluments 159 158
Amounts paid under long-term incentive schemes 58 70
217 228

There were no pension contributions pald to defined contribution schemes on behalf of Directors (2010 £13,588, one Director) There were no
notional pension contributions to defined contribution schemes

As at 31 December 2011, there were no Directors accruing benefits under a defined benefit scheme (2010 one Director)
Of the figures in the table above, the amounts attributable to the highest paid Cirector are as follows

201 2010

£m £m

Aggregate emoluments 109 70
Amounts paid under long-term incentive schemes 55 56
Accrued pension - 01

There were no actual pension contributions paid to defined contribution schemes (2010- £13,588) There were no notional pension contributions to
defined contribution schermes in 2011 or 2010

Advances and credit to Directors and guarantees on behalf of Directors
In accardance with Section 413 of the Companies Act 2006 and in relation to those who served as Directors of the Company at any time in the financial
year, the total amount of advances and credits at 31 December 2011 was £nil (2010 £nil)




